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We own or have rights to various trademarks, cgbys and trade names used in our business incltld@nfpllowing: GILEAD®,
GILEAD SCIENCES®, HEPSERA®, VIREAD®, VISTIDE®, DAUNXOME®, AMBISOME®, EMTRIVA®, TRUVADA®. MACUGEN®
is a registered trademark belonging to EyetechriRaesuticals, Inc., SUSTIVA® is a registered traddaud Bristol-Myers Squibb Company
and TAMIFLU® is a registered trademark belonginddmffmannia Roche. This report also includes other trademarvice marks and tre
names of other companies.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forward-looking statementspémticular, statements about our expectationgefseplans, objectives or assumptions
of future events or performance are contained asriporated by reference in this report. We haveddasese forward-looking statements on
our current expectations about future events. Whédebelieve these expectations are reasonableafdrl@oking statements are inherently
subject to risks and uncertainties, many of whighkeeyond our control. Our actual results may diffiaterially from those suggested by these
forward-looking statements for various reasonduitiog those discussed in this report under thalinga'Risk Factors That Affect Gilead”
beginning at page 15. Given these risks and urin@és, you are cautioned not to place undue reéaon forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements included in this reod made only as of the date hereof. We do notrtaideand specifically decline any
obligation to update any of these statements pulicly announce the results of any revisionsrtp rward looking statements to reflect
future events or developments. When used in thertepnless otherwise indicated, “we,” “our” ands"uefers to Gilead and its subsidiaries.

Overview

Gilead Sciences, Inc. is a biopharmaceutical comizat discovers, develops and commercializes fpeerécs to advance the care of
patients suffering from life-threatening disead®'s. are a multinational company with eight appropesducts. We focus our research and
clinical programs on anti-infectives. We are segkimadd to our existing portfolio of products thgh our internal discovery and clinical
development programs and through an active praatguisition and in-licensing strategy.

Our worldwide headquarters are in Foster City, fOGalia and our European headquarters are in Haasce. We were incorporated in
Delaware on June 22, 1987.

Our Products

« Viread is an oral formulation of a nucleotide analogueerse transcriptase inhibitor, dosed once a daygdopcombination therapy -
treat human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) infectionadults. We sell Viread in the United States tigto our U.S. commercial team
and wholesalers, in the major European countriesitih our European commercial team and distributord in Japan through our
corporate partner, Japan Tobacco. W e have angixe/worldwide license to patent rights and relaezhnology for Viread from the
Institute of Organic Chemistry and Biochemistryr{p the Academy of Sciences of the Czech Repybld Rega Stichting v.z.w.
(together, IOCB/REGA).

« Emtrivais an oral formulation of a nucleoside analoguesrse transcriptase inhibitor, dosed once a dayad®pa combination
therapy to treat HIV infection in adults. We sethfiva in the United States through our U.S. conuiaéteam and wholesalers and in
the major European countries through our Europeamueercial team and distributors. We have an exadysiorldwide license to
patent rights and related technology for EmtrivarfrEmory University.

« Truvadais an oral tablet dosed once a day as part of dic@tion therapy to treat HIV infection in adullsis a fixed-dose
combination of our anti-HIV medications Emtriva avilead. Truvada combines 200 mg of emtricitabBm{riva) and 300 mg of
tenofovir disoproxil fumarate (Viread). Truvadeacigrently sold in the United States through our.l¢@nmercial team and wholesals
Our international commercial team began launchingrada in the European Union following recent




regulatory approval in February 2005. We have arusive, worldwide license to patent rights andited technology for the
components of Truvada from IOCB/REGA and Emory lémsity.

AmBisomeis a proprietary liposomal formulation of amphateriB, a powerful antifungal agent to treat seriowasive fungal
infections caused by various fungal species. Biveehg amphotericin B in our proprietary liposonfiatmulation, AmBisome reduces
the rate and severity of kidney toxicity and injentrelated reactions associated with amphotefcand allows patients to receive
higher doses of amphotericin B. AmBisome is apptdiee sale in more than 45 countries, includingthited States and the countries
of the European Union. In more than 20 of the coestwhere AmBisome is approved, including the EhiBtates, we are authorized to
promote AmBisome for empirical treatment of fungeiéctions, that is, treatment of patients whestrang suspicion, without definite
confirmation, exists for a potentially lifilreatening invasive fungal infection. In the reniag countries, AmBisome is approved for
either as first-line treatment of serious invadivegal infection or as second-line treatment aftarventional amphotericin B therapy
fails or when conventional amphotericin B cannotdlerated. We market AmBisome in the major coestof Europe and co-promote
AmBisome in the United States with Fujisawa Healtle¢ Inc. (Fujisawa).

Hepsera is an oral formulation of a nucleotide analoguediitis B virus (HBV) DNA polymerase inhibitor, datence a day to treat
chronic hepatitis B. Hepsera is approved for saklé United States for the treatment of chronjuattiéis B in adults with evidence of
active viral replication and either evidence ofgigent elevations in serum aminotransferases (&LAST) or histologically active
liver disease. Our U.S. commercial team and whi#desaell Hepsera in the United States. We sellsidepin the major European Un
countries through our European commercial teamdistdbutors. We have licensed the rights to conuiaéize Hepsera solely for the
treatment of hepatitis B in China, Japan, Koreayag, the rest of Asia, Latin America and certatines territories to GlaxoSmithKline
(GSK), which launched Hepsera in Japan, South KangiaTaiwan in 2004 . We have an exclusive, wordigwicense to patent rights
and related technology for adefovir dipivoxil frd@CB/REGA.

Vistide is an antiviral medication for the treatment ofayegalovirus (CMV) retinitis in patients with AIDEMV retinitis is a
condition characterized by lesions that form oragnt’s retina that affects persons with weakeénmedune systems and is most
common in patients with AIDS. Vistide is approved $ale and is sold in the United States by our. to&mercial team, and by
Gilead’'s ex-U.S. partner, Pfizer Inc. (Pfizer) (farly Pharmacia Corporation), in 25 countries Far treatment of CMV retinitis in
patients with AIDS.

DaunoXomeis a liposomal formulation of the anticancer aggauinorubicin. It is approved for sale and has ksedchin more than 20
countries for the treatment of AIDS-related Kapssidrcoma. It is sold in the United States by o&. dommercial team and by
independent distributors abroad. In December 2@@3jecided to discontinue selling this product; beer, in 2004, we subsequently
received unanticipated requests in Europe to rédenselling DaunoXome. We are continuing to d&B product in a limited number
countries and are currently evaluating our supply sales strategy with regard to this product.

Other Royalty Sources

Macugen is an anti-angiogenic injection for the treatmefmi@ovascular age-related macular degeneration (AMBe drug is an
inhibitor of vascular endothelial growth factor (&E), which is known to play a role in the developinef certain ophthalmic diseases.
Macugen was approved by the FDA in the United Statéecember 2004 and began selling in January.2lfe product is not yet
approved outside the United States. Macugen waslojed by Eyetech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.




(Eyetech), using technology licensed from us. Egfeteolds the exclusive rights to manufacture afid@cugen worldwide, subject to
Eyetechs obligation to pay us a percentage of the netmes® that Eyetech generates from Macugen saledthats to the technolo
we license to Eyetech expire in 2017 in the Unfi¢ates and Europe.

< Tamiflu is an oral pill for the treatment and preventionrdfuenza A and B. Tamiflu is in a class of préston drugs called
neuraminidase inhibitors. Tamiflu is approved inrenthan 60 countries, including the United Stalapan and the countries of the
European Union for treatment of influenza in chéldiand adults. Tamiflu is also approved in the éthiBtates and the European Union
for the prevention of influenza in adolescents addlts. We developed Tamiflu with F. HoffmahaRoche Ltd (Roche), and Roche |
the exclusive right to manufacture and sell Tamiflorldwide, subject to its obligation to pay useaqentage of the net revenues that
Roche generates from Tamiflu sales, subject toattmufor certain defined manufacturing costs .

The following table lists aggregate product satesour major products (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
% of % of % of
Product Product Product
Sales Sales Sales
Viread $ 782,91F 63% $566,47¢ 68% $225,81¢ 53%
Emtriva 57,60C 5% 10,021 1% —
Truvada 67,865 5% - = - =
Total HIV products 908,38( 73% 576,49¢ 69% 225,81¢ 53%
AmBisome 211,68¢ 17% 198,35( 24% 185,66¢ 44%
Other 122,15€  10% 61,492 7% 12,398 3%
Total product sales $1,242,22« 1000, $836,34! 1000, $423,87¢ 100y

See Note 16 of the Consolidated Financial Statesrfentiinancial information about each geographeaan which our products are
marketed.

Our Products in Clinical Trials
Research & Development

We are seeking to add to our existing portfoligpafducts through our internal discovery and clihdevelopment programs and through
an active product acquisition and in-licensingtstgg, such as our acquisition of Triangle Pharmacalg, Inc. completed in January 2003. We
have research scientists in Foster City and SaraBji@alifornia and Durham, North Carolina engagetthé discovery and development of r
molecules and technologies that we hope will l@adetw medicines and novel formulations of existinggs. Our therapeutic focus is in the
area of life threatening infectious diseases. Tésgarch includes working with our proprietary eoatide analogues to develop treatments for
viral infections, particularly HIV and hepatitisi@fection. In total, our research and developmB®&ID) expenses for 2004 were $223.6
million, compared with $181.8 million for 2003 afiti41.9 million for 2002.

Our research efforts in the area of hepatitis @/ifection (HCV) include our collaborations wi@hiron Corporation (Chiron), Genelabs
Technologies (Genelabs) and Achillion Pharmacelsti¢ac. (Achillion). In August 2003, we entereddran agreement with Chiron, to
research, develop and commercialize small molebaepeutics against certain HCV drug targets.dtof@er 2004, we entered into a research
and development agreement with Genelabs Technal¢Gienelabs) to discover, develop and commercialiméeoside, RNA polymerase
inhibitors for the treatment of HCV infection. IroMember 2004, we entered into a research and dawelat agreement with Achillion to
discover and commercialize novel inhibitors of H&lication. In addition, we have several in-hopssgrams




designed to discover small molecule inhibitors @\HRNA polymerase and HCV protease. While we belithat small molecule therapeutics
for the treatment of HCV infection could one dagdeo better treatment outcomes for patients, puagrams will require extensive
investments and will take many years. See Notef bdmsolidated financial statements for furthecdssion.

Commercial Operations

We have U.S. and international commercial salesatipms. We have marketing subsidiaries in Austrdlianada, France, Germany,
Greece, Ireland, Italy, New Zealand, Portugal, 8paid in the United Kingdom.

Our commercial teams promote our HIV and HBV pradu¥iread, Emtriva, Truvada and Hepsera, througéctfield contact with
physicians, hospitals, clinics and other healthpaogiders who are involved in the treatment ofguats with HIV (for our HIV products) or
chronic hepatitis B (for Hepsera). The teams ateonpte AmBisome to infectious disease specialimmatologists, intensive care units,
hospitals, home health care providers and canemiajsts.

In some countries outside of the United Stateshawe agreements with third-party distributors, tidahg distributors in certain countries
where we have marketing operations, to promotéasel distribute our products. These internatiahstribution agreements generally provide
that the distributor has the exclusive right td eak or more of our products in a particular coyor several countries for a specified period of
time.

In December 2002, we announced a program pursoaviiicth we sell Viread at our cost to all countiiieg\frica and to the fifteen other
countries designated “Least Developed” by the WhiNations. We expanded this program in August 200dclude Truvada. We are taking
steps to ensure that the Viread and Truvada preduwdtl under this program are used to serve patieithe developing world and are not
diverted to other markets. See “International [hsttion.”

Collaborative Relationships

As part of our business strategy, we establislabolations with other companies to assist in thnécell development and/or
commercialization of certain of our products anddurct candidates and to provide support for ourarsh programs. We also evaluate
opportunities for acquiring products or rights togucts and technologies that are complementaoytdusiness from other companies. The
description and accounting for each of these @iatiips can be found in Note 10 to our consolidéitethcial statements included in this
report. The following list is representative of mallaborative relationships:

Collaborator Program Area Year of Signing
Bristol-Myers Squibb HIV 2004
Achillion HCV 2004
Genelabs HCV 2004
Japan Tobacc HIV 2003
GlaxoSmithKline Hepsere 2002
Archemix SELEX technology 2001
Eyetech Macugen 200C
Roche Tamiflu 199¢€
Pfizer Vistide 199¢€
Fujisawa AmBisome 1991




Bristol-Myers Squibb Company

In December 2004, we entered into a collaboratgmeement with Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (BMSy&velop and commercialize
the fixed-dose combination of Gilead's Truvada BMIS’'s Sustiva® (efavirenz) in the United StatesuBtured as a joint venture, Gilead and
BMS formed the limited liability company, Bristoly#rs Squibb & Gilead Sciences, LLC. If approvee, tlew product would be the first
complete Highly Active Antiretroviral Therapy (HAAR treatment regimen for HIV available in a fixedsg combination taken once daily.
Fixed-dose combinations contain multiple mediciftemulated together and may help simplify HIV thgydor patients and providers.
Through the joint venture, the companies will workpartnership to complete development and U.Suleggry filings for this fixed-dose
regimen. Subject to receiving marketing approvaheffixed-dose regimen, the companies will shasponsibility for commercializing the
product in the United States. Both companies wiMile funding and field-based sales representaiiveupport of promotional efforts for the
combination product. Under the terms of the coltation, Gilead and BMS will grant royalty-free sigeinses to the joint venture for the use of
their respective company-owned technologies ankl iwiteturn, be granted a license to use jointated intellectual property. Gilead’s and
BMS’ ownership interests in the joint venture, whieflect their respective economic interests based on the fraction of the net selling price
of the fixed-dose combination product attributatold ruvada and Sustiva, respectively, and will Bgisted on an annual basis. Since the net
selling price for Truvada may change over timetiedeto the net selling price of Sustiva, both jorenturers’ respective economic interests in
the joint venture may vary annually.

Academic and Consulting Relationships

To supplement our research and development effastpart of our regular business we enter intongements with universities and
medical research institutions. These arrangemdtes provide us with rights to patents, patent egapilons and technology owned by these
institutions in return for payments and fees ratatio our use of these rights.

Emory University and University of Georgia Research Foundation, Inc.

Emtricitabine. In April 1996, Triangle obtained, and in Jaryu2003, we acquired as part of our acquisition drigle, an exclusive
worldwide license to all of Emory University’s righto purified forms of emtricitabine for use iretHlV and the HBYV fields. We are obligated
to make certain milestone and royalty paymentsnmiy, including annual minimum royalties beginnthg third year after the first FDA
registration is granted for an anti-HIV productongorating the emtricitabine technology in the @diStates and the third year after the first
registration is granted for an anti-HBV productarmorating the emtricitabine technology in certaiajor market countries, for the HIV and
HBV indications, respectively. In 2002, Triangleghe paying license maintenance fees because devetdpnilestones had not yet been
achieved.

In May 1999, Emory and GSK settled their litigatipending in the United States District Court reigtio emtricitabine, and we became
the exclusive licensee of all U.S. and foreign ptste@nd patent applications filed by Burroughs Wetie Co. on the use of emtricitabine to
treat hepatitis B. Under settlement agreementareebligated to pay royalties to GSK on net safggoducts containing emtricitabine. In
addition, we and Emory also received access toldpre=nt and clinical data and drug substance held®K relating to emtricitabine.

In May 2002, Emory, GSK and Shire Pharmaceuticatau@, plc (Shire) settled worldwide patent dispute®Iving lamivudine and
emtricitabine. Under the terms of the settlemempBy received an exclusive license from Shire urtére’s patents relating to emtricitabine
and methods for its use and manufacture and Shit&s8K received exclusive licenses under Enmmpgtents relating to lamivudine. Under
terms of our license agreement with Emory, we aattally acquired an exclusive sublicense




to the Shire patents relating to emtricitabine tgdrunder the terms of the settlement, therebyliegpall previously pending patent disputes
regarding emtricitabine.

M.D. Anderson Cancer Center

In 1994, we entered into an agreement with the Muiderson Cancer Center relating to Hepsera. Uthdeagreement, we currently pay
M.D. Anderson Cancer Center a percentage of netigas based upon our sales of Hepsera. The agreeittei.D. Anderson Cancer Cen
terminates the later of patent expiration or teargdrom first commercial sale.

|OCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, we entered into agreements WIGB/REGA relating to Viread, Hepsera and Vistidd aobsequently amended the
agreements in 2004 to include Truvada. Under thgseements, we received from IOCB/REGA the exchusight to manufacture, use and ¢
the nucleotide compounds covered by these agresmgnder the agreements, we pay a percentage ofveatues based upon sales of Viread,
Truvada, Hepsera and Vistide to IOCB/REGA. The agrents with IOCB/REGA terminate on an individualiotry basis on the later of pate
expiration or ten years from first commercial séfeaddition, IOCB/REGA may terminate the licenfmsa particular product in a key market
in the absence of commercial sales of that progitbin 12 months after regulatory approval.

University License Equity Holdings, Inc.

We have an ongoing collaborative arrangement wittvélsity License Equity Holdings, Inc., (ULEHI}e successor to University
Technology Corporation and its predecessor UnitseRésearch Corporation, a technology holding comggar the University of Colorado at
Boulder, relating to its SELEX technology to idéptptamers. Under this arrangement, ULEHI hastgrhos all of its present and future
rights to inventions covered by patents and patpptications for SELEX technology, improvementSt#®LEX technology it makes or
discovers, oligonucleotides or other moleculesakes using SELEX technology and computer softwalsged to SELEX technology. We are
required to pay ULEHI certain variable royaltieséd on revenues generated from sales of produdtedeising the SELEX technology,
including those revenues based our license agrdeninEyetech relating to Macugen

Developing World Collaborations
The Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation & Family Health I nternational

In October 2002, we entered into an agreementthélBill & Melinda Gates Foundation and Family Hedhternational (FHI) to provid
Viread for FHI's multinational clinical trial evasiing Viread’s effectiveness as a method of reduttie risk of HIV infection among sexually
active adults who are regularly exposed to HIV. Thmical trials, to be conducted by FHI, are fudds a $6.5 million, three-year grant from
the Gates Foundation.

The DART Study

In November 2002, we entered into a collaboratiyeement with the Medical Research Council (MRChefUnited Kingdom,
Boehringer Ingelheim GmBH and GSK in connectiorhvétfive-year clinical study conducted by the MRCamtiretroviral HIV therapy in
Africa. The trial is called the DART Trialld evelopment ofA nti R etroviral T herapy in Africa) and is aimed at studying clinieatsus
laboratory monitoring practices and structuredtimeat interruptions versus continuous antiretrdhiarapy in adults with HIV infection in
sub-Saharan Africa. We have agreed to provide diegano cost for the DART study.




The Institute for One World Health

In January 2003, we entered into an agreementthétnstitute for One World Health, pursuant to ethive will provide AmBisome at
our cost for a Phase 3 clinical trial evaluating Bisome for the treatment of visceral leishmaniasth paromomycin in India, which has the
greatest global burden of visceral leishmaniadi® dlinical trial will be conducted by the Instiguior One World Health in partnership with
World Health Organization.

International Distribution

We have various agreements with distributors iroRar Asia, Latin America, the Middle East and Adribat grant these distributors the
exclusive right to sell Viread, Emtriva, HepseranBisome and DaunoXome in a particular country amtoes for a specified period of time.
Most of these agreements also provide for collabarafforts between us and the distributor forading regulatory approval for the product
in the particular country and for marketing thedurat in the country. Most of these agreements &skaé price that the distributor must pay
our product and require us to deliver quantitiethefproduct ordered by the distributor.

Manufacturing
AmBisome

We manufacture AmBisome in commercial quantitiesivio separate but adjacent facilities in San DinGadifornia. The Medicines
Control Agency of the United Kingdom and the FDA/&@approved the commercial production of AmBisoméhe facilities in which it is
produced. To import AmBisome into the European Wnise own a manufacturing facility in Dublin, Irathwhere we perform quality control
testing, final labeling, packaging and distributfonthe European Union and elsewhere.

We use commercially available materials and equigrteemanufacture these products. Currently, waiolihe amphotericin B and the
cholesterol that we use to manufacture AmBisommfsingle approved suppliers.

AmBisome is sold as a freeze-dried product. Weenly freeze-dry AmBisome at our San Dimas manufaag facility and also use a
third party to freeze-dry additional product asdegk Given our current projections for AmBisome ded we believe we have sufficient
capacity to meet future demand. We also have thieropf installing additional freeze-drying capadih San Dimas should such additional
supply become necessary. If we were unable tolirstditional freeze-drying capacity in San Dimadaxate appropriate third parties to meet
this need, our ability to meet increased AmBisoramand would be diminished.

Macugen

We manufacture Macugen in commercial quantitiesuat-DA approved facilities in San Dimas, Calif@nunder our manufacturing
agreement with Eyetech. We use commercially aviglataterials and equipment to manufacture thisyebdCurrently, Eyetech provides the
raw materials used in the manufacture of Macugeriuding pegaptanib sodium, the active ingredieriflacugen, through single approved
suppliers contracted by Eyetech.

As part of the manufacturing process, we curregmtbduce and fill Macugen at our San Dimas manufagacility. Given Eyetech’s
current projections for Macugen demand, we beliggdhave sufficient capacity to meet future demaiid.also have the option of installing
additional production and filling capacity in Saimias should such additional supply become necesarg were unable to install additional
production and filling capacity in San Dimas ordtes appropriate third parties to meet this needability to meet increased Macugen demand
would be diminished.




Macugen is sold in liquid form and is filled intgrerges in our San Dimas facilities. These syringessupplied by a single approved
supplier contracted by Eyetech.

Antiviral Products

We contract with third parties to manufacture autivdral drugs for clinical and commercial purposeeluding Viread, Emtriva, Truvad
Hepsera and Vistide.

We manufacture tenofovir disoproxil fumarate butkgisubstance through two contract manufacturersad tablets are manufactured
through two contract manufacturers.

We manufacture emtricitabine bulk drug substanoeuih two contract manufacturers. Emtriva table¢sraanufactured by one contract
manufacturer for us and a second contract manufadiicurrently being qualified.

We manufacture Truvada tablets through a singléraohmanufacturer for the United States and arsbcontract manufacturer is
currently being qualified.

We have obtained qualification in the United Stated European Union for two contract manufactuf@radefovir dipivoxil bulk drug
substance. We have two contract manufacturers épisera tablet commercial supply in Europe. Of thwsecontract manufacturers, one is
also qualified for commercial supply in the Unitgtates and the second is currently being qualified.

We have two suppliers that have been approvedé¥EA and the European Union to manufacture cidofawk drug substance, which
is used in Vistide. We have a single FDA and EMBfraved supplier for Vistide drug product.

Roche is responsible for the manufacturing of Tamlf January 2002, Roche announced that, duedidugtion problems, the liquid
suspension form of Tamiflu approved for treatmdrthildren as young as one year-old was not avigjdiowever, the liquid suspension form
of Tamiflu was returned to market in time for tH#2-2003 flu season. These production issues didffext availability of the tablet form of
Tamiflu for adults and adolescents 13 years androld Japan, where the 2002-2003 flu season wéisydarly severe, Roche’s sublicensee,
Chugai Corporation, was unable to meet the heiglitelemand satisfactorily. In January 2003, Chigsaidd a press release attributing this
failure, in part, to manufacturing problems. In Mawer 2003, Chugai announced a recall of Tamidlsulting in reduced net sales and
royalties from Roche in 2003. However, royalty im@on Tamiflu net sales increased substantialB0i®4 due primarily to a severe flu season
in the United States in late 2003.

We have no commercial-scale manufacturing facdif@ our antiviral products. For our future antaiproducts, we will need to develop
additional manufacturing capabilities and estabdidbitional third party suppliers to manufacturéisient quantities of our product candidates
to undertake clinical trials and to manufacturdisigint quantities of any products that are appdofee commercial sale. If we are unable to
develop manufacturing capabilities internally ontract for large scale manufacturing with thirdtjees on acceptable terms for our future
antiviral products, our ability to conduct largeakzclinical trials and meet customer demand fonmmercial products would be adversely
affected.

We believe that the technology we use to manufaatur products and compounds is proprietary. Foaativiral products, we have
disclosed all necessary aspects of this techndlmggntract manufacturers to enable them to matwfathe products and compounds for us.
We have agreements with these manufacturers thatnt@nded to restrict them from using or reveatirig technology, but we cannot be cer
that these manufacturers will comply with thesériettons. In addition, these manufacturers cowddeadop their own technology related to the
work they perform for us that we may need to macituf@ our products or compounds. We could be reduv enter into an agreement with
that manufacturer if we wanted to use that techmolwurselves or allow another manufacturer to haé t




technology. The manufacturer could refuse to allsvwo use their technology or could demand termséotheir technology that are not
acceptable.

We believe that we are in compliance with all maternvironmental regulations related to the mactufiee of our products.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights are very itgmtrto our business. If we have a properly desigamel enforceable patent it can be n
difficult for our competitors to use our technologycreate competitive products and more diffiéoittour competitors to obtain a patent that
prevents us from using technology we create. Asgfasur business strategy, we actively seek paimstection both in the United States and
internationally and file additional patent applicats, when appropriate, to cover improvements incompounds, products and technology.
also rely on trade secrets, internal know-how, tetdgical innovations and agreements with thirdiparto develop, maintain and protect our
competitive position. Our ability to be competitiwdl depend on the success of this strategy.

We have a number of patents, patent applicatiodsights to patents related to our compounds, prtsdand technology, but we canno
certain that issued patents will be enforceablgrovide adequate protection or that pending patpplications will result in issued patents. -
following table shows the actual or estimated eaon dates in the United States and Europe foptimeary patents and for patents that may
issue under pending applications that cover thepoamds in our marketed products and our produdlidates:

Products U.S. Patent Expiration European Patent Expiration
Vistide 201C 2012
Hepsere 2014 2011
AmBisome 201¢€ 200¢
Tamiflu 201€ 201€
Viread 2017 201¢
Emtriva 2021 201¢€
Truvada 2021 201¢€

Patents covering Viread, Hepsera, Vistide, Emtaind Truvada are held by third parties. We acquésediusive rights to these patents in
the agreements we have with these parties. Seéalioohtive Relationships” and “Academic and CorisglRelationships.” Patents do not
cover the active ingredients in AmBisome. Inste@el hold patents to the liposomal formulations @f tompound and also protect
formulations through trade secrets. We do not lpatent filings covering all forms of Hepsera in @bor in certain other Asian countries,
although we do have applications pending in variésian countries, including China, that relate pedfic forms and formulations of Hepsera.
Asia is a major market for HBV therapies.

We may obtain patents for our compounds many yasfiere we obtain marketing approval for them. Beegpatents have a limited life,
which may begin to run prior to the commercial s#léhe related product, the commercial value efgatent may be limited. However, we
may be able to apply for patent term extensionseample, extensions for the patents on Vistidetigeen granted in the United States and a
number of European countries, compensating infpadelays in obtaining marketing approval. Simiiatent term extensions may be availi
for other products that we are developing, but arenot be certain we will obtain them.

It is also very important that we do not infringetents or proprietary rights of others and thatleenot violate the agreements that grant
proprietary rights to us. If we do infringe pateatsviolate these agreements, we could be prevdraeddeveloping or selling products or fr
using the processes




covered by those patents or agreements, or we beuldquired to obtain a license from the thirdypalowing us to use their technology. We
cannot be certain that, if required, we could obtalicense to any third-party technology or thata@uld obtain one at a reasonable cost. If we
were not able to obtain a required license, wedtbel adversely affected. Because patent applicatios confidential for at least some peria
time, including sometimes in the United Stateslunfiatent issues, there may be pending patenicagiphs from which patents will eventually
issue and prevent us from developing or sellingageproducts unless we can obtain a license tahespatented technology.

Patents relating to pharmaceutical, biopharmacaluied biotechnology products, compounds and psecsesuch as those that cover our
existing compounds, products and processes and thaswe will likely file in the future, do notvwadys provide complete or adequate
protection. Future litigation or reexamination predings regarding the enforcement or validity af@xisting patents or any future patents
could invalidate our patents or substantially redtheir protection. In addition, our pending pat@mplications and patent applications filed by
our collaborative partners may not result in tlsai@ce of any patents or may result in patentsdihabt provide adequate protection. As a
result, we may not be able to prevent third pafiies developing the same compounds and produatsate have developed or are developing.
In addition, certain countries do not permit enésnent of our patents, and manufacturers are atsielitgeneric versions of our products in
those countries.

We also rely on unpatented trade secrets and ireprents, unpatented internal know-how and techncdbginovation. In particular, a
great deal of our liposomal manufacturing expertigiich is a key component of our liposomal tecbgyl is not covered by patents but is
instead protected as a trade secret. We protese tiights mainly through confidentiality agreemenith our corporate partners, employees,
consultants and vendors. These agreements prdadalt confidential information developed or m&a@wn to an individual during the cou
of their relationship with us will be kept confidei and will not be used or disclosed to thirdtfggr except in specified circumstances. In the
case of employees, the agreements provide thiavathtions made by the individual while employedusywill be our exclusive property. We
cannot be certain that these parties will complhwhese confidentiality agreements, that we halezjaate remedies for any breach, or tha
trade secrets will not otherwise become known dnbependently discovered by our competitors. Urstene of our research and developn
agreements, inventions discovered in certain dasesme jointly owned by us and our corporate padnd in other cases become the
exclusive property of one of us. It can be difftdiol determine who owns a particular invention digphutes could arise regarding those
inventions.

Competition

Our products and development programs target a aupftdiseases and conditions, including viral amdyal infections. There are many
commercially available products for these diseaseka large number of companies and institutioaspending considerable amounts of
money and other resources to develop additionalymts to treat these diseases. Our current prodantpete with other available products
based primarily on:

« efficacy;

» safety;

 tolerability;

* acceptance by doctors;
e patient compliance;

e patent protection;

* ease of use;
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e price;

« insurance and other reimbursement coverage;
« distribution;

* marketing; and

« adaptability to various modes of dosing.

Any other products we market in the future willatompete with products offered by our competittiraur competitors introduce data
that show improved characteristics of their produithprove or increase their marketing effortsionay lower the price of their products, se
of our products could decrease. We also cannoefiaio that any products we may develop in theréutwill compare favorably to products
offered by our competitors or that our existingudure products will compare favorably to any nenoducts that are developed by our
competitors. Our ability to be competitive also eegs upon our ability to attract and retain quadifpersonnel, to obtain patent protection or
otherwise develop proprietary products or proceagesto secure sufficient capital resources fostitestantial period that it takes to develop a
product.

Our HIV Products . The HIV competitive landscape is becoming nomvded and complicated as treatment trends aomtim evolve.
A growing number of anti-HIV drugs are currentlydsor are in advanced stages of clinical developgm@hthe twenty-six branded drugs
available in the United States, Zerit (stavuding€l)dsold by Bristol-Myers Squibb (BMS) and the fixeombination products, Combivir (AZT
and 3TC), Trizivir (AZT, 3TC, ABC), each sold by &Srepresent the most direct competition for ouvkroducts. These companies are in
the process of launching formulations of existimggs now indicated by the FDA for once-daily orakuhg, including GSK’s 300 mg dose of
Epivir (lamivudine, 3TC). Other recently approveadtieetroviral products include Epzicom (fixed dasembination of Ziagen and Epivir from
GSK approved in the United States and Europeanri)nkuzeon (injectable integrase inhibitor from Re@rimeris), Reyataz (atazanivir
sulfate, a once-a-day protease inhibitor from BM&) Tipranavir (non-peptidic protease inhibitomfr@oehringer-Ingelheim). GSK has filed
an application for approval of a once-daily dos€iafyen (abacavir sulfate). Other companies comgeti the HIV therapeutic category are
Pfizer, Merck and Abbott.

BMS'’s Videx EC (didanosine) became the first gemétiV product in the United States in 2004. GSK&tRvir (AZT) is expected to
face generic competition as early as in 2005 intthited States. The effect of this on the overa$ .Unarket for HIV products is unknown, but
price decreases for all HIV products may result.

AmBisome. AmBisome faces strong competition from sevewatent and expected competitors. Current compstitelude:

» conventional amphotericin B, made by BMS and numeigeneric manufacturers;

« caspofungin, a product developed by Merck, whiamasketed as Cancidas in the United States anésggofingin elsewhere;
« voriconazole, developed by Pfizer, which is marllete Vfend; and

 other lipid-based amphotericin B products apprdeecale in the United States and throughout Europduding Abelcet, sold by
Enzon Corp. in the United States, Canada and Jamby Medeus Pharma Ltd. in Europe, and Amphstadd, by InterMune
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Presently unapproved but expected competitors diechuclass of treatments called echinocandindudimg Fujisawa’s micafunginyhich
received marketing approval in Japan in OctobeR280@ is under review for regulatory approval ia United States and Canada, and
anidulafungin, from Vicuron, Inc.
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(formerly Versicor, Inc.) product candidate, whishbeing evaluated in multiple late-stage clinitills. Finally, Schering Plough is developing
Noxafil (posaconazole), which is currently in Ph8geials. Competition from these current and exgegcompetitors has eroded and is likel
continue to erode the revenues we receive frons sdldmBisome.

Hepsera. Hepsera faces significant competition fronstrg and expected therapies for treating patiehis are infected with HBV.
Most significantly:

< Entecavir, an oral nucleoside analogue developd8¥g, is expected to be launched in late 2005 @sca daily oral antiviral. BMS
has filed for approval with the U.S. FDA and ha2rascription Drug User Fee Act (PDUFA) action daftépril 2005.

« Epivir-HBV (lamivudine) was developed by GSK in latdoration with Shire Pharmaceuticals, and is solll major countries
throughout North and South America, Europe and Asia an orally administered nucleoside analotha inhibits HBV DNA
polymerase.

 Intron-A (interferon alfa-2b) is sold by Scherintp&gh in major countries throughout North and SoMtierica, Europe and Asia.
Intron-A is an injectable drug with immunomodulat@ffects.

Hepsera may also face competition from clinicagstaandidates, including Idenix’s LdT, an oral moside analogue currently in Phase 3
trials, as well as Roche’s Pegasys (pegylatedfartan alfa-2a), which is expected to be approvedifwonic hepatitis B in the United States in
late 2005.

Tamiflu . Tamiflu competes with Relenza, an anti-flu dthigt is sold by GSK. Relenza is a neuraminidakiitor that is delivered as
an orally-inhaled dry powder. Generic competitoidude Amantadine, an oral tablet that inhibitsré@ication of the influenza A virus and
Rimantadine, also an oral antiviral.

Vistide . Vistide competes with a number of drugs thab ateat CMV retinitis, including ganciclovir, sald intravenous and oral
formulations by Roche and as an ocular implant Bydgh & Lomb Incorporated; valganciclovir, also kesed by Roche; foscarnet, an
intravenous drug sold by AstraZeneca; and, forre@n a drug injected directly into the eye soldityaVision.

A number of companies are pursuing the developmwietgichnologies competitive with our research paogs. These competing
companies include specialized pharmaceutical fanmlarge pharmaceutical companies acting eitltependently or together with
biopharmaceutical companies. Furthermore, acadesiitutions, government agencies and other pubiit private organizations conducting
research may seek patent protection and may estatgilaborative arrangements for competitive potsland programs.

We anticipate that we will face increased compatiin the future as our competitors introduce nesdpcts to the market and new
technologies become available. We cannot deterihaesting products or new products that our cotitpes develop will be more effective or
more effectively marketed and sold than any thatiexelop. Competitive products could render ountetogy and products obsolete or
noncompetitive before we recover the money anduress we used to develop these products.

Government Regulation

Our operations and activities are subject to extenggulation by numerous government authoritiethe United States and other
countries. In the United States, drugs are sulgeggorous FDA regulation. The Federal Food, Dangl Cosmetic Act and other federal and
state statutes and regulations govern the testiagufacture, safety, effectiveness, labeling, ge@raecord keeping, approval, advertising and
promotion of our products. As a result of thesautatipns, product development and the product agbnarocess is very expensive and time
consuming.
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The FDA must approve a drug before it can be sottié United States. The general process for tipsowval is as follows:

Preclinical Testing

Before we can test a drug candidate in humans, wst study the drug in laboratory experiments anahiimals to generate data to sup|
the drug’s potential safety and benefits. We sulbhist data to the FDA in an investigational newglapplication (IND) seeking their approval
to test the compound in humans.

Clinical Trials

If the FDA accepts the investigational new drugliagion, we study the drug in human clinical tsigdb determine if the drug is safe and
effective. These clinical trials involve three segta phases that often overlap, can take many peaksire very expensive. These three phases,
which are themselves subject to considerable régualaare as follows:

e Phase 1. The drug is given to a small number dfthehuman subjects or patients to test for safédge tolerance, pharmacokinetics,
metabolism, distribution and excretion.

» Phase 2. The drug is given to a limited patientuteripn to determine the effect of the drug in timgithe disease, the best dose of the
drug, and the possible side effects and safetg nékhe drug.

» Phase 3. If a compound appears to be effectivesafedin Phase 2 clinical trials, Phase 3 clinidals are commenced to confirm those
results. Phase 3 clinical trials are long-termplug a significantly larger population, are condwcat numerous sites in different
geographic regions and are carefully designedduige reliable and conclusive data regarding ttietgand benefits of a drug. It is not
uncommon for a drug that appears promising in PRadmical trials to fail in the more rigorous argliable Phase 3 clinical trials.

FDA Approval Process

If we believe that the data from the Phase 3 dintigals show an adequate level of safety anccéffeness, we will file a new drug
application (NDA) with the FDA seeking approvaldell the drug for a particular use. The FDA wiNiev the NDA and often will hold a
public hearing where an independent advisory cotemibf expert advisors asks additional questiogarting the drug. This committee makes
a recommendation to the FDA that is not bindingl@FDA but is generally followed by the FDA. IfetfrDA agrees that the compound has
met the required level of safety and effectiverfesa particular use, it will allow us to sell tdeug in the United States for that use. It is not
unusual, however, for the FDA to reject an appi@abecause it believes that the drug is not saéeigh or effective enough or because it does
not believe that the data submitted is reliablearclusive.

At any point in this process, the development dfweg could be stopped for a number of reasonsdidusafety concerns and lack of
treatment benefit. We cannot be certain that aimycell trials that we are currently conductingaory that we conduct in the future, will be
completed successfully or within any specified tipeeiod. We may choose, or the FDA may requirgaidglay or suspend our clinical trials
any time if it appears that the patients are begpsed to an unacceptable health risk or if thig dandidate does not appear to have sufficien
treatment benefit.

The FDA may also require us to complete additidesting, provide additional data or informationpimve our manufacturing processes,
procedures or facilities or may require extensigstgmarketing testing and surveillance to moniter safety or benefits of our product
candidates if it determines that our new drug apilbn does not contain adequate evidence of fletysand benefits of the drug. In
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addition, even if the FDA approves a drug, it cdiruit the uses of the drug. The FDA can withdrgpivals if it does not believe that we are
complying with regulatory standards or if probleans uncovered or occur after approval.

In addition to obtaining FDA approval for each drug obtain FDA approval of the manufacturing fiieis for any drug we sell,
including those of companies who manufacture ougsiifor us as well as our own and these facildiessubject to periodic inspections by the
FDA. The FDA must also approve foreign establishimémat manufacture products to be sold in theddn8tates and these facilities are
subject to periodic regulatory inspection. Manufisicty facilities located in California, includinginSan Dimas facility and Foster City facili
also must be licensed by the State of Californiedmpliance with local regulatory requirements.

Drugs that treat serious or life-threatening dissamnd conditions that are not adequately addrénsexisting drugs may be designated as
fast track products by the FDA and may be eligfblteaccelerated six-month review and acceleratgidayal, as was the case for Viread and
Truvada. Drugs receiving accelerated approval fneshonitored in post-marketing clinical trials irder to confirm the safety and benefits of
the drug.

We are also subject to other federal, state aral fegulations regarding workplace safety and ptaia of the environment. We use
hazardous materials, chemicals, viruses and vara@lisactive compounds in our research and devedoparctivities and cannot eliminate the
risk of accidental contamination or injury from sigematerials. Any misuse or accidents involvingéhmaterials could lead to significant
litigation, fines and penalties.

Drugs are also subject to extensive regulationideitsf the United States. In the European Unioerédhs a centralized approval procedure
that authorizes marketing of a product in all coiestin the European Union (which includes mostanaepuntries in Europe). If this procedure
is not used, under a decentralized system, an aalgroone country of the European Union can belusebtain approval in another country
the European Union under a simplified applicatiomcpss. After approval under the centralized prosedoricing and reimbursement appro
are also required in most countries. Vistide, irddepsera, Emtriva and in February 2005, Truvaaae approved by the European Union
under the centralized procedure. Viread as an Hi\g dvas reviewed for accelerated approval in thepgean Union. Hepsera received a
traditional review, as did Emtriva. In March 200¢e applied for marketing applications of Truvadatfee treatment of HIV in the European
Union and we began our European launch of Truvaliafing regulatory approval received in Februa®p2.

Pricing and Reimbursement

Insurance companies, health maintenance organigafidMOs), other third-party payors and federal siadle governments seek to limit
the amount we can charge for our drugs. For exanipkertain foreign markets, pricing negotiati@me often required to obtain approval of a
product, and in the United States there have tsahwe expect that there will continue to be, alpemnof federal and state proposals to
implement drug price control. In addition, managace organizations are becoming more common ithieed States and will continue to
seek lower drug prices. The announcement of thesgeopals or efforts can cause our stock price tosdese, and if these proposals are adopted
our revenues could decrease.

Our ability to sell our drugs also depends on thedlability of reimbursement from governments amygte insurance companies.
Governments and insurance companies often demaateseor predetermined discounts from list prigés.expect that products we are
developing, particularly for HIV/AIDS indicationsill be subject to reimbursement issues. We cabeatertain that any of our products that
obtain regulatory approval will be reimbursed bygmments or insurance companies.
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Regulatory approval of prices is required in masefgn countries. Certain countries will condititeir approval of a product on the
agreement of the seller not to sell that productriore than a certain price in that country anthapast have required price reductions after or
in connection with product approval. Certain fore@puntries also require that the price of an apguigroduct be reduced after that product
has been marketed for a period of time. We caneattain that regulatory authorities in the futwikk not establish lower prices or that any
regulatory action reducing the price of our produntany one country will not have the practicééef of requiring us to reduce our prices in
other countries. Some European governments, no@ébignany and Italy, have implemented, or are cemsid, legislation that would require
pharmaceutical companies to sell their productgestito reimbursement at a mandatory discount. $umhdatory discounts would reduce the
revenue we receive from our drug sales. In cedaireloping countries that are significantly affelcby HIV and AIDS, parallel importing and
generic competition may occur and adversely affeetnues from sales of or market share of Virea@ddition, governments could take
regulatory action to disallow the pricing of comdiiion products such as Truvada to be the sum gfribes of the component drugs being
marketed in a particular country.

Employees

As of February 28, 2005, we had approximately 1 f6i4ime employees. We believe that we have gagdtions with our employees.

Website

Our website addresswewvw.gilead.com We make available free of charge through our websur annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form &u¢,directors’ and officers’ Section 16 reportdetrequired SEC filings and all
amendments to these reports as soon as reasomablicable after filing, by providing a hyperlink the EDGAR website containing our
reports.

RISK FACTORS THAT AFFECT GILEAD

In evaluating our business, you should carefullysider the following risks in addition to the otlieformation in this report. Any of the
following risks could materially and adversely affeur business, operating results and financiatitmn.

Substantially all of our revenues are derived fronsales of a limited number of products. If we are uable to maintain or continue
growing sales of our HIV products or to maintain sées of AmBisome, our results of operations may bedaersely affected.

We are currently dependent on sales of our HIV peta&l especially Viread, and AmBisome, to suppartexisting operations. Although
Viread comprised 86% of HIV product sales in 2004 important to consider Viread, Emtriva and Wada collectively as future sales of th
three products are intimately tied to one anothegether sales of HIV products and AmBisome acasdifidr approximately 90% of our total
product revenues for the year ended December 3¥. 20we are unable to continue growing our H\éguct revenues or maintain AmBiso
sales, our results of operations are likely toesudind we may need to scale back our operationspktiduct sales for the year ended
December 31, 2004 were $908.4 million, or 69% aftotal revenues and AmBisome product sales analtieg for the year ended
December 31, 2004 were $224.7 million, or 17% aftotal revenues. We may not be able to continegytiowth rate of sales of our HIV
products or the current sales level of AmBisometlierreasons stated in this risk factor section enparticular, the following reasons:

« We face significant competition from businesses tizeve substantially greater resources than weuwd) as Merck and Pfizer, which
released new products that compete with AmBisome& &axoSmithKline which markets fixed-dose combimaproducts which
compete with Truvada. Our competitors have morelyets and have operated in the fields we compéier ilonger than we have.
AmBisome sales volumes in 2004 were relativelyitaen compared to 2003.
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¢ As our HIV products and AmBisome are used ovemgéo period of time in many patients and in comtiimawith other products, ar
additional studies are conducted, new issues wihect to safety, resistance and interactionsatiter drugs may arise which could
cause us to provide additional warnings on ourllmarrow our approved indications or halt safes product, each of which could
reduce our revenues.

« As a product matures, private insurers and govenhmeémbursers often reduce the amount they withbairse patients for these
products, which increases pressure on us to rgohioes.

« A large part of the market for our HIV products pegients who are already taking other HIV drufsve are not successful in
encouraging physicians to change patients’ pretsenp to our HIV products, the sales of our HIV gwats will be limited.

« As generic HIV products are introduced into theanaparkets, our ability to maintain pricing may dféected.

If we fail to commercialize new products or expandhe indications for existing products, our prospec for future revenues and our
stock price may be adversely affected.

If we do not introduce new products or increasenexes from our existing products, we will not béedb grow our revenues. If we fail to
increase our sales of our HIV products, we maybeoable to increase revenues and expand our ressadadevelopment efforts. We may not
be successful in our efforts in collaboration vattistol Myers Squibb Company to formulate a oncgag-one pill combination of Truvada and
Sustiva. Failure to achieve any of these objectiviesn expected, or at all, may have a material @@veffect on our business and results of
operations.

If significant safety issues arise for our marketegroducts, our sales may decline, which would advsely affect our results of
operations.

The data that support the marketing approvals fioipooducts and that form the basis for the safetgnings in our product labels were
obtained in controlled clinical trials of limiteduchtion, and, in some cases, from limited post-apgruse. While both components of Truvada
(Emtriva and Viread) have been studied individuadyfety and efficacy studies of Truvada are stithoing. Following approval, our products
are used over longer periods of time by many ptitaking numerous other medicines, many of whowe humderlying health problems and
would not be monitored for dosing compliance. Aggdrare used over longer periods of time by motiema, we have found and expect to
continue to find new issues such as safety, resistar drug interaction issues, which may requiréoyprovide additional warnings on our
labels or narrow our approved indications, eacWwhith could reduce the market acceptance of thesgupts. If serious safety, resistance or
interaction issues arise with our marketed prodwseties of these products could be limited or Wdbte us or by regulatory authorities.

Our operations depend on compliance with complex FB and comparable international regulations. Failureto obtain broad approvals
on a timely basis or to achieve continued compliaeccould delay or halt commercialization of our prodicts.

The products that we develop must be approved &keting and sale by regulatory authorities andeaapproved, are subject to
extensive regulation by the FDA and comparableleggry agencies in other countries. We are contigigiinical trials for AmBisome, Virea
Hepsera, Emtriva and Truvada for currently apprcosed additional uses. We anticipate that we wi#l fior marketing approval in additional
countries and for additional products over the rsexteral years. These products may fail to reamigeketing approval on a timely basis, or at
all.

In addition, our marketed products and how we mactufe and sell these products are subject to gixeenontinued regulation and
review. Discovery of previously unknown problemshaour marketed products or problems with our maatwiring or promotional activities
may result in restrictions on our
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products, including withdrawal of the products frtime market. If we fail to comply with applicablegulatory requirements, we could be
subject to penalties including fines, suspensidnegulatory approvals, product recalls, seizurprofducts and criminal prosecution.

Recently, the formation of an independent drugtgaiffice was announced which is tasked with mamitgp the safety of approved
products. This new office may increase the diffigand length of time required for new drugs toaitrimarketing approval and the office may
create more post-approval obligations with whichweeild be required to comply.

Results of clinical trials are uncertain and may nbsupport continued development of a product pipehie, which would adversely affect
our prospects for future revenue growth.

We are required to demonstrate the safety andtafeess of products we develop in each intendedhusugh extensive preclinical
studies and clinical trials. The results from pirgchl and early clinical studies do not alwayswaetely predict results in later, large-scale
clinical trials. Even successfully completed laggpade clinical trials may not result in marketapfeducts. If any of our products under
development fail to achieve their primary endpaintlinical trials or if safety issues arise, contmalization of that drug candidate could be
delayed or halted. In addition, clinical trials atving our commercial products could raise new tyafesues for our existing products and
reduce our revenues.

Manufacturing problems could delay product shipmens and regulatory approvals, which may adversely aéfct our results of operations

We depend on third parties to perform manufactusictiyities effectively and on a timely basis.Hése third parties fail to perform as
required, this could impair our ability to deliveur products on a timely basis or cause delaysiirctinical trials and applications for
regulatory approval, and these events could hamc@mpetitive position. The manufacturing processpharmaceutical products is highly
regulated, and regulators may shut down manufagjdeacilities that they believe do not comply wittlgulations. We and our manufacturers
are subject to t he FDA'’s current Good Manufacwifftactices, which are extensive regulations gamgmanufacturing processes, stability
testing, record-keeping and quality standards @ndas regulations are in effect in other countrigsaddition, our manufacturing operations
are subject to routine inspections by regulatosnaips.

For Viread, Hepsera, Vistide, Emtriva and Truvase,rely on third parties for the manufacture ofkodilug substance and final drug
product for clinical and commercial purposes. Idiidn, Roche is responsible for manufacturing TlamiThese thirdearty manufacturers mi
develop problems over which we have no controltaede problems may adversely affect our businesseXxample, in January 2002, Roche
announced that due to production problems thediguspension form of Tamiflu approved for treatnadrthildren as young as one year old
was not available. In Japan, where the 2002-2008dason was particularly severe, Roche’s subkeer@hugai Corporation, was unable to
meet heightened demand satisfactorily. In Janu@®B82Chugai issued a press release attributinddtise, in part, to manufacturing problel
These problems in Japan reduced the net saleswaflliand our royalty from Roche in 2002 and 2003.

We manufacture AmBisome at our facilities in SamB$, California. These are our only formulation arahufacturing facilities in the
United States. We own a manufacturing facilityrieldnd that conducts quality control testing, lafpbnd packaging. In addition, we use third
parties as alternate contract suppliers to fill tmdze dry certain batches of product. In the eeéa natural disaster, including an earthquake,
equipment failure, strike or other difficulty, weagnbe unable to replace this manufacturing capaciytimely manner and would be unable to
manufacture AmBisome to meet market needs.
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We may not be able to obtain materials necessary toanufacture our products, which could limit our ahbility to generate revenues

Many of the materials that we utilize in our opemas are made at only one facility. For example depend on single suppliers for high
quality amphotericin B, distearoylphosphatidylcheliand high quality cholesterol, each of whichgsdiin the manufacture of one or more of
our liposomal products. Because the suppliers pfdaenponents and materials must be named in thednegvapplication filed with the FDA
for a product, significant delays can occur if thelification of a new supplier is required. If ety of material from our suppliers were
interrupted for any reason, we may be unable tp ¥hiead, AmBisome, Hepsera, Emtriva, Truvada astide, or to supply any of our produ
in development for clinical trials.

We depend on relationships with other companies fasales and marketing performance and revenues. Faile to maintain these
relationships would negatively impact our business.

We rely on a number of significant collaborativeatisnships with major pharmaceutical companiesofar sales and marketing
performance. These include collaborations withdavjia and Sumitomo for AmBisome, GSK for Hepserahedor Tamiflu, Pfizer for
Vistide, Japan Tobacco for Viread, Emtriva and e and our recently announced joint venture witkt&8-Myers Squibb to develop and
commercialize a fixed-dose combination of Truvadd 8ustiva. In certain countries, we rely on inéional distributors for sales of
AmBisome, Viread and Emtriva and in some Europeamtries, we intend to rely only on internationatidbutors for sales of Hepsera. Some
of these relationships also involve the clinicalelepment of these products by our partners. Rediam collaborative relationships poses a
number of risks, including:

« we are not able to control whether our corporaténgas devote sufficient resources to our program@oducts;
« disputes may arise in the future with respect éod¥vnership of rights to technology developed withporate partners;

» disagreements with corporate partners could leakkkays, in or termination of, the research, dgwelent or commercialization of
product candidates, or result in litigation or &ddion;

« contracts with our corporate partners may failmavgle significant protection or may fail to be effively enforced if one of these
partners fails to perform;

« corporate partners have considerable discreti@teicting whether to pursue the development of aujtianal products and may pur:
alternative technologies or products either onrtbein or in collaboration with our competitors;

» corporate partners with marketing rights may chdos#evote fewer resources to the marketing ofpwaducts than they do to products
of their own development; and

« our distributors and corporate partners may be lertatpay us.

Given these risks, there is a great deal of unicgyteegarding the success of our current and &utwllaborative efforts. If these efforts
fail, our product development or commercializatadmew products could be delayed or revenue froistiey) products could decline.

Under our April 2002 licensing agreement with G3#¢, gave GSK the right to control clinical and regaty development and
commercialization of Hepsera in territories in AgMrica and Latin America. These include major keds for Hepsera, such as China, Japan,
Taiwan and Korea. The success of Hepsera in tleestties will depend almost entirely on the effoof GSK. In this regard, GSK promotes
Epivir—HBYV, a product that competes with Hepseran€equently, GSK’s marketing strategy for Hepseag be influenced by its promotion
of Epivir—HBYV. We receive royalties from GSK equal
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a percentage of GSK'’s net sales of Hepsera asawelkt sales of GSK’s Epivir—HBV. If GSK fails tevbte sufficient resources to, or does
not succeed in developing or commercializing Hegogits territories, our potential revenues frames of Hepsera may be substantially
reduced.

Expenses associated with clinical trials and saldlsictuations as a result of inventory levels held ypwholesalers may cause our earnings
to fluctuate, which could adversely affect our stdcprice.

The clinical trials required for regulatory apprbeéour products, as well as clinical trials we aequired to conduct after approval, are
extremely expensive. It is difficult to accurat@isedict or control the amount or timing of thespenses. Uneven and unexpected spending on
these programs may cause our operating resullgdinéte from quarter to quarter. In addition, apgmately 81% of our product sales in the
United States are to three distributors, AmeriseBergen Corp., Cardinal Health, Inc. and McKessorpCinventory levels held by these and
other wholesalers may fluctuate significantly whaduld cause our sales to them and as a resulbpmrating results, to fluctuate unexpecte
from quarter to quarter. For example, based onmexiew of NDC Health Corp. prescription trends, IM8alth Inc. inventory data and actual
Viread sales, we believe that in the quarter erdded 30, 2003, wholesalers built up inventory lgewsi an estimated 1.2 months. We believe
this inventory build-up was followed by an equivaler possibly greater inventory reduction durihg guarter ended September 30, 2003. We
do not know if the inventory management agreemertentered into this year with our three major WBolesalers will continue to be
effective in matching inventory levels to end udemand, as we rely on the wholesalers to estinmteiser demand.

Approximately half of our product sales occur outsile the United States, and currency fluctuations magause our earnings to fluctuate,
which could adversely affect our stock price.

A significant percentage of our product sales amodhinated in foreign currencies. Increases irvéthee of the U.S. dollar against these
foreign currencies in the past have reduced, atlgeiriuture may reduce, our U.S. dollar equivagaiés and negatively impact our financial
condition and results of operations. We use foreigmency forward contracts to hedge a percenthgardorecasted international sales,
primarily those denominated in the Euro currencye 850 hedge a portion of our accounts receivadknioes denominated in foreign
currencies, which reduces but does not eliminatesgposure to currency fluctuations between the datale is recorded and the date that cash
is collected. Additionally, to mitigate the impaaftcurrency rate fluctuations on our cash outfldarscertain foreign currencgenominated ray
materials purchases, we enter into foreign exchémgeard contracts to hedge our foreign currencyesieinated accounts payable. Although
we use forward contracts to reduce the impact i&idm currency fluctuations on our future resuhese efforts may not be successful and any
such fluctuations could adversely affect our resaftoperations.

We face credit risks from our European customers tht may adversely affect our results of operations.

We are particularly subject to credit risk from &uropean customers. Our European product sageviernment owned or supported
customers in Greece, Italy, Portugal and Spairsabgect to significant payment delays due to gowvemmt funding and reimbursement
practices. Our accounts receivable from governroemted or supported customers in these countriafeth$231.9 million as of December 31,
2004. If significant changes were to occur in thienbursement practices of European governmenfsgovernment funding becomes
unavailable, we may not be able to collect on ant®duoe to us from these customers and our redutserations would be adversely affected.

Our plan to supply Viread and Truvada at our cost b certain developing countries may expose us to lidity that would have a material
adverse affect on our results of operations and fancial condition.

We have launched a distribution program pursuantitich we will supply Viread and Truvada at ourtcisall countries in Africa and to
the fifteen other countries designated “Least Dayedl” by the United Nations. The supply and disttidn of drugs in a resource-poor
environment is a complicated
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undertaking. As this program develops, we coule facforeseen challenges and risks, which could rigecto unforeseen liabilities. For
example, patients in less developed countries Wgirgad and Truvada may not be as closely supahhigea doctor as they would be in more
developed nations. Accordingly, there may be areim®ed likelihood of Viread- or Truvada-related ptioations going undetected or
untreated, which could result in significant liatyito Gilead.

Our product revenues could be reduced by imports fom countries where our products are available at er prices.

Prices for our products are based on local mar@t@nics and competition and sometimes differ fomuantry to country. Our sales in
countries with relatively higher prices may be reghliif products can be imported into those cousfiiem lower price markets. There have
been cases in which pharmaceutical products wédeassteeply discounted prices in the developingldvand then re-exported to European
countries where they could be re-sold at much lighees. If this happens with our products, pattdy Viread and Truvada, which we have
agreed to provide at our cost to all countries fricA and to the fifteen other countries designdtezhst Developed Countries” by the United
Nations, our revenues would be adversely affe

In addition, in the European Union, we are requiegdermit cross border sales. This allows buyeiuntries where government-
approved prices for our products are relativehhttimpurchase our products legally from countribese they must be sold at lower prices.
Additionally, some U.S. consumers have been abfritohase products, including HIV medicines, frotteinet pharmacies in other countries
at substantial discounts. Such cross-border saldd adversely affect our revenues.

In some countries, we may be required to grant compsory licenses for our HIV products or face gened competition for our HIV
products.

In a number of developing countries, governmeritiafis and other groups have suggested that phautiaal companies should make
drugs for HIV infection available at a low costtéinatively, governments in those countries coatglire that we grant compulsory licenses to
allow competitors to manufacture and sell their ax@rsions of our products, thereby reducing ougsaCertain countries do not permit
enforcement of our patents, and manufacturerskdeeta sell generic versions of our products irsthoountries. Compulsory licenses or sales
of generic versions of our products could signifittareduce our sales and adversely affect oudtsestioperations.

Our existing products are subject to reimbursemenfrom government agencies and other third parties. Rarmaceutical pricing and
reimbursement pressures may reduce profitability.

Successful commercialization of our products depeimdpart, on the availability of governmental dhid party payor reimbursement for
the cost of such products and related treatmermteedment health administration authorities, pevagalth insurers and other organizations
generally provide reimbursement. Government autiesrand third-party payors increasingly are chmajieg the price of medical products and
services, particularly for innovative new produaisl therapies. This has resulted in lower averalgs prices. For example, a majority of our
sales of AmBisome and Vistide, and a significantpetage of our sales of Viread and Hepsera, dijedto reimbursement by government
agencies, resulting in significant discounts frash price and rebate obligations. Our business beagdversely affected by an increase in U.S.
or international pricing pressures. These presstapsarise from rules and practices of managedgrargs, judicial decisions and
governmental laws and regulations related to Medjddedicaid and health care reform, pharmaceut&@aibursement policies and pricing in
general.

In Europe, the success of Hepsera, Tamiflu, Emtifnieead and Truvada will also depend largely otagting and maintaining
government reimbursement because in many Europmantrées, including the United Kingdom and Frargagjents will not use prescription
drugs that are not reimbursed by their
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governments. In addition, negotiating prices witlvgrnmental authorities can delay commercializaligitwelve months or more. We also
expect that the success of our products in devedopnparticularly in Europe, will depend on thelipto obtain reimbursement. Even if
reimbursement is available, reimbursement poligiay adversely affect our ability to sell our prottugn a profitable basis. For example, in
Europe as in many international markets, governsmeontrol the prices of prescription pharmaceusieald expect prices of prescription
pharmaceuticals to decline over the life of thedpi or as volumes increase. In 2004, as well gsawnious years, we have seen significant
price decreases for our products across much affeuiVe believe that this will continue into thegfeeeable future as governments struggle
with escalating health care spending. As a redutiese pricing practices, it may become diffidalmaintain our historic levels of profitability
or to achieve expected rates of growth.

Our results of operations could be adversely affeetl by future health care reforms.

In the United States in recent years, new legistatias been proposed at the federal and states lhatlwould effect major changes in the
health care system, either nationally or at theedtvel. These proposals have included prescritiog benefit proposals for Medicare
beneficiaries recently passed by Congress. Additipnsome states have enacted health care refgisiation. Further federal and state
developments are possible. The impact of propasgidlation and other reforms is unclear, but it mesult in pricing and reimbursement
restrictions, which could adversely impact our rewes.

We may not be able to obtain effective patents torptect our technologies from use by competitors angatents of other companies coul
require us to stop using or pay for the use of reqted technology.

Our success will depend to a significant degreewrability to:
» obtain patents and licenses to patent rights;
* preserve trade secrets; and

< operate without infringing on the proprietary rigluf others.

We have a number of U.S. and foreign patents, pagglications and rights to patents related toammpounds, products and technolc
There is a risk, however, that issued patentsnuillbe enforceable or provide adequate protectighad pending patent applications will not
result in issued patents. Patent applications @néidential for at least some period of time, sames in the United States until a patent issues.
As a result, we may not know if our competitoredilpatent applications for technology covered hypminding applications or if we were the
first to invent the technology that is the subjefcour patent applications. Competitors may haleslfpatent applications or received patents
may obtain additional patents and proprietary sghat block or compete with our patents.

We do not have patent filings in China or certaimeo Asian countries covering all forms of adefalipivoxil, the active ingredient in
Hepsera. Asia is a major market for therapies BWHthe indication for which Hepsera has been dgyed. We may obtain patents for certain
products many years before marketing approval fainéd for those products.

Because patents have a limited life, which mayégrun prior to the commercial sale of the redgteoduct, the commercial value of the
patent may be limited. However, we may be ablepmyafor patent term extensions. In addition, ptgenay not provide adequate protection in
certain countries in Africa and Asia, including Ghi

Our competitors may file patent applications cavgrour technology. If so, we may have to parti@gatinterference proceedings or
litigation to determine the right to a patent. §étion and interference proceedings are expensivme i€ we are ultimately successful.

As part of the approval process of some of our petg] the FDA has determined that the products dvbalgranted an exclusivity period
during which other manufacturers’ applicationsdpproval of
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generic versions of our product will not be gran8éneric manufactures often wait to challengeptitents protecting products that have been
granted exclusivity until one year prior to the eridhe exclusivity period. As we near the end>xaflesivity periods granted to our products,
our patents may be subject to challenges for wivielmay need to spend significant resources to deded we may not be able to defend our
patents successfully.

Our success depends in large part on our abilippgrate without infringing upon the patents oreotbroprietary rights of third parties. If
we infringe the patents of others, we may be priacefrom commercializing products or may be reglil@obtain licenses from these third
parties. We may not be able to obtain alternatefimologies or any required license on reasonehtestor at all. If we fail to obtain such
licenses or alternative technologies, we may bdlena develop or commercialize some or all of products.

In addition, we use significant proprietary teclogyl and rely on unpatented trade secrets and ptapyiknow-how to protect certain
aspects of our production and other technologies.t@de secrets may become known or independdisitpvered by our competitors.

We may face significant liability resulting from our products that may not be covered by insurance anduccessful claims could
materially reduce our earnings.

The testing, manufacturing, marketing and use ofcommercial products, as well as products in dgwakent, involve substantial risk of
product liability claims. These claims may be mdiaectly by consumers, healthcare providers, phaeutical companies or others. Although
we maintain product liability insurance, a succelsgfoduct liability claim against us may not bevered by our insurance or could require t
pay amounts beyond that provided by our insuragitieer of which could impair our financial conditi@and our ability to clinically test and to
market our products.

Expensive litigation may reduce our earnings.

We are named as a defendant in a number of lawsgigsding use of average wholesale price and rgiselmnent rates under Medicaid.
We have also been named in lawsuits alleging vasiatof the federal securities laws. Adverse regsutim these lawsuits could result in
material damages which could significantly reduaeearnings or cash flows.

Changes in our effective income tax rate could redie our earnings.

Various factors may have favorable or unfavoralfiecés on our effective income tax rate. Thesedicinclude, but are not limited to,
interpretations of existing tax laws, changes iléavs and rates, future levels of research anéldpment spending, changes in accounting
rules, future levels of capital expenditures, clesnig the mix of earnings in the various tax judgdns in which we operate and changes in
overall levels of pre-tax earnings. The impact aniacome tax provision resulting from the aboveati@ned factors may be significant and
could have a negative impact on our results of atpmrs.

Recently adopted changes in accounting for stock tipns may affect our earnings.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASBEly issued Statement of Financial Accounting 8&ads No. 123 (revised 2004),
Share-Based Paymef8FAS 123R), which is required to be implementedHhegythird quarter of 2005, provides new guidanté¢he accountin
for stock options. Under the new accounting guigame will be required to record additional comgim expense related to stock options
and other equity incentives. Although we are cutyegvaluating various option valuation methodokxincluding the Black-Scholes method,
binomial method or other methods allowed under BR3R, the impact on our earnings resulting from théw standard will be significant and
may have a negative impact on our results of ojperat
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters, including our principacutive offices and some of our research faslitare located in Foster City,
California. At this location, we own approximatél96,000 square feet of space in 16 proximatelytémthuildings. We currently occupy 10 of
the 16 buildings and also have a tenant occupyengesof the remaining buildings. In addition, wesledawo office buildings with
approximately 141,000 square feet of space to hoosenercial and clinical development activitieseTeases for the two buildings expire in
June 2009 and 2010, respectively, after which @iless the option to renew for two five-year terinsaaddition, from June 2004 to May 2007,
Gilead has the option to purchase the two buildatgspecified amounts.

We also occupy facilities in San Dimas, CaliformAathis location, we lease approximately 102,50ase feet of space, which houses
research and development activities, manufactwaimjycertain administrative functions. These leagp#e in November 2013, with no
renewal options at present. In addition, we leasadjacent warehouse facility with about 53,000esqeet of space that we use for product
distribution and administrative functions. Thisdeaxpires in November 2013, with no renewal ogtion

In Durham, North Carolina, we lease approximaté€ly,000 square feet of administrative office anatabory space, of which we
sublease approximately 21,000 square feet to ffairtes. This lease expires in October 2009, aftéch Gilead has the option to renew the
lease for two seven-year terms.

In addition, we lease approximately 141,000 sqéeeeof space (in the aggregate) for our salesnaautketing, regulatory, finance,
information technology and human resource operatioreurope and Australia, including a prepaid,-988r lease for our 13,000 square foot
manufacturing and distribution facility in Irelanthe other leases have various expiration dates.

We believe that our facilities are adequate anthblég for at least our current and near-term fuhgeds.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The complaints in each of the following cases aldwt a large number of defendants, includinga@lil®@vercharged the governmental
entity named as the plaintiff for pharmaceuticaldarcts furnished to participants in the Medicaidgram. In general, the complaints assert
claims under federal and state law, except forAflabama state action, which includes only statedtaims, and seek treble damage and
attorneys’ fees. The litigations are all at a pnétiary stage and it is not possible to predictdbhteome. Indeed, to date Gilead has not been
served with process in any of these cases exoepnty of Westchester v. Abbott Laboratories, e\ intend to defend these cases vigoro
As the outcome of these cases cannot be predittatdime, no amounts have been accrued.

(1) County of Westchester v. Abbott Laboratories, ehaw pending as part of multi-district litigation tihe United States District Court for
the District of Massachusetts. This lawsuit wasdihgainst Gilead and approximately 40 other defetsdon August 14, 2003. It was
amended to include approximately 80 defendantsaonaly 26, 2005.

(2) City of New York v. Abbott Laboratories et akending as part of multi-district litigation in thénited States District Court for the District
of Massachusetts. This lawsuit was filed again&dsi and approximately 43 other defendants on Augua004. It was amended to
approximately 73 defendants on January 26, 2005.

(3) County of Rockland v. Abbott Laboratories, etadnding as part of multi-district litigation in thénited States District Court for the
District of Massachusetts. This lawsuit did nogarally name
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Gilead as a defendant, but was amended to inclaifesagainst Gilead as well as approximately Tieotlefendants on January 26, 2!

(4) State of Alabama v. Abbott Laboratories eténding in the Circuit Court of Montgomery Courftabama. This lawsuit was filed
against Gilead and approximately 77 other defersdamtJanuary 26, 2005.

A purported class action complaint was filed on Blober 10, 2003 in the United States District Céurthe Northern District of
California against Gilead and certain of our exaeubfficers . The complaint alleges that the ddterts violated federal securities laws,
specifically Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 of theu8tes and Exchange Commission, by
making certain allegedly false and misleading stetets and omissions. The plaintiff seeks unspecdemages on behalf of a purported class
of purchasers of Gilead’s securities during theqaefrom July 14, 2003 through October 28, 200heédsimilar actions were subsequently
filed and the court issued an order consolidativeglawsuits into a single action on December 22320n February 9, 2004, the court issued
an order appointing lead plaintiffs in the consal&l action. On April 30, 2004, lead plaintiffs, lehalf of the purported class, filed their
consolidated amended complaint. On June 21, 20iadand individual defendants filed their motiordismiss the consolidated amended
complaint. On January 25, 2005, the Court graneddrdiants’ motion to dismiss with leave to amend.

In December 2003, two purported shareholder deévivdawsuits were filed by individual shareholdersbehalf of Gilead against its
directors and certain executive officers in the &igy Court of the State of California, County @frSMateo alleging, among other things, that
defendants violated the California Corporations €add breached fiduciary duties to Gilead. Gilsagtimed as a nominal defendant. The
plaintiffs seek unspecified damages on behalf ¢é&si in connection with alleged insider tradingidgithe period between July 14, 2003 and
October 28, 2003 and defendants’ alleged breathedffiduciary duties, abuse of control, waste arismanagement. The two cases were
consolidated into a single action on January 18428 third, similar case was filed on Februarg@04 and later consolidated with the prior
two cases. Plaintiffs have filed a consolidated plaimt, which was amended two times, most recesliNovember 22, 2004. Gilead demurred
to each consolidated complaint, and the court gchatach demurrer. On December 14, 2004, plairfiiéis a motion for leave to file a third
consolidated amended complaint and on January0h, 20Be Court granted the plaintiff's motion, reridg that complaint the operative
complaint. We intend to demur to this complaintrial is scheduled for June 13, 2005.

We are also a party to various other legal acttbasarose in the ordinary course of our busindssdo not believe that any of these other
legal actions will have a material adverse impaxcbor business, results of operations or finarmiaition.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURI TY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of securit@ddrs during the quarter ended December 31, 2004.
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PART I
ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED S TOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaqg Stock dankder the symbol “GILD”. The following table sdorth for the periods
indicated the high and low intra-day sale pricesgiere of our common stock on The Nasdaq Stock&iafhese prices represent quotations
among dealers without adjustments for retail mgr&;umarkdowns or commissions, and may not represem@s of actual transactions.

High Low

2004

First Quarte $33.28 $25.7¢
Second Quarte $33.9C $27.0¢
Third Quartel $37.48  $27.7¢
Fourth Quarte $39.1C $32.07
2003

First Quarte $21.6C $15.62
Second Quarte $28.6¢ $20.2¢
Third Quartel $35.31 $26.6¢
Fourth Quarte $30.82 $25.14

On September 3, 2004, we implemented a two-forstoek split in the form of stock dividends. All shand per share amounts for all
periods presented have been restated to reflecsthik split.

As of February 28, 2005, we had 449,881,860 shafresmmon stock outstanding held by approximatély gtockholders of record. We
have not paid cash dividends on our common stowesbur inception and we do not anticipate payimgia the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
OPERATIONS DATA:
Total revenue $1,324,62. $ 867,86« $466,79C $ 233,76¢ $195,55¢
Purchased in-process research and development
1) — 488,59¢ — — —
Total costs and expens 692,93z 1,026,53¢ 385,78: 354,458  247,87:
Income (loss) from operatiol 631,68¢ (158,675) 81,007 (120,68%) (52,318
Gain on sale of oncology assets — — — 157,771 —
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes: 207,051 (95,530) 1,300 4,135 1,199
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of cha
in accounting principl 449,371 (72,0039) 72,097 51,182  (43,10€)
Cumulative effect of change in account
principle(2) — — — 1,089 (13,670
Net income (loss 449,371 (72,0039) 72,097 52,271  (56,77€)
Amounts per common sh«basic:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle( $ 1.04 $ (018 $ 0.18 $ 014 $ (0.12
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle(3) — — — — (0.094)
Net income (loss) per sh—basic(3) $ 1.04 $ (018 $ 018 $ 014 $ (0.16
Shares used in per share calcule—basic(3) 432,00 402,21C  391,08¢ 380,49C 364,19¢
Amounts per common shi—diluted:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect
change in accounting principle( $ 099 $ (018 $ 017 $ 013 $ (0.12
Cumulative effect of change in account
principle(3) — — — — (0.04)
Net income (loss) per share—diluted(3) $ 0.99 $ (018 $ 017 $ 013 $ (0.16
Shares used in per share calculation—diluted(3) 464,24¢ 402,21C 412,95¢ 404,64z  364,19¢
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA (Continued)

December 31

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

DATA:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable

securities $1,254,03¢ $ 707,000 $ 942,37: $ 582,851 $ 512,87¢
Working capital 1,596,24: 1,080,00: 1,078,86¢ 627,64z 535,56(
Total asset 2,155,96: 1,554,72; 1,288,18: 794,78¢€ 678,09¢
Long-term obligation: 234 323 273 389 2,238
Convertible deb — 345,00( 595,00( 250,00c 250,00c
Accumulated defici (4,272) (453,647  (381,64() (453,737 (506,00¢)
Total stockholder equity(4) 1,870,87: 1,002,97¢ 571,341 452,431 351,124

(1) During 2004, Gilead recorded a gain of $20.6 millielated to our warrants in Eyetech which compléinitial public offering. Also in
2004, we recorded a make-whole payment of $7.4anitlelated to the redemption of our $345.0 mill% convertible senior debt.
During 2003, Gilead completed the acquisition dbbéthe net assets of Triangle for an aggregatetmse price of $525.2 million.
Approximately $488.6 million of the purchase prigas allocated to purchasedpmecess research and development. Also during 206
recorded an income tax benefit of $111.6 milliokated to the reduction of the valuation allowanoecertain of our net deferred tax
assets. During 2002, we sold all of our shares®if @@mmon stock and recognized a loss on the $atearketable securities of $16.0
million. These shares were partial consideratiarilie sale of our oncology assets in 2001. Durid@12 we completed the sale of our
oncology assets and related technology to OSI Pa@eaticals, Inc. and recorded a non-operating gia$157.8 million. In 2001, we also
recorded a non-operating gain of $8.8 million frma sale of our 49 percent interest in Proligo.

(2) Gilead adopted Statement of Financial Accountirapn8ards Nos. 133 and 138, collectively referreaist&FAS 133Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitiga the first quarter of 2001. The change was antex for as a change in accounting
principle. Effective in the first quarter of 200Bilead adopted the SEC'’s Staff Accounting Bullédio. 101 (SAB 101)Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statementand the change was also accounted for as a clraageounting principle.

(3) On February 22, 2001, March 8, 2002 and Septemt#0@®!, Gilead implemented two-fone stock splits in the form of a stock divide
All share and per share amounts for all periodsgmted have been restated to reflect these stditk sp

(4) No cash dividends have been declared or paid oc@umon stock.

27




ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Executive Summary

Our operating results for 2004 marked another gégrowth with total revenues reaching $1.32 hillend higher ending cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities of $1.2%®hilldriven in large part by operating cash flow$511.4 million for the year. Although
several factors contributed to our improved finahperformance over 2003, two important driversente continued growth experienced by
our HIV products portfolio (which is comprised ofr®¥ad, Emtriva and Truvada), as well as the maartea of AmBisome revenues amidst
increasing competition. Given increased internati@ales and a favorable foreign currency envirartrimeEurope, Viread sales increased 38%
year over year and comprised 63% of 2004 totalyebsales. In August 2004, we launched Truvadachvis the c-formulation of Viread and
Emtriva, in the United States. We began launching/dda in the European Union following regulatoppeoval in February 2005. Over time,
depending on the treatment regimens prescribedpsigans, we expect to see Truvada sales partiglilace product sales of Viread and
Emtriva. To further increase our future sales 0¥ lgfoducts, we entered into a joint venture collaltion agreement with BMS in
December 2004 to develop and commercialize thelfo@se combination of Gilead’s Truvada and BMS’tasn the United States.
Understanding the importance of having a clear vaéwur wholesalers’ channel inventory, we signegentory management agreements with
our three major U.S. wholesalers in 2004. In kegpitth our strategy of active product acquisitiordan-licensing, we rounded out 2004 by
entering into collaboration agreements in the afddCV.

Our operating results for 2003 were impacted byattruisition of all of the assets of Triangle iamdary 2003. We completed this
acquisition to expand our antiviral pipeline. T was a development stage company with a paatiéatus on potential therapies for HIV,
including AIDS, and HBV. The aggregate purchasegwas $525.2 million and included cash paid of3$&énillion, the fair value of stock
options assumed of $41.3 million, direct transactiosts of $14.2 million and employee related co&8&6.6 million. Approximately $488.6
million of the consideration paid was allocategtwchased in-process research and developmenepresented the fair value of Triangle’s
incomplete research and development programs #tahbt yet reached technological feasibility and ha alternative future use as of the
acquisition date. As a result of this transactind the related purchased in-process research aretbgenent charge, our operating loss for
2003 was $158.7 million. This acquisition was intpat to us not only for the compounds we acquibed also for the opportunity it provided
us to create Truvada, our co-formulation of Viread Emtriva, into a single pill that can be dosedeoa day. See Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements for further information on fré&angle acquisition.

On September 3, 2004, Gilead completed a two-fersiack split, effected in the form of a stock deuid, to stockholders of record as of
August 12, 2004. Accordingly, all share and persfkanounts for all periods presented have beeategkto reflect this stock split. In addition,
certain prior year amounts have also been recledgid conform to the current year presentation.

Management’s discussion and analysis should beineazhjunction with the consolidated financialtstaents and notes included
elsewhere in this report.
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

The following discussion contains forward-lookirtgtements that involve risks and uncertainties. "Risk Factors” discussion should be
read in conjunction with the consolidated finansi@tements and notes included elsewhere in thete
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Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates and Judgmets

This discussion and analysis of financial conditiol results of operations is based upon our cinleged financial statements, which h
been prepared in accordance with accounting pilegigenerally accepted in the United States. Tapagyation of these financial statements
requires us to make estimates and judgments tfesttt dlfie reported amounts of assets, liabilitieggenues and expenses, and related
disclosures. On an on-going basis, we evaluatestimates, including those related to revenue m&tiog, allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventories, clinical trial accruals and our tanyision. We base our estimates on historical egpeg and on various other market-specific
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable tiieleircumstances, the results of which formitasis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities thatravereadily apparent from other sources. Actualltsshowever, may differ significantly from
these estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting poéisireflect the more significant judgments and esti® used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements:

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue from product sales when ikgrersuasive evidence an arrangement exists gdiglig the customer has occurred,
the price is fixed or determinable and collecttiils reasonably assured. We record estimated tietiscto revenue for expected returns of
expired products, distributor fees, governmentteepsograms, such as Medicaid reimbursements astdroer incentives, such as cash
discounts for prompt payment. Estimates for distob fees are based on contractually determinextifpercentages of sales. Estimates for
government rebate programs and cash discountsaaesllon contractual terms, historical utilizatiates and expectations regarding future
utilization rates for these programs. Estimatepfoduct returns, including new products, are basedn on-going analysis of industry and
historical return patterns. This includes monitgrihe feedback that we receive from our sales frrgarding customer use and satisfaction,
reviewing inventory data available to us through 0uS. wholesaler inventory management agreemerdsdist us in monitoring channel
inventory levels, the purchase of third-party datenonitor prescriptions as well as, for new prdadua review of our other long shelf life
products we have sold through the same or similancels. Further, we monitor the activities andicéil trials of our key competitors and
assess the potential impact on our future salesetncth expectations where necessary. Expectetheetor our marketed drugs are generally
low because the shelf life for these products rarigem 24 months for Truvada and up to 36 month&faBisome and Viread in the United
States. If conditions become more competitive for af the markets served by our drugs or if otheruenstances change, we may take actions
to increase our product return estimates or we ofi@y additional customer incentives. This woulduk in an incremental reduction of future
revenue at the time the return estimate is changeéw incentives are offered.

Contract revenue for research and developmentdded as performance occurs and the earningsggieeompleted based on the
performance requirements of the contract. Nonredbfelcontract fees for which no further performaolskgations exist, and where there is no
continuing involvement by Gilead, are recognizedtanearlier of when the payments are receivedr@ancollection is reasonably assured.

Revenue from non-refundable up-front license femkrailestone payments where we continue to havavement such as through a
development collaboration or an obligation to sygpbduct is recognized as performance occurs andladigations are completed. In
accordance with the specific terms of Gilead's gddiions under these types of arrangements, revemaeognized as the manufacturing
obligation is fulfilled or ratably over the developent period. Revenue associated with substantivigkamilestones is recognized based upon
the achievement of the milestones as defined in the
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respective agreements. Advance payments receivextess of amounts earned are classified as defesvenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun

We also maintain an allowance for doubtful accofimt®stimated losses resulting from the inabitifyour customers to make required
payments. This allowance is based on our analysisweral factors including, but not limited tont@ctual payment terms, historical payment
patterns of our customers and individual custonreumstances, an analysis of days sales outstamgicgstomer and geographic region, a
review of the local economic environment and iteeptial impact on government funding and reimbumsetpractices. If the financial
condition of our customers or the economic envirentiin which they operate were to deteriorate, ltesuin an inability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required. Our allovesioe doubtful accounts balance as a percentaggalfaccounts receivable did not
materially change from December 31, 2003 to Decer8be2004. We believe that the allowance for dhullatccounts is adequate to cover
anticipated losses under current conditions; howesignificant deterioration in any of the abovetéas, especially with respect to the
government funding and reimbursement practicesérBuropean market could materially change thepeatations and result in an increase to
our allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventories

We write down our inventory based on historicalieavof the quantity of bad batches experiencedndutiie manufacturing process and
expectations of production and inventory levels. &8\ perform quality control reviews of our indluial raw material batches. We generally
do not record inventory writeffs based on estimated obsolescence or risk opetition primarily because the shelf life of oupgucts is long
However, if our current assumptions about futui@pction or inventory levels, demand or competitimre to change or if actual market
conditions are less favorable than those projelasyethanagement, inventory write-downs may be reduivkich could negatively impact our
product gross margins and results of operations.

Clinical Trial Accruals

We record accruals for estimated clinical and pmézd! study costs. Most of our clinical and pradal studies are performed by third
party contract research organizations (CROs). Thests are a significant component of researchdandlopment expenses. During 2004,
2003 and 2002, we incurred $24.7 million, $15.0ionland $23.9 million, respectively, of CRO cosdf¢e accrue costs for clinical studies
performed by CROs on a straight-line basis ovetehm of the service period and adjust our estimateequired, based upon our on-going
review of the level of effort actually incurred the CRO. Initially we estimate that the work penfi@d under the contracts occurs ratably over
the periods to the expected milestone, event at tantract completion date. The expected compiedites are estimated based upon the term
of the contracts and past experience with simiteatracts. These estimates may or may not matchdtual services performed by the
organizations as determined by patient enrollmevels and other measures of activities specifigtiércontract. As a result, we validate our
accruals quarterly through written vendor confinmasg and detailed reviews of the activities perfednfior our significant contracts. Based
upon the results of these validation processegssess the appropriateness of our accruals andanglajustments we deem necessary to
ensure that our expenses reflect the actual éffourred by the CROs. Generally, a significant jporbf the total costs are associated with start
up activities for the trial and patient enrolime@tlead extensively outsources its clinical triefiaities and usually performs only a small
portion of the start-up activities in-house. Aault, CROs typically perform most of the totakstg activities for our trials, including
document preparation, site identification, scregrand preparation, pre-study visits, training armjpam management. On a

30




budgeted basis, these costs are typically 20% % @0the total contract value. On an actual bakis,percentage range is significantly wide
many of our contracts are either expanded or ratlircecope compared to the original budget whitegtart-up costs for the particular trial do
not change significantly. Start-up costs usuallgusavithin a few months after the contract has bestablished and are milestone or event
driven in nature. The remaining activities and tedlecosts, such as patient monitoring and admatistr, generally occur ratably throughout
life of the individual contract or study. Most coetts are negotiated as fixed unit prices and aay in length between six months for a single
dose Phase 1 study and up to two years or moiefisre complex Phase 3 study. The average lengtbndfact in 2004, 2003 and 2002 has
been at the upper end of this range in order teigedong term safety and efficacy data to supgieetcommercial launches of Viread, Truva
Hepsera and Emtriva. Through December 31, 200frdiices between actual and estimated activityddee any particular study were not
significant enough to require a material adjustmatitof our material CRO contracts are terminabjeus upon written notice and Gilead is
generally only liable for actual effort expendedtbg CRO at any point in time during the contraegiardless of payment status. Amounts paid
in advance of services being performed will be meed if a contract is terminated. However, if maragnt does not receive complete and
accurate information from our vendors or has urstérated activity levels associated with a studg given point in time, we would have to
record additional and potentially significant restsand development expenses in future periods.

Tax Provision

We develop our income tax provision including defdrtax assets and liabilities, based on signifioc@nagement judgment. We evaluate
the realizibility of our deferred tax assets oruarterly basis. We record a valuation allowancesthuce our deferred tax assets to the amounts
that are likely to be realized. We consider futiazneable income, ongoing tax planning strategiesamdhistorical financial performance in
assessing the need for a valuation allowance. iéxpect to realize deferred tax assets for whiclihauee previously recorded a valuation
allowance, we would reduce the valuation allowanadée period in which such determination is firide. Such an adjustment was made in
the fourth quarter of 2003 and 2004 when we detggththat it was more likely than not that certdimar deferred tax assets would be reali
and therefore, we released the related valuatiowahce. This resulted in an income tax benefi2@®3 and 2004 of approximately $111.6
million and $14.2 million, respectively. Similarlif,we determine that we would not be able to malll or part of our deferred tax assets for
which we have no valuation allowance, we would éase the valuation allowance in the period in wkieth determination is first made. Our
future effective income tax rate may be affectedibgh factors as changes in tax laws or rates gesain the interpretation of these laws, the
impact of accounting for employee stock optionsiteigg in the second half of 2005, and overall demin future levels of earnings and
research and development and capital spending.

Management has discussed the development andiseletthese critical accounting policies with thedit Committee of Gilead’s Board
of Directors and the Audit Committee has reviewssldisclosure presented above relating to them.
Results of Operations
Total Revenues

We had total revenue of $1.32 billion in 2004, $86million in 2003 and $466.8 million in 2002. Inded in total revenue are product
sales, royalty revenue and contract revenue insluoelenue earned from research and development JR&Dmanufacturing collaborations.
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Product Sale:

Product sales consisted of the following (in thowss:

2004 Change 2003 Change 2002

Viread $ 782,91¢ 38% $566,47¢ 151%  $225,81¢
Emtriva 57,60C 475% 10,021 — —
Truvada 67,865 — — — —

Total HIV products 908,38( 58% 576,49¢ 155% 225,81F
AmBisome 211,68¢ 7% 198,35( 7% 185,66¢
Other 122,15¢ 99% 61,492 396% 12,39E
Total product sale $1,242,22: 49%  $836,34! 97%  $423,87¢

Product sales increased 49% in 2004 compared t8 &30 97% in 2003 compared to 2002, due primagithé increase in the volume of
sales within our HIV products. A significant pertage of our product sales continue to be denomdnatéoreign currencies. We use forward
contracts to hedge a percentage of our forecasterhational sales, primarily those denominatetthénEuro. This reduces, but does not
eliminate, fluctuations in sales due to changdsiieign currency exchange rates. Losses on thesaue hedges reduced increases in product
sales by $2.5 million in 2004, $2.8 million in 2088d $1.0 million in 2002, due to fluctuations kckange rates. However, product sales
(mainly Viread and AmBisome) benefitted overalipparily from the increases in the exchange rateshfe Euro and the British Pound in
comparison with the U.S. dollar: $43.7 million whesmparing 2004 to 2003 and $43.6 million when carimg 2003 to 2002.

Prior to 2004, we experienced significant fluctoas in U.S. distribution channel inventory leveledo speculative purchasing by the
major wholesalers. As a result, we experienceceeszd quarter over quarter sales volatility froes¢éhpurchasing patterns. In order to help
alleviate these fluctuations, i n July 2004, weeesd into inventory management agreements (IMAH) wWimerisourceBergen Drug
Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc. and McKessonpgoaation, three major pharmaceutical wholesaleatsdfstribute more than 90 percent of
the portfolio of products that we sell in the Uditgtates. These agreements were implemented tosl@culative buying and to help ensure
that wholesaler purchasing is more consistent etigtomer demand and more predictable. Under theeements, we agreed to pay the
wholesalers a fee in exchange for product distidouand inventory management services, market relséaformation, return goods process
assistance and counterfeit product detection sesvisuch fees are recorded as a reduction to predlgs in the consolidated statements of
operations. Additionally, under the terms of theeggnents, each wholesaler has agreed not to expeeified maximum levels of inventory
hand. As of the end of December 2004, we belieaettiese three major wholesalers have inventoridsamd for all Gilead products of less
than one month’s supply, which is in compliancehwiite contractually specified levels.

Viread, Emtriva and Truvada were approved for gatbe United States in October 2001, July 2003 Aangust 2004, respectively. Vire
and Emtriva were approved for sale in the Europgsaion in February 2002 and October 2003, respdgtiBales of Viread were 63%, 68%
and 53% of total product sales in 2004, 2003 ari22fkespectively. Of the Viread sales in 2004, $83illion were U.S. sales, an increase of
23% versus 2003, and $345.4 million were intermaticales, an increase of 64% versus 2003. Of iread sales in 2003, $355.9 million were
U.S. sales, an increase of 113% versus 2002, at@l&anillion were international sales, an increas258% versus 2002. Since Emtriva’s
introduction in July 2003, sales increased sigaifity from $10.0 million in 2003 to $57.6 million R004. Also, since August 2004 when
Truvada was approved for sale in the United Statesjuct sales have totaled $67.9 million througit@&nmber 31, 2004. Total HIV product
sales in 2004 were $27.4 million higher compare?i3 due to the favorable European currency enmiemt, the majority of which relates to
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Viread sales. We believe that as our product salgshanges with patients who are currently takifiggad and/or Emtriva switching to
Truvada, looking at our HIV products’ sales colieely is a more relevant basis for period-over-pércomparison. Sales of HIV products as a
percentage of total product sales were 73%, 69%5886 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In 2085expect sales from our HIV
products to be $1.2 billion to $1.25 billion foetfull year.

Sales of AmBisome were 17%, 24% and 44% of totadlpct sales in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectivedyouk HIV and HBV product
sales continue to increase, AmBisome sales aredsiag as a percentage of total product salefi€OhmBisome sales in 2004, $11.4 million
were U.S. sales, a decrease of 17% versus 20032893 million were international sales, an inseeaf 9% versus 2003. Of the AmBisome
sales in 2003, $13.8 million were U.S. sales, aafse of 10% versus 2002, and $184.6 million weternational sales, an increase of 8% over
2002. Reported AmBisome sales for 2004 were $1@l®mhigher due to the favorable currency envimemt compared to 2003. On a volume
basis, AmBisome sales in the United States dealezefrom 2003 while sales volume in Europe inceeadightly by 1% compared to 2003.
When analyzing the decrease in U.S. sales, itf®itant to note that while U.S. product sales desrd 17% when comparing 2004 to 2003,
volume decreased only 2%. Our discussion of U.SB&ame sales relates solely to our sales of AmBestorFujisawa which is recorded at
our manufacturing cost. In 2004, due to greaterufeanturing efficiencies, our per unit manufacturoast for AmBisome decreased, thereby
decreasing revenues reported for our sales todwgisRoyalties that we earn on sales of AmBisomEdjisawa are discussed below. With
continuing competition, we expect AmBisome sale2fa05 to be in the range of $195 million to $208iam.

Royalty Revenu

We recorded royalty revenues of $63.4 million i©20compared with $25.2 million in 2003 and $20i#liom in 2002. During this three-
year period, our most significant source of royattyenue resulted from sales of Tamiflu by Roche sales of AmBisome in the United Sta
by Fujisawa under a cpromotion arrangement with us. Royalty revenuesezhon sales of Tamiflu were $44.6 million, $12 l@liom and $3.4
million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Rtyatvenues earned on sales of AmBisome by Fujisagra $13.0 million, $12.5 million a
$15.7 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectivAly.it is difficult to estimate third party produstles, we record royalty revenue from Roche
one quarter in arrears. Due to a severe influepidemic in the United States in late 2003 througtlye2004, our royalty revenues increased
substantially during the first and second quardéi2004. Increased awareness and discussion aimatipply of influenza treatments in 2004
has further increased Roche’s sales of Tamiflu@msequently, our royalties for the third and fouqtiarters of 2004.

Contract Revenue

Total contract revenue was $19.0 million in 200mpared with $6.3 million in 2003 and $22.5 million2002. In 2004, contract reven
consisted primarily of $10.0 million in researctdamilestone revenue earned from Eyetech Pharmaedsutvhich included $7.6 million net
milestone payments earned upon the filing of nengdrpplications by Eyetech in Europe and the Uriides for Macugen (pegaptanib
sodium injection). In 2003, the primary source ofitact revenue consisted of $2.2 million in licefises earned in conjunction with our
licensing agreement with Eyetech for Macugen. 182@ontract revenue primarily consisted of $8.[lliom due to our licensing of the SELEX
process patent estate to Archemix, which, due Heatdility concerns, we recognized on a cash famind $8.0 million in milestone payments
from Roche for the European prophylaxis and treatrapprovals of Tamiflu.

In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggassets to OSI. Under the terms our agreemangre entitled to additional
payments from OSI of up to $30.0 million in eitliash or a combination of cash and OSI stock ifwnen OSI reaches certain development
milestones for NX 211, the most advanced of theotmgy product candidates sold to OSI. Under a eelaanufacturing
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agreement, we produce NX 211 and GS 7904L, thdipgsomal products included in the sales at ourufeaturing facility in San Dimas,
California. In 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recognizéd $nillion, $1.1 million and $3.3 million, respeetly, of contract revenue under this
manufacturing agreement.

Cost of Goods Sold and Product Gross Margins

The following table indicates cost of goods sold anoduct gross margins (in thousands):

2004 Change 2003 Change 2002
Total product sales $1,242,22:  49% $836,34] 97% $423,87¢
Cost of goods sol $ 166,587 48% $112,69] 62% $ 69,72¢
Gross margin percenta 86.6% 86.5% 83.6%

Our gross margin was relatively flat from 2003 @92 as the positive impact of improvements in ¢gent@anufacturing processes and a
favorable foreign currency environment was offgsetbanges in product sales mix. Comparing 2000@22gross margin improved primarily
due to a change in product mix as Viread, a highengin product, contributed more significantly &t product sales in 2003.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates impassgnargins since we price our products in theeoay of the country into which the
products are sold while a significant majority off enanufacturing costs are in U.S. dollars. Fomepla, an increase in the value of these
foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar vaidisitively impact gross margins since our manuii@ag costs will remain approximately the
same while our revenues after being translatedun® dollars, will increase. Although the weakenih.S. dollar has positively impacted gr
revenues and gross margins in 2004, 2003 and 2002yl effect of the foreign currency exchangtesashas been moderated by our hedging
program on forecasted international sales. Exaaphf potential impact of unpredictable and unaglatble changes in exchange rates relative
to the U.S. dollar and the mix of product salesveen our various HIV products, Hepsera and AmBisomgeexpect gross margins in 2005 to
be consistent with those of 2004, within the raoh85-86%.

Research and Development Exper
The following table summarizes our research anctldbgvment expenses into these major componentedirsands):

2004 Change 2003 Change 2002
Research $ 43,87 17% $ 37,49¢ 35% $ 27,847
Clinical developmen 146,98: 37% 107,43¢ 20% 89,37¢
Pharmaceutical development 32,697 (11)% 36,832 49% 24,641
Total $223,55: 23% $181,76¢ 28%  $141,86:
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The three major categories of research and develop(R&D) expenses consist of personnel costsydicy salaries and benefits, clini
studies performed by contract research organizatimaterials and supplies, and overhead allocationsisting of various support and facili
related costs. Research costs typically consiptexdlinical and toxicology work. Clinical developmeosts include Phase 1, 2, 3 and 4 clinical
trials as well as expanded access programs. Phautiegal development costs consist of product foatioh and chemical analysis. Prior to
2004, clinical development consisted only of claitrial expenses for Phases 1 through 3 and Phasthe United States. Phase 4 European
clinical trials were included in sales, general addhinistrative (SG&A). During 2004, in order tottee reflect the nature of the European P!

4 clinical trials, we began recording these clihical expenses as research and developmentder o be consistent with the current year
presentation, $16.9 million and $7.1 million of erges were reclassified from selling, general amdiristrative to research and development
expenses for the years ended December 31, 2003082 respectively.

The $41.8 million increase in R&D expenses in 260dr 2003 was primarily attributable to increaseldses of $10.2 million due largely
to higher headcount, increased contract reseaganaation costs of $9.7 million associated wittr@ased clinical activities, as well as $13.0
million research and license fees paid by us iati@h to hepatitis C collaboration agreements &ffedn the fourth quarter of 2004. The new
2004 collaborations were entered into with Achilliand Genelabs and required us to pay aggregatestdees of $13.0 million which were
expensed as R&D as the underlying technology haalteonative future use. The increase in 2004 R&fvdy was partially offset by a
decrease in spending due to the discontinuati@mupnfwo programs, GS 9005 and GS 7340, that focardtie development of certain HIV
investigational products. It is also important taenthat our 2003 R&D expenses included a reimipoese to Gilead of $13.2 million from the
settlement of a contractual dispute with a vendor.

T he $39.9 million increase in R&D spending in 20@8sus 2002 was primarily attributable to increbsalaries of $14.4 million due
largely to higher headcount, increased clinicalpdies costs of $7.0 million and increased clinitills costs associated with the development
of Emtriva and Truvada, the co-formulation of Videmnd Emtriva. Also as mentioned above, in 2003settded a contractual dispute with a
vendor that resulted in reimbursement to us of $idllion that was recorded to research and devety expense.

In 2005, we expect R&D expenses to be approxim&240 million to $260 million. This estimated inase in expenses over 2004 levels
reflects increased spending on our internal rebeand development efforts as well as costs assocwith post-marketing studies to support
our products, but excludes any expenses we may asaociated with potential collaborations or sgat acquisitions, including license and
milestone fees or cost sharing arrangements, aniipact of accounting for employee stock basedpamsation beginning in the second half
of 2005.

Industry reports indicate that a biopharmaceutioahpany generally takes 10 to 15 years (an averbj2 years) to research, develop and
bring to market a new prescription medicine inltheted States. These averages are generally censisith the projects that we undertake
internally, although our recent product developntanelines have been on a slightly more acceleragsis. Drug development in the United
States is a process that includes several steppeeddfy the FDA. The process begins with the fildigan IND, which, if successful, allows
opportunity for clinical study of the potential nemedicine. Clinical development typically involvésee phases of study: Phase 1, 2 and 3
generally accounts for an average of seven yeaagafig's total development time. The most sigaificcosts associated with clinical
development are the Phase 3 trials as they tehd tbe longest and largest studies conducted dthindrug development process. We
currently have products in development that arfeliase 3 studies. The successful development gfroducts is highly uncertain. Completion
dates and R&D expenses can vary significantly émheproduct and are difficult to predict. Even afteccessful development and FDA
approval of a product, we undertake additionalissitb try to expand the product’s label and mapkaéntial. For a more complete discussion
of the risks and uncertainties
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associated with completing the development of pctajisee the “Risk Factors That Affect Gilead” secbf Item | above.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The following table highlights the year to year eges in selling, general and administrative expefisethousands):

2004 Change 2003 Change 2002
Selling, general and administrati $302,79: 30%  $233,26¢ 34% $174,19:

SG&A expenses for the year ended December 31, 2@dd $302.8 million compared to $233.3 million fbe year ended December 31,
2003, which includes the reclassification of phidselinical trial expenses incurred in 2003 to R&ID$16.9 million. The significant increase
in expenses in 2004 compared to 2003 is primatily b increased salaries of $14.2 million due lgrgehigher headcount, increased
consulting fees of $5.9 million related to Sarba@atey compliance and business strategy consuléiagyell as increased costs of $12.6
million relating to speaker’s programs, grants pmanal advertising. The remainder of the incréas@G&A expenses in 2004 compared to
2003 is due to our increased global marketing t&ffand increased infrastructure required to sugpergrowth of our businesdBuring 2004, a
part of our infrastructure investments, we impletedra reorganization of our sales and marketingtfans into a newly created commercial
division. In conjunction with this reorganizatiome created and filled the new position of executive-president, commercial operations who
will have responsibility over global commercial ogéons and strategy for our product portfolio.

The increase in expenses in 2003 compared to 2@t2h includes the reclassification of phase I\idal trial expenses to R&D of $7.1
million, is primarily due to increased salariestdf3.4 million due largely to higher headcount, Beréase in hedging costs of $10.6 million,
increased costs of $9.0 million relating to mamgtineetings and grants, as well as increased deretalirectors and officers insurance of
$6.4 million. The remainder of the increase in SGé&#penses is due to our global sales and marketfogs including the expansion of our
U.S. and European sales forces and increasedtmitage required to support the growth of our bass.

In 2005, we expect SG&A expenses to be approxim&eb0 million to $370 million primarily due to thanticipated launch costs for
Truvada in the European Union, as well as ongaingstment in our global commercial organizatiomtigh hiring and promotional programs,
but excludes any expenses we may incur associateguatential collaborations or strategic acquisis and the impact of applying the new
standard on the accounting for employee stock besegbensation beginning in the second half of 2005.

Purchased I-process Research and Development

In connection with the acquisition of the net assétTriangle completed in January 2003, we reabplechased in-process research and
development expenses of $488.6 million in the fijsarter of 2003. The charge was due to Trianghesmplete research and development
programs that had not yet reached technologicaibfgidy and had no alternative future use as efakquisition date.

The value of the purchased in-process researcldevelopment was determined by estimating the mtlfatieire net cash flows between
2003 and 2020 using a present value risk adjusssdant rate of 15.75%. This discount rate is aifitant assumption and is based on our
estimated weighted average cost of capital adjugpegard for the risks associated with the projectguired. The projected cash flows from
acquired projects were based on estimates of regesnd operating profits related to the projectsiciering the stage of development of each
potential product acquired, the time and resouneesled to complete the development and approvedaf product, the life of each potential
commercialized product and associated risks inoyithe inherent difficulties and uncertainties in
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developing a drug compound including obtaining F&#l other regulatory approvals, and risks relatetie viability of and potential
alternative treatments in any future target mark&tsummary of these programs at the acquisitide,dand updated for subsequent
developments through February 2005, is as follows:

Estimated
Acquisition Date
Fair Value

Program Description Status of Developmen (in millions)

Emtricitabine for HIV A nucleoside analogue that Four phase 3 studies were completed $178.8
has been shown to be an  prior to the acquisition date. U.S.
inhibitor of HIV replication marketing approval was received from
in patients. the FDA in July 2003 for Emtriva and

European Union approval received fr
the European Commission in
October 2003
Emtricitabine/Tenofovir DF A fixed-dose As of the acquisition date, work had not $106.4

Fixed Dose Combination  co-formulation of tenofovir commenced on the potential co-

for HIV Therapy and emtricitabine. formulation except to the extent that
work on emtricitabine as a single agent
was progressing. In March 2004,
applications for marketing approval
were submitted in the United States and
European Union and in August 2004
marketing approval in the United States
was received from the FDA for
Truvada, the fixed-dose co-formulation
of tenofovir and emtricitabine.
Marketing approval in the European
Union was received in February 20!

Amdoxovir for HIV A purine dioxolane This program was in Phase 2 trials at $114.8
nucleoside that may offer acquisition date. In 2004, we terminated
advantages over other the licensing agreement with Emory
marketed nucleosides University and the University of
because of its activity Georgia Research Foundation, Inc. and
against drug resistant development was discontinued.

viruses as exhibited in
patients with HIV infection

Clevudine for HBV A pyrimidine nucleoside  This program was in Phase 1/2 trials at $58.8
analogue that has been acquisition date. In August 2003, the
shown to be an inhibitor of licensing agreement with Bukwang
HBV replication in patients Pharm. Ind. Co., Ltd was terminated
chronically infected with  and development was discontinued.

HBV.
Emtricitabine for HBV An inhibitor of HBV One phase 3 trial has been completed as ~ $29.8
replication in patients of December 31, 2004.
chronically infected with
HBV.
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Asset Impairmer

During 2003, we recorded an asset impairment chafr§&0.2 million on certain of our long-lived asseprimarily leasehold
improvements, manufacturing and laboratory equigniEnis non-cash charge was driven by the decigsid»ecember 2003 to terminate our
liposomal research and development activities m [Bianas and discontinue the DaunoXome product lline impairment was based on our
analysis of the undiscounted cash flows to be ggedrfrom the affected assets as compared todaeiing value. As the carrying value
exceeded the related estimated undiscounted aash,flve wrote the carrying value of the long-liveesets down to their estimated fair value.

In 2004, subsequent to our decision to disconttheeDaunoXome product line, we received unantieipaequests in Europe asking
Gilead to reconsider selling DaunoXome. As a resiulhese requests, management decided to corgeiliieg this product in certain countries
and we are still evaluating our supply and saledesgy with respect to DaunoXome. In accordanch WiSS. generally accepted accounting
principles , the new cost basis for the impairesetswas not adjusted for these new facts androstances.

Gain (Loss) on Marketable Securities

Pursuant to our agreement with Eyetech enterednnittarch 2000, we received a warrant to purch&e667 shares of Eyetech series B
convertible preferred stock, exercisable at a pfcg6.00 per share. In January 2004, Eyetech ostegblan initial public offering of its
common stock at which time we adjusted the faiugaf the warrant resulting in a gain of $20.6 imill At that time, the fair value of the
warrant was estimated using the Black-Scholes tialuanodel with a volatility rate of 50% and a disinit rate of 2.8%. At the end of the first
guarter of 2004, we exercised the warrant on dasis using shares of Eyetech common stock asdarasion for the exercise price and
subsequently held 646,841 shares of Eyetech constiogR. In the second quarter of 2004, we soldfate Eyetech shares we owned and
realized a gain of approximately $2.3 million, wiis included in interest and other income, nettlie year ended December 31, 2004.

In July 2002, we sold all of our remaining share®8| common stock for approximately $22.0 millidrhese shares were partial
consideration for the sale of our oncology asse®8$I in December 2001, at which time they weremded at a fair market value of
approximately $38.0 million. In connection with tbale of these remaining shares, we recognized-aperating loss of approximately $16.0
million in the year ended December 31, 2002.

Make-Whole Payment on Debt Redemption

In October 2004, Gilead called for the redemptibalbits outstanding 2% convertible senior notes ecember 15, 2007 on
November 20, 200. The convertible senior notes were called undmoaisional redemption based upon the market midgilead common
stock exceeding certain thresholds. The aggregateipal amount outstanding of the notes was $34%lllon. The convertible senior notes
were redeemable at a redemption price equal to 1fa%e principal amount of the notes, plus a qeyment equal to accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date and a cash makdevgayment equal to $60 per $1,000 principal valuihe notes less interest actually paid or
accrued and unpaid from the date of issuance afidbes to the redemption date. Interest on the exitle senior notes ceased to accrue on the
redemption date, and the only remaining right efltlolders thereafter was to receive the redempiégment, including accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date and the make-wpayenent. Alternatively, note holders could electdovert their notes into shares of Gilead
common stock at a price of $23.50 per share, @¥&hares of Gilead common stock per $1,000 prah@mount of the notes. Holders of
substantially all of the outstanding notes conwktheir notes into shares of Gilead’s common spoadr to the November 20, 2004 redemption
date. As a result of these conversions, 14,676s8a2es of

38




common stock were issued to these note holderrinection with the redemption, Gilead paid aggieegaake-whole payments of $7.4
million to note holders.

Interest and Other Income, r

We recorded interest and other income of $18.9anilin 2004, compared with $13.0 million in 20031a822.3 million in 2002. The
increase in 2004 compared to 2003 is primarilykaitable to the higher cash balances and yields theepast year. The decrease in 2003
compared to 2002 is attributable to the significdetline in interest rates and a lower average lbakince due to the acquisition of the net
assets of Triangle and the purchase of our Fostgc&mpus, partially offset by positive cash flfnem operations. Interest income in 2005
will depend principally upon prevailing interestas and the level of our cash, cash equivalentzarttetable securities balances.

Interest Expens

We incurred interest expense of $7.3 million in 206@mpared with $21.9 million in 2003 and $13.49iom in 2002. The decrease in 2(
over 2003 is primarily due to the conversion of $2650.0 million 5% convertible subordinated deltb ishares of our common stock in
December 2003. The only outstanding debt duringtmo2004 consisted of our $345.0 million 2% corise senior debt issued in
December 2002. In November 2004, we converted Bac@nvertible senior notes. The significant inceems2003 over 2002 is due to the full
year of interest on our $345.0 million 2% convddibenior notes which were issued in December 2002rest expense for 2003 and 2(
consisted primarily of interest on the $250.0 nilli5.0% convertible subordinated notes, which wereverted into shares of our common
stock in December 2003. We expect interest expien2@05 to decrease as compared with 2004 primdtigyto the conversion of the $345.0
million 2% convertible senior notes in November 200

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Tax

Our provision for (benefit from) income taxes wa9%.1 million, ($95.5) million and $1.3 million 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The 2004 effective income tax rate of 31.5% diffecsn the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% gelhetue to state taxes being more than
offset by the recognition of previously unbenefitteet operating losses, tax credit carryforwardb@@rtain earnings being taxed in foreign tax
rate jurisdictions with lower tax rates for whicb b.S. taxes have been provided because such gsauie planned to be permanently
reinvested outside the United States.

The tax benefit in 2003 includes the reversal afvaluation allowance against certain of our deféitax assets. In December of 2003, we
concluded that it was more likely than not thatwaild realize a portion of the benefit related tw deferred tax assets. Accordingly, we
reduced the valuation allowance against the aasetsecorded a tax benefit of $111.6 million. Teéeognition of these deferred tax assets had
no impact on our cash flows. Partially offsettihisttax benefit was income tax expense associaitbdweome earned by our foreign
subsidiaries, foreign losses benefitted at lowerades and the non-tax deductibility of purchasepgrocess research and development. We hac
significant net operating loss carryforwards whigdre used to reduce our U.S. tax liability. Exchgithe benefit relating to the reversal of our
valuation allowance, and the write off of purchasegrocess research and development, our effetaiveate for 2003 was 5%.

The income tax expense in 2002 was primarily assediwith income earned by our foreign subsidieaige®e had significant net
operating losses in the United States. The pravi&o 2002 was reduced by a change in the U.Sniectax law. This law allowed net
operating loss carryforward deductions to offs€d%0f alternative minimum taxable income, resultimg reduction of U.S. income tax
recorded in previous years of $1.3 million.
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On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation(Alee AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA allofis a deduction of 85% of
certain foreign earnings that are repatriated edimeld in the AJCA. We may elect to apply this pstn to qualifying earnings repatriations in
fiscal 2005. We have started an evaluation of ffexts of the repatriation provision; however, wertbt expect to be able to complete this
evaluation until after Congress or the Treasurydbepent provide additional clarifying language ay lkelements of the provision. We expect
to complete our evaluation of the effects of theatgation provision within a reasonable periodiwfe following the publication of the
additional clarifying language. The range of poles@mounts that we are considering for repatriatioder this provision is between zero and
$500 million (maximum amount allowable to us asmd in the AJCA). Currently, the related potentaige of impact on income taxes
cannot be reasonably estimated.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securitigiedo$1.25 billion at December 31, 2004, up frof 70 million at December 31, 20!
In 2004, the increase of $547.0 million was prityadue to net cash provided by operations of $5iiildlon and proceeds from issuances of
stock under employee stock plans of $78.8 milljmartially offset by capital expenditures of $51.dlion. In 2003, the cash decrease of
$235.4 million from 2002 was primarily due to trexaisition of Triangle, for which the net cash impaas $375.5 million, the purchase of
Foster City campus for $123.0 million and capitgdenditures of $38.6 million, partially offset byogeeds from issuance of stock under
employee stock plans of $83.8 million.

Working capital at December 31, 2004 was $1.600ilcompared to $1.08 billion at December 31, 2@lgnificant changes in working
capital during 2004 included a $144.5 million dese in current deferred tax assets more than dffsat$118.8 million increase in accounts
receivable and a $37.9 million increase in inventdhe $144.5 million decrease in current defeteedassets was primarily due to the
utilization of net operating losses and tax credityforwards to offset taxable income. The acceueteivable increase of $118.8 million was
primarily due to increased sales of Viread in thetétl States and Europe and sales from our newuptp@iruvada, launched in the United
States in the latter half of 2004. The $37.9 millincrease in inventory was primarily due to anéase in the purchase of raw materials an
production of Viread and Truvada inventory to meeteasing sales demand.

Current liabilities in 2004 increased by $67.6 iaillfrom 2003 primarily due to the following: a $05nillion increase in Medicaid rebate
obligations associated with higher sales of Virea#14.4 million increase in deferred revenue priljpdue to royalties received from Roche
$12.9 million increase in the liability associateith the fair value of our forward currency contsaas the U.S. dollar continued to weaken
against European currencies; an $11.9 million emean accounts payable primarily due to increasesr raw material purchases in suppo!
Viread and Truvada sales growth; a $9.7 milliorréase for increased compensation costs and empbeyesdits with added headcount; and an
increase of $4.1 million for distributors fees owsd not yet paid under the inventory managemergeagents entered into in July 2004. The
increase in current liabilities was partially offéy a $4.3 million decrease in accrued clinical greclinical expenses as a result of decreasing
activity associated with the clinical trial prograrfior Viread and Hepsera towards the end of 2004.

In 2004, we made capital expenditures of $51.4ioniltompared to $38.6 million in 2003 and $17.6ionlin 2002. These expenditures
were primarily for domestic and international fa@k improvements, including approximately $26.0lion associated with the completion of
our pilot plant in Foster City which will be usealdevelop our drug processes and prepare matggialgply clinical trials, as well as
additional spending for laboratory and manufactyequipment to accommodate our growth. Capital ediperes related to research and
development were between 55% and 65% of the $5illidmspent in 2004, 50% and 60% of the $38.6 imnillspent in 2003 and 20% to 25%
of the $17.6 million spent
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in 2002. We expect our capital spending for 200655 million to $65 million due to increased@structure needs and higher R&D
spending.

We believe that our existing capital resourcesplmented by cash generated from our operatiofishevadequate to satisfy our capital
needs for the foreseeable future. Our future chgtpuirements will depend on many factors, inahgdi

« the commercial performance of our current and fippnoducts,

» the progress and scope of our research and devefapefforts, including preclinical studies, anchidal trials,
« the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory reviews,

« the expansion of our sales and marketing capadliti

« administrative expenses,

« the possibility of acquiring manufacturing capahah or additional office facilities,

« the possibility of acquiring other companies or nawducts,

« the establishment of additional collaborative iielahips with other companies, and

» defense costs associated with, settlements of dwvetse results of litigation.

We may in the future require additional funding,iethcould be in the form of proceeds from equitydebt financings, such as from our
universal shelf registration statement filed in Braber 2003 for the potential issuance of up to ¥b@tllion of our securities, or additional
collaborative agreements with corporate entitiesuth funding is required, we cannot assure thatllibe available on favorable terms, if at
all.

Subsidiaries and Other

We have established a variety of subsidiaries ifoua countries for the purpose of conducting bessnin those locations. All of these
subsidiaries are consolidated in our financialkstagnts. We do not have any variable interest eatitiat are unconsolidated in our financial
statements. We are also not involved in any noraxge traded commodity contracts accounted faiavélue. We have no commercial
commitments with related parties, except for empéolpans.

Contractual Obligations

We have contractual obligations in the form of talpand operating leases, non-cancelable raw rahtrpply arrangements and clinical
research organization contracts. The followinggaimmarizes these contractual obligations at DbeeBil, 2004 (in thousands):

Payments due by perioc

Less than one More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Capital lease obligations $ 4% $ 221 $ 255 $ — & —
Operating lease obligatiol 88,63C 14,16C 27,00¢ 20,615 26,846
Capital commitments(1 1,966 1,966 — — —
Inventory purchase obligations( 232,181 104,681 85,00C 42,500 —
Clinical trials(3) 34,893 22,68€ 7,718 4,489 —
Total $358,14¢ $143,71¢ $119,98: $67,604 $ 26,84¢
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(1) At December 31, 2004, we had firm capital projezhmitments of approximately $2.0 million relatirgfacilities improvement. In
addition, we have budgeted significant capital exiiteires for 2005, mainly due to anticipated insezhinfrastructure needs and higher
R&D spending. We may have more capital spendirfgture years.

(2) At December 31, 2004, we had firm commitments t@pase active pharmaceutical ingredients. The atsalisclosed only represent
minimum purchase requirements. Actual purchasesdiffgr significantly from these amounts.

(3) At December 31, 2004, we had several clinical gsiéh various clinical trial phases. Our most digant expenditures are to contract
research organizations. Although most contract€aneelable, we generally have not cancelled cotstrahese amounts reflect
commitments based on existing contracts and doefiect any future modifications to existing comtisand anticipated or potential new
contracts.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239eeh2004) Share-Based Payme(8FAS 123R), which is a revision of SFAS 123.
SFAS 123R supercedes APB 25 and amends SFASt&®ment of Cash FlowSFAS 123R requires all share-based payments ptogees
and directors, including grants of stock optionshé recognized in the statement of operationsdbaséheir fair values, beginning with the f
interim or annual period after June 15, 2005, wahy adoption permitted. The pro forma disclosymeviously permitted under SFAS 123 no
longer will be an alternative to financial statemetognition. We expect to adopt SFAS 123R intbird quarter of fiscal 2005, beginning
July 1, 2005. Under SFAS 123R, we must determieeafipropriate fair value model to be used for vajishare-based payments, the
amortization method for compensation cost andrimesttion method to be used at date of adoptioe. tidnsition methods include prospective
and retroactive adoption options. Under the retrea@ptions, prior periods may be restated eidseof the beginning of the year of adoptio
for all periods presented. The prospective metlegdires that compensation expense be recorded foneested stock options and restricted
stock at the beginning of the first quarter of atmpof SFAS 123R, while the retroactive methodsildaecord compensation expense for all
unvested stock options and restricted stock beginwith the first period restated. We are currestmluating the requirements of SFAS 123R
as well as option valuation methodologies relatedur employee and director stock options and eygalstock purchase plan. Although we
have not yet determined the method of adoptiomeeffect of adopting SFAS 123R, we expect thabtteption of SFAS 123R will have a
material impact on our consolidated results of apiens and earnings per share. The impact of aglopfi SFAS 123R cannot be predicted at
this time because it will depend on, among othiergth the levels of share-based payments grantéeifuture, the method of adoption and the
option valuation method used. SFAS 123R also reguhre benefits of tax deductions in excess ofgeized compensation cost to be reported
as a financing cash flow, rather than as an opeyatsh flow as required under current literatlifés requirement will reduce net operating
cash flows and increase net financing cash flowseimods after adoption. While we cannot estimatatwhose amounts will be in the future
(because they depend on, among other things, whetogees and directors exercise stock options)atheunt of operating cash flows
recognized in prior periods related to tax deduntiwvere $22.0 million, $132.3 million and $0.4 ioifl in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Current estimates of option values using the Blackeles method may not be indicative of resultsyfr@luation methodologies ultimately
adopted by Gilead.

42




ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Foreign Currency Exchange Ri

Our operations include manufacturing and salesities in the United States as well as sales diEs/in Europe and Australia. As a res
our financial results could be significantly affedtby factors such as changes in foreign currerclyange rates or weak economic conditions
in the foreign markets in which we distribute owogucts. Our operating results are exposed to @simgexchange rates between the U.S.
dollar and various foreign currencies, the mostifigant of which are the Euro, the British pourrdighe Australian dollar. When the U.S.
dollar strengthens against these currencies, taBuwevalue of sales made in the respective foreigrrency decreases. Conversely, when the
U.S. dollar weakens, the relative amounts of saddssncrease. Overall, we are a net receiverreida currencies and, therefore, benefit from
a weaker U.S. dollar and are adversely affected styonger U.S. dollar relative to those foreigrrencies in which we transact significant
amounts of business.

To mitigate the impact of changes in currency ergearates on cash flows from our foreign curreratgsstransactions, we enter into
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge owidor currency-denominated net monetary assetalgitifies.

A significant percentage of our product sales @mothinated in foreign currencies. Increases irvétiee of the U.S. dollar against these
foreign currencies in the past have reduced, amigeifiuture may reduce, our U.S. dollar returnlmse sales and negatively impact our
financial condition. Prior to 2002, we did not hedaur exposure to the impact of fluctuating foregguiehange rates on forecasted sales. In
January 2002, we began to use forward contradtedge a percentage of our forecasted internatgaas, primarily those denominated in the
Euro currency. In recent years, due to the weakgeoirthe U.S. dollar, foreign currency exchangetilations have positively impacted prod
sales and gross margin; however, the full impat¢heffavorable foreign currency environment hasibeederated by the hedge contracts that
we had entered into.

The following table summarizes the notional amouatgrage currency exchange rates and fair valuesrapen foreign exchange
forward contracts at December 31, 2004. All conrdave maturities of one year or less. Averagesrate stated in terms of the amount of
foreign currency per U.S. dollar. Fair values repre estimated settlement amounts at Decembe084, (Botional amounts and fair values in
U.S. dollars in thousands):

Fair Value
Currency Notional Amount Average Rate December 31, 200.
British Pounc $ 48,09t 0.550¢ $ (2,179
Euro 525,501 0.771¢ (25,783)
Australian Dollar 7,146 1.2972 2)

The total notional amount of $580.7 million and fealue of ($28.0) million on our open foreign e&clye forward contracts at
December 31, 2004 compares with a total notionaarhof $405.0 million and fair value of ($14.5)llon on our open foreign exchange
forward contracts at December 31, 2003. The siggnifi increase in outstanding contracts from 20@0®4 is primarily attributed to the
projected increase in revenues over the forecasigse

Interest Rate Ris

Our portfolio of available-for-sale investment seties and our fixed-rate liabilities create an espre to interest rate risk. With respect to
the investment portfolio, we adhere to an investrpeficy that requires us to limit amounts invesiedecurities based on duration, industry
group, investment type
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and issuer, except for securities issued by the gh%ernment. The goals of our investment polinygrider of priority, are as follows:
» Safety and preservation of principal and diveratiien of risk;
 Liquidity of investments sufficient to meet castwl requirements; and
« Competitive after-tax rate of return.

The following table summarizes the expected madsriind average interest rates of our fixed-rdaerést-bearing assets and fixed-rate
liabilities at December 31, 2004 (dollars in thouds).

Fair Value

Years ending December 31 December 31
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total 2004

Assets
Available-for-sale securitie  $725,991 $318,512 $66,33¢ — — — $1,110,83¢ $1,110,83¢
Average interest rai 2.04% 2.76% 2.51% — — —
Liabilities
Long-term obligations,

including current portion

1) $ 1455¢ $ 13,53¢ $12,81: $12,211 $7,851 $24,70C $ 85,67C $ 85,67C

Average interest ral 12.8% 13.4% 10.6% — — —

(1) Long-term obligations consist of capital leases aperating leases (net of noncancelable subleaBas)interest portion of payments due
is included.

International Credit Risk

Our accounts receivable balance at December 34, 288 $371.2 million compared to $235.2 milliorbaicember 31, 2003 and
$125.0 million at December 31, 2002. The growtbun accounts receivable balances was primarilytdirgher product sales for Viread in
the United States and Europe. In certain countviesre payments are typically slow, primarily Gredtaly, Portugal and Spain, our accounts
receivable balances are significant. In most cabesge slow payment practices reflect the pacehathngovernmental entities reimburse our
customers. This, in turn, may increase the créshitrelated to certain of our customers. Salesigiamers in countries that tend to be relatively
slow paying have in the past increased, and iffitttuge may further increase, the average lengtinod that accounts receivable are
outstanding. At December 31, 2004, our past dueuwatts receivable for Greece, Italy, Portugal andirsmotaled approximately $166.6 millic
of which approximately $100.5 million was more tHe&20 days past due. To date, we have not expedesigeificant losses with respect to the
collection of our accounts receivable and we belithat substantially all our accounts receivablarzzes are collectible. We perform credit
evaluations of our customer’s financial conditiodaenerally have not required collateral.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this itemsateforth beginning at page 52 of this report arditecorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(&) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

An evaluation as of December 31, 2004 was carrigdinder the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and operaifosur “disclosure controls and
procedures,” which are defined under SEC ruleagals and other procedures of a company thatlesgned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the regbet it files under the Securities Exchange Adt984 (Exchange Act) is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within requiinggl periods. Based upon that evaluation, our Chiefcutive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls pratedures were effective.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Fimarigeporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnasidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting, as such term is defined
in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Ourriméé control system is designed to provide reaslenassurance regarding the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements fdemal purposes in accordance with generally aedepccounting principles. All internal
control systems, no matter how well designed, hialverent limitations and can provide only reasoeassurance that the objectives of the
internal control system are met.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemi@ss of our internal control over financial repgrtusing the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tred@ommission (COSO) in Internal Control - IntegchFramework. Based on our
evaluation, we concluded that our internal contradr financial reporting was effective as of Decembl, 2004.

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered pudticounting firm that has audited our consolidditeghcial statements included
herein, has issued an audit report on our asses&rhierternal control over financial reporting.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repartin

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated amynges in our internal control o\
financial reporting that occurred during the quaeteded December 31, 2004, and has concludedhtiia ¥vas no change during such quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonablyljike materially affect, our internal control oviamancial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item concerning directors and executive officers is incorpordtgdeference to the sections of our
Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC puasuto Regulation 14A in connection with the 2003né4al Meeting (the Proxy Statement)
under the headings “Nominees”, “Executive Officef8oard of Directors”, “Audit Committee” and “Corfignce with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934”.

Gilead’s written Code of Ethics applies to all of its dii@s and employees, including its executive oficdhe Code of Ethics is availa
on Gilead’s website dtttp://www.investors.gilead.conChanges to or waivers of the Code of Ethics belldisclosed on the same website.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorp@cby reference to the sections of our Proxy Statgmnder the headings “Executive
Compensation” and “Compensation Committee Report”.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorp@cby reference to the section of our Proxy Statemeder the heading “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manag#ine
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item is incorp@by reference to the sections of our Proxy Statémnder the headings
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and InsideriBigdtion”, “Certain Transactions” and “Executive@@pensation”.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpedby reference to the sections of our Proxy Statemnder the heading “Principal
Accountant Fees and Services.”

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDUL ES
(@) The following documents are filed as parthig Form 10-K:

(1) Index list to Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfingy 53
Audited Consolidated Financial Stateme

Consolidated Balance She: 55
Consolidated Statements of Operati 56
Consolidated Statement of Stockhol¢ Equity 57
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fle 58
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 59

(2) Schedule Il is included on page 96 of this repaittother schedules are omitted because they dareegaired or the required
information is included in the financial statemeotsotes thereto.

(3) Exhibits
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The following exhibits are filed herewith or incomated by reference:

Exhibit Exhibit
Footnote Number Description of Document
17 21 Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant andPkxBmaceuticals, Inc. dated as of
November 26, 200:
(21) 2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, among Registrantp8imnAcquisition Sub, Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Registrant, and Triangle Phasutcals, Inc., dated as of December 3,
2002.
(16) 3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Registrant, as amend:
Q) 3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended and restatedivB0O, 1999
4.1 Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 and Exhibit
3) 4.2 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated astob&r 21, 1999 between the
Registrant and ChaseMellon Shareholder Service§,
(7y 4.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated February 289 by%nd among Registrant, Gazelle
Acquisition Sub, Inc. and NeXstar Pharmaceutidals,
(32) 4.6 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Decerh®gP002 between the Registrant and
Goldman, Sachs & Ci
(29) 4.7 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Rights égent dated as of October 29, 2003
between the Registrant and Mellon Investor Seryice€.
4) 101 Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into betweenRlegistrant and its directors and
executive officers
4) 10.2 Form of Employee Proprietary Information and InvemtAgreement entered into between
Registrant and certain of its officers and key emeés.
4) 10.3 Registrar’s 1987 Incentive Stock Option Plan and relatedeagents
4) 104 Registrar’s 1987 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and relajegeanents
(1) 10.5 Registrar’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended Mard989.
(22) 10.6 Registrant’s 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amendedestdted April 5, 2000, as amended
January 18, 2001 and as amended January 30,
4) 10.7 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option issued to certakecutive officers and directors in
1991.
4) 109 Letter Agreement, dated as of September 23, 198iclea Registrant and IOCB/REGA, w
exhibits with certain confidential information omeid.
(5) 10.11 Amendment Agreement, dated October 25, 1993 betRegistrant and IOCB/REGA, and
related license agreements and exhibits with eedanfidential information omitte
(16) 10.12  Amendment Agreement, dated December 27, 2000 batRegistrant and IOCB/REG:
(22) 10.14 Registrant’'s 1995 Non-Employee Directors’ Stocki@pPlan, as amended January 26,
1999, and as amended January 30, 2
(6) 10.19 Development and License Agreement between RegistrahF. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd.
and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. dated September 27, $8%6certain confidential information
omitted.
(2) 10.21 NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, I's 1993 Incentive Stock Plan, adopted February983las
amended
(10) 10.22  NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, I's 1995 Director Option Plan, adopted July 25, 1!
(11) 10.23  Vestar, Inc. 1988 Stock Option Ple
(36) 10.24 Lease, dated February 24, 2003, between RegistrahMajestic MAPA Properties, LL(
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Lease, dated February 24, 2003, between RegistrahMajestic MAPA Properties, LL(

Assignment and Royalty Agreement, dated Decembet 290, effective as of June 2, 1989,
between Vestar, Inc. and City of Hope National MatlCenter

Agreement by and between Fujisawa USA, Inc. andarekic., dated August 9, 1991, and
Amendment No. 1 thereto, dated as of May 17, 1

Amendment No. 2 to agreement between Fujisawa W8Aand Vestar, Inc., dated as of
April 3, 1995, between Fujisawa USA, Inc. and Vestec. with certain confidential
information omitted

Amendment No. 3 to Agreement between Fujisawa UB&,and the Registrant, dated
March 4, 1996, to the Agreement by and betweers&wj USA, Inc. and Vestar, Inc., dated
August 9, 1991

Lease, dated July 20, 2000, among Registrant, Majeesalty Co. and Majestic-MAPA
Properties, LLC and the First Amendment theretedidarch 3, 200z

License and Distribution Agreement, dated Septer@befl997, by and between Sumitomo
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and NeXstar Pharmacdsiticec. with certain confidential
information omitted

Settlement Agreement, dated August 11, 1997, byaamohg NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
Fujisawa U.S.A., Inc. and The Liposome Company, With certain confidential information
omitted.

Amendment, dated April 30, 1998, between Sumitoinarfaceuticals Co., Ltd. and
NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to the License amtribution Agreement, date

September 26, 1996, between Sumitomo and NeXstanRiteuticals, Inc

The Corporate Plan for Retirement Select —Basic Plan Documen

The Corporate Plan for Retirement Select —Adoption Agreement

Addendum to the Gilead Sciences, Inc. Deferred Garsation Plar

Licensing Agreement, dated April 26, 2002, by apthleen Gilead World Markets, Limited
and Glaxo Group Limitec

Employment Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, by amwdsen Gilead Sciences, Inc. and
Sharon Surre-Barbari.

Triangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1996 Stock Incerféilan.

Option Agreement between Triangle Pharmaceutitats,and Daniel G. Welch, dated
August 5, 2002

License Agreement among Triangle Pharmaceutiaads, Emory University and the
University of Georgia Research Foundation, Inc.clmmpound amdoxovir (DAPD), dated
March 31, 1996

License Agreement between Triangle Pharmaceuticalsand Emory University for
Coviracil (FTC), dated April 17, 199

Exclusive License Agreement among Triangle Pharotézags, Inc., Glaxo Group Limited,
The Wellcome Foundation Limited, Glaxo Wellcome.land Emory University, dated
May 6, 1999

Settlement Agreement among Triangle Pharmaceuticeds Emory University, Dr. David
W. Barry, Glaxo Wellcome plc, Glaxo Wellcome InGlaxo Group Limited and The
Wellcome Foundation Limited, dated May 6, 19

First Amendment to License Agreement between Tte@aRf@jarmaceuticals, Inc. and Emory
University, dated May 6, 199
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First Amendment to License Agreement among TriaRflarmaceuticals, Inc., Emory
University and the University of Georgia Researolrftation, Inc., dated July 10, 20t
Second Amendment to License Agreement between gladPharmaceuticals, Inc. and
Emory University, dated July 10, 20(

Supply and Manufacturing Agreement between Triafglarmaceuticals, Inc. and Abbott
Laboratories, dated July 30, 20!

Settlement and Exclusive License Agreement amoiangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Shire
Biochem Inc., Shire Pharmaceuticals Group plc, Bntmiversity and the University of
Georgia Research Foundation, dated August 30, :

Second Amendment to License Agreement among TéaRlgarmaceuticals, Inc., Emory
University and the University of Georgia Researolrftation, Inc., dated August 30, 20
Manufacturing Supply Agreement between Gilead Wathltkets, Ltd. and PPG-Sipsy
S.A.S, entered into as of January 1, 2(

Gilead Sciences, Inc. Severance Plan, as adoftie¢ January 29, 20(

Third Amendment to License Agreement between TiaRparmaceuticals, Inc. and Emory
University, dated May 31, 200

Lease Agreement, dated June®,22003, between Registrant and GRA Associates kit
L.L.C. for premises located at 4611 and 4615 UmsitgDrive, Durham, North Carolir
Master Clinical and Commercial Supply Agreemengedatanuary 1, 2003 among Gilead
World Markets, Ltd., Gilead Sciences, Inc. and Bathinc.

Toll Manufacturing Agreement dated August 1, 20§&hd among Gilead World Markets,
Ltd., Gilead Sciences, Inc. and ALTANA Pharma Oeshiurg Gmbt

Licensing Agreement, dated as of March 31, 2000aaneinded on May 9, 2000,
December 4, 2001 and April 12, 2002, by and betw&itaad Sciences, Inc. and Eyetech
Pharmaceuticals, In

Amendment No. 1 to Licensing Agreement, dated adayf 9, 2000 by and between Eyetech
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Gilead Sciences,

Amendment No. 2 to Licensing Agreement, dated d3eafember 4, 2001 by and between
Eyetech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Gilead Sciemhtes

Amendment No. 3 to Licensing Agreement, dated aSugfust 30, 2002 by and between
Eyetech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and Gilead Sciethtes

Amendment No. 1 dated May 19, 2003 to Licensingeggrent dated 26 April 2002 between
Glaxo Group Limited and Gilead World Markets Lingi

Amendment No. 2 dated January 9, 2004 to Licenagrgement dated 26 April 2002
between Glaxo Group Limited and Gilead World Maskeimited

Employment Agreement, dated April 26, 2004, by batveen Gilead Sciences, Inc. and
Mark L. Perry

Gilead Sciences, Inc. 2004 Equity Incentive Planamended July 29, 20

Collaboration Agreement by and among Gilead Scigne., Gilead Holdings, LLC,
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, E.R. Squibb & Son4.,.C., and Bristol-Myers Squibb &
Gilead Sciences, LLC, dated December 17, 2

4™ Amendment to License Agreement between TrianglerRaeeuticals, Inc. and Emory
University, dated May 6, 199

Subsidiaries of the Registral
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23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to Signataget
311 Section 302 Certificatior

312 Section 302 Certificatio

32 Section 906 Certificatio

(1) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’'s Annual Report@mrm 10K/A for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 iacorporated herein t
reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,dr@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarteded June 30, 1997, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reparform 8-K filed on October 22, 1999, and incogted herein by reference.
(4) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-1 (No. 33-55680), as amendednandporated herein by reference.

(5) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Annual Repaortfr@rm 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31,4,9hd incorporated herein by
reference.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reéjpor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septembet 386, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(7) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporform 8-K filed on March 9, 1999, and incorpodaterein by reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drieorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®B6, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(9) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drieorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®B5, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Seen30, 1995, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberi®B4, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(12) Filed on March 22, 1991 as an exhibit to NeXstaarRtaceuticals, Inc.’s Registration Statement omF8¢2 (File No. 33-39549), and
incorporated herein by reference.

(13) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Seen30, 1997, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(14) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drfeorm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 18688,incorporated herein by
reference.

(15) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, and incatga herein by reference.
(16) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, and incatgb herein by reference.
(17) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Current Reporform 8-K filed on January 4, 2002, and incorgetdnerein by reference.
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(18) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Réor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 280@ incorporated herein by
reference.

(19) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Réor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended SeptembeP@02, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(20) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, and incatgb herein by reference.
(21) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’'s Current Reporf-orm 8-K filed on December 10, 2002, and incoapexd herein by reference.

(22) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-8 (No. 333-102912) filed on Jgn@a, 2003, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(23) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Registratioat&nent on Form S-8 (No. 333-102911) filed on Jgn@a, 2003, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(24) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nRegistration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 3339B), as amended, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(25) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeteded September 30, 1999, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(26) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeteded September 30, 2000, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(27) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals,' $nCurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on Septemb@r2002, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(28) Filed as an exhibit to Triangle Pharmaceuticals, $nQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeteded September 30, 2002, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(29) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Currenté&epn Form 8-K filed on October 31, 2003, and pavated herein by reference.

(30) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reéor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2@@8 incorporated herein by
reference.

(31) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Réor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2808 ,incorporated herein by
reference.

(32) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, and incatgb herein by reference.

(33) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Réjpor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2@@4l incorporated herein by
reference.

(34) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Reéjpor Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 280d incorporated herein by
reference.

(35) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, and incatgad herein by reference.
(36) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 10-K foe fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, and incatg herein by reference.

+  Certain confidential portions of this Exhibit weymitted by means of marking such portions with stersk (the Mark). This Exhibit has
been filed separately with the Secretary of the 8E8out the Mark pursuant to the Registrant’s Apgtion Requesting Confidential
Treatment under Rule 24b-2 under the Securitieh&xge Act of 1934
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Gilea&ces, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Gilead Sciences, Inc. as of Decenlhe?®4 and 2003, and the rela
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgrsty, and cash flows for each of the three géarthe period ended December 31, 2004.
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale listed at Item 15(a) of this Annual Repartrmrm 10-K. These financial statements
and schedule are the responsibility of the managenfeGilead Sciences, Inc. Our responsibilityasekpress an opinion on these financial
statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstatts of the Public Company Accounting OversighaigUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &madbtain reasonable assurance about whethdintiecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredtbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of Gile
Sciences, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and 2003 endonsolidated results of its operations andashdlows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity WitS. generally accepted accounting principles. Als@ur opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relatidthetdasic financial statements taken as a whoésenits fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
effectiveness of Gilead Sciences, Inc.’s intermaitml over financial reporting as of December 3104, based on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission and our report
dated March 4, 2005 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Palo Alto, Californie
March 4, 200t
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Gilea&ces, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, inclodkd accompanying Management’s Annual Report terial Control Over
Financial Reporting included in Item 9A, that Gile&ciences, Inc. maintained effective internal cardaver financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria establish&dénnal Control—Integrated Framework issued &y @ommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the C@B8@ria). Gilead Sciences, Inc.’s managementspaasible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and ftg assessment of the effectiveness of internalaloover financial reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on management’s assessmeéran opinion on the effectiveness of Gilead &8s, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing anhdhating the design and operating effectivenessitgfrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary girtuenstances. We believe that our audit providessagonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or démisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Geshces, Inc. maintained effective internal aantwer financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all mateeapects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, mopinion, Gilead Sciences, Inc. maintained,
in all material respects, effective internal cohtreer financial reporting as of December 31, 20fsed on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Gilead Sciencesasnaf December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the retatesblidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofttiree years in the period ended December 31, 20@#ithe related financial statement
schedule and our report dated March2805 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLF

Palo Alto, Californie
March 4, 200t
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31

2004 2003

Assets
Current asset:

Cash and cash equivale $ 280,90¢ $ 194,71¢

Marketable securitie 973,12¢ 512,281

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $27,4Mexember 31, 20C

and $25,607 at December 31, 2( 371,24¢ 235,217

Inventories 135,991 98,102

Deferred tax asse 53,047 197,567

Prepaid expenses and other 35,372 28,012
Total current asse 1,849,69¢ 1,265,89¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 223,10¢ 198,20(
Noncurrent deferred tax ass 45,44¢ 52,494
Other noncurrent asse 37,717 38,13C

$2,155,96: $1,554,72.

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 4755: $ 35,64¢
Accrued clinical and preclinical expens 7,547 11,85¢
Accrued compensation and employee ben 45,46¢ 35,772
Other accrued liabilitie 132,82¢ 97,002
Deferred revenu 19,88C 5,474
Long-term obligations due within one year 181 139
Total current liabilities 253,457 185,89¢
Long-term deferred revent 31,404 20,53C
Long-term obligations due after one ye 234 323
Convertible senior del — 345,00(

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.001 per share, 5,08fes authorized; none
outstanding — —
Common stock, par value $.001 per share; 700,08@stauthorized; 448,8:
and 426,506 shares issued and outstanding at Dec&dhp2004 and 2003,

respectively 449 426
Additional paic-in capital 1,893,92¢ 1,452,99(
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It (18,692) 4,507
Deferred stock compensati (539) (1,306)
Accumulated defici (4,272) (453,643

Total stockholders’ equity 1,870,87: 1,002,974

$2,155,96: $1,554,72.

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues
Product sale
Royalty revenus
Contract revenue
Total revenue
Costs and expense
Cost of goods sol
Research and developme
Selling, general and administrati
Purchased i-process research and developn
Asset impairment
Total costs and expenses
Income (loss) from operations
Gain (loss) on marketable securit
Make-whole payment on convertible debt redemp
Interest and other income, r
Interest expens
Income (loss) before provision for (benefit fromgome taxes
Provision for (benefit from) income tax
Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per shi—basic
Shares used in per share calcule—basic

Net income (loss) per shi—diluted
Shares used in per share calculation—diluted

See accompanying notes

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
$1,242,22. $ 836,341 $423,87¢
63,444 25,21¢  20,40€
18,952 6,304  2250F
1,324,621 867,86/  466,79C
166,587 112,691 69,724
223,557 181,76/ 141,867
302,792 233,266 174,19z
— 488,59¢ —
— 10,21¢ —
692,93 1,026,53¢  385,78¢
631,68¢ (158,675 81,007
20,57€ — (16,049
(7,439) — —
18,94C 13,03¢ 22,291
(7,345) (21,897) (13,859
656,42 (167,535 73,397
207,051 (95,530) 1,300
$ 449371 $ (72,005 $ 72,097
$ 104 $ (018 $ 0.8
432,000 402,21C  391,08¢
$ 099 $ (018 $ 0.7
464,24¢ 402,21C 412,95/
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
(in thousands)

Accumulated
Other
Additional Comprehensive

Total
Common Stock Paid-In Income Deferred Stock Accumulated Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Compensation Deficit Equity
Balance at December 31, 2001 386,082 $386 $ 898,34( $ 7,448 $ — $ (453,73)) $ 452,430
Net income — — — — — 72,097 72,097
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net — — — (4,577) — — (4,577)
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — (580) — — (580)
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net — — — 184 — — 184
Comprehensive income 67,124
Issuances under employee stock purchase
plan 684 — 6,701 — — — 6,701
Stock option exercises, net 8,424 10 44,675 — — — 44,685
Tax benefits from employee stock plans — — 350 — — — 350
Compensatory stock transactions — — 44 — — — 44
Balance at December 31, 2002 395,19( 396 950,110 2,475 — (381,640) 571,341
Net loss — — — — — (72,003) (72,003)
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net — — — (4,022) — — (4,022)
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — 7,040 — — 7,040
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges, net — — — (986) — — (986)
Comprehensive loss (69,971)
Conversion of convertible subordinated debt 20,35¢€ 20 245,372 — — — 245,392
Acquisition of Triangle Pharmaceuticals, | — — 41,339 — (3,305) — 38,034
Issuances under employee stock purchase
plan 560 — 8,238 — — — 8,238
Stock option exercises, net 10,40C 10 75,558 — — — 75,568
Tax benefits from employee stock plans — — 132,363 — — — 132,363
Amortization of deferred stock compensat — — — — 1,999 — 1,999
Compensatory stock transactions — — 10 — — — 10
Balance at December 31, 2003 426,50€ 426 1,452,990 4,507 (1,306) (453,643) 1,002,974
Net income — — — — — 449,371 449,371
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale
securities, net — — — (1,580) — — (1,580)
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — 4,165 — — 4,165
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges, net —_ —_ — (25,784) — —_ (25,784)
Comprehensive income 426,172
Conversion of convertible senior debt, net of
debt issuance costs 14,677 15 339,829 — — — 339,844
Issuances under employee stock purchase
plan 596 1 11,173 — — — 11,174
Stock option exercises, net 7,038 7 67,615 — — — 67,622
Tax benefits from employee stock plans — — 22,012 — — — 22,012
Amortization of deferred stock compensat — — 5) — 767 — 762
Compensatory stock transactions 5 — 312 — — — 312
Balance at December 31, 2004 448,82: $449 $ 1,893,92¢ $ (18,692 $ (539 $ (4,272 $ 1,870,87:

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @ethcprovided by operating

activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Purchased in-process research and development
Asset impairment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss (gain) on marketable securities
Deferred tax assets
Tax benefits from employee stock plans
Other non-cash transactions
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketalslerities
Acquisition of Triangle net assets, net of cashuaeq
Acquisition of real estate
Other capital expenditures
Issuance of note to Triangle
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuances of common stock
Repayments of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior no&tspf issuance costs
Net cash provided by financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Common stock issued upon conversion of debt

Reclassification of deferred debt issuance costltitional paid-in capital upon

conversion of debt

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
$ 449371 $ (72,009 $ 72,097
20,265 16,532 13,18¢
4,143 4,326 1,239
—  488,59¢ —
— 10,21¢ —
6,195 568 143
(20,576) — 16,04€
151,56¢  (250,061) —
22,012 132,367 350
1,290 1,276 3,337
(118,849  (92,207)  (40,62€)
(37,889)  (46,474)  (12,34€)
(18,764)  (10,806)  (8,915)
11,902 6,144 5,232
15,423 44,495 11,544
25,28C 1,635 13,121
511,37¢ 234,607 74,40¢
(1,464,046 (934,75S)  (490,25¢)
1,024,58: 744,53  603,67¢
—  (375,50%) —
— (123,000 —
(51,366) (38,609  (17,597)
— — (50,000
(490,82§) ~ (727,34F) 45,82z
78,79€ 83,80€ 51,38€
(137) (1,715  (1,414)
— — 336,637
78,65¢ 82,001  386,60¢
(13,019 (11,565  (13,39<)
86,10C  (422,212) 493,441
194,71¢ 616,931  123,49(
$ 280,00¢ $ 19471¢ $ 616,93
$ 13,95¢ $ 19647 $ 12,657
37,064 8,779 851
$ 344,91 $ 250,000 $ —
5,066 4,608 —

See accompanying notes
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Overview

Gilead Sciences, Inc. (we or Gilead) was incorgmrdh Delaware on June 22, 1987. We are a bioplaaati@al company that discovers,
develops and commercializes therapeutics to advireceare of patients suffering from life-threatendiseases. We are a multinational
company, with revenues from eight approved prodactsmarketing operations in eleven countries. ¥éei$ our research and clinical
programs on anti-infectives. Currently, we markee¥d (tenofovir disoproxil fumarate), Emtriva (eiitabine) and Truvada (emtricitabine
and tenofovir disoproxil fumarate) for the treatmehHIV infection; Hepsera (adefovir dipivoxil) fahe treatment of chronic hepatitis B
infection; AmBisome (amphotericin B liposome fojdction) for the treatment of fungal infection; avistide (cidofovir injection) for the
treatment of CMV retinitis. Roche markets Tamifbséltamivir phosphate) for the treatment of inflzeerunder a royalty paying collaborative
agreement with us. In January 2005, Eyetech stéotetarket Macugen ( pegaptanib sodium injectiarthe United States for the treatment of
neovascular age-related macular degeneration, enaélestone and royalty paying collaborative agreet with us.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiastade the accounts of Gilead and its wholly-owsatsidiaries. Significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminateda®gprior year amounts have been reclassifiecetodmsistent with the current year
presentation. See “Research and Development Expénse

Stock Splits

On March 8, 2002 and September 3, 2004, Gilead tethtwo-for-one stock splits, effected in thenfioof stock dividends, to
stockholders of record as of February 14, 2002Aumglist 12, 2004, respectively. Accordingly, all ghand per share amounts for all periods
presented reflect these stock splits.

Critical Accounting Policies, Estimates and Judgmets

The preparation of these consolidated financidéstants requires us to make estimates and judgrtiettaffect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, aatbdetlisclosure of assets and liabilities. On againg basis, management evaluates its
estimates, including those related to revenue mtiog, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventsrielinical trial accruals and our tax
provision. We base our estimates on historical B&pee and on various other market specific andratblevant assumptions that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, thesegulhich form the basis for making judgmentswtibe carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from ateeurces. Actual results may differ significarflgm these estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from product sales when ikgrersuasive evidence an arrangement exists gdielio the customer has occurred,
the price is fixed or determinable and collecttiils reasonably assured. We do not provide ouoousrs with a general right of product ret
However, we will accept returns of products in thated States that have expired for one year #fier expiration, or products
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that are deemed to be damaged or defective wheiveetby the customer. Upon recognition of reveinom product sales, provisions are
made for estimated future returns of products whiely expire, government reimbursements, certainiloigor fees and customer incentives,
such as cash discounts for prompt payment. Estifategovernment reimbursements and cash discanatsased on contractual terms and
expectations regarding the utilization rates fas#hprograms. Estimates for distributor fees asedan contractual terms. Estimates for
product returns, including new products, are basedn ongoing analysis of industry and historical returttgans, as well as third party date
assist us in monitoring channel inventory leveld ambsequent prescriptions.

Contract revenue for research and developmentésded as performance occurs and the earningsgwéceompleted based on the
performance requirements of the contract. Nonredbfelcontract fees for which no further performaolskgations exist, and where there is no
continuing involvement by Gilead, are recognizedtemearlier of when the payments are receivedh@nacollection is reasonably assured.

Revenue from non-refundable up-front license fewkrailestone payments where we continue to havavement such as through a
development collaboration or an obligation to sygpbduct is recognized as performance occurs andlgigations are completed. In
accordance with the specific terms of Gilead's gddiions under these types of arrangements, revemaeognized as the manufacturing
obligation is fulfilled or ratably over the developent period. Revenue associated with substantivigkamilestones is recognized based upon
the achievement of the milestones as defined imgbpective agreements. Advance payments receivextiess of amounts earned are
classified as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue from sales of AmBisome is recogihinethe month following that in which the corresging sales occur. Royalty
revenue from sales of Hepsera, Tamiflu and Vissdecognized when received, which is in the quddéowing the quarter in which the
corresponding sales occur.

Shipping and Handling Costs
Shipping and handling costs incurred for invenfouychases and product shipments are recorded ist @a@oods sold” in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Research and Development Expenses

Major components of research and development (R&PEnses consist of personnel costs, includingisaland benefits, clinical studies
performed by contract research organizations (CR@iaterials and supplies, and overhead allocationsisting of various administrative and
facilities related costs. Our R&D activities ars@beparated into three main categories: reseelisital development and pharmaceutical
development. Research costs typically consist @lprical and toxicology work. Clinical developmemasts include Phase 1, 2, 3 and 4 clinical
trials. Pharmaceutical development costs consiptaduct formulation and chemical analysis.
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We charge research and development costs, inclutiimgal and preclinical study costs, to expenseewincurred, consistent with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFA&)2,Accounting for Research and Development Co$tese costs are a significant
component of R&D expenses. Most of our clinical aneclinical studies are performed by third pariy@s. We accrue costs for clinical
studies performed by CRO’s on a straitihe basis over the service periods specified édbntracts and adjust our estimates, if requivade
upon our on-going review of the level of effort azwkts actually incurred by the CRO. Initially watimate that the work performed under the
contracts occurs ratably over the service periodbd expected milestone, event or total contractpietion date. The expected completion
dates are estimated based upon the terms of theactmand past experience with similar contratts.monitor levels of performance under
each contract including the extent of patient dnreht and other activities through communicatiofthwur CRO’s, and we adjust our
estimates, if required, on a quarterly basis sbabhaexpenses reflect the actual effort expendeeldzh CRO.

All of our material CRO contracts are terminableusyupon written notice and Gilead is generallydialble for actual effort expended by
the CRO at any point in time during the contraggjardless of payment status. Amounts paid in advahservices being performed will be
refunded if a contract is terminated. Some congramtiude additional termination payments that beealue and payable only if Gilead
terminates the contract. Such additional termimagtiayments are only recorded if a contract is teateid.

During 2004, in order to better reflect the natoir&uropean Phase 4 clinical trials, Gilead begaomding these costs as R&D expenses.
Such amounts were previously classified as seltiegeral and administrative expenses in our caies@ldl statements of operations. In order to
be consistent with the current period presenta$dg,9 million and $7.1 million of expenses werelassified from selling, general and
administrative to research and development expefaethe years ended December 31, 2003 and 266@ectively.

Advertising Expenses

We expense the costs of advertising, including mtional expenses, as incurred. Advertising expenggs $50.5 million in 2004, $43.4
million in 2003 and $39.3 million in 2002.

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 1&&;ounting For Stock-Based Compensatias amended by SFAS No. 148
Accounting for Stoc-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclog&eAS 123), we have elected to continue to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 2Bccounting For Stock Issued To Employeasd Interpretation No. 44 (FIN 44¢ccounting for
Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensationrgerpretation of APB Opinion No. 2, accounting for our employee stock option
plans. Under APB 25, if the exercise price of Glleeemployee and director stock options equalsxoeeds the fair value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant, no compensation expsnmeeognized. Although we have elected to foltbe intrinsic value method prescribed by
APB 25, we will evaluate our approach to accounforgstock options in light of recent industry aregjulatory developments.
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The table below presents the net income (losspasit and diluted net income (loss) per sharerifppensation cost for the Gilead,
NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (NeXstar) and Triarsgbck option plans and the employee stock puecpks (ESPP) had been determi
based on the estimated fair value of awards ufbeset plans on the grant or purchase date in acooedsith SFAS 123 (in thousands, except
per share amounts):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002

Net income (los—as reported $449,371 $ (72,0039 $ 72,097
Add: Stocl-based employee compensation expense includ

reported net income (loss), net of related taxots! 465 1,219 44
Deduct: Total stoc-based employee compensation expe

determined under the fair value based method f@veards,

net of related tax effec (80,849 (61,42¢) (72,137)
Pro forma net income (los $368,99: $(132,21) $ 4
Net income (loss) per shai

Basic-as reportel $ 104 $ (0.18 $ 0.18

Basic-pro forma $ 085 $ (033 $ o0.00

Diluted-as reported $ 099 $ (018 $ 0.17

Diluted-pro forma $ 081 $ (033 $ o0.00

Fair values of awards granted under the stock ogtians and ESPP were estimated at grant or pleat@ses using a Black-Scholes
option valuation model. The Black-Scholes optioluadon model was developed for use in estimativegfair value of traded options, which
have no vesting restrictions and are fully traredfée. In addition, option valuation models require input of highly subjective assumptions
including the expected stock price volatility. Besa our employee stock options have characteristicsficantly different from those of trad
options, other models that may be developed itithee, may generate fair values that differ frdrage calculated based on Black-Scholes. To
calculate the estimated fair value of the awardspsed the multiple option approach and the folhgnassumptions:

Year ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Expected life in years (from vesting dat

Stock options 186 184 1.86

ESPF 148 132 131
Discount rate

Stock options 3.0% 28% 3.9%

ESPF 19% 1.8% 3.0%
Volatility 47% 78% 82%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%
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In the fourth quarter of 2003, we refined our vilitlgtassumptions used to arrive at a fair valuedar stock awards. For purposes of
calculating the expected volatility rate, we begaimg a time period that better reflected our mrstage of development, the length of time
that we have been a public company and severalappgpvals over the past few years which have edals to achieve positive cash flow
from operations. We believe these estimated vilatihtes better reflect the expected volatilityoofr common stock in the future. For 2004,
most recent three-year time period was used fquqaas of calculating the expected volatility. FO92, a two-year time period was used to
derive a weighted average volatility of 52% for fbarth quarter. The weighted average volatilityttod first three quarters of 2003 was 80%.

The weighted average estimated fair value of ESRRes purchased was $18.74 for 2004, $9.82 for 266359.27 for 2002.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated baisd¢kde weighted-average number of common shatssaoding during the year. Diluted
earnings (loss) per share is calculated basedeowéighted-average number of common shares anddithve securities. Dilutive potential
common shares resulting from the assumed exertizatstanding stock options and equivalents arerdéhed based on the treasury stock
method. Dilutive potential common shares resulfiogn the assumed conversion of convertible notesdatermined based on the if-converted
method. The following table is a reconciliationtibé numerator and denominator used in the calomati basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share (in thousands):

Year ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Numerator:
Net income (loss) used in calculation of basic e@® (loss) per shar  $449,371  $ (72,009 $ 72,097
Interest expense and mi-whole payment on convertible de
redemptior 9,160 — —
Net income (loss) used in calculation of dilutedhg@gs (loss) per sha $458,531 $ (72,009 $ 72,097

Denominator
Weightec-average common shares outstanding used in catmulef

basic earnings (loss) per shi 432,00¢ 402,21C 391,08¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options and equivaler 19,341 — 21,86¢

Convertible debt 12,90% — —
Weighted-average common shares outstanding useddulation of

diluted earnings (loss) per sh: 464,24€ _402,21C 412,954
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Diluted net loss per share for 2003 excludes toerated effect of the $250.0 million 5% convertiblébordinated notes, which would
convert to approximately 19.7 million shares, tffect of the $345.0 million 2% convertible seniartes, which would convert to
approximately 14.7 million shares, and outstanditogk options and equivalents of 19.8 million skaes their effects were antidilutive.
Diluted net income per share for 2002 excludeseffexts of the $250.0 million 5% convertible sulineded notes, which would convert to
approximately 20.4 million shares and the $345 lioni2% convertible senior notes, which would certo approximately 14.7 million
shares, as the effects of their assumed convergieresantidilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider highly liquid investments with insigeént interest rate risk and a remaining maturfttheee months or less at the purchase
date to be cash equivalents. We may enter intoniylerrepurchase agreements under which we purcesseities with an obligation to resell
them the following day. Securities purchased urdgeements to resell are recorded at face valueegrudted as cash and cash equivalents.
Under our investment policy, we may enter into repase agreements (repos) with major banks andwzel dealers provided that such re
are collateralized by U.S. government securitigh wifair value of at least 102% of the fair vahiesecurities sold to Gilead. Other eligible
instruments under our investment policy which auded in cash equivalents include commercial papeney market funds and other bank
obligations.

Marketable and Nonmarketable Securities

We determine the appropriate classification of marketable securities, which consist solely of dsnturities, at the time of purchase and
reevaluate such designation at each balance shietAll of our marketable securities are clasdifis available-for-sale and carried at
estimated fair values and reported in either casiivalents or marketable securities. At December2804, cash and cash equivalents include
$137.7 million of securities designated as avadlgbt-sale ($116.0 million at December 31, 2003)radlized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities are excluded from earningsrapdrted as a separate component of stockholdgugtye Interest and other income, net,
includes interest, dividends, amortization of pasd premiums and discounts, and realized gainkases on sales of securities. The cost of
securities sold is based on the specific identificemethod. We regularly review all of our investnts for other-thatemporary declines in fz
value. When we determine that the decline in falug of an investment below our accounting basigher-than-temporary, we reduce the
carrying value of the securities we hold and re@ldss in the amount of such decline. No suchatalus have been required during the past
three years.

As a result of entering into collaborations, frame to time, Gilead may hold stock in non-publierganies. We record these
nonmarketable securities at cost in other nonctiassets, less any amounts for other-than-temparggirment. We regularly review our
investments for indicators of impairment. Investtsdn nonmarketable securities are not materiattferperiods presented and we have not
recognized any other-than-temporary declines dutiegpast three years.
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Concentrations of Risk

We are subject to credit risk from our portfoliocafsh equivalents and marketable securities. Bgyake limit amounts invested in such
securities by duration, industry group, investntgpe and issuer, except for securities issued bytls. government. We are not exposed to
any significant concentrations of credit risk froimese financial instruments. The goals of our itmesit policy, in order of priority, are as
follows: safety and preservation of principal amedsification of risk; liquidity of investments Hicient to meet cash flow requirements; and
competitive after-tax rate of return.

We are also subject to credit risk from our acceuateivable related to product sales. A signifiganount of our trade accounts
receivable arises from product sales of VireadhenWnited States and Europe. In certain countrissrgvpayments are typically slow, primarily
Greece, Italy, Portugal and Spain, our accountsivable balances are significant. In most casesetislow payment practices reflect the pace
at which governmental entities reimburse our custemirhis, in turn, may increase the financial rislated to certain of our customers. Salt
customers in countries that tend to be relativilwgaying have in the past increased, and indheé may further increase, the average le
of time that accounts receivable are outstandindécember 31, 2004, our past due accounts redeif@bGreece, Italy, Portugal and Spain
totaled approximately $166.6 million, of which appimately $100.5 million was more than 120 days pag based on the contractual term
the receivables. At December 31, 2003, past dusvalales for these countries were $102.7 millidnyloich approximately $59.0 million was
more than 120 days past due. To date, we havexpetienced significant losses with respect to thlkection of our accounts receivable and
believe that all of our past due accounts receejaidt of allowances, as reflected in the constdifibalance sheet, are collectible. We perform
credit evaluations of our customers’ financial citiod and generally have not required collateral.

Many of the materials that we utilize in our opemas are made at only one facility. For example depend on single suppliers for high
quality amphotericin B, distearoylphosphatidyl-gheland high quality cholesterol, each of whichsed in the manufacture of AmBisome. As
well, we currently only have one contract manufemtgualified to manufacture Truvada tablets. [ies from our suppliers were interrupted
for any reason, we may be unable to ship VireadB&saome, Hepsera, Emtriva, Vistide or Truvada, osupply any of our products in
development for clinical trials.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded net of aliees for cash discounts for prompt payment, dabatcounts, government
chargebacks and sales returns. Estimates for é¢sstudts, government chargebacks and sales redterizased on contractual terms, historical
trends and expectations regarding the utilizatadas for these programs. Estimates for our alloedocdoubtful accounts is determined based
on existing contractual obligations, historical pegnt patterns of our customers and individual custocircumstances, an analysis of days
sales outstanding by customer and geographic regiaha review of the local economic environmert iéé potential impact on government
funding and reimbursement practices. Historicalg, level of uncollectible accounts receivable tie been written off, has been insignificant
and consistent with management’s expectations.
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Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost arketawith cost determined on a first-in, first-dagsis. We periodically review the
composition of inventory in order to identify obstd, slowmoving or otherwise unsaleable items. If unsaleébhas are observed and there
no alternate uses for the inventory, we will recandrite-down to net realizable value in the petioat the impairment is first recognized.
Historically, inventory write-downs have been ingfgcant and consistent with management’s expemtati

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at costdesumulated depreciation and amortization. Dégtien and amortization are
recognized using the straight-line method. Lambisdepreciated. Estimated useful lives are asvi@l(in years):

Description Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and improvemen 20
Laboratory and manufacturing equipm 4-10

Office and computer equipme 2-6
Leasehold improvemen Life of related leas

Office and computer equipment includes capitalieechputer software. All of our capitalized softwé&eurchased; we have no internally
developed computer software. Leasehold improvensrdscapitalized leased equipment are amortizedtbeeshorter of the lease term or the
asset’s useful life. Amortization of capitalize@$ed equipment is included in depreciation expedapitalized interest on construction in
progress is included in property, plant and equipmiaterest capitalized in 2004, 2003 and 2002 wsignificant.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with definite lives are amortieedr their estimated useful lives and are reviefeedmpairment when facts or
circumstances suggest that the carrying valueesfetlassets may not be recoverable. Our in-plase Ietangible asset is being amortized over
the remaining period of the related lease termismudsed in Note 4.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of long-lived assets is reviewad regular basis for the existence of factdroumstances both internally and
externally that may suggest impairment. Specifieptal indicators of impairment include:

» a significant decrease in the fair value of antasse

« a significant change in the extent or manner inclan asset is used or a significant physical chamgn asset;
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 asignificant adverse change in legal factors dhébusiness climate that affects the value aisset;
» an adverse action or assessment by the U.S. FabBraiy Administration or another regulator;
¢ an accumulation of costs significantly in excesthefamount originally expected to acquire or cartétan asset; and

« operating or cash flow losses combined with a hystd operating or cash flow losses or a projectioffiorecast that demonstrates
continuing losses associated with an income-produasset.

Should there be an indication of impairment, we teit for recoverability by comparing the estintatmdiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset areligntual disposition to the carrying amount efakset. In estimating these future cash flows,
assets and liabilities are grouped at the lowest fer which there are identifiable cash flowstthee largely independent of the cash flows
generated by other such groups. If the undiscouintede cash flows are less than the carrying arhofithe asset, an impairment loss,
measured as the excess of the carrying value afgbet over its estimated fair value, will be retiogd. The cash flow estimates used in such
calculations are based on management’s best esimating appropriate and customary assumptionpragections at the time.

Foreign Currency Translation, Transactions and Contacts

Adjustments resulting from translating the finahsi@atements of our foreign subsidiaries into W@&lars are excluded from the
determination of net income (loss) and are accuradli a separate component of stockholders’ eghigy foreign exchange transaction gains
or losses are reported as selling, general andrasinaitive expenses in the consolidated statenoérdperations. Such realized losses were
$4.3 million in 2004 and $2.2 million in 2003 aneth realized gains were $0.6 million in 2002.

We hedge certain of our foreign currency expostekded to outstanding trade accounts receivaldd@ecasted product sales with
foreign exchange forward contracts. In generalntlagket risks of these contracts are offset byesponding gains and losses on the
transactions being hedged. Our exposure to cristlifrom these contracts is a function of changesaterest and currency exchange rates and,
therefore, varies over time. Gilead limits the riskt counterparties to these contracts may belenalperform by transacting only with major
U.S. banks. We also limit risk of loss by enterinp contracts that provide for net settlement aturity. Therefore, our overall risk of loss in
the event of a counterparty default is limitedite amount of any unrecognized and unrealized gairsutstanding contracts (i.e., those
contracts that have a positive fair value) at tat @f default. We do not enter into speculatiweifyn currency transactions and do not write
options. We presently do not hedge our net investiimeany of our foreign subsidiaries. In accougtiar hedges of net monetary assets or
liabilities, we record the changes in the fair aln selling, general and administrative expenséhase derivative instruments are not
designated as hedges under SFAS Nos. 133 andh\t88.inting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirdiwties, (collectively referred to as
SFAS 133) .
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We selectively hedge anticipated currency exposoygsurchasing forward contracts to hedge antieipg@iroduct sales over the next year
or less, which are designated as cash flow hedydsr SFAS 133. The unrealized gains and losseseourtderlying forward contracts are
recorded in other comprehensive income and recednizearnings when the forecasted transactionrecéti December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, we have net unrealized lossesioopen foreign exchange forward contracts of $26llion and $14.5 million,
respectively. Losses on revenue hedges reducedgrsales by $2.5 million in 2004, by $2.8 million2003, and by $1.0 million in 2002.

We had notional amounts on forward exchange castadstanding of $580.7 million at December 31028nd $405.0 million at
December 31, 2003. All contracts have maturitiesre year or less. See Note 2 for a further disons¥ derivative financial instruments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist principally osbaand cash equivalents, marketable securitiesyats receivable, certain other non-
current assets, forward foreign exchange contractnunts payable and loterm obligations. Cash and cash equivalents, maleesecuritie
and forward foreign exchange contracts that hedgeumts receivable are reported at their respetdiveralues on the balance sheet. Forward
foreign exchange contracts that hedge firmly conadipurchases and forecasted sales are recorfld\atlue, net of the related deferred gain
or loss, resulting in a reported net balance aof.z&ilead called its 2% convertible senior notesré@emption in October 2004 and converted
them into 14,676,952 million shares of Gilead comratock in November 2004. At December 31, 2003fdirevalue of the convertible senior
notes was $472.6 million and its carrying value $245.0 million. Gilead called its 5% convertiblébsrdinated notes for redemption in
November 2003 and converted them into 20,356,23ibmshares of Gilead common stock in December32abie fair value of th
convertible senior notes at December 31, 2003 w#rthined by obtaining quotes from a market magetife notes. We believe the remair
financial instruments are reported on the constéidl&dalance sheet at amounts that approximatentuaie values.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1239geev2004) Share-Based Payme(@8FAS 123R), which is a revision of SFAS 123.
SFAS 123R supercedes APB 25 and amends SFASta@ment of Cash FlowSFAS 123R requires all share-based payments pogees
and directors, including grants of stock optionshé recognized in the statement of operationscbaseheir fair values, beginning with the f
interim or annual period after June 15, 2005, wihly adoption permitted. The pro forma disclosymeviously permitted under SFAS 123 no
longer will be an alternative to financial statemeatognition. We expect to adopt SFAS 123R intbird quarter of fiscal 2005, beginning
July 1, 2005. Under SFAS 123R, we must determieatipropriate fair value model to be used for vegjshare-based payments, the
amortization method for compensation cost andrdnesttion method to be used at date of adoptios.tfdnsition methods include prospective
and retroactive adoption options. Under the retieaoptions, prior periods may be restated eitieeof the beginning of the year of adoptio
for all periods presented. The prospective metlegdires that compensation expense be recorded foneested stock options and restricted
stock at the beginning of the first quarter
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of adoption of SFAS 123R, while the retroactive moeis would record compensation expense for all stedestock options and restricted st
beginning with the first period restated. We argently evaluating the requirements of SFAS 123Rvel$ as option valuation methodologies
related to our employee and director stock optenms employee stock purchase plan. Although we havget determined the method of
adoption or the effect of adopting SFAS 123R, weeex that the adoption of SFAS 123R will have aariatimpact on our consolidated
results of operations and earnings per share.Mpadt of adoption of SFAS 123R cannot be prediatdatlis time because it will depend on,
among other things, the levels of share-based patgngeanted in the future, the method of adoptiwshthe option valuation method used.
SFAS 123R also requires the benefits of tax dedostin excess of recognized compensation cost tegzgted as a financing cash flow, rat
than as an operating cash flow as required undeemtiiterature. This requirement will reduce operating cash flows and increase net
financing cash flows in periods after adoption. Whve cannot estimate what those amounts will kberfuture (because they depend on,
among other things, when employees and direct@scise stock options), the amount of operating ¢lasvs recognized in prior periods
related to tax deductions were $22.0 million, $338illion and $0.4 million in 2004, 2003 and 20@&spectively. Current estimates of option
values using the Black-Scholes method may not theative of results from valuation methodologiesnudtely adopted by Gilead.

2. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A |l derivatives are recognized as either assetmbilities measured at fair value. We enter ifdeign currency forward contracts to
hedge against changes in the fair value of sigmifiecnonetary assets and liabilities denominatedrinnfunctional currency. If the derivative
designated as, and meets the definition of, avidire hedge, the changes in the fair value of grvdtive and of the hedged item are
recognized in earnings.

We enter into foreign currency forward contracemerally with maturities of 12 months or less, éale future cash flows related to
forecasted product sales in foreign denominateceoares. These derivative instruments are emplayediminate or minimize certain foreign
currency exposures that can be confidently idesttifind quantified. Hedges related to forecastesignrcurrency product sales designated and
documented at the inception of the respective hadgelesignated as cash flow hedges and evaluatefféctiveness monthly. As the terms of
the forward contract and the underlying transactimmatched at inception, forward contract effectess is calculated by comparing the fair
value of the contract to the estimated changeerfdh value of the underlying hedged item. Theetiive component of the hedge is recorde
accumulated other comprehensive income (see N9teStibstantially all values reported in accumulaiter comprehensive loss at
December 31, 2004 will be reclassified to earniwghkin 12 months. Any residual changes in fair watf the instruments (including those
resulting from cancellation or de-designation afdee contracts) or other ineffectiveness are re@eghimmediately in selling, general and
administrative expense. The impact of ineffectivengéuring 2004, 2003 and 2002 was not significatitié consolidated statements of
operations.

During 2004, 2003 and 2002, losses of $6.8 millis 1 million and $0.4 million on hedging contraatsre recognized in the consolida
statements of operations, respectively.
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As a result of entering into a collaboration armegnt, Gilead held warrants to purchase stocknorapublic company, which completed
its initial public offering in January 2004 (seethl® 6 and 10). These warrants were exercised irugb2004. The warrants had a net exercise
feature and pursuant to SFAS 133, were classifiedkavative instruments in other noncurrent asseBecember 31, 2003.

3. ACQUISITION OF TRIANGLE PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

On January 23, 2003, we completed the acquisitiall of the net assets of Triangle to expand auivaal pipeline. Triangle was a
development stage company with a particular focupaiential therapies for HIV, including AIDS, atite hepatitis B virus (HBV). Triangle’s
portfolio consisted of several drug candidatedimaal trials, including Emtriva (emtricitabinedf the treatment of HIV infection,
emtricitabine for the treatment of chronic hepati®i amdoxovir for the treatment of HIV infectiondaclevudine for the treatment of chronic
hepatitis B. In July 2003, the U.S. Food and Druyjnistration (FDA) granted marketing approval Emtrivafor the treatment of HIV and
October 2003, the European Commission granted Mack@uthorisation for Emtriva in all fifteen membstates of the European Union.

The Triangle acquisition has been accounted famaacquisition of assets rather than as a busawesbination in accordance with the
criteria outlined in Emerging Issues Task Force398riangle was a development stage company tlthhbacommenced its planned principal
operations. It lacked the necessary elements abeéss because it did not have completed prodmnctstherefore, no ability to access
customers. The results of operations of Triangleesilanuary 23, 2003 have been included in oumtidased financial statements and
primarily consist of research and development egpg@nd to a lesser extent, selling, general amihidrative expenses.

In December 2002, as part of the arrangements qpté¢ed by the proposed acquisition of Trianglelilgad, a $50.0 million loan was
extended to Triangle for working capital and otbemporate purposes. Triangle issued to Gilead @ .6nsecured convertible promissory n
Upon completion of the acquisition in January 2008 loan was eliminated in our consolidated fitiahstatements.

The aggregate purchase price was $525.2 milliaydting cash paid of $463.1 million for all of thatstanding stock, the fair value of
stock options assumed of $41.3 million, direct $&tion costs of $14.2 million and employee relasts of $6.6 million.

As part of the purchase, we established a workfoedaction plan and also assumed obligations uvalgous change of control
agreements. As of the acquisition date, approxityp&&2 million of employee termination costs amduage of control obligations had been
recorded as a liability to be paid out over a pobapproximately two years. At December 31, 2G@phroximately $779,000 remained as a
liability.
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The following table summarizes the purchase prileation at January 23, 2003 (in thousands):

Net tangible asse $ 28,70(
Assembled workforc 4,590
Deferred compensatic 3,305
In-process research and development 488,59¢

$525,194

The $28.7 million of net tangible assets includesuaned liabilities of $20.8 million. The $4.6 nolfi value assigned to the assembled
workforce was being amortized over three yearsetiienated useful life of the asset. The defermdpensation represents the intrinsic value

of the unvested stock options assumed in the tetinsaand will be amortized over the remaining iresperiod of the options, which extends
through January 2007.

Upon the reversal of the deferred tax asset vaoatilowance in the fourth quarter of 2003, theagnmg $3.2 million assembled
workforce asset was eliminated (see Note 17).
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Approximately $488.6 million of the purchase prigas allocated to purchased in-process researcerelopment and represented the
fair value of Triangle’s incomplete research andali@oment programs that had not yet reached teobiuall feasibility and had no alternative
future use as of the acquisition date. A summanphe$e programs at the acquisition date, and ugdatesubsequent developments, is as

follows:
Estimated
Acquisition Date
Fair Value
Program Description Status of Development (in millions)
Emtricitabine for A nucleoside analogue that Four phase 3 studies were completed prior to $ 178.6
HIV has been shown to be an the acquisition date. U.S. marketing approval
inhibitor of HIV replication received from the FDA in July 2003 for
in patients. Emtriva and European Union approval
received from the European Commission in
October 2003
Emtricitabine/ A fixed-dose co-formulation As of the acquisition date, work had not $ 106.4
Tenofovir DF  of tenofovir and emtricitabine. commenced on the potential co-formulation
Fixed Dose except to the extent that work on
Combination emtricitabine as a single agent was
for HIV progressing. In March 2004, applications for
Therapy marketing approval were submitted in the
United States and European Union and in
August 2004 marketing approval in the United
States was received from the FDA for
Truvada, the fixed-dose co-formulation
of tenofovir and emtricitabine. Marketing
approval in the European Union was received
in February 200%
Amdoxovir for A purine dioxolane This program was in Phase 2 trials at $ 114.€
HIV nucleoside that may offer acquisition date. In 2004, we terminated the
advantages over other licensing agreement with Emory University
marketed nucleosides and the University of Georgia Research
because of its activity Foundation, Inc. and development was
against drug resistant discontinued.
viruses as exhibited in
patients with HIV infection
Clevudine for A pyrimidine nucleoside This program was in Phaséftrials at $ 588
HBV analogue that has been acquisition date. In August 2003, the licensing
shown to be an inhibitor of agreement with Bukwang Pharm. Ind. Co.,
HBV replication in patients Ltd was terminated and development was
chronically infected with HBV. discontinued
Emtricitabine for  An inhibitor of HBV One phase 3 trial has been completed as $ 298

HBV

replication in patients
chronically infected with HBV

of December 31, 2004.
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The value of the acquired in-process research amdldpment was determined by estimating the relfatienle net cash flows between
2003 and 2020 using a present value risk adjussaodnt rate of 15.75%. This discount rate is aifitant assumption and is based on our
estimated weighted average cost of capital adjugpedard for the risks associated with the projactpuired. The projected cash flows from
acquired projects were based on estimates of regesud operating profits related to the projectsidering the stage of development of each
potential product acquired, the time and resouneesled to complete the development and approvedaf product, the life of each potential
commercialized product and associated risks inolythe inherent difficulties and uncertainties @veloping a drug compound, including
obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals, d@skisrrelated to the viability of and potential altative treatments in any future target
markets.

4. ACQUISITION OF REAL ESTATE

In September 2003, we completed the purchase dfaster City, California campus for approximateh2$.0 million in cash. This
purchase included 16 buildings, totaling 496,008as¢g feet of office and laboratory space.

In accordance with SFAS No. 14Ausiness Combinatiorand SFAS No. 14Z;00dwill and Other Intangible Assetthe purchase price
was allocated between land, buildings and existingjace leases based on their estimated relaiverélues. Land and buildings were
recorded at $45.1 million and $71.4 million, regpesy. The fair value of the buildings will be degiated over their remaining economic life
estimated to be 20 years. We used the market agiptoavalue the existing leases we acquired anorded an intangible asset of
approximately $6.5 million that will be amortized a straight-line basis to net rental income oypgrraximately two years, the remaining term
of the leases. Accumulated amortization on thengitsle asset was $3.5 million and $0.8 million &®ecember 31, 2004 and December 31,
2003, respectively. The net rental income we gaadram these leases, after amortization of thanigible asset, is included in interest and
other income, net, and was approximately $1.4 omilfor the year ended December 31, 2004 and $0limrfior the year ended December 31,
2003. Future net rental income to be received uexlisting leases is $5.0 million for 2005 and $@ilion for 2006, prior to amortization of
our in-place lease asset.

5. ASSET IMPAIRMENT

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we recorded sseaimpairment charge of $10.2 million on cert#iour long-lived assets, primarily
leasehold improvements and manufacturing and latyraquipment, which we have classified as hetdif®. This non-cash charge was
driven by the decision to terminate our liposoneslearch and development activities in San Dimagauwdntinue the DaunoXome
(daunorubicin citrate liposome injection) produnel The impairment was based on our analysisefitidiscounted cash flows to be gener.
from the affected assets as compared to theirioarialue. As the carrying value exceeded theedlastimated undiscounted cash flows, we
wrote the carrying value of the long-lived assete/d to their estimated fair value in accordancé@8FAS No. 144Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Lor-Lived Asset§SFAS 144). Estimated fair value was derived usingxpected cash flow approach.
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In 2004, subsequent to our decision to discontthedDaunoXome product line, we received unantieipaequests in Europe asking
Gilead to reconsider selling DaunoXome. As a resiulhese requests, management decided to corgeiliieg this product in certain countries
and we are still evaluating our supply and saledeggy with respect to DaunoXome. In accordanch ®RAS 144, the write down in 2003 of
the assets which continue to be used in the Daum@Xqaroduct line established a new cost basis fan agsets that has not been adjusted for
these new facts and circumstances.

6. GAIN (LOSS) ON MARKETABLE SECURITIES
Eyetech Pharmaceuticals

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement witktégh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Eyetech) relatingutopooprietary aptamer EYEQO1,
currently known as Macugen ® (pegaptanib sodiurecitipn). Pursuant to this agreement, we receivedreant to purchase 791,667 shares of
Eyetech series B convertible preferred stock, égabte at a price of $6.00 per share. In Januady 2Byetech completed an initial public
offering of its common stock at which time we ad@asthe carrying value of the warrant to its esteddair value, resulting in a gain of $20.6
million which is included in our consolidated statnt of operations for the year ended Decembe2@14 in gain (loss) on marketable
securities. The fair value of the warrant was eatéd using the Black-Scholes valuation model wittolatility rate of 50% and a discount rate
of 2.8%. At the end of the first quarter of 2004 exercised the warrant on a net basis using sb&fgetech common stock as consideration
for the exercise price and subsequently held 646sBéres of Eyetech common stock. In the secondeyua 2004, we sold all of the Eyetech
shares we held and realized a gain of approxim&Ig million, which is included in interest andhet income, net, in our consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended DeceBihe2004.

OSI Pharmaceuticals

In July 2002, Gilead sold all of its remaining st&pf OSI common stock for approximately $22.0iomll These shares were partial
consideration for the sale of our oncology asse3$I! in December 2001, at which time they weremged at a fair market value of
approximately $38.0 million. In connection with thale of these remaining shares, we recognized-aperating loss of approximately $16.0
million that is reflected in our consolidated stant of operations for the year ended Decembe2@12 in gain (loss) on marketable
securities .
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7. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

The following is a summary of available-for-salewdties recorded in cash equivalents or marketséderities in our consolidated
balance sheets. Estimated fair values of availadslsale securities are based on prices obtaired fommercial pricing services (in
thousands):

Gross
Unrealized Gross
Amortized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 200
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government agencit $ 501,72t $ 7 $(2,300) $ 499,43
Corporate debt securiti 185,441 55 (554) 184,94z
Asse-backed securitie 267,59¢ 72 (1,365) 266,30¢€
Other debt securitie 160,15¢ — — 160,15¢
Total $1,114,92 $134 $(4,21 $1,110,83¢
December 31, 200:
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government agencit $ 167,82¢ $304 $ 5) $ 168,12«
Corporate debt securiti 104,54¢ 256 (15) 104,79C
Asse-backed securitie 208,557 165 (299) 208,422
Other debt securitie 146,901 — — 146,901
Total $ 627,83: $725 $ (319) $ 628,23¢

Other debt securities consist primarily of moneyketfunds. At December 31, 2004 and December @A3 2these securities had a net
unrealized gain (loss) of approximately $0.5 miliand ($0.8) million, respectively.

The following table presents certain informatiolated to sales of available-for-sale securitiegl{fousands):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Proceeds from sales $688,67¢ $579,36: $422,16¢
Gross realized gains on sa $ 575 $ 1,897 $ 3,492
Gross realized losses on s¢ $ (1,044 $ (1,120) $ (16,705

At December 31, 2004, $558.6 million of our poritfadf marketable securities (which excludes $266ilBon of asset-backed securities)
has a contractual maturity of less than one yedi$286.0 million of the portfolio has a contractoaturity greater than one year but less than
three years. None of the estimated maturities ofsset-backed securities exceed three years. Beadmber 31, 2004, we did not have any
marketable securities that were in a continuousalired loss position for more than one year.
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December 31

2004 2003
Inventories:
Raw material $ 93,94z $ 54,17¢
Work in proces: 11,103 11,77¢
Finished good 30,94€ 32,14¢
Total $ 135,991 $ 98,10
Property, plant and equipment, net:
Buildings and improvements (including leasehold iavements $ 177,70¢ $146,44"
Laboratory and manufacturing equipm 40,162 35,81¢
Office and computer equipme 39,537 34,19¢
Capitalized leased equipme 15,488 16,33¢
Construction i-progress 11,968 10,292
284,85¢ 243,08:
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (106,809 (89,93¢)
Subtotal 178,05C 153,144
Land 45,05€ 45,05€
Total $ 223,10¢ $198,20(
Accrued compensation and employee benefits:
Accrued bonuse $ 17,827 $ 13,31:
Other accrued compensation and employee benefits 27,642 22,45¢
Total $ 45/46¢ $ 35,77
Other accrued liabilities:
Accrued Medicaid rebate $ 37,13¢ $ 22,097
Fair value of forward foreign currency contra 27,963 15,09¢
Value added taxes payal 12,891 9,441
Income taxes payab 8,698 13,30t
Accrued royalty expense 14,49C 6,499
Other liabilities 31,643 30,564
Total $ 132,82« $ 97,007

9. JOINT VENTURE WITH BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB

In December 2004, we entered into a collaboratith Bristol-Myers Squibb Company (BMS) to develamlacommercialize the fixed-
dose combination of Gilead’s Truvada and BMS'’s va&t (efavirenz) in the United States. Structuredgoint venture, Gilead and BMS
formed the limited liability company, Bristol-Mye&quibb & Gilead Sciences, LLC. Under the termthefcollaboration, Gilead and BMS
granted royalty-free sublicenses to the joint vemfor the use of their respective company-ownetnelogies and, in return, were granted a
license by the joint venture to use any intellecpraperty that results from the collaboration. Tvenership interests of the joint venture by
Gilead and BMS, which
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reflect their respective economic interests, wélldased on the fraction of the estimated net ggtiiice of the fixed-dose combination product
attributable to Truvada and Sustiva, respectivety will be adjusted on an annual basis. Sinca¢tieselling price for Truvada may change
over time relative to the net selling price of $tesstboth Gilead’s and BMS'’s respective economteriests in the joint venture may vary
annually.

Gilead has primary responsibility for clinical désement activities and regulatory filings relatitoggany new products resulting from the
collaboration, and BMS and Gilead will share margand sales efforts (both parties will provideieglent sales force efforts for a minimum
number of years). The daily operations of the jonture are governed by four primary joint comeatt. Gilead will be responsible for
accounting, financial reporting and product disttibn for the joint venture. Both parties agreegtovide their respective bulk active
pharmaceutical ingredients to the joint venturthair approximate market values.

The joint venture’s total equity investment at riskot expected to be sufficient to allow it todnce its operational activities without the
ongoing funding of Gilead and BMS. Further, thenjoienture has other attributes that we believelr@sit representing a variable interest
entity as set forth in FASB Interpretation No. @nsolidation of Variable Interest Entiti€SIN 46R). We expect to consolidate the results of
operations and financial position of the joint weet{ as we have concluded that we are the primamgficiary, the party that will absorb a
majority of the joint venture’s expected losseghAugh we are the primary beneficiary, the legalctire of the joint venture limits the
recourse that its creditors will have over the gaheredit or assets of Gilead. There was no fif@rieformation to consolidate in 2004 as
operations of the joint venture had not yet begunfdDecember 31, 2004 and no capital contributlad been made by Gilead or BMS.
Beginning in 2005, we expect to consolidate thetjgenture and record the minority interest owngdBMS. All significant intercompany
transactions will be eliminated.

10. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
Achillion Pharmaceuticals

In November 2004, we entered into an exclusivenbeeand collaboration agreement with Achillion Piaceuticals, Inc. (Achillion).
Under this agreement, we were granted worldwidetsifor the research, development and commerciaizaf certain small molecule HCV
replication inhibitors involving HCV protease, fttre treatment of infection with the hepatitis CugiftHCV). Under this collaboration,
Achillion is obligated to continue development loétcompounds according to a mutually agreed upeeldement plan, through completion of
a proof-of-concept clinical study in HCV-infectedtfents. The costs incurred to achieve prootaficept will be shared equally between Gi
and Achillion. Following the proof-of-concept studyilead is obligated to assume full responsileiitand incur all costs associated with
development and commercialization of compounds aveimg further development. Achillion has the optio participate in U.S.
commercialization efforts for future products argifrom this collaboration. In conjunction with thigning of the collaboration, Gilead paid a
$5.0 million upfront license fee, which was recat@e research and development expense as ther@was
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future alternative use for the licensed technol&g. also made a $5.0 million investment and purett&s300,437 million shares of Achillian’
convertible preferred stock, which was recordedtirer noncurrent assets. Additionally, we also edit® make payments to Achillion upon
achievement of certain milestones outlined in @reament and pay royalties on future net salesaafuycts arising from this collaboration.

Genelabs Technologies

In September 2004, we entered into a license asehreh collaboration agreement with Genelabs Tdopi®s, Inc. (Genelabs) to
research, develop and commercialize certain of tabeenovel nucleoside inhibitors of HCV polymerdsethe treatment of chronic infection
caused by HCV. In conjunction with the signing lustcollaboration agreement, we paid an $8.0 mmillipfront license fee which was recorc
in research and development expense as therefigure alternative use for this technology. Foiirdtially agreed upon term of three years,
Genelabs is obligated to lead research effort@d@ihas the option to extend the research tertreafdllaboration for an additional year. Gil
will lead all development and commercializationiaties. We agreed to provide annual funding of futhe equivalents (FTE) which we expi
to record as research and development expenseraNdligated to make additional payments upon thgeaement of certain milestones, and
pay royalties on future net sales of selected camgs that are developed and approved in relatidhisccollaboration.

Chiron Corporation

In August 2003, we entered into a non-exclusiveriging agreement with Chiron Corporation (Chiram)the research, development and
commercialization of small molecule therapeuticaiast selected HCV drug targets. Under the agretrfdlead received non-exclusive rights
to use Chiron’s HCV technology to develop and comuiadize products for the treatment of HCV. Undse terms of the agreement, we paid
Chiron an ugfront license fee of $2.0 million that was recordecdresearch and development expense as thers isofature alternative use
this the licensed technology. We also agreed toenaaklitional payments to Chiron if certain clinjaggulatory or other contractually
determined milestones are met. In 2004, we made$lion in payments to Chiron that was recordsdesearch and development expense.
Additionally, we are obligated to make royalty pagmis in the event a product is developed usindidhased technology.

Japan Tobacco Inc.

In July 2003, Gilead entered into a licensing agrest with Japan Tobacco Inc. (Japan Tobacco) umbieh Japan Tobacco will
commercialize products in our HIV product portfolinJapan. The agreement includes Viread , EmamdhTruvada. Under the terms of the
agreement, we received an up-front license feeldf fillion and are entitled to receive additionash payments upon achievement of certain
milestones. Japan Tobacco also will pay us a rpyaitnet sales, if any, of these products in Japha.up-front fee has been recorded as
deferred revenue and is being amortized into contevenue over the period of our supply of prodtietlapan Tobacco, approximately 13
years as of December 31, 2004. In 2004, we recédigesimillion in milestone payments from Japan Tonloerelated to Japanese regulal
approval and marketing authorization for Vireadjahhwe are amortizing over the
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same remaining period as the up-front licenselfedanuary 2005, Japan Tobacco submitted markatittgprization applications for Emtriva
and Truvada to Japanese regulatory authorities.

Emory University

In April 1996, Triangle obtained, and in Januarp20we acquired as part of our acquisition of Tglanan exclusive worldwide license
all of Emory University’s (Emory) rights to purifieforms of emtricitabine for use in the HIV and thepatitis B fields. We are obligated to
make certain milestone and royalty payments to Biriocluding annual minimum royalties beginning thed year after the first FDA
registration is granted for an anti-HIV productongorating the emtricitabine technology in the @diStates and the third year after the first
registration is granted for an anti-hepatitis Bduret incorporating the emtricitabine technologg@rtain major market countries. In 2002,
Triangle began paying license maintenance feesuseadevelopment milestones had not yet been achieve

Due to the launch of Emtriva in 2003, we began pgyoyalties to Emory with respect to emtricitabinehe HIV indication. We paid
royalties of $9.2 million and $0.7 million in 20@d 2003, respectively, on net sales of Emtrivaratdsales of Truvada, which also
incorporates the emtricitabine technology and wast¢hed in 2004. The license agreement with Enesryiihates upon the later of patent
expiration or the expiration of our obligation tayproyalties. In addition, we have the right toriérate the agreement in its entirety or with
respect to one or both indications (HIV and HBV)pime or more countries prior to expiration at ametupon 90 days notice.

GlaxoSmithKline

In April 2002, Gilead and GSK entered into a lidagsagreement providing GSK the rights to comméimsaHepsera , our oral antiviral
for the treatment of chronic hepatitis B, in Adiafin America and certain other territories. Unthex agreement, we retained rights to Hepsera
in the United States, Canada, Eastern and Westewopg, Australia, New Zealand and Turkey. GSK nesgtiexclusive rights to develop
Hepsera solely for the treatment of chronic hejsdiitin all of its territories, the most signifidaof which include China, Japan, Korea and
Taiwan. In addition, GSK paid us an up-front licegsfee of $10.0 million and could pay us up to $3@illion upon achievement by GSK of
certain regulatory, development and commercial stolees. Of this $30.0 million, $2.0 million was eeed for the U.S. approval of Hepser:
2002, $2.0 million was received for the Canadiaprapal of Hepsera in 2003, and an aggregate of0%tdlion was received for the
commercial approvals of Hepsera in Japan, Soutle&and Taiwan in 2004. GSK has full responsibititydevelopment and
commercialization of Hepsera in its territorieseTup-front license fee and approval milestones e recorded as deferred revenue with a
total of $1.6 million, $0.9 million and $0.5 milliobeing recognized as contract revenue in 20043 20d 2002, respectively. The $23.9 mill
balance of deferred revenue at December 31, 200%&vamortized into contract revenue over theqebdf our supply of Hepsera to GSK
under the agreement, approximately 11 years.

In addition, GSK is required to pay Gilead royadten net product sales that GSK generates frors séldepsera and Epivir—
HBV/Zeffix (GSK’s hepatitis product) in the GSK teories. Gilead began receiving royalties from G$gales of Hepsera in the first quarter
of 2004 and recorded $2.1 million of royalty reverim 2004. We recognize royalty revenue from GSkhaquarter following the quarter in
which the related Hepsera sales occur.
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OSI Pharmaceuticals

In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggaassets to OSI Pharmaceuticals (OSI). Undeteitmes our agreement, we are
entitled to additional payments from OSI of up 8)%® million in either cash or a combination offtasnd OSI stock if and when OSI reaches
certain development milestones for NX 211, the nadstanced of the oncology product candidates so@SI. Under a related manufacturing
agreement, we produce NX 211 and GS 7904L, thdipmsomal products included in the sale, at our ufiacturing facility in San Dimas,
California. In 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recognizéd $nillion, $1.1 million and $3.3 million, respeatly, of contract revenue under this
manufacturing agreement.

Archemix

In October 2001, we entered into an agreement Arithemix Corporation relating to our SELEX techrgpfoUnder this agreement, we
gave Archemix exclusive rights to the SELEX procéssluding therapeutic and other commercial agplons to the extent not already
licensed under pre-existing agreements. Archemick ps$9.0 million in 2001 and $8.5 million in 200%s required by our license agreement
with License Equity Holdings, Inc. (ULEHI), we paidb of these receipts to ULEHI, therefore recogryz$8.6 million and $8.1 million as
contract revenue in 2001 and 2002, respectively alsfe received a warrant to purchase 350,000 slb&reshemix common stock, the value
of which is not material. As required by our liceregreement with ULEHI, we transferred 5% of thénant to them upon receipt. We have
since transferred the remainder of the warrantlt&ll. No additional payments are due by Archemixlemthis agreement.

Eyetech

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement witttégh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to Macugercudan is an inhibitor of vascular
endothelial growth factor, or VEGF, which is knotenplay a role in the development of certain ophtti@diseases. Under the terms of the
agreement, Eyetech received worldwide rights téhaltapeutic uses of Macugen and was responsibldlfeesearch and development costs.
We received a $7.0 million up-front license feenfr&yetech in April 2000, which was recognized aneie ratably over the one-year period
over which we provided clinical supplies of prodt@Eyetech. We are also entitled to additionahgaesyments from Eyetech of up to
$25.0 million if Eyetech reaches certain Macugelestbnes as well as royalties on worldwide netssaféVlacugen. In December 2003, we
entered into an agreement with Eyetech to supplgudan to Eyetech for three years. In 2004 and 2083 gcorded contract revenue of $10.0
million and $2.2 million, respectively, in connemiiwith clinical supplies we provided to Eyeteclu amilestones achieved by Eyetech. We
recognized as contact revenue $7.6 million in rtoles payments from Eyetech in the second and thiedtters of 2004 upon the filing of new
drug applications in Europe and in the U.S for Mgau. In January 2005, Eyetech received FDA appfovdhe sale of Macugen in the
United States. Our agreement with Eyetech expipes the later of ten years after first commercédé ©f any product developed, or the date
the last patent expires under the agreement.
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Additionally, we received a warrant to purchase,88T shares of Eyetech series B convertible prdiestock, exercisable at a price of
$6.00 per share, the price at which the stock ssseid to other investors. See Note 6 for a dissugdithe warrant.

Fujisawa

Our rights to market AmBisome are subject to a 18§Eement between Gilead and Fujisawa Healthbare,as successor to Fujisawa
USA, Inc. (Fujisawa). Under the terms of the Fujiasagreement, as amended, Fujisawa and Gileadotoepe AmBisome in the United
States. Fujisawa has sole marketing rights to Awfisin Canada and we have exclusive marketingsighfimBisome in the rest of the
world, provided we pay royalties to Fujisawa in geation with sales in significant Asian marketg|liring China, India, Japan, Korea and
Taiwan. In connection with U.S. sales, Fujisawachases AmBisome from Gilead at our manufacturirsi.deor sales in Canada, Fujisawa
purchases AmBisome at manufacturing cost plus eifsge percentage. Fujisawa collects all paymerdmfthe sale of AmBisome in the
United States and Canada. We receive 20% of Fulisagvoss profits from the sale of AmBisome in thated States. Gross profits include a
deduction for cost of goods sold, giving us a aureffective royalty rate of approximately 17% afjiSawa’s net sales of AmBisome in the
United States. In connection with this agreemesty@corded royalty revenue of $13.0 million in 209#2.5 million in 2003 and $15.7 million
in 2002.

Sumitomo

In September 1996, Gilead and Sumitomo enteredaimtagreement pursuant to which Sumitomo agreddwelop and market
AmBisome in Japan. Under the terms of the agreenSemhitomo paid us an initial $7.0 million licengifee (less withholding taxes of
$0.7 million) in October 1996 and a $3.0 millionlestone payment (less withholding taxes of $0.3ioni) in March 1998. Sumitomo is also
required to make additional payments to us if éerténical and commercial milestones are met angdy us royalties on all Japanese
AmBisome sales. Under the agreement, Gilead igatdd to provide a certain quantity of AmBisomé&tonitomo at no charge and is
recognizing the payments received to revenue dwestipply period. AmBisome is not yet approvednfiarketing in Japan.

Roche

In September 1996, Gilead entered into a collamratgreement with Hoffmann-La Roche (Roche) toettgy and commercialize
therapies to treat and prevent viral influenza. &frtie agreement, Roche received exclusive worlelwghts to Gilead’s proprietary influenza
neuraminidase inhibitors. In 2002, we recognizedadract revenue $8.0 million in milestone paymsdot the European approval of Tamiflu
for treatment and prophylaxis. In 2004, we recogdias contract revenue $1.6 million in milestongnments for the Japanese approval of
Tamiflu for prophylaxis, the last of all milestoneeivable under our agreement.

In addition, Roche is required to pay Gilead ragalbn its net product sales of Tamiflu, subjeaeuction for certain defined
manufacturing costs. We recorded a total of $44l6om $12.0 million and $3.4 million of Tamifluayalties in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. We recognize royalty revenue from litoin the quarter following the quarter in whicke tielated Tamiflu sales occur.
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IOCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, Gilead entered into agreemeritsthe Institute of Organic Chemistry and Biochemisf the Academy of Sciences of
the Czech Republic and Rega Stichting (IOCB/REG#qting to certain nucleotide compounds discovatdatiese two institutions. Under the
agreements, Gilead received the exclusive rightaaufacture, use and sell these nucleotide commeamd Gilead is obligated to pay
IOCB/REGA a percentage of net revenues receivad Bales of products containing the compounds, stitgaminimum royalty payments.
The products covered by the agreement includedéstiepsera and Viread, but exclude Tamiflu. In #81®004, the agreements with
IOCB/REGA were amended to include Truvada and anyré fixed-dose combination products that contlalicensed technology. Gilead
currently makes quarterly payments to IOCB/REGAeblasn a percentage of Vistide, Hepsera, VireadTandada net sales. We paid royalties
of $29.1 million, $19.3 million and $7.4 million t©CB/REGA in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In December 2000, the agreements with IOCB/REGAeveenended to provide for a reduced royalty rateuture sales of Hepsera or
Viread, in return for an up-front payment from Giteof $11.0 million upon signing the agreementsTgayment was recorded as a long-term
prepaid royalty and is classified in other noncar@gEssets on the balance sheet at December 31a2@02003. The prepaid royalty is being
recognized as royalty expense over the expectednesaial life of Viread and Hepsera. Amortizationtioé $11.0 million payment began as of
the product launch dates of Viread and Hepsera.

11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations consist of the following (lmusands):

December 31

2004 2003
Capital lease obligations: monthly installmentotigh 2007; interest rates rang
from 6% to 21% $ 415 $ 462
Total lon¢-term obligations 415 462
Less current portion (181) 139
Long-term obligations due after one year $ 234 $ 323

Future minimum lease payments under capital lebbgations are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31

2005 $221
2006 196
2007 59

476
Less amount representing inter 61
Total $415
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The terms of the various agreements require usrtgoly with certain financial and operating covesatt December 31, 2004, we were
in compliance with all such covenants.

12. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On December 18, 2002, Gilead issued $345.0 midiothe 2% convertible senior notes due DecembeR@87. The notes were
convertible into a total of up to 14,680,850 shareGilead common stock at $23.50 per share. Theeaible senior notes were provisionally
redeemable in whole or in part, at the option dé&l, at any time on or after June 20, 2004, atiipd redemption prices plus accrued inte
Debt issuance costs of $8.4 million incurred inrextion with the issuance of the notes were recbadeother noncurrent assets, and were
being amortized to interest expense on a straightbasis over the contractual term of the notéea@ called the convertible senior notes for
redemption in October 2004 and issued 14,676,98&stof Gilead common stock to note holders upein tonversion in November 2004.
The redemption price was equal to the principal amof the notes redeemed, plus accrued and ungaigst to the redemption date. In
connection with the redemption, Gilead paid a makele payment of $7.4 million to note holders, esgemting the equivalent of $60 per
$1,000 principal value of the notes less interestally paid or accrued and unpaid from the datissfance of the notes to the redemption
Upon conversion, the $5.1 million unamortized bataof related debt issuance costs was reclassdiadditional paid-in capital.

On December 13, 2000, Gilead issued $250.0 mithiothe 5% convertible subordinated notes due Deeerhb, 2007. The convertible
subordinated notes were convertible into a totalpfo 20,356,232 shares of Gilead common sto®4 2128 per share. The convertible
subordinated notes were redeemable in whole oaiif) at the option of Gilead, at any time on oeafdecember 20, 2003, at specified
redemption prices plus accrued interest. Debt resti@osts of $8.2 million incurred in connectionthathe issuance of the convertible
subordinated notes were recorded as other nondwrssats, and were being amortized to interestresgpen a straight-line basis over the
contractual term of the convertible subordinatetésoln November 2003, Gilead called the convertsiibordinated notes for redemption and
converted all the notes to 20,356,232 shares ofmamstock in December 2003. Upon conversion, thé Bdllion unamortized balance of
related debt issuance costs was reclassified titi@ual paid-in capital.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Arrangements

We have entered into various long-term noncancelapérating leases for equipment and facilities.

Facility leases in Foster City, California, San BsnCalifornia and Durham, North Carolina expirevarious dates between 2009 and
2013. The Foster City lease has two five-year reth@ptions. In addition, Gilead has the option toghase the Foster City properties at a
specified amount. The Durham lease has two sevenrgaewal options. We also have operating leasesafes, marketing and administrative
facilities in Europe and Australia with variousrtes. Our equipment leases include a corporate aiplahich has an initial term of two years
and an annual renewal option of up to ten years.
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Lease expense under our operating leases totgpedxamately $14.9 million in 2004, $15.5 million 2003 and $13.4 million in 2002.
Aggregate noncancelable future minimum rental paysiender operating leases are as follows (in tods):

Years ending December 31 Operating Leases
2005 $14,16(
2006 13,765
2007 13,244
2008 12,703
2009 7,912
Thereaftel 26,846
$88,63(

Legal Proceedings

The complaints in each of the following cases @ltat a large number of defendants, includingd@il®@vercharged the governmental
entity named as the plaintiff for pharmaceuticaldarcts furnished to participants in the Medicaidgvam. In general, the complaints assert
claims under federal and state law, except fortlabama state action, which includes only statediims, and seek treble damage and
attorneys’ fees. The litigations are all at a pnétiary stage and it is not possible to predictadhcome. Indeed, to date Gilead has not been
served with process in any of these cases exdepnty of Westchester v. Abbott Laboratories, eV intend to defend the cases vigorously.
As the outcome of these cases cannot be predittaddime, no amounts have been accrued.

(1) County of Westchester v. Abbott Laboratories, ehaw pending as part of multi-district litigation tihe United States District Court for
the District of Massachusetts. This lawsuit wasdfiagainst Gilead and approximately 40 other defietsdon August 14, 2003. It was
amended to include approximately 80 defendantsaonaly 26, 2005.

(2) City of New York v. Abbott Laboratories et akending as part of multi-district litigation in thénited States District Court for the District
of Massachusetts. This lawsuit was filed again&dsi and approximately 43 other defendants on Augua004. It was amended to
approximately 73 defendants on January 26, 2005.

(3) County of Rockland v. Abbott Laboratories, etpénding as part of multi-district litigation in tinited States District Court for the
District of Massachusetts. This lawsuit did nogarally name Gilead as a defendant, but was ametadiedlude claims against Gilead as
well as approximately 77 other defendants on Jarn@,r2005.

(4) State of Alabama v. Abbott Laboratories eténding in the Circuit Court of Montgomery Counflabama. This lawsuit was filed
against Gilead and approximately 77 other defersdamtJanuary 26, 2005.
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A purported class action complaint was filed on dlmber 10, 2003 in the United States District Céurthe Northern District of
California against Gilead and certain of our exaeubfficers. The complaint alleges that the deferid violated the federal securities laws,
specifically Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 of theu8tes and Exchange Commission, by
making certain alleged false and misleading statesnd@he plaintiff seeks unspecified damages omlbefia purported class of purchasers of
Gilead’s securities during the period from July 2@03 through October 28, 2003. Other similar activere subsequently filed and the court
issued an order consolidating the lawsuits intmgls action on December 22, 2003. On February942the court issued an order appointing
lead plaintiffs in the consolidated action. On A@6, 2004, lead plaintiffs, on behalf of the puted class, filed their consolidated amended
complaint. On June 21, 2004, Gilead and individieiendants filed their motion to dismiss the coidsdéd amended complaint. On
January 25, 2005, the Court granted defendantsoméd dismiss with leave to amend. No amounts hsaen accrued to date.

In December 2003, two purported shareholder dévivdawsuits were filed by individual shareholdersbehalf of Gilead against its
directors and certain executive officers in the 8igy Court of the State of California, County @frSMateo alleging, among other things, that
defendants violated the California Corporations €add breached fiduciary duties owing to Gileade#&l is named as a nominal defendant.
The plaintiffs seek unspecified damages on beHdfilead in connection with alleged insider tradohgring the period between July 14, 2003
and October 28, 2003 and defendants’ alleged brefitteir fiduciary duties, abuse of control, waatel mismanagement. The two cases were
consolidated into a single action on January 18428 third, similar case was filed on Februar2@04 and later consolidated with the prior
two cases. Plaintiffs have filed a consolidated plaimt, which was amended two times, most recestilfNovember 22, 2004. Gilead demurred
to each consolidated complaint, and the court gcheach demurrer. On December 14, 2004, plaititiéi$ a motion for leave to file a third
consolidated amended complaint and on January0h,2Be Court granted the plaintiff's motion, reridg that complaint the operative
complaint. We intend to demur to this complaintrial is scheduled for June 13, 2005. As the oukafithese cases cannot be predicted at
this time, no amounts have been accrued.

We are also a party to various other legal acttbasarose in the ordinary course of our businégsdo not believe that any of these other
legal actions will have a material adverse impacbor business, results of operations or finarmiaition.
Other Commitments and Contingencies

In the normal course of business, we may be sutjemintingencies that may arise from matters sscproduct liability claims, legal
proceedings, shareholder suits and tax mattersadbieie for such contingencies in accordance withSSNo. 5,Accounting for
Contingencies

In the normal course of business, we have entateds/arious firm minimum purchase commitments foreintory-related materials from
certain active pharmaceutical ingredient supplidssof December 31, 2004, we had approximately $28%llion in purchase commitments as
follows: $104.7 million in 2005, $42.5 million in0R6, $42.5 million in 2007 and $42.5 million in B0
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Preferred Stock

Gilead has 5,000,000 shares of authorized prefetoak issuable in series. Our Board of Direct@mafd) is authorized to determine the
designation, powers, preferences and rights ofsacih series. We have reserved 400,000 sharesfefneek stock for potential issuance under
the Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan. Ther@ovpseferred stock outstanding as of Decembe2304 and 2003.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under Gilead’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESER)|oyees can purchase shares of Gilead commok Isésed on a percentage of
their compensation. The purchase price per shast egual at least the lower of 85% of the mark&ievan the date offered or the date
purchased. A total of 12.6 million shares of comrstutk have been reserved for issuance under tR® E&s of December 31, 2004, 10.4
million shares of the total shares reserved had seied under the ESPP (9.8 million shares aoémber 31, 2003).

Stock Option Plans

In May 2004, Gilead'’s stockholders approved an@é&lladopted the 2004 Equity Incentive Plan (2084)Ris replacement for both the
1991 Stock Option Plan (1991 Plan) and the 1995 Bimployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (1995 Dioest Plan). The adoption of the 20
Plan included an increase of 18,994,142 in the rurabshares available for issuance over the reénmghares available for issuance undei
1991 Plan and 1995 Directors’ Plan. The 2004 Ptamiges for the issuance of various types of egaitsards, such as, incentive stock options,
nonstatutory stock options, stock appreciationtsdBAR), dividend equivalent rights, restrictedcst performance units, performance shares
and phantom shares. Under the 2004 Plan, the srescipurchase price of incentive stock optiond sl be less than 110% of the fair value
of Gilead's common stock on the date of granthint¢ase of nonstatutory stock options and SAR¢hahare exercise price shall not be less
than 100% of the fair value of Gilead’s common kton the date of grant. In the case of other tygesvards, the exercise or purchase price is
determined by the plan administrator. Incentivelstoptions typically vest over five years pursutana formula determined by the Board and
expire after ten years. The term of other awarddl §le the term stated in the award agreementduore than ten years from the date of
grant. Eligible participants include employeesediors and consultants of Gilead, except that eniployees are eligible for incentive stock
options. The Compensation Committee or its deledetermines the awards to be granted as well dmgeasrms. At December 31, 2004, th
were 16,764,722 shares remaining and availabliifore grant under the 2004 Plan.

In November 1991, Gilead adopted the 1991 Plaisfarance of common stock to employees and conssilt@ptions issued under the
1991 Plan can, at the discretion of the Board,itherincentive stock options or nonqualified stagkions. In May 1998, the 1991 Plan was
amended such that the exercise price of all stptiolws must be at least equal to the fair valu&itdad’'s common stock on the date of grant.
The options vest over five years pursuant to a fdadetermined by the Board and expire after tems/eThe 1991 Plan was amended and
restated in April 2000 to extend the term of thenpthrough 2010. In May 2002 the stockholders apgt@n amendment to the 1991 Plan that
increased the
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total number of authorized shares under the plam 84,000,000 to 106,000,000. In May 2004, the ieim@ shares available for future grant
under the 1991 Plan were transferred to the 208d. ldditionally, if options granted under the 199&n expire or otherwise terminate
without being exercised, the shares of our comntackgeserved for such options again become avaifab future grant under the 2004 Plan.

In November 1995, Gilead adopted the 1995 Dired®as for issuance of common stock to non-empld@jieectors pursuant to a
predetermined formula. The exercise price of otigranted under the Directors’ Plan must be at k@sal to the fair value of Gilead’s
common stock on the date of grant. For optionstgchhefore January 2003, vesting is over five y&ara the date of grant in quarterly five
percent installments. Initial options granted aftenuary 2003 to new Directors vest over threesyigam the date of grant in equal annual
installments. Annual grants thereafter to existingectors vest after one year. All options expifteraten years. In May 2002, the stockholders
approved an amendment to the Directors’ Plan ti@eased the total number of authorized sharesrwhedlan from 4,400,000 to 5,600,000.
In May 2004, the remaining shares available fongtader the 1995 Plan were transferred to the 208d. Additionally, if options granted
under the 1995 Plan expire or otherwise terminatieowt being exercised, the shares of our commacksteserved for such options again
become available for future grant under the 20@4 Pl

Stock plans assumed by Gilead in the merger witkdtlr include the 1988 Stock Option Plan, the 19@@ntive Stock Plan, and the
1995 Director Option Plan (collectively, NeXstaaf$). Options pursuant to the NeXstar Plans thes vésued and outstanding as of July 29,
1999 have been converted into options to purchdsadscommon stock as a result of the merger amgiresubject to their original terms and
conditions. No shares are available for grant airieioptions under any of the NeXstar Plans.

Stock plans assumed by Gilead in the acquisiticth@het assets of Triangle include the 1996 S@ygfon Plan and a separate plan for
the former chief executive officer of Triangle (eatively, Triangle Plans). Options pursuant toheplain that were issued and outstanding ¢
January 23, 2003 have been converted into optmpsarchase approximately 2.0 million shares of &lleommon stock as a result of the
acquisition and remain subject to their originairte and conditions. No shares are available fantgsBfuture options under either of the
Triangle Plans.

87




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2004

14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)

The following table summarizes activity under aile@d, NeXstar and Triangle stock option plans.dtion grants presented in the table
had exercise prices not less than the fair valubefinderlying stock on the grant date (sharé¢lsdnsands):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding, beginning of year 45,52C $13.5C 42,12C $ 9.34 4337z $ 7.13

Granted and assum 12,74¢  $30.2C 15,74z $20.87 8,74z $16.6¢

Forfeited (1,817) $20.74 (1,942) $16.2¢ (1,57C) $10.9t

Exercised 7,036) $ 9.61 (10,400 $ 7.27 8,424 $ 5.31

Outstanding, end of ye 49,41 $18.1C 45,52 $13.5C 42,12C $ 9.34

Exercisable, end of ye. 22,55/  $11.41 19,99¢ ¢ 9.05 1855( $ 591
Weighted average fair value

options grante: $13.71 $13.6¢ $11.01

The following is a summary of Gilead options outstimg and options exercisable at December 31, 28@4ons in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average Exercise
Options Contractual Exercise Options
Range of Exercise Price Qutstanding Life in Years Price Exercisable Price
$1.63-$7.41 12,40C 4.23 $ 581 11,13¢ $ 5.63
$7.51-$16.91 13,36¢ 6.92 $14.4F 7,18¢ $13.6¢
$ 16.9--$28.86 14,345 8.4C $22.9¢€ 3,17¢ $18.5¢
$29.12-$70.47 9,30z 9.0C $32.24 1,05k $35.3€
Total 49,41 7.07 $18.1C 22,554 $11.41

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan

In November 1994, we adopted a Preferred SharenBsecRights Plan (Rights Plan). The Rights Plamiges for the distribution of a
preferred stock purchase right as a dividend fohehare of Gilead common stock. The purchasesrigite not currently exercisable. Under
certain conditions involving an acquisition or pogpd acquisition by any person or group of 15% arenof our common stock, the purchase
rights permit the holders (other than the 15% hgltepurchase Gilead common stock at a 50% digdoam the market price at that time,
upon payment of a specified exercise price pertage right. In addition, in the event of certaisibess combinations, the purchase rights
permit the purchase of the common stock of an aegat a 50% discount from the market price at tina. Under certain conditions, the
purchase rights may be redeemed by the Board itewhot not in part, at a price of
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$0.0025 per purchase right. The purchase rights hawoting privileges and are attached to andmaatically trade with Gilead common
stock.

In October 1999 and again in October 2003, the @o&Directors approved amendments to the Righaa.Plhe first amendment
provided, among other things, for an increase énetkercise price of a right under the plan from &1$100 and an extension of the term of the
plan from November 21, 2004 to October 20, 200® 3écond amendment provides, among other thinganfimcrease in the exercise prict
a right under the plan from $100 to $400 and arresibn of the term of the Rights Plan to October22a 3.

15. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) is comprised of netrime and certain changes in stockholders’ equityafeexcluded from net income.
Such excluded items, other comprehensive incones)lincludes changes in the fair value of ouriggared effective cash flow hedges,
changes in unrealized gains and losses on ouraéleifor-sale securities and changes in our cuiwel&reign currency translation account.
Comprehensive income (loss) for the years ende@iber 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is included in onsalidated statement of stockholders’
equity. The components of comprehensive income)lase shown net of related taxes where the uridgrssets or liabilities are held in
jurisdictions that are expected to generate a éutax benefit or liability

The following reclassifications were recorded imgection with net realized gains (losses) on saflegcurities and cash flow hedges that
were previously included in comprehensive incomegq] (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Net unrealized loss arising during the year onlalt-for-sale

securities, net of tax benefit of $1,193, $2,268 8,079 for 2004,

2003 and 2002, respective $ (1,86€) $(3,54€) $(12,637)
Net unrealized gain (loss) arising during the yaarcash flow hedge (26,549) (765) 221
Reclassification adjustments, net of tax benefioyjsion) of $183,

$(303) and $5,153 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, resygl 1,051 (695) 8,023

Other comprehensive (loss) $ (27,364 $(5,008 $ (4,395

The balance of accumulated other comprehensiveriadq@oss), net of taxes, as reported on the balsimeet consists of the following
components (in thousands):

December 31

2004 2003

Net unrealized loss on availa-for-sale securities $ (1,932) $ (352
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hed (26,549) (765)
Net foreign currency translation ge 9,789 5,624
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It $ (18,692 $4,507
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Gilead operates in one business segment, whichaptinffocuses on the development and commercidiraif human therapeutics for
infectious diseases. All products are includedria segment, because our major products, Vireadf@iein disoproxil fumarate), Emtriva
(emtricitabine) and Truvada (emtricitabine and fexaw disoproxil fumarate) (collectively, our HIVrpducts) and Ambisome (amphotericin B
liposome for injection), which accounted for 909%8%®and 97% of product sales for the years endeémbbker 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, have similar economic and other attarsstics, including the nature of the productd production processes, type of customers,
distribution methods, and regulatory environment.

Product sales consist of the following (in thousgnd

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002

HIV Products:
Viread $ 782,91f $566,47¢ $225,81°F
Emtriva 57,60C 10,021 —
Truvada 67,86E — —

Total HIV products 908,38( 576,49¢ 225,81F
AmBisome 211,68¢ 198,35(C 185,66¢
Hepsere 112,52¢ 50,50¢€ 6,716
Vistide 7,904 7,576 2,631
DaunoXome 1,727 3,410 3,048
Total product revenue $1,242,22: $836,341 $423,87¢

The following table summarizes revenues from extecnstomers and collaborative partners by geogeaplgion. Revenues are attribu
to countries based on the location of the custamebpllaborative partner (in thousands):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
United State: $ 683,28t $443,50¢ $218,95¢
France 120,85¢ 89,17€ 42,417
Spain 103,32¢ 78,391 33,591
United Kingdom 88,98C 63,06¢€ 43,427
Italy 72,038 42,72z 20,81¢
Germany 60,363 42,99¢€ 29,461
Switzerlanc 54,718 16,492 12,44¢%
Other European countris 93,048 64,273 47,527
Other countrie! 48,00C 27,242 18,14€
Total revenues $1,324,62. $867,86¢ $466,79(
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2004

16. DISCLOSURES ABOUT SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISEAND RELATED INFORMATION (Continued)

At December 31, 2004, the net book value of ouperty, plant and equipment was $223.1 million. Apgmately 94% of such assets are
located in the United States. At December 31, 26@8net book value of property, plant and equipmers $198.2 million, and approximately
95% of such assets were located in the United State

The following table summarizes revenues from otedHargest customers who distribute our drugs gmilgnin the United States (as a %
of total revenues):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002

Cardinal Health, Inc. 17.3% 17.3% 10.3%
AmerisourceBergen Cor 10.9% 13.7% 11.9%
McKesson Cory 10.2% 11.6% 11.0%

17. INCOME TAXES

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes catesi of the following (in thousands):

Year ended December 31
2004 2003 2002

Federal Current $ 20,79C $ 5,178 $(1,300)
Deferred 141,21¢  (89,363) —
162,00¢  (84,188) (1,300)

State Current 16,882 1,016 4
Deferred 20,654  (20,824) —

37,537  (19,808) 4

Foreign Current 7,383 9,849 2,596
Deferred 123 (1,383) —

7,506 8,466 2,596
$207,051 $(95,53() $ 1,30C

Foreign pre-tax income (loss) was $83.9 millior2@94, $(79.7) million in 2003 and $(24.1) millian2002. Gilead’s foreign subsidiaries
generated operating losses in 2003 and 2002 rafiettte costs of building a commercial infrastruetin Europe and the foreign subsidiaries’
investment in our research and development effosemitted foreign earnings that are considerdoetpermanently invested outside the
United States and on which no U.S. taxes have pemiided, are approximately $30.5 million as of Beber 31, 2004. The residual U.S. tax
liability, if such amounts were remitted, would d&ygproximately $12.0 million.
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2004

17. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The difference between the provision for (beneéitf) taxes on income and the amount computed blyiagpthe federal statutory incor
tax rate to income (loss) before provision for @frfrom) income taxes, is explained below (inukands):

Year ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Income (loss) before provision for (benefit fromgome taxe $656,42: $(167,53%) $ 73,397
Tax at federal statutory rate $229,74¢ $ (58,63¢) $ 25,68¢
State taxes, net of federal ben 24,39¢ 660 4
Benefitted losse (14,192) (150,847) (23,601)
Change in valuation allowan: (14,192) (111,570 —
Foreign earnings at different ral (8,607) 3,081 508
Research and experimentation cre (4,986) — —
In-process research and development ch — 170,91z —
Foreign losses at different rat — 45,68¢ —
Other (5,119 5,175 (1,300)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes $207,057 $ (95,53() $ 1,30C

The tax benefits associated with stock option @zxescand the employee stock purchase plan resoleethx benefit of $22.0 million
during the year ended December 31, 2004. Such ibevesf credited to additional paid-in capital wirealized.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2004

17. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeEtemporary differences between the carrying am®ohfissets and liabilities for financ
reporting purposes and the amounts used for ind¢ampurposes. Significant components of our defetag assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in tods):

December 31

2004 2003
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 50,02 $156,78¢
Research and other tax credit carryforwe 43,541 63,32¢
Reserves and accruals not currently deduc 23,052 26,45¢
Depreciation relate 15,143 5,091
Capitalized research and development expe 4,439 6,961
Other, net 8,718 50,607
144,91€¢ 309,23t
Valuation allowance (33,349 (59,174
Total deferred tax asse 111,567 250,061
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted foreign earnings (13,074 —
Total deferred tax liabilitie (13,074 —
Net deferred tax asse $ 98,49: $250,06!

The valuation allowance decreased by $25.8 miblind $167.6 million for the years ended Decembe2804 and 2003, respectively.

We have a valuation allowance of $33.3 million &8@.2 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, retspg. We have concluded, bas
on the standard set forth in SFAS No. 188¢counting for Income Taxeshat it is more likely than not that we will n@talize any benefits fro
the related deferred tax assets. We will assessaée for the valuation allowance at each quartérmsed on all available evidence.
Approximately $11.0 million of the valuation allomee at December 31, 2004 relates to tax benef&took option deductions, which will be
credited to additional paid-in capital when realize

At December 31, 2004, we had U.S. federal net dipgréoss carryforwards of approximately $142.9limil. The federal net operating
loss carryforwards will expire at various dateothgh 2023, if not utilized. In addition, we had déeal and state tax credit carryforwards of
approximately $41.4 million and $3.4 million, respieely, which expire at various dates through 20280t utilized.

Utilization of net operating losses and tax creditryforwards may be subject to an annual limitatioe to ownership change limitations
provided in the Internal Revenue Code and similaiesprovisions. This annual limitation may resalthe expiration of the net operating los
and credits before utilization.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation(thet AJCA) was signed into law. The AJCA inclu@ededuction of 85% of certain
foreign earnings that are repatriated, as defingdld AJCA. We may elect to apply this provisiormgtalifying earnings repatriations in fiscal
2005. We have started an
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2004

17. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

evaluation of the effects of the repatriation psiwi; however, we do not expect to be able to cetephis evaluation until after Congress or
the Treasury Department provide additional clanifylanguage on key elements of the AJCA. We exjpecdmplete our evaluation of the
potential effects of the repatriation provisionhiit a reasonable period of time following the padilion of the additional clarifying language.
The range of possible amounts that we are consgléor repatriation under the AJCA is between zard $500 million (maximum allowable
to the Company as defined in the AJCA). The relg@ential range of income tax cannot be reasonedtiynated at December 31, 2004.

18. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

Gilead maintains one retirement savings plan undech eligible employees may defer compensationirfoome tax purposes under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (Gilgkah). Under the Gilead Plan, employees may dmuttiup to 15% of their eligible annual
compensation. Gilead makes matching contributionteuthe Gilead Plan. We contribute up to 50% oéployee’s first 6% of contributions
up to an annual maximum match of $2,5@ur total matching contribution expense under tlead@ Plan was $1.8 million in 2004, $1.4
million in 2003 and $1.2 million in 2002.

Gilead maintains a deferred compensation plan uwtiezh our directors and officers may defer comp#iog for income tax purposes
under the Internal Revenue Code. Under the plditeo$ may contribute up to 70% of their annuahsak and up to 100% of their annual
management bonus while directors may contributeod®0% of their annual retainer fee. Amounts defiby participants are deposited wi
rabbi trust and are recorded in other noncurresgtasn the consolidated balance sheet. Beginni2§04, directors may also elect to receive
all or a portion of their annual cash retainer frmptom shares. As of December 31, 2004, we haweds3,030 phantom shares. Participants
elect one of several distribution dates availalléen the plan at which they will receive their dede compensation payment.

94




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
DECEMBER 31, 2004

19. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

The following table is in thousands, except persl@nounts:

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter  4th Quarter

2004(1)(2)(6)
Total revenue $ 309,127 $319,72: $ 326,187 $ 369,58t
Gross profit on product sal 241,63€  257,24( 269,88t  306,87¢
Total costs and expens 164,704 161,52 162,417 204,287
Net income 114,42¢  111,45¢ 113,24C  110,24¢
Net income per share—basic $ 027 $ 026 $ 0.26 $ 0.2
Net income per share—diluted $ 025 $ 024 $ 0.25 $ 0.24
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter  4th Quarter
2003(3)(4)(5)(6)
Total revenue $ 165,10t $238,87( $ 200,37: $ 263,511
Gross profit on product sal 134,59z 198,562 168,13¢ 222,357
Total costs and expens 598,70z  131,09¢ 121,19¢  175,54C
Net income (loss (438,054 100,37z 73,09€  192,58:
Net income (loss) per share—basic $ (11n $ 025 % 0.18 $ 0.47
Net income (loss) per share—diluted $ (111 $ 023 $ 017 $ 0.423

(1) In the first quarter of 2004, Gilead recorded atpregain of $20.6 million related to our warraimt€yetech which completed its initial
public offering.

(2) In the fourth quarter of 2004, Gilead recorded gpe@se of $7.4 million in connection with a makeelehpayment to our convertible
senior debt holders in relation to the redemptioth @onversion of our convertible senior debt.

(3) Inthe first quarter of 2003, Gilead completed dleguisition of the net assets of Triangle and medra charge of $488.6 million for
purchased in-process research and development.

(4) In the third quarter of 2003, Gilead was reimbur$2d.2 million of research and development experssdting from the settlement of a
contractual dispute with a vendor.

(5) In the fourth quarter of 2003, Gilead recorded rash impairment charges against certain long-lassibts of $10.2 million. In addition,
we recorded an income tax benefit of $111.6 millielated to the reduction of the valuation allonena certain of our net deferred tax
assets.

(6) On September 3, 2004, Gilead implemented a twaifarstock split in the form of stock dividends. sitlare and per share amounts fc
periods presented have been restated to reflestalk split.
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Year ended December 31, 20!
Accounts receivable allowances:
Inventory reservi
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass

Year ended December 31, 20!
Accounts receivable allowances:
Inventory reservi
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass

Year ended December 31, 20!
Accounts receivable allowances:
Inventory reservi
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass

(1) Allowances are for doubtful accounts, sales returash discounts and chargebacks.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at Additions Balance at
Beginning of Chargedto Charged to

End of

Period Expense Other Deductions Period
$ 25,607 $6544: $ 340 $ 63,89t $ 27,491
3,138 1,606 — 1,689 3,055
59,174 — — 25,82¢ 33,34¢
$ 11,00 $47,31¢ $ 436 $ 33,151 $ 25,607
1,615 2,899 — 1,376 3,138
226,821 — — 167,647 59,174
$ 4,29¢ $2154¢ $ — $ 14,83¢ $ 11,002
1,156 855 — 396 1,615
212,70C — 14,121 — 226,821
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiidthas duly caused this Report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
BY: /s/ JOHN C. MARTIN

John C. Martir
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESESB|That each person whose signature appears belustitcites
and appoints John C. Martin and Mark L. Perry, @aach of them, as his true and lawful attorneysaitt-ind agents, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for him or her amdlis or her name, place, and stead, in any dmdacities, to sign any and all amendments
to this Report, and to file the same, with all dxtsi thereto, and other documents in connectiorethigh, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtwitlo and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done inemion therewith, as fully to all intents and pasps as he might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming that all said atteys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or thehiisisubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully do
or cause to be done by virtue hereof. Pursuartgedquirements of the Securities Exchange AcB8#1this Report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant & the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbiothe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and oré#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ JOHN C. MARTIN President and Chief Executive Officer, Director March 14, 200
John C. Martir (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ JOHN F. MILLIGAN Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer March 14, 200:
John F. Milligan (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s JAMES M. DENNY Chairman of the Board of Directors March 14, 2005

James M. Denn

/s PAUL BERG Director March 14, 2005
Paul Berg
/s/ ETIENNE F. DAVIGNON Director March 14, 2005

Etienne F. Davigno
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/s GORDON E. MOORIE

Gordon E. Moore

/s NICHOLAS G. MOORE

Nicholas G. Moore¢

/s GEORGE P. SHULT.

George P. Shult

/sl GAYLE E. WILSON

Gayle E. Wilsor

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 10.24
e Southern California Chapter of tt
SIC)R.’ Society of Industrial and Office RealtofInc.

INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE
(SINGLE-TENANT FACILITY)

ARTICLE ONE: BASIC TERMS
This Article One contains the Basic Terms of thémke between the Landlord and Tenant named beltler Articles, Sections and
Paragraphs of the Lease referred to in this Artinhe explain and define the Basic Terms and abe teead in conjunction with the Basic

Terms.

Section 1.01 Date of Lease: February 24, 200

Section 1.02 Landlord (include legal entity): MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERITES, LLC, |
California limited liability compan
Address of Landlord 13191 Crossroads Parkway NortH" 6loor
City of Industry, CA 91744

Section 1.03 Tenant (include legal entity): GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware corporati
Address of Tenant: 333 Lakeside Drivi
Foster City, CA 9440.

Section 1.04. Property: (include street address, approximate square fo@adealescription) that approximately 51,000 sqteoe
building more commonly known as 502 Covina Bouley&an Dimas, California as outlined in red on BRHIA”, subject to the norexclusive
use of such area outlined in gre

Section 1.05 Lease Term: 10 years — months beginning o December 1, 200
or such other date as is specified in this Leasa eading on November 30, 201
Section 1.06. Permitted Uses:(See Article Five) Only for general office, laboratory, warehousingl.

manufacturing of pharmaceutical produ

Section 1.07 Tenant's Guarantor: (If none, so state None

Section 1.08 Brokers: (See Article Fourteen) (If none, so ste

Landlorc' s Broker: Majestic Realty Cao
Tenant's Broker: None
Section 1.09. Commission Payable to Landlorcs Broker: (See Article Fourteen) $ per separate agreeme¢

Section 1.10 Initial Security Deposit: (See Section 3.03) 58,650.0(

Section 1.11 Vehicle Parking Spaces Allocated to Tenant per Exhibit*A”

Section 1.12. Rent and Other ChargesPayable by Tenant:

(a) BASE RENT: FIFTY-EIGHT THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED FIFTY AND NO/100---- Dollars ($ 58,650.00.) per month for the f

sixty (60) months, as provided in Section 3.01, sinall be increased on the first day of the sixtst{615') month(s) after the Commencement
Date, SIXTY-FOUR THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTEEN AND NO/100 DOLLRS ($64,515.00

(b) OTHER PERIODIC PAYMENTS: (i) Real Property Taxes (See Section 4.02)\lilities (See Section 4.03); (iii) Insurance
Premiums (See Section 4.04); (iv) Impounds for tasae Premiums and Property Taxes (See Section @)0Vaintenance, Repairs and
Alterations (See Atrticle Six

Section 1.13. Landlord’'s Share of Profit on Assignment or Subleas(See Section 9.05 fifty percent (50%) of the Pr(ifie
“Landlorc’'s Shar”).

© 1988 Southern California Chapt g@
of the Society of Industri¢
and Office Realtor® Inc. (Sing-Tenant Net Form
[Gilead Sciences, Inc
[502 Covina Blvd. San Dimas, C






Section 1.14 Riders: The following Riders are attached to and made agidhis Lease: (If none, so stat
Addendum pages 1 through 13, and Exhi*A”, “B”, “C" and"D".

ARTICLE TWO: LEASE TERM

Section 2.01.Lease of Property For Lease Term. Landlord leases the Property to Tenant and Tdeasées the Property from Landlord
for the Lease Term. The Lease Term is for theogestated in Section 1.05 above and shall begireaddn the dates specified in Section 1.05
above, unless the beginning or end of the Leasea T®changed under any provision of this Leasee "ommencement Date” shall be the
date specified in Section 1.05 above for the bégmnf the Lease Term, unless advanced or delagddruany provision of this Lease.

Section 2.02. Intentionally Deleted.
Section 2.03. Intentionally Deleted.

Section 2.04.Holding Over. Tenant shall vacate the Property upon the expiratr earlier termination of this Lease. Tendrdlks
reimburse Landlord for and indemnify Landlord aghiall damages which Landlord incurs from Tenadéky in vacating the Property. If
Tenant does not vacate the Property upon the dixpirar earlier termination of the Lease and Landilihereafter accepts rent from Tenant,
Tenant’'s occupancy of the Property shall be a “mmg¢atmonth” tenancy, subject to all of the termgha§ Lease applicable to a month-to-
month tenancy, except that the Base Rent therféstethall be increased by twenty-five percent (25%

Section 2.05.See Addendum.
ARTICLE THREE: BASE RENT

Section 3. 01.Time and Manner of Payment. Upon execution of this Lease, Tenant shall paydlaerd the Base Rent in the amount
stated in Paragraph 1.12(a) above for the firsttmohthe Lease Term. On the first day of the selamonth of the Lease Term and each m
thereafter, Tenant shall pay Landlord the Base Remtdvance, without offset, deduction or priomdend. The Base Rent shall be payable at
Landlord’s address or at such other place as Latdimy designate in writing.

Section 3.02. Intentionally Deleted.
Section 3.03.Security Deposit; Increases.

(&) Upon the execution of this Lease, Tenant shegbsit with Landlord a cash Security Depositi@ amount set forth in Section 1.10
Above. Landlord may apply all or part of the SétyuDeposit to any unpaid rent or other chargesfdoim Tenant or to cure any other defaults
of Tenant. If Landlord uses any part of the SeéguWeposit, Tenant shall restore the Security Degosts full amount within ten (1) days after
Landlord’s written request. Tenant's failure tostoshall be a material default under this Leadse.interest shall be paid on the Security
Deposit. Landlord shall not be required to keepSkecurity Deposit separate from its other accoamdisno trust relationship is created with
respect to the Security Deposit.

(b) Each time the Base Rent is increased, Tetalit deposit additional funds with Landlord suféiot to increase the Security Deposit to
an amount which bears the same relationship tadhested Base Rent as the initial Security Degmsi¢ to the initial Base Rent.

Section 3.04.Termination; Advance Payments. Upon termination of this Lease under Article Se{®amage or Destruction),
Article Eight (Condemnation) or any other terminatinot resulting from Tenant’s default, and aftendnt has vacated the Property in the
manner required by this Lease, Landlord shall (withixty (60) days from Tenant delivering exclusp@ssession of the Property to Landlord)
refund to Tenant (or Tenant’s successor) the unpeeibn of the Security Deposit, any advance oerdgther advance payments made by
Tenant to Landlord, and any amounts paid for regp@rty taxes and other reserves which apply totiamy periods after termination of the
Lease.

ARTICLE FOUR: OTHER CHARGES PAYABLE BY TENANT
Section 4.01.Additional Rent. All charges payable by Tenant other than Basd Rencalled “Additional Rent.” Unless this Lease

provides otherwise, Tenant shall pay all AdditioReht then due with the next monthly installmenBate Rent. The term “rent” shall mean
Base Rent and Additional Rent.




Section 4.02.Property Taxes.

(a) Real Property Taxes. Tenant shall pay all real property taxes on tfeperty (including any fees, taxes or assessmeatiist, or as
result of, any tenant improvements installed onRraperty by or for the benefit of Tenant) durihg tease Term. Subject to Paragraph 4.
and Section 4.07 below, such payment shall be ratldast ten (10) days prior to the delinquence a@édthe taxes. Within such ten (10) -day
period, Tenant shall furnish Landlord with satistag evidence that the real property taxes have Ipagd. Landlord shall reimburse Tenant
any real property taxes paid by Tenant coveringmamjod of time prior to or after the Lease TerthTenant fails to pay the real property taxes
when due, Landlord may pay the taxes and Tenalfitreiraburse Landlord for the amount of such tayrpant as Additional Rent.

(b) Definition of “Real Property Tax.” “Real property tax” means: (i) any fee, licefise, license tax, business license fee, commercial
rental tax, levy, charge, assessment, penalth@@xtent caused by Tenant’s acts or omissionsdxamposed by any taxing authority against
the Property; (ii) any tax on the Landlord’s rigbtreceive, or the receipt of, rent or income fritid Property or against Landlord’s business of
leasing the Property; (iii) any tax or charge fioe protection, streets, sidewalks, road mainteaarefuse or other services provided to the
Property by any governmental agency; (iv) any tagased upon this transaction or based upon a esssent of the Property due to a change
of ownership, as defined by applicable law, or othensfer of all or part of Landlord’s interesttire Property; and (v) any charge or fee
replacing any tax previously included within thdidigon of real property tax. “Real property tagbes not, however, include Landlord’s
federal or state income, franchise, inheritancestate taxes.

(c) Joint Assessment. If the Property is not separately assessed, loatidhall reasonably determine Tenant’'s shareeofehl property
tax payable by Tenant under Paragraph 4.02(a) fhenassessor’s worksheets or other reasonablyablaihformation. Tenant shall pay such
share to Landlord within fifteen (15) days aftezeipt of Landlord’s written statement.

(d) Personal Property Taxes.

(i) Tenant shall pay all taxes charge againstetfadures, furnishings, equipment or any otheispaal property belonging to Tenant.
Tenant shall try to have personal property taxgéusgely from the Property.

(i) If any of Tenants personal property is taxed with the Property,ameshall pay Landlord the taxes for the personaperty within
fifteen (15) days after Tenant receives a writtiatesnent from Landlord for such personal propeakes.

(e) Tenant's Right to Contest Taxes. Tenant may attempt to have the assessed valu#tibe Property reduced or may initiate
proceedings to contest the real property taxeseddired by law, Landlord shall join in the prode®ys brought by Tenant. However, Tenant
shall pay all costs of the proceedings, including eosts or fees incurred by Landlord. Upon thalfdetermination of any proceeding or
contest, Tenant shall immediately pay the real @riyptaxes due, together with all costs, chargesrést and penalties incidental to the
proceedings. If Tenant does not pay the real ptppaxes when due and contests such taxes, Tehatitnot be in default under this Lease for
nonpayment of such taxes if Tenant deposits furitts vandlord or opens an interest-bearing accoeasonably acceptable to Landlord in the
joint names of Landlord and Tenant. The amoursiueh deposit shall be sufficient to pay the reapprty taxes plus a reasonable estima
the interest, costs, charges and penalties whighaoerue if Tenant’s action is unsuccessful, legsapplicable tax impounds previously paid
by Tenant to Landlord. The deposit shall be appigethe real property taxes due, as determinsdecit proceedings. The real property taxes
shall be paid under protest from such depositéhquayment under protest is necessary to preverbperty from being sold under a “tax
sale” or similar enforcement proceeding.

Section 4.03.Utilities. Tenant shall pay, directly to the appropriatepsigp, the cost of all natural gas, heat, lightwpo, sewer service,
telephone, water, refuse disposal and other esliéind services supplied to the Property. Howéfvany services or utilities are jointly mete
with other property, Landlord shall make a reastadbtermination of Tenarst'proportionate share of the cost of such utilitied services ar
Tenant shall pay such share to Landlord withireéft (15) days after receipt of Landlord’s writtéstesment.
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Section 4.04.Insurance Policies.

(a) Liability Insurance. During the Lease Term, Tenant shall maintainlecypof commercial general liability insurance (setimes
known as broad form comprehensive general liabitisprance) insuring Tenant against liability fadiy injury, property damage (including
loss of use of property) and personal injury agsint of the operation, use or occupancy of the@nty. Tenant shall name Landlord as an
additional insured under such policy. The inidaiount of such insurance shall be Three Millionla@rsl ($3,000,000.00) per occurrence and
shall be subject to periodic increase based updumsiny standards for similar facilities. The ligtlgiinsurance obtained by Tenant under this
Paragraph 4.04(a) shall (i) be primary and non+itauting; (i) contain cross-liability endorsemenasd (iii) insure Landlord against Tenant's
performance under Section 5.05, if the mattersngivise to the indemnity under Section 5.05 refsaih the negligence of Tenant. The amc
and coverage of such insurance shall not limit Ti€éediability nor relieve Tenant of any other ajdition under this Lease. Landlord may also
obtain comprehensive public liability insuranceamamount and with coverage determined by Landiwdring Landlord against liability
arising out of ownership, operation, use or occapa the Property. The policy obtained by Landlshall not be contributory and shall not
provide primary insurance.

(b) Property and Rental Income Insurance. During the Lease Term, Landlord shall maintaifigies of insurance covering loss of or
damage to the Property in the full amount of ifdaeement value. Such policy shall provide pratecagainst loss or damage due to fire or
other casualties covered within the classificattbfire standard extended coverage, vandalism,aalé mischief, sprinkler leakage and any
other perils which Landlord deems reasonably necgsd andlord shall have the right to obtain temm, flood and earthquake insurance and
other forms of insurance as required by any lehdéding a security interest in the Property. LandIshall not obtain insurance for Tenant’s
fixtures or equipment or building improvements atigtd by Tenant on the Property. During the Leksen, Landlord shall also maintain a
rental income insurance policy, with loss payableéandlord, in an amount equal to one year’s Baset Blus estimated real property taxes
and insurance premiums. Tenant shall be liabl¢ghpayment of any deductible amount under Lat$arr Tenant’s insurance policies
maintained pursuant to this Section 4.04; providedever Landlord’s insurance deductible shall mzeed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000).
Tenant shall not do or permit anything to be doiéctvinvalidates any such insurance policies. Upenant’s request, Landlord shall provide
Tenant a certificate evidencing such insurance.

(c) Payment of Premiums. Subject to Section 4.07, Tenant shall pay alirpuens for the insurance policies described in Paatts 4.04
(@) and (b) (whether obtained by Landlord or Tepuaiithin fifteen (15) days after Tenant’s receifptaocopy of the premium statement or other
evidence of the amount due, except Landlord staglighl premiums for non-primary comprehensive pubdibility insurance which Landlord
elects to obtain as provided in Paragraph 4.04¢ahsurance policies maintained by Landlord cowmeprovements on real property other than
the Property, Landlord shall deliver to Tenantaeshent of the premium applicable to the Propdroméng in reasonable detail how Tenant’s
share of the premium was computed. If the LeasmBxpires before the expiration of an insurandepmnaintained by Landlord, Tenant
shall be liable for Tenant’s prorated share ofitiseirance premiums. Before the Commencement Datent shall deliver to Landlord a copy
of any policy of insurance which Tenant is requitednaintain under this Section 4.04. At leasttyhi30) days prior to the expiration of any
such policy, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord aawal of such policy. As an alternative to provglen policy of insurance, Tenant shall have
the right to provide Landlord a certificate of ingnce, executed by an authorized officer of tharausce company, showing that the insurance
which Tenant is required to maintain under thisti®ac.04 is in full force and effect and contaipisuch other information which Landlord
reasonably requires.

(d) General Insurance Provisions.

(i) Any insurance which Tenant is required to naiim under this Lease shall include a provisionchhiequires the insurance carrier
to give Landlord not less than thirty (30) daysitten notice prior to any cancellation or modificat of such coverage.

(ii) If Tenant fails to deliver any policy, ceiithte or renewal to Landlord required under thiadeewithin the prescribed time period
or if any such policy is cancelled or modified dgithe Lease Term without Landlord’s consent, Lardlmay obtain such insurance, in
which case Tenant shall reimburse Landlord forcist of such insurance within fifteen (15) daysafeceipt of a statement that indicates
the cost of such insurance.




(i) Landlord and Tenant shall maintain all inaoce required under this Lease with companies hgldi“General Policy Rating” of
A-12 or better, as set forth in the most currestiésof “Best Key Rating Guide”. Landlord and Teraecknowledge the insurance markets
are rapidly changing and that insurance in the fanth amounts described in this Section 4.04 mapaatvailable in the future. Tenant
acknowledges that the insurance described in #6si@ 4.04 is for the primary benefit of Landlordl.at any time during the Lease Term,
Tenant or Landlord is unable to maintain the insoearequired under the Lease, Landlord and Ternatitrsevertheless maintain insurar
coverage which is customary and commercially realsienin the insurance industry for Tenant's typdwdiness, as that coverage may
change from time to time. Landlord makes no regmtion as to the adequacy of such insuranceotegrLandlord’s or Tenant’s
interests. Therefore, Tenant shall obtain any suitfitional property or liability insurance whicleifant deems necessary to protect
Landlord and Tenant.

(iv) Landlord and Tenant each hereby waive anyahdghts of recovery against the other, or agaihe officers, employees, agents
or representatives of the other, for loss of or aigento its property or the property of others urtdecontrol, if such loss or damage is
covered by any insurance policy in force (whethemat described in this Lease) at the time of dosk or damage. Upon obtaining the
required policies of insurance, Landlord and Terséuatl give notice to the insurance carriers of thutual waiver of subrogation.
Landlord’s and Tenant’s insurance policies desdribethis Section shall contain a provision waivthg carrier’s right to subrogation.

Section 4.05.Late Charges. Tenant’s failure to pay rent promptly may causadlord to incur unanticipated costs. The exadaarhof
such costs are impractical or extremely difficoliscertain. Such costs may include, but areiméeld to, processing and accounting charges
and late charges which may be imposed on Landiprhly ground lease, mortgage or trust deed encungpire Property. Therefore, if
Landlord does not receive any rent payment witeim(tLO) days after it becomes due, provided Laddias given Tenant forthight (48) hour
written notice and Tenant has still failed to pagtsBase Rent (which forty-eight (48) shall run @amently with such ten (10) day period),
Tenant shall pay Landlord a late charge equalgbtgiercent (8%) of the overdue amount. The paetgree that such late charge represents a
fair and reasonable estimate of the costs Landldtdncur by reason of such late payment.

Section 4.06.Interest on Past Due Obligations. Any amount owed by one party hereunder to therottich is not paid when due shall
bear interest at the rate of fifteen percent (1p&)annum from the due date of such amount. Homvé@vwerest shall not be payable on late
charges to be paid by Tenant under this Lease.paiment of interest on such amounts shall notsxou cure any default under this Lease.
If the interest rate specified in this Lease ishieigthan the rate permitted by law, the interetst imhereby decreased to the maximum legal
interest rate permitted by law.

Section 4.07.Impounds for Insurance Premiums and Real Property Bxes. If Tenant is more than ten (10) days late inghgment of
Base Rent more than twice in any consecutive twg2¢ -month period, Tenant shall pay Landlord m ®gual to one-twelfth (1/12) of the
annual real property taxes and insurance premiwyalge by Tenant under this Lease, together with payment of Base Rent. Landlord
shall hold such payments in a non-interest beanmmpund account. If unknown, Landlord shall reagin estimate the amount of real
property taxes and insurance premiums when duaarfeshall pay any deficiency of funds in the impd@ccount to Landlord upon written
request. If Tenant defaults under this Lease, laxddnay apply any funds in the impound accourgrig obligation then due under this Lease.

Section 4.08.See Addendum.
ARTICLE FIVE: USE OF PROPERTY
Section 5.01.Permitted Uses. Tenant may use the Property only for the Perthitiees set forth in Section 1.06 above.
Section 5.02.Manner of Use. Tenant shall not cause or permit the Propertyetased in any way which constitutes a violatioarof
law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or ordérich annoys or interferes with the rights ofestkenants of Landlord, or which constitutes

a nuisance or waste. Tenant shall obtain and graglif permits, including a Certificate of Occupgnequired for Tenant’s occupancy of the
Property and shall promptly




take all actions necessary to comply with all aggllie statutes, ordinances, rules, regulationgrer@nd requirements regulating the use by
Tenant of the Property, including the Occupatiddaflety and Health Act.

See Addendum Section 5.02.
See Addendum Section 5.03.

Section 5.04.Signs and Auctions. Tenant shall not place any signs on the Propeithyout Landlords prior written consent. Tenant st
not conduct or permit any auctions or sheriff' esat the Property.

See Addendum Section 5.04.

Section 5.05.Indemnity. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord against and Haddlord harmless from any and all costs, claimkadility
arising from: (a) Tenant’s use of the Property;tfle conduct of Tenant’'s business or anything étsee or permitted by Tenant to be done in
or about the Property; (c) any breach or defauthéperformance of Tenant's obligations under ltieigse; (d) any misrepresentation or breach
of warranty by Tenant under this Lease; or (e) o#uts or omissions of Tenant. Tenant shall defeardllord against any such cost, claim or
liability at Tenant’s expense with counsel reasdynabceptable to Landlord or, at Landlord’s elestidenant shall reimburse Landlord for any
legal fees or costs incurred by Landlord in conioectvith any such claim. As a material part of demsideration to Landlord, Tenant assumes
all risk of damage to property or injury to persamer about the Property arising from any causé, Benant hereby waives all claims in res
thereof against Landlord, except for any claimiagsut of Landlord’s or Landlord’s employees’, atg or contractors’ active negligence or
willful misconduct. As used in this Section, tleerh “Tenant” shall include Tenant’s employees, agjezontractors and invitees, if applicable.

See Addendum Section 5.05.

Section 5.06.Landlord’s Access. Landlord or its agents may enter the Propergllaeasonable times to show the Property to piatent
buyers, investors or tenants or other partiesptarty other act or to inspect and conduct testsdar to monitor Tenant’s compliance with all
applicable environmental laws and all laws govegrthre presence and use of Hazardous Material;rarfp other purpose Landlord deems
necessary. Landlord shall give Tenant 24-hourprigice of such entry, except in the case of aargency and Landlord agrees to allow a
representative of Tenant to accompany Landlordfartder agrees to comply with Tenant’s reasonabteisty measures. Landlord may place
customary “For Sale” or “For Lease” signs on theperty.

Section 5.07.Quiet Possession. If Tenant pays the rent and complies with alleotterms of this Lease, Tenant may occupy and e¢hpy
Property for the full Lease Term, subject to thevigions of this Lease.

ARTICLE SIX: CONDITION OF PROPERTY; MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND ALT ERATIONS

Section 6.01.Existing Conditions. Subject to the provisions of this Lease, Tenanepts the Property in its condition as of the ekien
of the Lease, subject to all recorded matters, Jandinances, and governmental regulations and-erdexcept as provided herein, Tenant
acknowledges that neither Landlord nor any agehfofllord has made any representation as to theitcmm of the Property or the suitability
of the Property for Tenant's intended use. Temaptesents and warrants that Tenant has made iitsnapection of and inquiry regarding the
condition of the Property and is not relying on aegresentations of Landlord or any Broker withpeeg thereto. If Landlord or Landlord’s
Broker has provided a Property Information Sheatdtber Disclosure Statement regarding the Propartgpy is attached as an exhibit to the
Lease.

Section 6.02.Exemption of Landlord from Liability. Landlord shall not be liable for any damage qurinto the person, business (or
any loss of income therefrom), goods, wares, mexdisea or other property of Tenant. Tenant’'s emgdsy invitees, customers or any other
person in or about the Property, whether such damainjury is caused by or results from: (a),fsgeam, electricity, water, gas or rain; (b)
breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defeqgépefs, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbinggcairditioning or lighting fixtures or any other
cause; (c) conditions arising in or about the Prigper from other sources or places; or (d) anyoaamission of any other tenant of Landlord.
Landlord shall not be liable for any such damagmjory even though the cause of or the meanspdireng such damage or injury are not
accessible to Tenant. The provisions of this $adi02 shall not, however, exempt Landlord fraability for Landlord’s or Landlord’s
employees’, agents’ or contractors active negligesrowillful misconduct.
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Section 6.03.Landlord’s Obligations. See Addendum Section 6.03.
Section 6.04.Tenant’s Obligations.

(a) Except as provided in Section 6.03, ArticleeSe(Damage or Destruction) and Article Eight (Cemaation), Tenant shall keep all
portions of the Property (including structural, styactural, interior, exterior, and landscaped syreartions, systems and equipment) in good
order, condition and repair (including interior agmting and refinishing, as needed). If any paortd the Property or any system or equipment
in the Property which Tenant is obligated to repainnot be fully repaired or restored, Tenant gtvaptly replace such portion of the
Property or system or equipment in the Propertyardless of whether the benefit of such replacemeteinds beyond the Lease Term; but if
the benefit or useful life of such replacement eatebeyond the Lease Term (as such term may bededeyy exercise of any options), the
useful life of such replacement shall be prorategr the remaining portion of the Lease Term (asmdéd), and Tenant shall be liable only for
that portion of the cost which is applicable to tease Term (as extended). Tenant shall maintpieentive maintenance contract providing
for the regular inspection and maintenance of trettihg and air conditioning system by a licenseatihg and air conditioning contractor.
Subiject to the provisions of Section 4.04(d)(i¥gny part of the Property is damaged by any adnoission of Tenant, Tenant shall pay
Landlord the cost of repairing or replacing sucmeged property, whether or not Landlord would oth®&s be obligated to pay the cost of
maintaining or repairing such property. It is thiention of Landlord and Tenant that at all tiffenant shall maintain the portions of the
Property which Tenant is obligated to maintainrninedtractive, first-class and fully operative cdrai.

(b) Tenant shall fulfill all of Tenant’s obligatis under this Section 6.04 at Tenant’s sole expeliSeenant fails to maintain, repair or
replace the Property as required by this Sectif4 6r is not using all reasonable efforts to doLsmdlord may, upon ten (10) days’ prior
notice to Tenant (except that no notice shall lowired in the case of an emergency), enter thedPtppand perform such maintenance or repair
(including replacement, as needed) on behalf ofiienin such case, Tenant shall reimburse Landtordll costs incurred in performing such
maintenance or repair immediately upon demand.

Section 6.05.Alterations, Additions, and Improvements.

(a) Tenant shall not make any alterations, adustior improvements to the Property without Landilprior written consent, which shall
not be unreasonably withheld except for non-stmattalterations which do not exceed Sixty Thous@ntars ($60,000) in cost per project and
which are not visible from the outside of any bimtglof which the Property is part. Landlord maguige Tenant to provide demolition and/or
lien and completion bonds in form and amount satisiry to Landlord. Tenant shall promptly remowg alterations, additions, or
improvements constructed in violation of this Paaat 6.05(a) upon Landlord’s written request. aMerations, additions, and improvements
shall be done in a good and workmanlike mannezpirformity with all applicable laws and regulatipasd by a contractor approved by
Landlord, which shall not be unreasonably withhdlthon completion of any such work, Tenant shalvde Landlord with “as built” plans,
copies of all construction contracts, and progb@yment for all labor and materials.

(b) Tenant shall pay when due all claims for laéod material furnished to or for the Tenant Gratithe Property. Tenant shall give
Landlord at least twenty (20) days’ prior writteotice of the commencement of any work on the Prtgpezgardless of whether Landlord’s
consent to such work is required. Landlord maygtete record and post notices of non-responsibditythe Property.

Section 6.06.Condition upon Termination. Upon the termination of the Lease, Tenant shaltender the Property to Landlord, broom
clean and in the same condition as received exXoeprdinary wear and tear which Tenant was nogwotfise obligated to remedy under any
provision of this Lease. However, Tenant shalllmbbligated to repair any damage which Landlsnmequired to repair in accordance with
the Lease. In addition, Landlord may require Témamemove any alterations, additions or improvetag¢whether or not made with
Landlord’s consent) prior to the expiration of thease and to restore the Property to its prior itimmg all at Tenant’s expense. All alterations,
additions and improvements which Landlord has aquired Tenant to remove shall become Landlordipgnty and shall be surrendered to
Landlord upon the expiration or earlier terminatafrthe Lease, except that Tenant may remove afigpnént’s trade fixtures, machinery or
equipment which can be removed without material atgerto the Property. Tenant shall repair, at Tea@xpense, any damage to the Proy
caused by the removal of any such trade fixtureghimery or equipment. In no event, however, shall
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Tenant remove any of the following materials oripqent (which shall be deemed Landlord’s propertighout Landlord’s prior written
consent; any power wiring or power panels; lightimdighting fixtures; wall coverings; drapes, ldmor other window coverings; carpets or
other floor coverings; heaters, air conditionersuay other heating or air conditioning equipmeaeniding or security gates; or other similar
building operating equipment and decorations.

See Addendum Section 6.06.
ARTICLE SEVEN: DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
Section 7.01.Partial Damage to Property.

(a) Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing immediely upon the occurrence of any damage to thedPmoplf the Property is only partial
damaged (i.e., less than fifty percent (50%) ofRheperty is untenantable as a result of such daroafess than fifty percent (50%) of Tenant’
operations are materially impaired) and if the pexts received by Landlord from the insurance pegiciescribed in Paragraph 4.04(b) are
sufficient to pay for the necessary repairs, tldade shall remain in effect and Landlord shallirepa damage as soon as reasonably possible.
Landlord may elect (but is not required) to re@ay damage to Tenant’s fixtures, equipment, or owements.

(b) If (i) Landlord has maintained the insuraneguired to be maintained under Paragraph 4.04(bjteinsurance proceeds received by
Landlord are not sufficient to pay the entire aufstepair; (ii) the cause of the damage is not ceddy such insurance policies; or (iii) the
holder of any mortgage on the Property shall reqgthiat the insurance proceeds or any portion tifiéeeased to retire the mortgage debt.
Landlord may elect either to (i) repair the damageoon as reasonably possible, in which casé&éaise shall remain in full force and effect,
or (ii) terminate this Lease as of the date thealggroccurred. Landlord shall notify Tenant witthirty (30) days after receipt of notice of the
occurrence of the damage whether Landlord eleatspair the damage or terminate the Lease. If lomdcalects to repair the damage, Tenant
shall pay Landlord the “deductible amount” (if any)der Landlord’s insurance policies and, if thendge was due to an act or omission of
Tenant, or Tenant’s employees, agents, contraotdrsr/itees, the difference between the actual cbstpair and any insurance proceeds
received by Landlord. If Landlord elects to teratmthis Lease, Tenant may elect to continue taésk in full force and effect, in which case
Tenant shall repair any damage to the Propertyaagduilding in which the Property is located. @enshall pay the cost of such repairs,
except that upon satisfactory completion of sugfairs, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant any insaeproceeds received by Landlord for the
damage repaired by Tenant. Tenant shall give lorddiritten notice of such election within ten (I@)ys after receiving Landlord’s
termination notice.

(c) If the damage to the Property occurs durirglést six (6) months of the Lease Term and suateda will require more than thirty (¢
days to repair, either Landlord or Tenant may ele¢erminate this Lease as of the date the dameggred, regardless of the sufficiency of
any insurance proceeds. The party electing toitet® this Lease shall give written notificatiorthe other party of such election within thirty
(30) days after Tenant’s notice to Landlord of dlceurrence of the damage.

Section 7.02.Substantial or Total Destruction. If the Property is substantially or totally dested by any cause whatsoever (i.e., the
damage to the Property is greater than partial daraa described in Section 7.01), and regardlestether Landlord receives any insurance
proceeds, this Lease shall terminate the latenef{i) date the destruction occurred and (ii) taeedr'enant ceases to do business at the
Property. Notwithstanding the preceding senteifitke Property can be rebuilt within six (6) mostifter the date of destruction, Landlord
may elect to rebuild the Property at Landlord’s awpense, in which case this Lease shall remdulliforce and effect. Landlord shall notify
Tenant of such election within thirty (30) dayseafTenant’s notice of the occurrence of total dossantial destruction. If Landlord so elects,
Landlord shall rebuild the Property at Landlorddesexpense, except that if the destruction wasexhby an act or omission of Tenant, Tenant
shall pay Landlord the difference between the ddost of rebuilding and any insurance proceedsived by Landlord.

Section 7.03.Temporary Reduction of Rent. If the Property is destroyed or damaged and laddbr Tenant repairs or restores the
Property pursuant to the provisions of this ArtiSleven, any rent payable during the period of slacthage, repair and/or restoration shall be
reduced according to the degree, if any, to whiehaht’s use of the Property is impaired. Excepsfh possible reduction in Base Rent,
insurance premiums and real property taxes,




Tenant shall not be entitled to any compensatiedwiction, or reimbursement from Landlord as a tesfuhny damage, destruction, repair, or
restoration of or to the Property.

Section 7.04.Waiver. Tenant waives the protection of any statute, ardadicial decision which grants a tenant théatig terminate a
lease in the event of the substantial or totalrdetion of the leased property. Tenant agreesthieaprovisions of Section 7.02 above shall
govern the rights and obligations of Landlord amehdnt in the event of any substantial or totalrdesibn to the Property.

ARTICLE EIGHT: CONDEMNATION

If all or any portion of the Property is taken unttee power of eminent domain or sold under thedahof that power (all of which are
called “Condemnation”), this Lease shall termiredeo the part taken or sold on the date the conitgnauthority takes title or possession,
whichever occurs first. If more than twenty pertcd@®%) of the floor area of the building in whittte Property is located, or which is located
on the Property, is taken, either Landlord or Teémaay terminate this Lease as of the date the gonatgy authority takes title or possession
delivering written notice to the other within tetD] days after receipt of written notice of sudking (or in the absence of such notice, within
ten (10) days after the condemning authority tditkesor possession). If neither Landlord nor Teti@rminates this Lease, this Lease shall
remain in effect as to the portion of the Propeuytaken, except that the Base Rent and AdditiBealt shall be reduced in proportion to the
reduction in the floor area of the Property. Amyndemnation award or payment shall be distributettié following order: (@) first, to any
ground lessor, mortgagee or beneficiary under d dé&ust encumbering the Property, the amouriisdhterest in the Property; (b) second, to
Tenant, only the amount of any award specificalgignated for loss of or damage to Tenant’s traderés or removable personal property;
and (c) third, to Landlord, the remainder of sualaal, whether as compensation for reduction invéilee of the leasehold, the taking of the
fee, or otherwise. If this Lease is not terminateghdlord shall repair any damage to the Propeatysed by the Condemnation, except that
Landlord shall not be obligated to repair any daenfag which Tenant has been reimbursed by the gondwy authority. If the severance
damages received by Landlord are not sufficiemiayp for such repair, Landlord shall have the righgither terminate this Lease or make such
repair at Landlord’s expense.

ARTICLE NINE: ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section 9.01.Landlord’s Consent Required. no portion of the Property or of Tenant's inte¢iieshis Lease may be acquired by any
other person or entity, whether by sale, assignymeattgage, sublease, transfer, operation of lawcbof Tenant, without Landlord’s prior
written consent, except as provided in Section 8€aw. Landlord has the right to grant or wittthits consent as provided in Section 9.05
below. Any attempted transfer without consentIdb@lvoid and shall constitute a non-curable bresHchis Lease.

Section 9.02.Tenant Affiliate.
See Addendum Section 9.02.

Section 9.03.No Release of Tenant. No transfer permitted by this Article Nine, whethvith or without Landlord’s consent, shall releas
Tenant or change Tenant’s primary liability to phag rent and to perform all other obligations ohaet under this Lease. Landlord’s
acceptance of rent from any other person is nadiger of any provision of this Article Nine. Comseéo one transfer is not a consent to any
subsequent transfer. If Tenant's transferee disfamder this Lease, Landlord may proceed diregBinst Tenant without pursuing remedies
against the transferee. Landlord may consentlisequent assignments or modifications of this L&gsEenant’s transferee, without notifying
Tenant or obtaining its consent. Such action sialrelieve Tenant’s liability under this Lease.

Section 9.04.0ffer to Terminate. If Tenant desires to assign the Lease or subkdaeéthe Property, and if Landlord elects in tivig) to
terminate this Lease pursuant to Section 9.05| ¢ase shall terminate as of the commencement dat@ew lease between Landlord and the
proposed assignee or subtenant and all the terdhpramisions of the Lease governing terminationlsyply. If Landlord does not so elect,
the Lease shall continue in effect until otherwteseninated and the provisions of Section 9.05 wagpect to any proposed transfer shall
continue to apply.




Section 9.05.Landlord’s Consent.

(a) Tenant’s request for consent to any transfecdbed in Section 9.01 shall set forth in writthg details of the proposed transfer,
including the name, business and financial conaliibthe prospective transferee, financial detafilthe proposed transfer (e.g., the term of and
the rent and security deposit payable under anggs®d assignment or sublease), and any other iafimmLandlord reasonably deems
relevant. Landlord shall have the right to electerminate this Lease or to withhold consentgésonable, or to grant consent, based on the
following factors: (i) the business of the propdsessignee or subtenant and the proposed use Bfdperty; (ii) the net worth and financial
reputation of the proposed assignee or subtenadt{i@ Tenant's compliance with all of its oblitians under the Lease. If Landlord objects to
a proposed assignment solely because of the nét wod/or financial reputation of the proposedgresg, Tenant may nonetheless sublease
(but not assign), all or a portion of the Propéotyhe proposed transferee, but only on the otetvend of the proposed transfer.

(b) If Tenant assigns or subleases, the follovginall apply:

(i) If Tenant assigns or subleases more than sgyamcent (70%) of the building located on thegemty in the aggregate, then Ter
shall pay to Landlord as Additional Rent underltkase the Landlord’s Share (stated in Section Joil8)e Profit (defined below) on such
transaction as and when received by Tenant, uhkesdlord gives written notice to Tenant and thégaee or subtenant that Landlord’s
Share shall be paid by the assignee or subten&smindlord directly. The “Profit” means (A) all ammats paid to Tenant for such
assignment or sublease, including “key” money, migntent in excess of the monthly rent payable urlde Lease, and all fees and other
consideration paid for the assignment or subleéaskiding fees under any collateral agreements, (B} costs and expenses directly
incurred by Tenant in connection with the executiod performance of such assignment or subleasedbestate broker's commissions
and costs of renovation or construction of sucligassent or sublease for real estate broker’s coions and costs of renovation or
construction of tenant improvements required ursdeh assignment or sublease. Tenant is entitlegctiver such costs and expenses
before Tenant is obligated to pay the Landlord’ar8tio Landlord. The Profit in the case of a safdeof less than all the Property is the
rent allocable to the subleased space as a pegeeottsa square footage basis.

(i) Tenant shall provide Landlord a written statnt certifying all amounts to be paid from anyigresment or sublease of the Prop
within thirty (30) days after the transaction do@ntation is signed, and Landlord may inspect Teésaatevant books and records to
verify the accuracy of such statement. On writeguest, Tenant shall promptly furnish to Landlooghies of all the transaction
documentation, all of which shall be certified bgriint to be complete, true and correct. Landlaetsgipt of Landlord’s Share shall not
be a consent to any further assignment or subdettithe breach of Tenant’s obligation under thissBeaph 9.05(b) shall be a material
default of the Lease.

Section 9.06.No Merger. no merger shall result from Tenant’s subleash@Property under this Article Nine, Tenangurrender of thi
Lease or the termination of this Lease in any othanner. In any such event, Landlord may terminateor all subtenancies or succeed to the
interest of Tenant as sublandlord under any awitenancies.

ARTICLE TEN: DEFAULTS; REMEDIES

Section 10.01.Covenants and Conditions. Tenant’s and Landlord’s performance of each @l under this Lease is a condition as
well as a covenant. Tenant's right to continupassession of the Property is conditioned upon i&mgerformance. Time is of the essenc
the performance of all covenants and conditions.

Section 10.02 Defaults. Tenant shall be in material default under thiades

(a) If Tenant fails to pay rent and abandons ttopé&rty or if Tenant’s vacation of the Propertyulesin the cancellation of any insurance
described in Section 4.04;

(b) If Tenant fails to pay rent when due or anyestcharge within ten (10) days from receipt oftsbil or statement from Landlord;

(c) If Tenant fails to perform any of Tenant’s Amonetary obligations under this Lease for a peabthirty (30) days after written notice
from Landlord; provided that if more than thirtyOj3days are required to complete
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such performance, Tenant shall not be in defadleifant commences such performance within theytt8Q)—day period and thereafter
diligently pursues its completion. The notice riegd by this Paragraph is intended to satisfy any/all notice requirements imposed by law
Landlord and is not in addition to any such requieet.

(d) (i) If Tenant makes a general assignmentenregal arrangement for the benefit of creditoi¥jf(a petition for adjudication of
bankruptcy or for reorganization or rearrangemefitéd by or against Tenant and is not dismissihimvthirty (30) days; (iii) if a trustee or
receiver is appointed to take possession of sutisligrall of Tenant's assets located at the Prgper of Tenant’s interest in this Lease and
possession is not restored to Tenant within tiB8) days; or (iv) if substantially all of Tenan#ssets located at the Property or of Tenant’s
interest in this Lease is subjected to attachmecution or other judicial seizure which is natattiarged within thirty (3) days. If a court of
competent jurisdiction determines that any of ttis described in this subparagraph (d) is not audefinder this Lease, and a trustee is
appointed to take possession (or if Tenant renaihsbtor in possession) and such trustee or Tér@asfers Tenant's interest hereunder, then
Landlord shall receive, as Additional Rent, theess; if any, of the rent (or any other considengtfmid in connection with such assignment or
sublease over the rent payable by Tenant undek daise.

(e) If any guarantor of the Lease revokes or etfes terminates, or purports to revoke or otherwésminate, any guaranty of all or any
potion of Tenant’s obligations under the Leaseless otherwise expressly provided, no guarantheiiease is revocable.

Section 10.03Remedies. On the occurrence of any material default by fg¢naandlord may, at any time thereafter, followithgee (3)
days written notice or demand (which may be inftmen of a three (3) day notice to pay rent or @uitl which time may run concurrently
therewith) and without limiting Landlord in the exi&se of any right or remedy which Landlord may éav

(a) Terminate Tenant'’s right to possession ofRRf@perty by any lawful means, in which case thiadeeshall terminate and Tenant shall
immediately surrender possession of the Properatallord. If Tenant shall be served with a demfmndhe payment of past due rent or any
other charge, any payments rendered thereaftemréany default by Tenant shall be made only bhiea's check. In such event, Landlord
shall be entitled to recover from Tenant all dansageurred by Landlord by reason of Tenardéefault, including (i) the worth at the time bé
award of the unpaid Base Rent, Additional Rent@ther charges which Landlord had earned at the diftliee termination; (ii) the worth at the
time of the award of the amount by which the unf2ade Rent, Additional Rent and other charges whaidlord would have earned after
termination until the time of the award exceedsahunt of such rental loss that Tenant proves loadaould have reasonably avoided; (iii)
the worth at the time of the award of the amounivbych the unpaid Base Rent, Additional Rent afeotharges which Tenant would have
paid for the balance of the Lease term after the of award exceeds the amount of such rentath@¢sTenant proves Landlord could have
reasonably avoided; and (iv) any other amount resecgso compensate Landlord for all the detrimeokimately caused by Tenant's failure to
perform its obligations under the Lease or whicthim ordinary course of things would be likely ¢ésult therefrom, including, but not limited
to, any costs or expenses Landlord incurs in migiimig or preserving the Property after such defah#t costs of recovering possession of the
Property, expenses of reletting, including necessarovation or alteration of the Property, Landlsreasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in
connection therewith, and any real estate commmigs&d or payable. As used in subparts (i) andfibve, the “worth at the time of the
award”is computed by allowing interest on unpaid amoantbe rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annunsuzh lesser amount as may thei
the maximum lawful rate. As used in subpart éldpve, the “worth at the time of the award” is comal by discounting such amount at the
discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of Sandisco at the time of the award, plus one per@@n). If Tenant has abandoned the
Property, Landlord shall have the option of (ijakeéhg possession of the Property and recovering ffenant the amount specified in this
Paragraph 10.03(a), and/or (ii) proceeding undead?aph 10.03(b);

(b) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in whiase this Lease shall continue in effect whethe&ot Tenant has abandoned the
Property. In such event, Landlord shall be emtiteeenforce all of Landlord’s rights and remediesler this Lease, including the right to
recover the rent as it becomes due. Landlord blaakk the remedy described in California Civil C&detion 1951.4 (lessor may continue ¢
in effect after lessee’s breach and abandonmentemmder rent as it becomes due, if lessee hasgihieto sublet or assign, subject only to
reasonable limitations);
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(c) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter alvigilto Landlord under the laws or judicial dedisiof the state in which the Property is
located.

Section 10.04. Intentionally Deleted.

Section 10.05Automatic Termination. Notwithstanding any other term or provision héteahe contrary, the Lease shall terminate on
the occurrence of any act which affirms the Landibimtention to terminate the Lease as provide8ention 10.03 hereof, including the filing
of an unlawful detainer action against Tenant. sOch termination, Landlord’s damages for defaudtishclude all costs and fees, including
reasonably attorneys’ fees that Landlord incursonnection with the filing, commencement, pursuangl/or defending of any action in any
bankruptcy court or other court with respect toltbase; the obtaining of relief from any stay imkmuptcy restraining any action to evict
Tenant; or the pursuing of any action with respedtandlord’s right to possession of the Propedyl. such damages suffered (apart from Base
Rent and other rent payable hereunder) shall datesfpecuniary damages which must be reimbursedrndlord prior to assumption of the
Lease by Tenant or any successor to Tenant in ankrbptcy or other proceeding.

Section 10.06. Cumulative Remedies. Landlord’s exercise of any right or remedy sinall prevent it from exercising any other right or
remedy.

ARTICLE ELEVEN: PROTECTION OF LENDERS

Section 11.01.Subordination. Landlord shall have the right to subordinate tlgase to any ground lease, deed of trust or mgetga
encumbering the Property, any advances made csetheity thereof and any renewals, modificatioosisolidations, replacements or
extensions thereof, whenever made or recordedarfeshall cooperate with Landlord and any lendeckvis acquiring a security interest in
the Property or the Lease. Tenant shall executie futher documents and assurances as such leraerequire in the form attached heretc
Exhibit “B” or such other form as is then requiteg Landlord’s lender, provided that such agreencentains a non-disturbance agreement in
favor of Tenant and provided further that Tenanbsgations under this Lease shall not be increaseey material way (the performance of
ministerial acts shall not be deemed material), Bewwknt shall not be deprived of its rights unéiés Lease. Tenant’s right to quiet possession
of the Property during the Lease Term shall nadib&urbed if Tenant pays the rent and performsfallenant’s obligations under this Lease
and is not otherwise in default. If any groundstas beneficiary or mortgagee elects to have thisk prior to the lien of its ground lease, deed
of trust or mortgage and gives written notice tbéte Tenant, this Lease shall be deemed priouth ground lease, deed of trust or mortgage
whether this Lease is dated prior or subsequethietalate of said ground lease, deed of trust otgage or the date of recording thereof.

See Addendum Section 11.01.

Section 11.02 Attornment. If Landlord’s interest in the Property is acqditey any ground lessor, beneficiary under a deetlst,
mortgagee, or purchaser at a foreclosure sale ntshall attorn to the transferee of or successbandlord’s interest in the Property and
recognize such transferee or successor as Lanaihater this Lease. Tenant waives the protectiangfcurrent or future statute or rule of law
which gives or purports to give Tenant any righteiominate this Lease or surrender possessiored®thperty upon the transfer of Landlord’s
interest.

Section 11.03.Signing of Documents. Tenant shall sign and deliver any instrumentamuinents necessary or appropriate to evidence
any such attornment or subordination or agreentedodtso provided that such agreement include adistnrbance provision in favor of
Tenant. If Tenant fails to do so within fifteerbjldays after written request, Tenant hereby mal@sstitutes and irrevocably appoints
Landlord, or any transferee or successor of Landire attorney-in-fact of Tenant to execute anydeany such instrument or document so
long as such instrument complies with the provisiohthis ARTICLE ELEVEN.

Section 11.04 Estoppel Certificates.

(a) Upon Landlord’s written request, Tenant sbacute, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord at@ristatement in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit “C” or such other form as is thequired by Landlord’s lender, certifying: (ijathnone of the terms or provisions of this
Lease have been changed (or if they have been edastating how they have been changed); (ii)tthiatLease has not been cancelled or
terminated,; (iii) the last date of payment of thesB Rent and other charges and the time periodembby such payment; (iv) that Landlord is
not
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in default under this Lease (or, if Landlord isiclad to be in default, stating why); and (v) sutheo representations or information with
respect to Tenant or the Lease as Landlord mapmnaaty request or which any prospective purchasenoumbrancer of the Property may
require. Tenant shall deliver such statement todlard within fifteen (15) days after Landlord’speeest. Landlord may give any such
statement by Tenant to any prospective purchasenarmbrancer of the Property. Such purchasem@armebrancer may rely conclusively
upon such statement as true and correct.

(b) If Tenant does not deliver such statementandlord within such fifteen (15)—day period, Larrdioand any prospective purchaser or
encumbrancer, may conclusively presume and rely tip® following facts: (i) that the terms and pgsians of this Lease have not been
changed except as otherwise represented by Landirihat this Lease has not been cancelled moniteated except as otherwise represented
by Landlord; (iii) that not more than one month’'ad® Rent or other charges have been paid in advamd€iv) that Landlord is not in default
under the Lease. In such event, Tenant shalltopesd from denying the truth of such facts.

Section 11.04(c). See Addendum.

Section 11.05.Tenant’s Financial Condition. Within ten (10) days after written request fromndlord, Tenant shall deliver to Landlord
Tenant’s then existing financial statements tofydtie net worth of Tenant or any assignee, sulbtigma guarantor of Tenant. In addition,
Tenant shall deliver to any lender designated bydlard any financial statements required by suokée to facilitate the financing or
refinancing of the Property. Tenant representsvearglants to Landlord that each such financiakstesnt is a true and accurate statement as of
the date of such statement. Al financial statesishall be confidential and shall be used onlttierpurposes set forth in this Lease.

See Addendum Section 11.05.
ARTICLE TWELVE: LEGAL COSTS

Section 12.01Legal Proceedings. If Tenant or Landlord shall be in breach or défander this Lease, such party (the “Defaulting
Party”) shall reimburse the other party (the “Ndiadéting Party”)upon demand for any costs or expenses that thedfaulting Party incurs i
connection with any breach or default of the DefaglParty under this Lease, whether or not suibimmenced or judgment entered. Such
costs shall include legal fees and costs incumethie negotiation of a settlement, enforcememighits or otherwise. Furthermore, if any
action for breach of or to enforce the provisiohth@s Lease is commenced, the court in such adli@il award to the party in whose favor a
judgment is entered, a reasonable sum as att¢ fees and costs. The losing party in such acsiwell pay such attorneys’ fees and costs.
Tenant shall also indemnify Landlord against anidl handlord harmless from all costs, expenses, geimand liability Landlord may incur if
Landlord becomes or is made a party to any claisction (a) instituted by Tenant against any tipiadty, or by any third party against Tenant,
or by or against any person holding any interegear using the Property by license of or agreeméh Tenant; (b) for foreclosure of any
lien for labor or material furnished to or for Tem&roup; (c) otherwise arising out of or resultingm any act or transaction of Tenant Group;
or (d) necessary to protect Landlord’s interestauritlis Lease in a bankruptcy proceeding, or gbheceeding under Title 11 of the United
States Code, as amended. Tenant shall defenddrdratjainst any such claim or action at TersmeXpense with counsel reasonably accer.
to Landlord or, at Landlord’s election. Tenantlsreimburse Landlord for any legal fees or cosamdlord reasonably incurs in any such claim
or action.

Section 12.02Landlord’s Consent. Tenant shall pay Landlord’s reasonable attornfges incurred in connection with Tenant’s request
for Landlord’s consent under Article Nine (Assignmand Subletting), or in connection with any otaer which Tenant proposes to do and
which requires Landlord’s consent.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
Section 13.01 Non-Discrimination. Tenant promises, and it is a condition to thetiooance of this Lease, that there will be no
discrimination against, or segregation of, any e group of persons on the basis of race, cebx, creed, national origin or ancestry in the

leasing, subleasing, transferring, occupancy, ouuse of the Property or any portion thereof.
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Section 13.02Landlord’s Liability; Certain Duties.

(a) As used in this Lease, the term “LandlomBans only the current owner or owners of theifketb the Property or the leasehold es
under a ground lease of the Property at the tingriéstion. Each Landlord is obligated to perfolne abligations of Landlord under this Lease
only during the time such Landlord owns such irgeoe title. Any Landlord who transfers its tithe interest is relieved of al liability with
respect to the obligations of Landlord under théside to be performed on or after the date of teapgbvided the transferee assumes all of
Landlord’s obligations from the date of transfétowever, each Landlord shall deliver to its transéeall funds that Tenant previously paid if
such funds have not yet been applied under thestefrthis Lease.

(b) Tenant shall give written notice of any faduyy Landlord to perform any of its obligations enthis Lease to Landlord and to any
ground lessor, mortgagee or beneficiary under aegaf trust encumbering the Property whose nameaddress have been furnished to
Tenant in writing. Landlord shall not be in detawhder this Lease unless landlord (or such grdessbr, mortgagee or beneficiary) fails to
cure such non-performance within thirty (30) daferareceipt of Tenant’s notice. However, if sugmn-performance reasonably requires more
than thirty (30) days to cure, Landlord shall netitv default if such cure is commenced within sttty (30) —day period and thereafter
diligently pursued to completion.

(c) Notwithstanding any term or provision herarthie contrary, the liability of Landlord for theqformance of its duties and obligations
under this Lease is limited to Landlord’s intenesthe Property, and neither the Landlord nor #@gpers, shareholders, officers or other
principals shall have any personal liability untlés Lease.

Section 13.03.Severability. A determination by a court of competent jurisidiatthat any provision of this Lease or any pagtr#of is
illegal or unenforceable shall not cancel or indate the remainder of such provision or this Leaggch shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 13.04 Interpretation. The captions of the Articles or Sections of ttesise are to assist the parties in reading thisd.aad are
not a part of the terms or provisions of this Leagéhenever required by the context of this Le#ise singular shall include the plural and the
plural shall include the singular. The masculiieeinine and neuter genders shall each includettier. In any provision relating to the
conduct, acts or omissions of Tenant, the term &hshall include Tenant’'s agents, employees,ragirs, invitees, successors or others
using the Property with Tenant's expressed or iegppiermission.

Section 13.05Incorporation of Prior Agreements; Modifications. This Lease is the only agreement between théepaertaining to
the lease of the Property and no other agreemenisfigctive. All amendments to this Lease shalirbwriting and singed by all parties. Any
other attempted amendment shall be void.

Section 13.06.Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Leeahall be in writing and shall be personally deléd or sent by
national overnight carrier or certified mail, retuneceipt requested, postage prepaid. Noticegtat shall be delivered to the address
specified in Section 1.03 above. Notices to Lartikhall be delivered to the address specifieckictiBn 1.02 above. All notices shall be
effective upon delivery. Either party may chantgeniotice address upon written notice to the oplagty.

Section 13.07 Waivers. All waivers must be in writing and signed by thaiving party. Landlord’s failure to enforce ampypision of
this Lease or its acceptance of rent shall notwaiaer and shall not prevent Landlord from enfogcihat provision or any other provision of
this Lease in the future. no statement on a paywcteeck from Tenant or in a letter accompanyingynpent check shall be binding on
Landlord. Landlord may, with or without notice Tenant, negotiate such check without being bourtdegaonditions of such statement.

Section 13.08 No Recordation. Tenant shall not record this Lease without pwatten consent from Landlord. However, either
Landlord or Tenant may require that a “Short Fom&morandum of this Lease executed by both pardesdorded. The party requiring such
recording shall pay all transfer taxes and recgrdiéges.

Section 13.09Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease binds any party who legally acquirgsrights or interest in this Lease from
Landlord or Tenant. However, Landlord shall haweobligation to Tenant’s successor unless the sighinterests of Tenant's successor are
acquired in accordance with the terms of this Ledd®e laws of the state in which the Propertytsated shall govern this Lease.
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Section 13.10Corporate Authority; Partnership Authority. If Tenant is a corporation, such corporation espnts and warrants that
each person signing this Lease on behalf of Temamfull authority to do so and that this Leasealbithe corporation. Within thirty (30) days
after this Lease is signed, Tenant shall delivdrandlord a certified copy of a resolution of TetimBoard of Directors authorizing the
execution of this Lease or other evidence of suthaity reasonably acceptable to Landlord. If s a partnership, each person or entity
signing this Lease for Tenant represents and wiarthat he or it is a general partner of the pastnip, that he or it has full authority to sign for
the partnership and that this Lease binds the g@astip and all general partners of the partnersiignant shall give written notice to Landlord
of any general partner’s withdrawal or additioniti thirty (30) days after this Lease is sign&€dpant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of
Tenant's recorded statement of partnership orfazte of limited partnership.

Section 13.11.Joint and Several Liability. Intentionally Deleted.
Section 13.12. See Addendum Section 13.12.

Section 13.13 Execution of Lease. This Lease may be executed in counterparts ahenwll counterpart documents are executed, the
counterparts shall constitute a single bindingrimeent. Landlord’s delivery of this Lease to Tenstmll not be deemed to be an offer to lease
and shall not be binding upon either party unté@xed and delivered by both parties.

Section 13.14 Survival. All representations and warranties of Landlord &enant shall survive the termination of this lecas
ARTICLE FOURTEEN: BROKERS

Section 14.01Broker’'s Fee. When this Lease is signed by and delivered th hahdlord and Tenant, Landlord shall pay a retdtes
commission to Landlord’s Broker named in SectiddBlabove, if any, as provided in the written agreenibetween Landlord and Landlord’s
Broker, or the sum stated in Section 1.09 abovedovices rendered to Landlord by Landlord’s Brdkethis transaction. Landlord shall pay
Landlord’s Broker a commission if Tenant exerciarg option to extend the Lease Term or to buy tlopérty, or any similar option or right
which Landlord may grant to Tenant, or if Landl@droker is the procuring cause of any other lessale entered into between Landlord
Tenant covering the Property. Such commission Sleathe amount set forth in Landlord’s Broker'sreoission schedule in effect as of the
execution of this Lease. If a Tenant's Brokerasned in Section 1.08 above, Landlord’s Broker ghajl an appropriate portion of its
commission to Tenant’s Broker if so provided in agyeement between Landlord’s Broker and Tenant&&. Nothing contained in this
Lease shall impose any obligation on Landlord tp @aommission or fee to any party other than Larti Broker.

Section 14.02 Protection of Brokers. If Landlord sells the Property, or assigns Landi®interest in this Lease, the buyer or assignee
shall, by accepting such conveyance of the Progerassignment of the Lease, be conclusively dedmbdve agreed to make all payments to
Landlord’s Broker thereafter required of Landlorer this Article Fourteen. Landlord’s Broker stedve the right to bring a legal action to
enforce or declare rights under this provision.e Phevailing party in such action shall be entitledeasonably attorneys’ fees to be paid by the
losing party. Such attorneys’ fees shall be fikgdhe court in such action. This Paragraph ituohed in this Lease for the benefit of
Landlord’s Broker.

Section 14.03 Broker’s Disclosure of Agency. Landlord’s Broker hereby discloses to Landlord @enant and Landlord and Tenant
hereby consent to Landlord’'s Broker acting in thégsaction as the agent of (check one):

Landlord exclusively; or

O both Landlord and Tenant.

Section 14.04No Other Brokers. Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord kieabtokers named in Section 1.08 above are the only
agents, brokers, finders or other parties with wi@nant has dealt who are or may be entitled tocanymission or fee with respect to this

Lease or the Property.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS MAY BE SET FORTH IN A RIDER @ RIDERS ATTACHED HERETO OR IN THE BLANK SPACE
BELOW. IF NO ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS ARE INSERTED, IEEASE DRAW A LINE THROUGH THE SPACE BELOW.
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Landlord and Tenant have signed this Lease atlfte mnd on the dates specified adjacent to tiggiatires below and have initialed all
Riders which are attached to or incorporated bgregfce in this Lease.
“LANDLORD”

MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES, LLC,
Signed or , 19 California limited liability compan

By: MAJESTIC REALTY CO., a Californii
al . corporation, its manag:

By: /s/ David A. Wheele

Its: Presiden

By: /s/ Jay H. Bradfor:

Its: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

“TENANT”
Signed or , 19 GILEAD SCIENCES, Inc. a Delaware corporati
al . By: /s/ Anthony D. Caracciol

Its:

By: /s/ Mark L. Perry

Its: Executive Vice President, Operatic

IN ANY REAL ESTATE TRANSACTION, IT IS RECOMMENDED HAT YOU CONSULT WITH A PROFESSIONAL, SUCH AS A
CIVIL ENGINEER, INDUSTRIAL HYGIENIST OR OTHER PERS®OWITH EXPERIENCE IN EVALUATING THE CONDITION OF
THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OFBESTOS, HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKS.

THIS PRINTED FORM LEASE HAS BEEN DRAFTED BY LEGAL@QUNSEL AT THE DIRECTION OF THE SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA CHAPTER OF THE SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL ANDFFICE REALTORS,® INC. NO REPRESENTATION OR
RECOMMENDATION IS MADE BY THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EIAPTER OF THE SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL AND OFFICE
REALTORS,®INC., ITS LEGAL COUNSEL, THE REAL ESTATE BROKERS NAED HEREIN, OR THEIR EMPLOYEES OR AGENT
AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT OR TAX OOSEQUENCES OF THIS LEASE OR OF THIS TRANSACTION.
LANDLORD AND TENANT SHOULD RETAIN LEGAL COUNSEL TOADVISE THEM ON SUCH MATTERS AND SHOULD RELY
UPON THE ADVICE OF SUCH LEGAL COUNSEL.
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Exhibit 10.25

e Southern California Chapter of tt
SIC)R.’ Society of Industrial and Office Realtofslnc.

INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE
(SINGLE-TENANT FACILITY)

ARTICLE ONE. BASIC TERMS

This Article One contains the Basic Terms of thésmke between the Landlord and Tenant named beéldker Articles, Sections and
Paragraphs of the Lease referred to in this Artinhe explain and define the Basic Terms and abe tead in conjunction with the Basic
Terms.

Section 1.01Date of Lease February 24, 2003

Section 1.02Landlord (include legal entity): MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES.,.C, a California limited liability company

Address of Landlord: 13191 Crossroads Parkway, NortH? Bloor
City of Industry, CA 91746

Section 1.03Tenant (include legal entity): GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., &e[@ware corporation

Address of Tenant: 333 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, CA 94404

Section 1.04Property: (includes street address, approximate square fe@ad description) that approximately 51,500 sqt@oe
building more commonly known as 650 Cliffside Dri&an Dimas, California as outlined in red on ERHIA”, subject to the non-exclusive
use of such area outlined in green.

Section 1.05Lease Term:10 years 6 months beginning on June 1, 2003 or stiehr date as is specified in this Lease, andngnoin
November 30, 201:

Section 1.06Permitted Uses: (See Article Five) Only for general office, laltory, warehousing and manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products.

Section 1.07Tenant’'s Guarantor : (If none, so state) None

Section 1.08Brokers : (See Article Fourteen) (If none, so state)

Landlord’s Broker: Majestic Realty Co.
Tenant’s Broker: None
Section 1.09 Commission Payable to Landlord’s BrokSee Article Fourteen) $ per separgteement

Section 1.10Initial Security Deposit : (See Section 3.03) $59,225.00
Section 1.11Vehicle Parking Spaces Allocated to Tenant per Exhibit “A”
Section 1.12Rent and Other Charges Payable by Tenant

© 1988 Southern California Chapt ,5;9
of the Society of Industric
and Office Realtor® Inc. (Sing-Tenant Net Form
[Gilead Sciences, Inc
[650 Cliffside I, San Dimas, C/




(a) BASE RENT: FIFTY-NINE THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED TBNTY-FIVE AND NO/100 --- Dollars ($59,225.00)

per month for the first sixty (60) months, as pd®d in Section 3.01, and shall be increased ofistelay of the sixty-first (63!) month(s)
after the Commencement Date, SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND BNUNDRED FORTY-SEVEN AND 50/100 DOLLARS ($65,140)5

(b) OTHER PERIODIC PAYMENTS: (i) Real Propertyxes (See Section 4.02); (ii) Utilities (See Sectdddd); (iii)
Insurance Premium (See Section 4.04); (iv) Impododinsurance Premiums and Property Taxes (Sego8et07); (v) Maintenance, Repairs
and Alterations (See Article Six).

Section 1.13Landlord’s Share of Profit on Assignment or Subleas: (See Section 9.05) fifty percent (50%) of thefRi(the
“Landlord’s Share”).

Section 1.14Riders. The following Riders are attached to and magaraof this Lease. (If none, so state)
Addendum pages 1 through 11, and Exhibits “A”, “BC” and “D”
ARTICLE TWO. LEASE TERM

Section 2.01Lease of Property For Lease Term Landlord leases the Property to Tenant and Ttidaases the Property from
Landlord for the Lease Term. The Lease Term igHerperiod stated in Section 1.05 above and bkegiin and end on the dates specified in
Section 1.05 above, unless the beginning or ettldeoEease Term is changed under any provisionisfltbase. The “Commencement Date”
shall be the date specified in Section 1.05 abowéhie beginning of the Lease Term, unless advaacedlayed under any provision of this
Lease.

Section 2.02 See Addendum Section 2.02

Section 2.03 Intentionally Deleted.

Section 2.04Holding Over. Tenant shall vacate the Property upon the expiraifcearlier termination of this Lease. Tenantlsha
reimburse Landlord for and indemnify Landlord aghiall damages which Landlord incurs from Tenadéky in vacating the Property. If
Tenant does not vacate the Property upon the gixpirar earlier termination of the Lease and Landilihereafter accepts rent from Tenant,
Tenant’'s occupancy of the Property shall be a “mmg¢atmonth” tenancy, subject to all of the termgha§ Lease applicable to a month-to-
month tenancy, except that the Base Rent therféstethall be increased by twenty-five percent (25%

Section 2.05 See Addendum.

ARTICLE THREE. BASE RENT

Section 3.01Time and Manner of Payment. Upon execution of this Lease, Tenant shall pay laddhe Base Rent in the amount

stated in Paragraph 1.12(a) above for the firsttmohthe Lease Term. On the first day of the selamonth of the Lease Term and each m

thereafter, Tenant shall pay Landlord the Base Remtdvance, without offset, deduction or priomdéd. The Base Rent shall be payable at
Landlord’s address or at such other place as Latdimy designate in writing.

Section 3.02 Intentionally Deleted.
Section 3.03Security Deposit; increases.
(a) Upon the execution of this Lease, Tenant shegbsit with Landlord a cash Security Deposihia @amount set forth in

Section 1.10 above. Landlord may apply all or pathe Security Deposit to any unpaid rent or otttearges due from Tenant or to cure any
other defaults of Tenant. If Landlord uses any pathe




Security Deposit, Tenant shall restore the Seclréposit to its full amount within ten (10) dayseafLandlord’s written request. Tenant’s
failure to do so shall be a material default urtties Lease. No interest shall be paid on the $igcDeposit. Landlord shall not be required to
keep the Security Deposit separate from its otbeoants and no trust relationship is created véipect to the Security Deposit.

(b) Each time the Base Rent is increased, Tetatlit deposit additional funds with Landlord suféoi to increase the
Security Deposit to an amount which bears the gatadionship to the adjusted Base Rent as thalrB&curity Deposit bore to the initial Base
Rent.

Section 3.04Termination; Advance Payments. Upon termination of this Lease under Article Se{i@amage or Destruction),
Article Eight (Condemnation) or any other terminatinot resulting from Tenant’s default, and aftendnt has vacated the Property in the
manner required by this Lease, Landlord shall (wittixty (60) days from Tenant delivering exclusp@ssession of the Property to Landlord)
refund to Tenant (or Tenant’s successor) the unpeeibn of the Security Deposit, any advance oerdgther advance payments made by
Tenant to Landlord, and any amounts paid for regp@rty taxes and other reserves which apply totiamy periods after termination of the
Lease.

ARTICLE FOUR. OTHER CHARGES PAYABLE BY TENANT

Section 4.01Additional Rent. All charges payable by Tenant other than Base Rentalled “Additional Rent.” Unless this Lease
provides otherwise, Tenant shall pay all AdditioReht then due with the next monthly installmenBate Rent. The term “rent” shall mean
Base Rent and Additional Rent.

Section 4.02Property Taxes.

(a) Real Property Taxes. Tenant shall pay all real property taxes on thg®@nty (including any fees, taxes or assessments
against, or as a result of , any tenant improvemigistalled on the Property by or for the bendfitenant) during the Lease Term. Subject to
Paragraph 4.02(c) and Section 4.07 below, such paysghall be made at least ten (10) -days pritheéalelinquency date of the taxes. Within
such ten (10)-day period, Tenant shall furnish llarbwith satisfactory evidence that the real proptaxes have been paid. Landlord shall
reimburse Tenant for any real property taxes pgi@idnant covering any period of time prior to aieathe Lease Term. If Tenant fails to pay
the real property taxes when due, Landlord maythbayaxes and Tenant shall reimburse Landlordiferaimount of such tax payment as
Additional Rent.

(b) Definition of “Real Property Tax.” “Real property taximeans: (i) any fee, license fee, license tax,nass license fe
commercial rental tax, levy, charge, assessmengle(to the extent caused by Tenant’s acts ossions) or tax imposed by any taxing
authority against the Property; (i) any tax on tadlord’s right to receive, or the receipt ofatrer income from the Property or against
Landlord’s business of leasing the Property; &y tax or charge for fire protection, streetsewidlks, road maintenance, refuse or other
services provided to the Property by any governaiexgency; (iv) any tax imposed upon this transactir based upon a re-assessment of the
Property due to a change of ownership, as defigeapblicable law, or other transfer of all or pafrtandlord’s interest in the Property; and
any charge or fee replacing any tax previouslyudet within the definition of real property taxkRéal property taxtioes not, however, inclu
Landlord’s federal or state income, franchise, iithace or estate taxes.

(c) Joint Assessment.If the Property is not separately assessed, Latidloall reasonably determine Tenant’s share of the
real property tax payable by Tenant under Paragdai?(a) from the assessor’s worksheets or otlasoreably available information. Tenant
shall pay such share to Landlord within fifteen)(@&ys after receipt of Landlord’s written statemen
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(d) Personal Property Taxes.

0] Tenant shall pay all taxes charged against tradierés, furnishings, equipment or any other persona
property belonging to Tenant. Tenant shall triid@e personal property taxed separately from tbpdety.

(i) If any of Tenant’s personal property is taxed viite Property, Tenant shall pay Landlord the tareshe
personal property within fifteen (15) days aften@et receives a written statement from Landlordsfarh personal property taxes.

(e) Tenant's Right to Contest Taxes.Tenant may attempt to have the assessed valudtibe &roperty reduced or may
initiate proceedings to contest the real propexkes. If required by law, Landlord shall join iretproceedings brought by Tenant. However,
Tenant shall pay all costs of the proceedingsuitiog any costs or fees incurred by Landlord. Uttenfinal determination of any proceeding
or contest, Tenant shall immediately pay the reaperty taxes due, together with all costs, charigésrest and penalties incidental to the
proceedings. If Tenant does not pay the real ptppaxes when due and contests such taxes, Tehatitnot be in default under this Lease for
nonpayment of such taxes if Tenant deposits furitts vandlord or opens an interest-bearing accoeasonably acceptable to Landlord in the
joint names of Landlord and Tenant. The amoursiuch deposit shall be sufficient to pay the reapprty taxes plus a reasonable estima
the interest, costs, charges and penalties whighaoerue if Tenant’s action is unsuccessful, legsapplicable tax impounds previously paid
by Tenant to Landlord. The deposit shall be appigethe real property taxes due, as determinsdecit proceedings. The real property taxes
shall be paid under protest from such depositéhquayment under protest is necessary to preverRtbperty from being sold under a “tax
sale” or similar enforcement proceeding.

Section 4.03Utilities. Tenant shall pay, directly to the appropriate sigppthe cost of all natural gas, heat, light, povsewer
service, telephone, water, refuse disposal and atiiities and services supplied to the Propettjawever, if any services or utilities are join
metered with other property, Landlord shall makeasonable determination of Tenant’s proportiosatee of the cost of such utilities and
services and Tenant shall pay such share to lashdlithin fifteen (15) days after receipt of Landity written statement.

Section 4.04Insurance Policies.

(a) Liability Insurance. During the Lease Term, Tenant shall maintainl&cy@f commercial general liability insurance
(sometimes known as broad form comprehensive gElievdity insurance) insuring Tenant against ild for bodily injury, property damage
(including loss of use of property) and personplrynarising out of the operation, use or occupaofcthe Property. Tenant shall name
Landlord as an additional insured under such poliElge initial amount of such insurance shall begehMillion Dollars ($3,000,000) per
occurrence and shall be subject to periodic ineréased upon industry standards for similar faedit The liability insurance obtained by
Tenant under this Paragraph 4.04(a) shall (i) legny and non-contributing; (ii) contain cross-ligth endorsements; and (iii) insure Landlord
against Tenant's performance under Section 5.@Bgeifnatters giving rise to the indemnity undert®acs.05 result from the negligence of
Tenant. The amount and coverage of such insurstredénot limit Tenant’s liability nor relieve Tentgof any other obligation under this
Lease. Landlord may also obtain comprehensiveipliability insurance in an amount and with covggaletermined by Landlord insuring
Landlord against liability arising out of ownershgperation, use or occupancy of the Property. gdiey obtained by Landlord shall not be
contributory and shall not provide primary insuranc

(b) Property and Rental Income Insurance. During the Lease Term, Landlord shall maintaitigies of insurance
covering loss of or damage to the Property in thleainount of its replacement value. Such policglkprovide protection against loss or
damage due to fire or other casualties coveredmilie classification of fire standard extendederage, vandalism, malicious mischief,
sprinkler leakage and any other perils which larditeems reasonably necessary. Landlord shall thaweght to obtain terrorism, flood and
earthquake insurance and other forms of insurascecuired by any lender holding a security inteire¢the Property. Landlord shall not
obtain insurance for Tenant’s fixtures or equiprmamibuilding improvements installed by Tenant
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on the Property. During the Lease Term, Landltwallsalso maintain a rental income insurance pokagh loss payable to Landlord, in an
amount equal to one year’s Base Rent, plus estihratd property taxes and insurance premiums. riestell be liable for the payment of any
deductible amount under Landlord’s or Tenant’s iasae policies maintained pursuant to this Sectifd; provided however Landlord’s
insurance deductible shall not exceed Ten ThouBentidrs ($10,000). Tenant shall not do or permigtaing to be done which invalidates any
such insurance policies. Upon Tenant's requestdlaad shall provide Tenant a certificate evidegcsnch insurance.

(c) Payment of Premiums. Subject to Section 4.07, Tenant shall pay alinuens for the insurance policies described in
Paragraphs 4.04(a) and (b) (whether obtained byllbash or Tenant) within fifteen (15) days after Bet's receipt of a copy of the premium
statement or other evidence of the amount due p¢x@ndlord shall pay all premiums for nprimary comprehensive public liability insurar
which Landlord elects to obtain as provided in Beaph 4.04(a). If insurance policies maintained_bgdlord cover improvements on real
property other than the Property, Landlord shdivdeto Tenant a statement of the premium apple#ad the Property showing in reasonable
detail how Tenant'’s share of the premium was coethutf the Lease Term expires before the expinatiban insurance policy maintained by
Landlord, Tenant shall be liable for Tenanprorated share of the insurance premiums. Bdéfier€ommencement Date, Tenant shall deliv
Landlord a copy of any policy of insurance whichaet is required to maintain under this Sectiod 4.8t least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of any such policy, Tenant shall delitetandlord a renewal of such policy. As an alégive to providing a policy of insurance,
Tenant shall have the right to provide Landlorcegificate of insurance, executed by an authorizféider of the insurance company, showing
that the insurance which Tenant is required to taairunder this Section 4.04 is in full force arféet and containing such other information
which Landlord reasonably requires.

(d) General Insurance Provisions.

0] Any insurance which Tenant is required to maintaider this Lease shall include a provision which
requires the insurance carrier to give Landlordless than thirty (30) days’ written notice priorany cancellation or modification of such
coverage.

(i) If Tenant fails to deliver any policy, certificabe renewal to Landlord required under this Leaghiwithe

prescribed time period or if any such policy isaglted or modified during the Lease Term withouhdiord’s consent, Landlord may
obtain such insurance, in which case Tenant saiatiburse Landlord for the cost of such insuranagiwfifteen (15) days after receipt of
a statement that indicates the cost of such inseran

(iii) Landlord and Tenant shall maintain all insuranepineed under this Lease with companies holding a
“General Policy Rating” of A-12 or better, as sattli in the most current issue of “Best Key Rati®gjde.” Landlord and Tenant
acknowledge the insurance markets are rapidly édhgrand that insurance in the form and amountsridestin this Section 4.04 may not
be available in the future. Tenant acknowledgasttie insurance describe in this Section 4.04drishfe primary benefit of Landlord. If at
any time during the Lease Term, Tenant or Landierghable to maintain the insurance required utitetease, Landlord and Tenant
shall nevertheless maintain insurance coveragehabicustomary and commercially reasonable inrisarance industry for Tenant's type
of business, as that coverage may change fromttirtime. Landlord makes no representation aséattequacy of such insurance to
protect Landlord’s or Tenant’s interests. Therefdrenant shall obtain any such additional propertyability insurance which Tenant
deems necessary to protect Landlord and Tenant.

(iv) Landlord and Tenant each hereby waive any andghlls of recovery against the other, or against the
officers, employees, agents or representativeebther, for loss of or damage to its properttherproperty of others under its control, if
such loss or damage is covered by any insuranégypolforce (whether or not described in this Leaat the time of such loss or damage.
Upon obtaining the required policies of insurariamdlord and Tenant shall give notice to the insaeacarriers of this mutual waiver of
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subrogation. Landlord’'s and Tenant’s insurancécas described in this Section shall contain avigion waiving the carrier’s right to
subrogation.

Section 4.05Late Charges. Tenants failure to pay rent promptly may cause Landlaréhtur unanticipated costs. The exact am
of such costs are impractical or extremely diffidolascertain. Such costs may include, but aréimded to, processing and accounting
charges and late charges which may be imposed ndidr@ by any ground lease, mortgage or trust ésedmbering the Property. Therefore,
if Landlord does not receive any rent payment witiein (10) days after it becomes due, provided laaddhas given Tenant forty-eight (48)
hours written notice and Tenant has still failegh&y such Base Rent (which forty-eight (48) shall concurrently with such ten (10) day
period), Tenant shall pay Landlord a late chargeaetp eight percent (8%) of the overdue amourite parties agree that such late charge
represents a fair and reasonable estimate of t#te tandlord will incur by reason of such late pay

Section 4.06Interest on Past Due Obligations. Any amount owed by one party hereunder to therotnich is not paid when due
shall bear interest at the rate of fifteen per¢&&¢o) per annum from the due date of such amodptvever, interest shall not be payable on
late charges to be paid by Tenant under this Le@ke.payment of interest on such amounts shalkkratise or cure any default under this
Lease. If the interest rate specified in this leciashigher than the rate permitted by law, therdt rate is hereby decreased to the maximum
legal interest rate permitted by law.

Section 4.07Impounds for Insurance Premiums and Real Property Bxes. IfTenant is more than ten (10) days late in the pay
of Base Rent more than twice in any consecutivévevgl2) -month period, Tenant shall pay Landlosben equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of the
annual real property taxes and insurance premiwayalpe by Tenant under this Lease, together with payment of Base Rent. Landlord
shall hold such payments in a non-interest beanmmpund account. If unknown, Landlord shall reagin estimate the amount of real
property taxes and insurance premiums when duaarfeshall pay any deficiency of funds in the impd@ccount to Landlord upon written
request. If Tenant defaults under this Lease, laxddnay apply any funds in the impound accourartg obligation then due under this Lease.

Section 4.08 See Addendum.
ARTICLE FIVE. USE OF PROPERTY

Section 5.01 Permitted Uses. Tenant may use the Property only for the Perohitises set forth in Section 1.06 above.

Section 5.02Manner of Use. Tenant shall not cause or permit the Propertyetased in any way which constitutes a violatioarf
law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or ordérich annoys or interferes with the rights ofestkenants of Landlord, or which constitutes
a nuisance or waste. Tenant shall obtain and graglif permits, including a Certificate of Occupgnequired for Tenant’s occupancy of the
Property and shall promptly take all actions neagst comply with all applicable statutes, ordicas, rules, regulations, orders and
requirements regulating the use by Tenant of tlpétty, including the Occupational Safety and HeAltt.

See Addendum Section 5.02.
Section 5.03 See Addendum Section 5.03.

Section 5.04Signs and Auctions. Tenant shall not place any signs on the Propertyowut Landlord’s prior written consent. Tenant
shall not conduct or permit any auctions or shisrgtles at the Property.

See Addendum Section 5.04.




Section 5.05Indemnity. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord against and Haddlord harmless from any and all costs, claims or
liability arising from: (a) Tenant's use of thedperty; (b) the conduct of Tenant's business ottdang else done or permitted by Tenant to be
done in or about the Property; (c) any breach éaudein the performance of Tenant’s obligationsl@nthis Lease; (d) any misrepresentations
or breach of warranty by Tenant under this leasée)other acts or omissions of Tenant. Tenaall slefend Landlord against any such cost,
claim or liability at Tenant’s expense with counssdsonably acceptable to Landlord or, at Landfetéction, Tenant shall reimburse Land
for any legal fees or costs incurred by Landlordannection with any such claim. As a materiat pathe consideration to landlord, Tenant
assumes all risk of damage to property or injurpecsons in or about the Property arising from eayse, and Tenant hereby waives all claims
in respect thereof against Landlord, except for@aim arising out of Landlord’s or Landlord’s erapees’, agents’ or contractors’ active
negligence or willful misconduct. As used in tBisction, the term “Tenant” shall include Tenantigpoyees, agents, contractors and invitees,
if applicable.

See Addendum Section 5.05.

Section 5.06Landlord’s Access. Landlord or its agents may enter the Propergflaeasonable times to show the Property to
potential buyers, investors or tenants or othetigmgrto do any other act or to inspect and conthsts in order to monitor Tenant’s compliance
with all applicable environmental laws and all lages/erning the presence and use of Hazardous Mhterifor any other purpose Landlord
deems necessary. Landlord shall give Tenant 244wdar notice of such entry, except in the casaroEmergency and Landlord agrees to
allow a representative of Tenant to accompany Landdhnd further agrees to comply with Tenant's eeable security measures. Landlord
may place customary “For Sale” or “For Lease” signghe Property.

Section 5.07Quiet Possessionlf Tenant pays the rent and complies with all otteems of this Lease, Tenant may occupy and enjoy
the Property for the full Lease Term, subject ® pinovisions of this Lease.

ARTICLE SIX. CONDITION OF PROPERTY; MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND ALT ERATIONS

Section 6.01Existing Conditions. Subject to the provisions of this Lease, Tenanéptscthe Property in its condition as of the
execution of the Lease, subject to all recordedarstlaws, ordinances, and governmental regukatonl orders. Except as provided herein,
Tenant acknowledges that neither Landlord nor ggntof Landlord has made any representation #eetoondition of the Property or the
suitability of the Property for Tenant’s intendexbu Tenant represents and warrants that Tenamhddes its own inspection of and inquiry
regarding the condition of the Property and isnetting on any representations of Landlord or angk®r with respect thereto. If Landlord or
Landlord’s Broker has provided a Property InforrmatSheet or other Disclosure Statement regardiadthperty, a copy is attached as an
exhibit to the Lease.

Section 6.02Exemption of Landlord from Liability. Landlord shall not be liable for any damage gurinto the person, business
(or any loss of income therefrom), goods, wareschendise or other property of Tenant, Tenant’'sleyges, invitees, customers or any other
person in or about the Property, whether such damagnjury is caused by or results from: (a),fsam, electricity, water, gas or rain; (b)
breakage, leakage, obstruction or other defegpépefs, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbinggcairditioning or lighting fixtures or any other
cause; (c) conditions arising in or about the Priyper from other sources or places; or (d) anyca@mission of any other tenant of Landlord.
Landlord shall not be liable for any such damagmjoiry even though the cause of or the meanspdirang such damage or injury are not
accessible to Tenant. The provisions of this adii.02 shall not, however, exempt Landlord froability for Landlord’s or Landlord’s
employees’, agents’ or contractors’ active negligear willful misconduct.

Section 6.03Landlord’s Obligations. See Addendum Section 6.03.

Section 6.04Tenant’s Obligations.




(a) Except as provided in Section 6.03, Articlee&e(Damage or Destruction) and Article Eight (Cemaation), Tenant
shall keep all portions of the Property (includstguctural, nonstructural, interior, exterior, daddscaped areas, portions, systems and
equipment) in good order, condition and repairl(iding interior repainting and refinishing, as neay If any portion of the Property or any
system or equipment in the Property which Tenaoblgated to repair cannot be fully repaired @toeed, Tenant shall promptly replace such
portion of the Property or system or equipmenhim Property, regardless of whether the benefitiof seplacement extends beyond the Lease
Term; but if the benefit or useful life of such lagement extends beyond the Lease Term (as suntey be extended by exercise of any
options), the useful life of such replacement shalprorated over the remaining portion of the eebarm (as extended), and Tenant shall be
liable only for that portion of the of the cost whiis applicable to the Lease Term (as extend&dhant shall maintain a preventive
maintenance contract providing for the regular ézdipn and maintenance of the heating and air tionditig system by a licensed heating and
air conditioning contractor. Subject to the pramis of Section 4.04(d)(iv), if any part of the Pesty is damaged by any act or omission of
Tenant, Tenant shall pay Landlord the cost of mapgior replacing such damaged property, whetherootandlord would otherwise be
obligated to pay the cost of maintaining or repajrsuch property. It is the intention of Landlartl Tenant that at all times Tenant shall
maintain the portions of the Property which Teriambligated to maintain in an attractive, firskg$ and fully operative condition.

(b) Tenant shall fulfill all of Tenant’s obligatis under this Section 6.04 at Tenargble expense. If Tenant fails to maint
repair or replace the Property as required bySkistion 6.04 or is not using all reasonable effartdo so, Landlord may, upon ten (10) days’
prior notice to Tenant (except that no notice shallequired in the case of an emergency), eneegPtbperty and perform such maintenance or
repair (including replacement, as needed) on betfidlEnant. In such case, Tenant shall reimbuesellord for all costs incurred in perform
such maintenance or repair immediately upon demand.

Section 6.05Alterations, Additions, and Improvements.

(a) Tenant shall not make any alterations, adutior improvements to the Property without Landi®prior written
consent, which shall not be unreasonably withhe&pt for nonstructural alterations which do not exceed Sixtpusand Dollars ($60,000)
cost per project and which are not visible fromdlgside of any building of which the Property &tp Landlord may require Tenant to pro\
demolition and/or lien and completion bonds in fanmd amount satisfactory to Landlord. Tenant ghralinptly remove any alterations,
additions, or improvements constructed in violatdéithis Paragraph 6.05(a) upon Landlord’s writtequest. All alterations, additions, and
improvements shall be done in a good and workmantiknner, in conformity with all applicable lawslaegulations, and by a contractor
approved by Landlord, which shall not be unreastynatihheld. Upon completion of any such work, &ehshall provide Landlord with “as
built” plans, copies of all construction contractad proof of payment for all labor and materials.

(b) Tenant shall pay when due all claims for latwod material furnished to or for the Tenant Gratithe Property. Tenant
shall give Landlord at least twenty (20) days’ prwitten notice of the commencement of any worktlua Property, regardless of whether
Landlord’s consent to such work is required. Landlimay elect to record and post notices of nopeaesibility on the Property.

Section 6.06Condition upon Termination. Upon the termination of the Lease, Tenant shalender the Property to Landlord,
broom clean and in the same condition as receixeep for ordinary wear and tear which Tenant watsotherwise obligated to remedy under
any provision of this Lease. However, Tenant shailbe obligated to repair any damage which Landl® required to repair in accordance
with this Lease. In addition, Landlord may requienant to remove any alterations, additions orawpments (whether or not made with
Landlord’s consent) prior to the expiration of thease and to restore the Property to its prior itimmd all at Tenant’'s expense. All alterations,
additions and improvements which Landlord has equired Tenant to remove shall become Landlordipgnty and shall be surrendered to
Landlord upon the expiration or earlier terminatafrthe Lease, except that Tenant may remove afgpént’s trade fixtures, machinery or
equipment which can be removed without material atgerto the Property. Tenant shall repair, at Tea@xpense, any damage to the Proy
caused by the removal of any such trade fixtures;himery or equipment. In no event, however, shatlant remove any of the following
materials or equipment (which shall be deemed Ladd property) without
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Landlord’s prior written consent; any power writing or povpanels; lighting or lighting fixtures; wall covags; drapes, blinds or other wind
coverings; carpets or other floor coverings; hesatair conditioners or any other heating or airdiboning equipment; fencing or security ga
or other similar building operating equipment argalations.

See Addendum Section 6.06.
ARTICLE SEVEN. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
Section 7.01Partial Damage to Property.

(a) Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing immediely upon the occurrence of any damage to thedPioplf the Property is
only partially damaged (i.e., less than fifty perc€0%) of the Property is untenantable as a redduch damage or less than fifty percent
(50%) of Tenant’s operations are materially impdjirend if the proceeds received by Landlord fromitisurance policies described in
Paragraph 4.04(b) are sufficient to pay for theessary repairs, this Lease shall remain in effedtlaandlord shall repair the damage as sot
reasonably possible. Landlord may elect (but isrequired) to repair any damage to Tenant’s fesyequipment, or improvements.

(b) If (i) Landlord has maintained the insuraneguired to be maintained under Paragraph 4.@H®&)}he insurance
proceeds received by Landlord are not sufficiergagp the entire cost of repair; (i) or if the cawus the damage is not covered by such
insurance policies; or (iii) the holder of any ngarge on the Property shall require that the insagrgamoceeds or any portion thereof be used to
retire the mortgage debt, Landlord may elect eitb€i) repair the damage as soon as reasonabgiipp@sin which case this Lease shall remain
in full force and effect, or (ii) terminate this &ge as of the date the damage occurred. Landiatdr®tify Tenant within thirty (30) days after
receipt of notice of the occurrence of the damabetter Landlord elects to repair the damage oritetta the Lease. If Landlord elects to
repair the damage, Tenant shall pay Landlord tleeltidtible amount” (if any) under Landlord’s insucarpolicies and, if the damage was due
to an act or omission of Tenant, or Tenant's emgdsy agents, contractors or invitees, the differdretween the actual cost of repair and any
insurance proceeds received by Landlord. If Larbl&dects to terminate this Lease, Tenant may &ecbntinue this Lease in full force and
effect, in which case Tenant shall repair any dasrtaghe Property and any building in which thegderty is located. Tenant shall pay the cost
of such repairs, except that upon satisfactory detigm of such repairs, Landlord shall deliver ten&int any insurance proceeds received by
Landlord for the damage repaired by Tenant. Teghall give Landlord written notice of such eleatiwithin ten (10) days after receiving
Landlord’s termination notice.

(c) If the damage to the Property occurs durirggldst six (6) months of the Lease Term and suatade will require more
than thirty (30) days to repair, either LandlordT@nant may elect to terminate this Lease as ofitie the damage occurred, regardless of the
sufficiency of any insurance proceeds. The pddgtig to terminate this Lease shall give writtentification to the other party of such
election within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s ieetto Landlord of the occurrence of the damage.

Section 7.02Substantial or Total Destruction. If the Property is substantially or totally dested by any cause whatsoever (i.e., the
damage to the Property is greater than partial daraa described in Section 7.01), and regardlestether Landlord receives any insurance
proceeds, this Lease shall terminate the latenef{i) date the destruction occurred and (ii) taeedr'enant ceases to do business at the
Property. Notwithstanding the preceding senteificee Property can be rebuilt within six (6) mostéfter the date of destruction, Landlord
may elect to rebuild the Property at Landlord’s axpense, in which case this Lease shall remdilliforce and effect. Landlord shall notify
Tenant of such election within thirty (30) dayseafTenant’s notice of the occurrence of total dossantial destruction. If Landlord so elects,
Landlord shall rebuild the Property at Landlordid$esexpense, except that if the destruction wasezhby an act or omission of Tenant, Tenant
shall pay Landlord the difference between the ddast of rebuilding and any insurance proceedsived by Landlord.
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Section 7.03Temporary Reduction of Rent. If the Property is destroyed or damaged and Laddbr Tenant repairs or restores the
Property pursuant to the provisions of this ArtiSleven, any rent payable during the period of slacthage, repair and/or restoration shall be
reduced according to the degree, if any, to whiehant’s use of the Property is impaired. Excepsih possible reduction in Base Rent,
insurance premiums and real property taxes, Testalt not be entitled to any compensation, redactio reimbursement from Landlord as a
result of any damage, repair, or restoration dbdhe Property.

Section 7.04Waiver. Tenant waives the protection of any statute, @ydadicial decision which grants a tenant thérigp
terminate a lease in the event of the substantiedtal destruction of the leased property. Terenees that the provisions of Section 7.02
above shall govern the rights and obligations ofdlard and Tenant in the event of any substanti&bt@al destruction to the Property.

ARTICLE EIGHT. CONDEMNATION

If all or any portion of the Property is taken unttee power of eminent domain or sold under thedahof that power (all of which are
called “Condemnation”), this Lease shall termiredeo the part taken or sold on the date the conitgnauthority takes title or possession,
whichever occurs first. If more than twenty pertcd@®%) of the floor area of the building in whittte Property is located, or which is located
on the Property, is taken, either Landlord or Teémaay terminate this Lease as of the date the gonatgy authority takes title or possession
delivering written notice to the other within tetD] days after receipt of written notice of sudking (or in the absence of such notice, within
ten (10) days after the condemning authority tditkesor possession). If neither Landlord nor Teti@rminates this Lease, this Lease shall
remain in effect as to the portion of the Propeuytaken, except that the Base Rent and AdditiBealt shall be reduced in proportion to the
reduction in the floor area of the Property. Amyndemnation award or payment shall be distributettié following order: (@) first, to any
ground lessor, mortgagee or beneficiary under d dé&rust encumbering the Property, the amouriisdhterest in the Property; (b) second, to
Tenant, only the amount of any award specificalgignated for loss of or damage to Tenant’s traderés or removable personal property,
and (c) third, to Landlord, the remainder of sualaal, whether as compensation for reduction invéilee of the leasehold, the taking of the
fee, or otherwise. If this Lease is not terminateahdlord shall repair any damage for which Terrea#t been reimbursed by the condemning
authority. If the severance damages received Ioglload are not sufficient to pay for such repaintlord shall have the right to either
terminate this Lease or make such repair at Ladd@xpense.

ARTICLE NINE. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section 9.01Landlord’s Consent Required. No portion of the Property or of Tenant’s intenesthis Lease may be acquired by any
other person or entity, whether by sale, assignmmeattgage, sublease, transfer, operation of lavacbof Tenant, without Landlord’s prior
written consent, except as provided in Section 8€aw. Landlord has the right to grant or withthis consent as provided in Section 9.05
below. Any attempted transfer without consentIdb@lvoid and shall constitute a non-curable bresHchis Lease.

Section 9.02Tenant Affiliate. See Addendum Section 9.02.

Section 9.03No Release of Tenant. No transfer permitted by this Article Nine, whettwith or without Landlord’s consent, shall
release Tenant or change Tenant’s primary liakiititpay the rent and to perform all other obligasi@f Tenant under this Lease. Landlord’s
acceptance of rent from any other person is natigew of any provision of this Article Nine. Comse¢o one transfer is not a consent to any
subsequent transfer. If Tenant's transferee disfamder this Lease, Landlord may proceed diregBinst Tenant without pursuing remedies
against the transferee. Landlord may consentliseuent assignments or modifications of this L&gsEenant’s transferee, without notifying
Tenant or obtaining its consent. Such action sialrelieve Tenant’s liability under this Lease.

Section 9.040ffer to Terminate. If Tenant desires to assign the Lease or sublaaséthe Property, and if Landlord elects to
terminate this Lease pursuant to Section 9.05| dase shall terminate as of the
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commencement date of a new lease between Landidrtha proposed assignee or subtenant and akims and provisions of the Lease
governing termination shall apply. If Landlord do®ot so elect, the Lease shall continue in effatit otherwise terminated and the provisions
of Section 9.05 with respect to any proposed tersiall continue to apply.

Section 9.05Landlord’s Consent.

(a) Tenant’s request for consent to any transfscdbed in Section 9.01 shall set forth in writthg details of the proposed
transfer, including the name, business and findeciadition of the prospective transferee, finahditails of the proposed transfer (e.g., the
term of and the rent and security deposit payabtkeuany proposed assignment or sublease), andtheyinformation Landlord reasonably
deems relevant. Landlord shall have the righi¢otd¢o terminate this Lease or to withhold consémeasonable, or to grant consent, based on
the following factors: (i) the business of the mweed assignee or subtenant and the proposed tieeRifoperty; (ii) the net worth and finant
reputation of the proposed assignee or subtenadt{i@ Tenant's compliance with all of its oblitians under the Lease. If Landlord objects to
a proposed assignment solely because of the néth wod/or financial reputation of the proposedgsse, Tenant may nonetheless sublease
(but not assign), all or a portion of the Propéotyhe proposed transferee, but only on the otetvend of the proposed transfer.

(b) If Tenant assigns or subleases, the follovgingll apply:

0] If Tenant assigns or subleases more than seventgnid70%) of the building located on the Propeirty
the aggregate, then Tenant shall pay to Landlorldalitional Rent under the Lease the Landlord’sr8Hi{atated in Section 1.13) of the
Profit (defined below) on such transaction as ahémreceived by Tenant, unless Landlord gives evrittotice to Tenant and the assignee
or subtenant that Landlord’s Share shall be paithbyassignee or subtenant to Landlord directlye “Profit” means (A) all amounts paid
to Tenant for such assignment or sublease, indjitkay” money, monthly rent in excess of the mopttdnt payable under the Lease, and
all fees and other consideration paid for the ass@nt or sublease, including fees under any colbégreements, less (B) costs and
expenses directly incurred by Tenant in conneatiith the execution and performance of such assignmesublease for real estate
broker’'s commissions and costs of renovation ostoction of tenant improvements required undehsassignment or sublease. Tenant
is entitled to recover such costs and expensesédé&fmnant is obligated to pay the Landlsr&hare to Landlord. The Profit in the case
sublease of less than all the Property is theakmtable to the subleased space as a percentegsaqurare footage basis.

(i) Tenant shall provide Landlord a written statememtifying all amounts to be paid from any assignta@n
sublease of the Property within thirty (30) dayiathe transaction documentation is signed, amdiload may inspect Tenant's relevant
books and records to verify the accuracy of suatesient. On written request, Tenant shall pronfptigish to Landlord copies of all the
transaction documentation, all of which shall beified by Tenant to be complete, true and corréctndlord’s receipt of Landlord’Shar:
shall not be a consent to any further assignmestibletting. The breach of Tenant’s obligationemithis Paragraph 9.05(b) shall be a
material default of the Lease.

Section 9.06No Merger. No merger shall result from Tenant’s subleasthefProperty under this Article Nine, Tenasurrender ¢
this Lease or the termination of this Lease in afier manner. In any such event, Landlord mayiteata any or all subtenancies or succeed to
the interest of Tenant as sublandlord under arall @ubtenancies.

ARTICLE TEN. DEFAULTS; REMEDIES

Section 10.01  Covenants and Conditions. Tenant’s and Landlord’s performance of each @i under this Lease is a
condition as well as a covenant. Tenant’s rightdotinue in possession of the Property is conai#fibupon Tenant’s performance. Time is of
the essence in the performance of all covenantsanditions.
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Section 10.02 Defaults. Tenant shall be in material default under thiades

(@) If Tenant fails to pay rent and abandons ttopé&rty or if Tenant’'s vacation of the Propertyulesin the cancellation of
any insurance described in Section 4.04;

(b) If Tenant fails to pay rent when due or arfyestcharge within ten (10) days from receipt oftshitl or statement from
Landlord,;

(c) If Tenant fails to perform any of Tenant’s Amnetary obligations under this Lease for a peabthirty (30) days after
written notice from Landlord; provided that if matean thirty (30) days are required to completehguerformance, Tenant shall not be in
default if Tenant commences such performance witierthirty (30) —day period and thereafter dilidgpursues its completion. The notice
required by this Paragraph is intended to satisfyand all notice requirements imposed by law ondlard and is not in addition to any such
requirement.

(d) (i) If Tenant makes a general assignmememeral arrangement for the benefit of creditadisif @ petition for
adjudication of bankruptcy or for reorganizatiorrearrangement is filed by or against Tenant ambiglismissed within thirty (30) days; (iii)
if a trustee or receiver is appointed to take pesisa of substantially all of Tenant’s assets ledatt the Property or of Tenant’s interest in this
Lease and possession is not restored to Tenarihwiiinty (30) days; or (iv) if substantially alf @enant’s assets located at the Property or of
Tenant’s interest in this Lease is subjected tchtnent, execution or other judicial seizure whschot discharged within thirty (30) days. If a
court of competent jurisdiction determines that afthe acts described in this subparagraph (dpisa default under this Lease, and a trust
appointed to take possession (or if Tenant remaitsbtor in possession) and such trustee or Térensfers Tenant's interest hereunder, then
Landlord shall receive, as Additional Rent, theess; if any, of the rent (or any other considergtjmaid in connection with such assignment or
sublease over the rent payable by Tenant undek daise.

(e) If any guarantor of the Lease revokes or et terminates, or purports to revoke or otherdgsminate, any guaranty
of all or any portion of Tenant’s obligations undlee Lease. Unless otherwise expressly provideduaranty of the Lease is revocable.

Section 10.03  Remedies. On the occurrence of any material default by Tenaandlord may, at any time thereafter, following
three (3) days written notice or demand (which bayn the form of a three (3) day notice to payt @muit and which time may run
concurrently therewith) and without limiting Landtbin the exercise of any right or remedy which dland may have:

(a) Terminate Tenant'’s right to possession ofRRf@perty by any lawful means, in which case thiadeeshall terminate and
Tenant shall immediately surrender possessioneoPtioperty to Landlord. If Tenant shall be serwitth a demand for the payment of past due
rent or any other charge, any payments rendereddfter to cure any default by Tenant shall be naadg by cashier’s check. In such event,
Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tendhtlamages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tesatgfault, including (i) the worth at the
time of the award of the unpaid Base Rent, Add#ldRent and other charges which Landlord had eaahéte time of the termination; (ii) the
worth at the time of the award of the amount byahitthe unpaid Base Rent, Additional Rent and atharges which Landlord would have
earned after termination until the time of the avaxceeds the amount of such rental loss that Temaenes Landlord could have reasonably
avoided; (iii) the worth at the time of the awafdtle amount by which the unpaid Base Rent, Addéaldrent and other charges which Tenant
would have paid for the balance of the Lease tdtem the time of award exceeds the amount of senkaf loss that Tenant proves Landlord
could have reasonably avoided; and (iv) any othesuant necessary to compensate Landlord for allétement proximately caused by
Tenant's failure to perform its obligations undee Lease or which in the ordinary course of thimgsild be likely to result therefrom,
including, but not limited to, any costs or expenkandlord incurs in maintaining or preserving Breperty after such default, the cost of
recovering possession of the Property, expensedaifing, including necessary renovation or attereof the Property, Landlord’s reasonable
attorneys’ fees incurred in connection therewitid any real estate commission
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paid or payable. As used in subparts (i) ancapve, the “worth at the time of the award” is coneol by allowing interest on unpaid amounts
at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annungsumh lesser amount as may then be the maximumllaatés As used in subpart (iii) above,
the “worth at the time of the award” is computeddigcounting such amount at the discount rate @Rderal Reserve Bank of San Francisco
at the time of the award, plus one percent (1%).ehant has abandoned the Property, Landlord bhak the option of (i) retaking possession
of the Property and recovering from tenant the amspecified in this Paragraph 10.03(a), and/dp(idbceeding under Paragraph 10.03(b);

(b) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in whi@ase this Lease shall continue in effect whedtheot Tenant has
abandoned the Property. In such event, Landload bk entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s riglasd remedies under this Lease, including
the right to recover the rent as it becomes duadlard shall have the remedy described in Calito@ivil Code Section 1951.4 (lessor may
continue lease in effect after lessee’s breachaatdonment and recover rent as it becomes digssée has the right to sublet or assign,
subject only to reasonable limitations);

(c) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter alvigilto Landlord under the laws or judicial dedisi@f the state in which
the property is located.

Section 10.04  Automatic Termination. Notwithstanding any other term or provision héeahe contrary, the Lease shall
terminate on the occurrence of any act which afithre Landlord’s intention to terminate the Leas@m@vided in Section 10.03 hereof,
including the filing of an unlawful detainer actiagainst Tenant. On such termination, Landlordismdges for default shall include all costs
and fees, including reasonable attorneys’ feeslthatllord incurs in connection with the filing, corencement, pursuing and/or defending of
any action in any bankruptcy court or other couthwespect to the Lease; the obtaining of reliefif any stay in bankruptcy restraining any
action to evict Tenant; or the pursuing of anya@ttvith respect to Landlord’s right to possessibthe Property. All such damages suffered
(apart from Base Rent and other rent payable hdexlishall constitute pecuniary damages which fnesteimbursed to Landlord prior to
assumption of the Lease by Tenant or any succésg@nant in any bankruptcy or other proceeding.

Section 10.05 Cumulative Remedies.Landlord’s exercise of any right or remedy shall prevent it from exercising any other
right or remedy.

Section 10.06  See Addendum.
ARTICLE ELEVEN. PROTECTION OF LENDERS

Section 11.01  Subordination. Landlord shall have the right to subordinate tléase to any ground lease, deed of trust or
mortgage encumbering the Property, any advances orathe security thereof and any renewals, madifios, consolidations, replacements
or extensions thereof, whenever made or recordedant shall cooperate with Landlord and any lemdech is acquiring a security interest in
the Property or the Lease. Tenant shall executie futher documents and assurances as such leraerequire in the form attached heretc
Exhibit "B” or such other form as is then requiteyl Landlord’s lender, provided that such agreensentains a non-disturbance agreement in
favor of Tenant and provided further that Tenanb#gations under this Lease shall not be increaseey material way (the performance of
ministerial acts shall not be deemed material), Bewwknt shall not be deprived of its rights unéiés Lease. Tenant’s right to quiet possession
of the Property during the Lease Term shall nadisturbed if Tenant pays the rent and performsfallenant’s obligations under this Lease
and is not otherwise in default. If any groundstas beneficiary or mortgagee elects to have thisk prior to the lien of its ground lease, deed
of trust or mortgage and gives written notice tbéte Tenant, this Lease shall be deemed priouth ground lease, deed of trust or mortgage
whether this Lease is dated prior or subsequethietalate of said ground lease, deed of trust otgage or the date of recording thereof. See
Addendum Section 11.01.

Section 11.02  Attornment. If Landlord’s interest in the Property is acqditgy any ground lessor, beneficiary under a deed of
trust, mortgagee, or purchaser at a foreclosueg $ahant shall attorn to the transferee
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of or successor to Landloslinterest in the Property and recognize such fieegs or successor as Landlord under this Leasearit waives tf
protection of any current or future statute or rmfidaw which gives or purports to give Tenant aight to terminate this Lease or surrender
possession of the Property upon the transfer oflload’s interest.

Section 11.03  Signing of Documents. Tenant shall sign and deliver any instrumentazuinents necessary or appropriate to
evidence any such attornment or subordination meagent to do so provided that such agreementdecunon-disturbance provision in favor
of Tenant. If Tenant fails to do so within fifte€lb) days after written request, Tenant herebyesakonstitutes and irrevocably appoints
Landlord, or any transferee or successor of Landibre attorney-in-fact of Tenant to execute anydeany such instrument or document so
long as such instrument complies with the provisiofithis Article Eleven.

Section 11.04  Estoppel Certificates

(&) Upon Landlord’s written request, Tenant sbacute, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord at@ristatement in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit "C” or such otteenf as is then required by Landlord’s lender, &grtg: (i) that none of the terms and
provisions of this Lease have been changed (beif have been changed, stating how they have tesmged); (ii) that this Lease has not been
cancelled or terminated; (iii) the last date of payt of the Base Rent and other charges and tleep@riod covered by such payment; (iv) that
Landlord is not in default under this Lease (ot,ahdlord is claimed to be in default, stating whand (v) such other representations or
information with respect to Tenant or the Leaseawdlord may reasonably request or which any praspepurchaser or encumbrancer of the
Property may require. Tenant shall deliver sualtestent to Landlord within fifteen (15) days attandlord’s request. Landlord may give any
such statement by Tenant to any prospective puecttesencumbrancer of the Property. Such purch@sencumbrancer may rely conclusiv
upon such statement as true and correct.

(b) If Tenant does not deliver such statementandlord within such fifteen (15) day period, Lardloand any prospective
purchaser or encumbrancer, may conclusively preamdeely upon the following facts: (i) that tleerhs and provisions of this Lease have
been changed except as otherwise represented lojodn(ii) that this Lease has not been cancadlegtrminated except as otherwise
represented by Landlord; (iii) that not more thae ononths Base Rent or other charges have been paid imeeyvand (iv) that Landlord is r
in default under the Lease. In such event, Teslaall be estopped from denying the truth of suclksfa

(c) See Addendum.

Section 11.05 Tenant’s Financial Condition. Within ten (10) days after written request fromnidlord, Tenant shall deliver to
Landlord Tenant’s then existing financial statersentverify the net worth of Tenant or any assigisebtenant, or guarantor of Tenant. In
addition, Tenant shall deliver to any lender deafgd by Landlord any financial statements requingguch lender to facilitate the financing or
refinancing of the Property. Tenant representsvearglants to Landlord that each such financiakstesnt is a true and accurate statement as of
the date of such statement. All financial statetsishall be confidential and shall be used onltlierpurposes set forth in this Lease. See
Addendum Section 11.05.

ARTICLE TWELVE. LEGAL COSTS

Section 12.01  Legal Proceedings. If Tenant or Landlord shall be in breach or défander this Lease, such party (the
“Defaulting Party”) shall reimburse the other pafttye “Nondefaulting Party”) upon demand for angtsoor expenses that the Nondefaulting
Party incurs in connection with any breach or difaithe Defaulting Party under this Lease, whetbrenot suit is commenced or judgment
entered. Such costs shall include legal fees asth éncurred for the negotiation of a settlemenfprcement of rights or otherwise.
Furthermore, if any action for breach of or to enéothe provisions of this Lease is commencedg¢tiuet in such action shall award to the pi
in whose favor a judgment is entered, a reasorglrteas attorney’s fees and costs. The losing padych action shall pay such attorneys’
fees and costs. Tenant shall also indemnify Ladddgainst and hold Landlord
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harmless from all costs, expenses, demands arilityidlandlord may incur if Landlord becomes omisade a party to any claim or action

(a) instituted by Tenant against any third partybyany third party against Tenant, or by or agaémy person holding any interest under or
using the Property by license of or agreement Wwéhant; (b) for foreclosure of any lien for labemoaterial furnished to or for Tenant Group;
(c) otherwise arising out of or resulting from amst or transaction of Tenant Group; or (d) necgssaprotect Landlord’s interest under this
Lease in a bankruptcy proceeding, or other procgednder Title 11 of the United States Code, asnaiee. Tenant shall defend Landlord
against any such claim or action at Tenant’'s expevith counsel reasonably acceptable to Landlordtdrandlord’s election, Tenant shall
reimburse Landlord for any legal fees or costs lamidreasonably incurs in any such claim or action.

Section 12.02  Landlord’s Consent. Tenant shall pay Landlord’s reasonable attornfges incurred in connection with Tenant's
request for Landlord consent under Article Nine (Assignment and Stiblgt, or in connection with any other act whichn@at proposes to ¢
and which requires Landlord’s consent.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 13.01  Non-Discrimination. Tenant promises, and it is a condition to thetioorance of this Lease, that there will be no
discrimination against, or segregation of, any gersr group of persons on the basis of race, cebox, creed, national origin or ancestry in the
leasing, subleasing, transferring, occupancy, ouuse of the Property or any portion thereof.

Section 13.02  Landlord’s Liability; Certain Duties.

(a) As used in this Lease, the term “Landlord” mseanly the current owner or owners of the fee titl the Property or the
leasehold estate under a ground lease of the Ryagehe time in question. Each Landlord is odlegl to perform the obligations of Landlord
under this Lease only during the time such Landéweis such interest or title. Any Landlord whansters its title or interest is relieved of all
liability with respect to the obligations of Landibunder this Lease to be performed on or afted#te of transfer provided the transferee
assumes all of Landlord’s obligations from the di#teansfer. However, each Landlord shall deliteeits transferee all funds that Tenant
previously paid if such funds have not yet beeriagpunder the terms of this Lease.

(b) Tenant shall give written notice of any faduyy Landlord to perform any of its obligations anthis Lease to Landlord
and to any ground lessor, mortgage or beneficiadeuany deed of trust encumbering the Propertysemame and address have been
furnished to Tenant in writing. Landlord shall tat in default under this Lease unless Landlorggah ground lessor, mortgagee or
beneficiary) fails to cure such non-performancenimithirty (30) days after receipt of Tenant’s geti However, if such non-performance
reasonably requires more than thirty (30) daysute cLandlord shall not be in default if such cisreommenced within such thirty (30) -day
period and thereafter diligently pursued to coniptet

(c) Notwithstanding any term or provision hererthie contrary, the liability of Landlord for thegformance of its duties a
obligations under this Lease is limited to Landlsridterest in the Property, and neither the Lardilwor its partners, shareholders, officers or
other principals shall have any personal liabilibhder this Lease.

Section 13.03  Severability. A determination by a court of competent jurisidictthat any provision of this Lease or any part
thereof is illegal or unenforceable shall not cdimcénvalidate the remainder of such provisiortho§ Lease or any part thereof is illegal or
unenforceable shall not cancel or invalidate tmeai@der of such provision or this Lease, which Isteahain in full force and effect.

Section 13.04  Interpretation. The captions of the Articles or Sections of thémse are to assist the parties in reading thisd.ea
and are not a part of the terms or provisions isfltease. Whenever required by the context oflthase, the singular shall include the plural
and the plural shall include the singular. The enéise,
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feminine and neuter genders shall each includetier. In any provisions relating to the condacts or omissions of Tenant, the term
“Tenant” shall include Tenant's agents, employeestractors, invitees, successors or others ubmdtoperty with Tenant's expressed or
implied permission.

Section 13.05 Incorporation of Prior Agreements; Modifications. This Lease is the only agreement between théepart
pertaining to the lease of the Property and noraigesements are effective. All amendments tolth&se shall be in writing and signed by all
parties. Any other attempted amendment shall lig: vo

Section 13.06  Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Leeahall be in writing and shall be personally deléed or
sent by national overnight carrier or certified aturn receipt requested, postage prepaid. cstio Tenant shall be delivered to the address
specified in Section 1.03 above. Notices to Lardikhall be delivered to the address specifieckictiBn 1.02 above. All notices shall be
effective upon delivery. Either party may chantgeniotice address upon written notice to the oplaty.

Section 13.07  Waivers. All waivers must be in writing and signed by thaiving party. Landlord’s failure to enforce any
provision of this Lease or its acceptance of réatlsiot be a waiver and shall not prevent Landfooth enforcing that provision or any other
provision of this Lease in the future. No statetr@ma payment check from Tenant or in a lettepag@anying a payment check shall be
binding on Landlord. Landlord may, with or withquitice to Tenant, negotiate such check withoutdpéiound to the conditions of such
statement.

Section 13.08  No Recordation. Tenant shall not record this Lease without prioittem consent from Landlord. However, either
Landlord or Tenant may require that a “Short Fom&morandum of this Lease executed by both paréeedorded. The party requiring such
recording shall pay all transfer taxes and recqy figes.

Section 13.09  Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease binds any party who legally acquirgsréghts or interest in this
Lease from Landlord or Tenant. However, Landldrdllshave no obligation to Tenant’s successor wiles rights or interests of Tenant’s
successor are acquired in accordance with the tefiés Lease. The laws of the state in whichRheperty is located shall govern this Lease.

Section 13.10  Corporate Authority; Partnership Authority. If Tenant is a corporation, such corporation reprgs and warrar
that each person signing this Lease on behalf p&iiehas full authority to do so and that this leckisids the corporation. Within thirty (30)
days after this Lease is signed, Tenant shall eetw Landlord a certified copy of a resolutionT@nant’s Board of Directors authorizing the
execution of this Lease or other evidence of suthaity reasonably acceptable to Landlord. If drtris a partnership, each person or entity
signing this Lease for Tenant represents and wirthat he or it is a general partner of the pastmip, that he or it has full authority to sign for
the partnership and that this Lease binds the gastip and all general partners of the partnersiignant shall give written notice to Landlord
of any general partner’s withdrawal or addition iti thirty (30) days after this Lease is sign&dnant shall deliver to Landlord a copy of
Tenant’s recorded statement of partnership orfozté of limited partnership.

Section 13.11  Joint and Several Liability.

Section 13.12  See Addendum Section 13.12.

Section 13.13  Execution of Lease. This Lease may be executed in counterparts anenwall counterpart documents are
executed, the counterparts shall constitute aeibigiding instrument. Landlord’s delivery of thisase to Tenant shall not be deemed to be an
offer to lease and shall not be binding upon eigfaety until executed and delivered by both parties

Section 13.14  Survival. All representations and warranties of Landlord &enant shall survive the termination of this leeas
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ARTICLE FOURTEEN. BROKERS

Section 14.01  Broker’s Fee. When this Lease is signed by and delivered tb bahdlord and Tenant, Landlord shall pay a real
estate commission to Landlord’s Broker named intiBed..08 above, if any, as provided in the writtgmeement between Landlord and
Landlord’s Broker, or the sum stated in Sectior9labove for services rendered to Landlord by LamkioBroker in this transaction. Landlord
shall pay Landlord’s Broker a commission if Tenaxércises any option to extend the Lease Term buyahe Property, or any similar option
or right which Landlord may grant to Tenant, ot#ndlord’s Broker is the procuring cause of anyeotlease or sale entered into between
Landlord and Tenant covering the Property. Suchrossion shall be the amount set forth in Landlei8foker's commission schedule in
effect as of the execution of this Lease. If adrdls Broker is named in Section 1.08 above, Lamt$oBroker shall pay an appropriate portion
of its commission to Tenant’s Broker if so providadany agreement between Landlord’s Broker andaiés Broker. Nothing contained in
this Lease shall impose any obligation on Landtorgay a commission or fee to any party other tteamdlord’s Broker.

Section 14.02  Protection of Brokers. If Landlord sells the Property, or assigns Landi®interest in this Lease, the buyer or
assignee shall, by accepting such conveyance dribgerty or assignment of the Lease, be concllysdeemed to have agreed to make all
payments to Landlord’s Broker thereafter requireandlord under this Article Fourteen. Landlor@soker shall have the right to bring a
legal action to enforce or declare rights undes ghibvision. The prevailing party in such actibalsbe entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees to
be paid by the losing party. Such attorneys’ el be fixed by the court in such action. Thésdgraph is included in this Lease for the
benefit of Landlord’s Broker.

Section 14.03  Broker’s Disclosure of Agency. Landlord’s Broker hereby discloses to Landlord denant and Landlord and
Tenant hereby consent to Landlord’s Broker actinthis transaction as the agent of (check one):

3] Landlord exclusively; or
a both Landlord and Tenant.
Section 14.04  No Other Brokers. Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord tigabtokers named in Section 1.08 above are
the only agents, brokers, finders or other pastigls whom Tenant has dealt who are or may be edtith any commission or fee with respe:

this Lease or the Property.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS MAY BE SET FORTH IN A RIDER @ RIDERS ATTACHED HERETO OR IN THE BLANK SPACE
BELOW. IF NO ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS ARE INSERTED, IFEASE DRAW A LINE THROUGH THE SPACE BELOW.
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Landlord and Tenant have signed this Lease atlfte @mnd on the dates specified adjacent to tiggiatures below and have initialed all
Riders which are attached to or incorporated bgregfce in this Lease.

Signed or , 19 “LANDLORD”

at MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES, LLC, a Californi
limited liability company

By: Majestic REALTY CO., a California corporatioits
manage

By: /s/ David A. Wheele

Its: Presiden

By: /s/ Jay H. Bradfori

Its: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Signed or , 19 “TENANT”

at GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware corporati

By: /s/ Anthony D. Caracciol

Its:

By: /s/ Mark L. Perry

Its: Executive Vice President, Operatic

IN ANY REAL ESTATE TRANSACTION, IT IS RECOMMENDED HAT YOU CONSULT WITH A PROFESSIONAL, SUCH AS A
CIVIL ENGINEER, INDUSTRIAL HYGIENIST OR OTHER PERS®WITH EXPERIENCE IN EVALUATING THE CONDITION OF
THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OFBESTOS, HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKS.

THIS PRINTED FORM LEASE HAS BEEN DRAFTED BY LEGAL@QUNSEL AT THE DIRECTION OF THE SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA CHAPTER OF THE SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL ANDFFICER REALTORS,® INC. NO REPRESENTATION OR
RECOMMENDATION IS MADE BY THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EIAPTER OF THE SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL AND OFFICE
REALTORS,®INC., ITS LEGAL COUNSEL, THE REAL ESTATE BROKERS NMED HEREIN, OR THEIR EMPLOYEES OR AGENT
AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT OR TAX OOSEQUENCES OF THIS LEASE OR OF THIS TRANSACTION.
LANDLORD AND TENANT SHOULD RETAIN LEGAL COUNSEL TOADVISE THEM ON SUCH MATTERS AND SHOULD RELY
UPON THE ADVICE OF SUCH LEGAL COUNSEL.
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Exhibit 10.31

B Southern California Chapter of the
SIC)R! Society of Industrial and Office Realtofsinc.

INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE
(SINGLE-TENANT FACILITY)

ARTICLE ONE: BASIC TERMS

This Article One contains the Basic Terms of thésake between the Landlord and Tenant named beéldhker Articles, Sections and
Paragraphs of the Lease referred to in this Artinhe explain and define the Basic Terms and abe tead in conjunction with the Basic
Terms.

Section 1.01. Date of Lease: July 20, 2000

Section 1.02. Landlord (include legal entity): MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES, LLC., a California lited liability company
and MAJESTIC REALTY CO., a California corporation

Address of Landlord: 13191 Crossroads Parkway North, 6th Floor
City of Industry, CA 91746

Section 1.03.  Tenant (include legal entity): GILEAD SCIENCES, INC. a Delaware corporation

Address of Tenant: 333 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, California 94404

Section 1.04.  Property (include street address, approximate squar footage-and description): that approximately 53,600
square foot building situated on approximately 2a¢ges of land and more commonly known as 542 \Wesina Boulevard, San Dimas,
California as outlined in red on Exhibit “A”, sulgfeto the non-exclusive use of such area outlinagréen.

Section 1.05. Lease Term: 5 years — months beginning on * or such othee datis specified in this Lease, and ending on **

Section 1.06.  Permitted Uses: (See Atrticle Five) Only for general office, labtory warehousing and manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products.

Section 1.07.  Tenant's Guarantor: (If none, so state) None
Section 1.08.  Brokers: (See Article Fourteen) (If none, so state)

Landlord’s Broker: Majestic Realty Co.
Tenant’s Broker: Julien J. Studley, Inc.

Section 1.09. Commission Payable to Landlord’s Broker:(See Article Fourteen) $ per separate agreement

Section 1.10.  Initial Security Deposit: (See Section 3.03) $23,584.00

* the sixty (60) days after the later to occur dftlfie date the existing tenant vacates the Propady(ii) the date
Landlord substantially completes Landlord’s Work.

** the fifth (5™") anniversary of the Lease Commencement Date.

© 1988 Southern California Chapt 5;:?
of the Society of Industric

and Office Realtor® Inc. (Sing-Tenant Net Form
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Section 1.11. Vehicle Parking Spaces Allocated to Tenant: per Exhibit “A”
Section 1.12. Rent and Other Charges Payable by Tenant:

€) Base Rent: Twenty-Three Thousand Five Hundred Eighty-Fout a0/100 Dollars ($23,584.00 ) per month for thst fi
twenty-four (24) months, as provided in Sectioril34nd shall be increased on the first day of tBee Addendum Section 1.12 — month(s)
after the Commencement Date.

(b) Other Periodic Payments: (i) Real Property Taxes (See Section 4.02) iilities (See Section 4.03); (iii) Insurance
Premiums (See Section 4.04); (iv) Impounds for tasae Premiums and Property Taxes (See Sectiol 4 Maintenance, Repairs and
Alterations (See Article Six).

Section 1.13. Landlord’s Share of Profit on Assignment or Subleas: (See Section 9.05) fifty percent (50%) of thefP(the
“Landlord’s Share”).

Section 1.14. Riders: The following Riders are attached to and madartigf this Lease: (If none, so state) Addendages 1
through 10, Option to Extend Term Lease Rider, Bxigibits “A”, “B”, “C”, “D” and “E”

ARTICLE TWO: LEASE TERM

Section 2.01. Lease of Property For Lease Term. Landlord leases the Property to Tenant and Tdeases the Property from
Landlord for the Lease Term. The Lease Term isHerperiod stated in Section 1.05 above and blegiih and end on the dates specified in
Section 1.05 above, unless the beginning or ettldeoEease Term is changed under any provisionisfltbase. The “Commencement Date”
shall be the date specified in Section 1.05 abowéhie beginning of the Lease Term, unless advaaceeélayed under any provision of this
Lease.

Section 2.02. Delay in Commencement. Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant if Landla@oes not deliver possession of the
Property with Landlord’s Work substantially comglétto Tenant by April 1, 2001. Landlord’s non-udety of the Property to Tenant on that
date shall not affect this Lease or the obligatioh$enant under this Lease except that the Comereant Date shall be delayed until Landl
delivers possession of the Property to Tenant had ¢ase Term shall be extended for a period @qubk delay in delivery of possession of
the Property with Landlord’s Work substantially qaleted to Tenant, plus the number of days necessamd the Lease Term on the last day
of a month. If Landlord does not deliver possassibthe Property with Landlord’'Work substantially completed to Tenant within bdoeadrec
eighty (180) days, Tenant may elect to cancelltb@se by giving written notice to Landlord withant(10) days after the one hundred eighty
(180)-day period ends. If Tenant gives such notive Lease shall be cancelled and neither Landiordrenant shall have any further
obligations to the other. If Tenant does not giueh notice, Tenant'’s right to cancel the Leasé# skpire and the Lease Term shall commence
upon the delivery of possession of the Properth Wéndlord’s Work substantially completed to Tenalftdelivery of possession of the
Property to Tenant is delayed, Landlord and Teshall, upon such delivery, execute an amendmetitd ease setting forth the actual
Commencement Date and expiration date of the LeRa#ure to execute such amendment shall not tatiecactual Commencement Date and
expiration date of the Lease.

Section 2.03. Early Occupancy. If Tenant occupies the Property for the purpdssoaducting business therein prior to the
Commencement Date, Tenantccupancy of the Property shall be subject tofathe provisions of this Lease. Early occupaotthe Propert
shall not advance the expiration date of this Led=mnant shall pay Base Rent and all other chaspesified in this Lease for such early
occupancy period.

Section 2.04. Holding Over. Tenant shall vacate the Property upon the expiratr earlier termination of this Lease. Tenant
shall reimburse Landlord for and indemnify Landlaghinst all damages which Landlord incurs fromareis delay in vacating the Property.
If Tenant does not vacate the Property upon the@atiqn or earlier termination of the Lease anddland thereafter accepts rent from Tenant,
Tenant’s occupancy




of the Property shall be a “month-to-month” tengreubject to all of the terms of this Lease apliedo a month-tononth tenancy, except tl
the Base Rent then in effect shall be increasevbpty-five percent (25%).

ARTICLE THREE: BASE RENT

Section 3.01. Time and Manner of Payment. Upon execution of this Lease, Tenant shall paydl@ard the Base Rent in the
amount stated in Paragraph 1.12(a) above for therfionth of the Lease Term. On the first dayhef$econd month of the Lease Term and
each month thereafter, Tenant shall pay LandloedBthse Rent, in advance, without offset, dedudiigorior demand. The Base Rent shall be
payable at Landlord’s address or at such otheepad_andlord may designate in writing.

Section 3.02. Intentionally Deleted.
Section 3.03. Security Deposit; Increases.

(a) Upon the execution of this Lease, Tenant shall diégpdgth Landlord a cash Security Deposit in theoamt set forth in
Section 1.10 above. Landlord may apply all or pathe Security Deposit to any unpaid rent or ogterges due from Tenant or to cure any
other defaults of Tenant. If Landlord uses any pathe Security Deposit, Tenant shall restoreSbeurity Deposit to its full amount within t
(10) days after Landlord’s written request. Tefsf#ilure to do so shall be a material default emithis Lease. No interest shall be paid on the
Security Deposit. Landlord shall not be requiredéep the Security Deposit separate from its atlbeounts and no trust relationship is cre
with respect to the Security Deposit.

(b) Each time the Base Rent is increased, Tenantadépdisit additional funds with Landlord sufficientihcrease the Security
Deposit to an amount which bears the same reldtiprie the adjusted Base Rent as the initial Seceposit bore to the initial Base Rent.

Section 3.04. Termination; Advance Payments. Upon termination of this Lease under Article Se{@®amage or Destruction),
Article Eight (Condemnation) or any other terminatinot resulting from Tenant’s default, and aftendnt has vacated the Property in the
manner required by this Lease, Landlord shall réfoncredit to Tenant (or Tenant’s successor) thesad portion of the Security Deposit, any
advance rent or other advance payments made bynffenhandlord, and any amounts paid for real prgpeaxes and other reserves which
apply to any time periods after termination of tiease.

ARTICLE FOUR: OTHER CHARGES PAYABLE BY TENANT

Section 4.01.  Additional Rent. All charges payable by Tenant other than Basd Rencalled “Additional Rent.” Unless this
Lease provides otherwise, Tenant shall pay all #altil Rent then due with the next monthly instaimof Base Rent. The term “rent” shall
mean Base Rent and Additional Rent.

Section 4.02. Property Taxes.

(@) Real Property Taxes. Tenant shall pay all real property taxes on ttoperty (including any fees, taxes or assessments
against, or as a result of, any tenant improvemiestalled on the Property by or for the benefiTehant) during the Lease Term. Subject to
Paragraph 4.02(c) and Section 4.07 below, such paysghall be made at least ten (10) days pridngalelinquency date of the taxes. Within
such ten (10) -day period, Tenant shall furnishdlard with satisfactory evidence that the real grtyptaxes have been paid. Landlord shall
reimburse Tenant for any real property taxes pgi@idnant covering any period of time prior to aieathe Lease Term. If Tenant fails to pay
the real property taxes when due, Landlord maythbayaxes and Tenant shall reimburse Landlordiferaimount of such tax payment as
Additional Rent. Alternatively, Landlord may eldotbill Tenant in advance for such taxes and Teshall pay Landlord the amount of such
taxes, as Additional Rent, at least ten (10) daigs o delinquency. Landlord shall pay such tagder to delinquency provided Tenant has
timely made such payments to Landlord. Any penediysed by Tenant's failure to timely make suchnpayts shall also be Additional Rent
owed by Tenant immediately upon demand.




(b) Definition of “Real Property Tax. ” “Real property tax” means: (i) any fee, licerige, license tax, business license fee,
commercial rental tax, levy, charge, assessmenglfyeor tax imposed by any taxing authority agathe Property; (ii) any tax on the
Landlord’s right to receive, or the receipt of, renincome from the Property or against Landlofillsiness of leasing the Property; (iii) any
tax or charge for fire protection, streets, sidéwatoad maintenance, refuse or other servicesged\uo the Property by any governmental
agency; (iv) any tax imposed upon this transaatiobased upon a re-assessment of the Propertyaduehtange of ownership, as defined by
applicable law, or other transfer of all or parteihdlord’s interest in the Property; and (v) ahpige or fee replacing any tax previously
included within the definition of real property tafReal property tax” does not, however, inclugadlord’s federal or state income, franchise,
inheritance or estate taxes.

(©) Joint Assessment. If the Property is not separately assessed, loatdhall reasonably determine Tenant’'s shareeofdhl
property tax payable by Tenant under Paragraph&).®@m the assessor’'s worksheets or other reégpagailable information. Tenant shall
pay such share to Landlord within fifteen (15) dafter receipt of Landlord’s written statement.

(d) Personal Property Taxes.

0] Tenant shall pay all taxes charged against tradigrés, furnishings, equipment or any other perspraperty
belonging to Tenant. Tenant shall try to have geatproperty taxed separately from the Property.

(i) If any of Tenant’s personal property is taxed with Property, Tenant shall pay Landlord the tareshe personal
property within fifteen (15) days after Tenant riees a written statement from Landlord for suchspeal property taxes.

(e) Tenant’s Right to Contest Taxes. Tenant may attempt to have the assessed valuztibe Property reduced or may initi
proceedings to contest the real property taxeseddired by law, Landlord shall join in the prode®ys brought by Tenant. However, Tenant
shall pay all costs of the proceedings, including eosts or fees incurred by Landlord. Upon thalfdetermination of any proceeding or
contest, Tenant shall immediately pay the real @riyptaxes due, together with all costs, chargesrést and penalties incidental to the
proceedings. If Tenant does not pay the real ptppaxes when due and contests such taxes, Tehatitnot be in default under this Lease for
nonpayment of such taxes if Tenant deposits furitts vandlord or opens an interest-bearing accoeasonably acceptable to Landlord in the
joint names of Landlord and Tenant. The amoursiuch deposit shall be sufficient to pay the reapprty taxes plus a reasonable estima
the interest, costs, charges and penalties whighaoerue if Tenant’s action is unsuccessful, legsapplicable tax impounds previously paid
by Tenant to Landlord. The deposit shall be appiethe real property taxes due, as determinsdat proceedings. The real property taxes
shall be paid under protest from such depositéhquayment under protest is necessary to preverRbperty from being sold under a “tax
sale” or similar, enforcement proceeding.

Section 4.03. Utilities. Tenant shall pay, directly to the appropriateptiep, the cost of all natural gas, heat, lightweo, sewer
service, telephone, water, refuse disposal and atiiities and services supplied to the Propeltjawever, if any services or utilities are join
metered with other property, Landlord shall makeasonable determination of Tenant’'s proportiosatee of the cost of such utilities and
services and Tenant shall pay such share to Lamhdlithin fifteen (15) days after receipt of Landits written statement.

Section 4.04. Insurance Policies.

@) Liability Insurance. During the Lease Term, Tenant shall maintainleeypof commercial general liability insurance
(sometimes known as broad form comprehensive gelievdity insurance) insuring Tenant against ild for bodily injury, property damage
(including loss of use of property) and personplrynarising out of the operation, use or occupaofcthe Property. Tenant shall name
Landlord as an additional insured under such poliElge initial amount of such insurance shall besEhMillion Dollars ($3,000,000.00) per
occurrence and shall be subject to periodic ineréased upon industry standards for similar faedit The liability insurance obtained by
Tenant under this Paragraph 4.04(a) shall (i) bblegny and non-contributing; (ii) contain
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cross-liability endorsements; and (iii) insure Linmd against Tenant’s performance under Sectioh,5f@he matters giving rise to the
indemnity under Section 5.05 result from the negiice of Tenant. The amount and coverage of susthidnce shall not limit Tenant's liability
nor relieve Tenant of any other obligation undés thease. Landlord may also obtain comprehensibdipliability insurance in an amount &
with coverage determined by Landlord insuring Landlagainst liability arising out of ownership, ogon, use or occupancy of the Property.
The policy obtained by Landlord shall not be cdnitory and shall not provide primary insurance.

(b) Property and Rental Income Insurance. During the Lease Term, Landlord shall maintaifigi@s of insurance covering
loss of or damage to the Property in the full amairits replacement value. Such policy shall eaméan Inflation Guard Endorsement and
shall provide protection against all perils inclddeithin the classification of fire, extended coage, vandalism, malicious mischief, special
extended perils (all risk), sprinkler leakage ang ather perils which Landlord deems reasonablyssary. Landlord shall have the right to
obtain flood and earthquake insurance if requingdtyy lender holding a security interest in thegerty. Landlord shall not obtain insurance
for Tenant's fixtures or equipment or building impements installed by Tenant on the Property. myutihe Lease Term, Landlord shall also
maintain a rental income insurance policy, wittslpayable to Landlord, in an amount equal to ore’yd8ase Rent, plus estimated real
property taxes and insurance premiums. Tenantlsbdiable for the payment of any deductible amaurder Landlord’s or Tenamtinsuranc
policies maintained pursuant to this Section 4gdyided, however, Landlord’s insurance deductdtiall not exceed Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000). Tenant shall not do or permit anythimge done which invalidates any such insurancieipsl Upon Tenant's request, Landlord
shall provide Tenant a certificate evidencing sinslurance.

(©) Payment of Premiums. Subject to Section 4.07, Tenant shall pay alipuens for the insurance policies described in
Paragraphs 4.04(a) and (b) (whether obtained byllbash or Tenant) within fifteen (15) days after Batis receipt of a copy of the premium
statement or other evidence of the amount due p¢x@ndlord shall pay all premiums for nprimary comprehensive public liability insurar
which Landlord elects to obtain as provided in Beaph 4.04(a). If insurance policies maintained_bgdlord cover improvements on real
property other than the Property, Landlord shdivdeto Tenant a statement of the premium apple#ad the Property showing in reasonable
detail how Tenant'’s share of the premium was coethutf the Lease Term expires before the expinatiban insurance policy maintained by
Landlord, Tenant shall be liable for Tenanprorated share of the insurance premiums. Béier€ommencement Date, Tenant shall deliv
Landlord a copy of any policy of insurance whichaet is required to maintain under this Sectiod 4.8t least thirty (30) days prior to the
expiration of any such policy, Tenant shall delitetandlord a renewal of such policy. As an alégive to providing a policy of insurance,
Tenant shall have the right to provide Landloregificate of insurance, executed by an authoraf@ider of the insurance company, showing
that the insurance which Tenant is required to taairunder this Section 4.04 is in full force arféet and containing such other information
which Landlord reasonably requires.

(d) General Insurance Provisions.

0] Any insurance which Tenant is required to maintaider this Lease shall include a provision whiajuiees the
insurance carrier to give Landlord not less thamytti30) days’ written notice prior to any caneibn or modification of such coverage.

(i) If Tenant fails to deliver any policy, certificate renewal to Landlord required under this Leagiwithe prescribe
time period or if any such policy is cancelled ardified during the Lease Term without Landlord’sisent, Landlord may obtain such
insurance, in which case Tenant shall reimburselload for the cost of such insurance within fiftg@h) days after receipt of a statement that
indicates the cost of such insurance.

(i) Landlord and Tenant shall maintain all insuranegineed under this Lease with companies holding arfé&al
Policy Rating” of A-12 or better, as set forth retmost current issue of “Best Key Rating Guideandlord and Tenant acknowledge the
insurance markets are rapidly changing and tharamee in the form and amounts described in thisi®@e4.04 may not be available in the
future. Tenant acknowledges that the insuranceritbes! in this Section 4.04 is for the primary bigtnaf Landlord. If at any time during the
Lease




Term, Tenant or Landlord is unable to maintainitfseirance required under the Lease, Landlord amdfteshall nevertheless maintain
insurance coverage which is customary and comnilgregasonable in the insurance industry for Teizatype of business, as that coverage
may change from time to time. Landlord makes moesentation as to the adequacy of such insuranmetect Landlord’s or Tenant’s
interests. Therefore, Tenant shall obtain any sultitional property or liability insurance whicledant deems necessary to protect Landlord
and Tenant.

(iv) Landlord and Tenant each hereby waive any andglls of recovery against the other, or againsuffieers,
employees, agents or representatives of the dthrdnss of or damage to its property or the propef others under its control, if such loss or
damage is covered by any insurance policy in f@ndeether or not described in this Lease) at the tifhsuch loss or damage. Upon obtaining
the required policies of insurance, Landlord andar shall give notice to the insurance carrierhigf mutual waiver of subrogation.
Landlord’s and Tenant's insurance policies describethis Section shall contain a provision waivthg carrier’s right to subrogation.

Section 4.05. Late Charges. Tenant’s failure to pay rent promptly may causadlord to incur unanticipated costs. The exact
amount of such costs are impractical or extrem#ficdlt to ascertain. Such costs may include, &g not limited to, processing and
accounting charges and late charges which may pesed on Landlord by any ground lease, mortgageist deed encumbering the Prope!
Therefore, if Landlord does not receive any reryinpent within ten (10) days after it becomes dueyigled Landlord has given Tenant forty-
eight (48) hours written notice and Tenant hasfsiled to pay such Base Rent (which forty-eigd®) hours shall run concurrently with such
ten (10) day period), Tenant shall pay Landlordta tharge equal to ten percent (10%) of the oeeatluiount. The parties agree that such late
charge represents a fair and reasonable estim#te absts Landlord will incur by reason of sude lpayment.

Section 4.06. Interest on Past Due Obligations. Any amount owed by one party hereunder to therotnich is not paid when
due shall bear interest at the rate of fifteen @err¢15%) per annum from the due date of such atmddawever, interest shall not be payable
on late charges to be paid by Tenant under thise.edhe payment of interest on such amounts sba#xcuse or cure any default under this
Lease. If the interest rate specified in this leciashigher than the rate permitted by law, therdt rate is hereby decreased to the maximum
legal interest rate permitted by law.

Section 4.07. Impounds for Insurance Premiums and Real Property Bxes. If Tenant is more than ten (10) days late in the
payment of Base Rent more than twice in any corisectwelve (12) -month period, Tenant shall paydiard a sum equal to one-twelfth
(1/12) of the annual real property taxes and inseggremiums payable by Tenant under this Leagethier with each payment of Base Rent.
Landlord shall hold such payments in a non-inteoesiring impound account. If unknown, Landlordlisteasonably estimate the amount of
real property taxes and insurance premiums when @aaant shall pay any deficiency of funds initheound account to Landlord upon
written request. If Tenant, defaults under thisdes Landlord may apply any funds in the impourmbant to any obligation then due under
this Lease.

ARTICLE FIVE: USE OF PROPERTY
Section 5.01. Permitted Uses. Tenant may use the Property only for the Pernhittees set forth in Section 1.06 above.

Section 5.02. Manner of Use. Tenant shall not cause or permit the Propertetosed in any way which constitutes a violation
of any law, ordinance, or governmental regulatioormer, which annoys or interferes with the right®ther tenants of Landlord, or which
constitutes a nuisance or waste. Tenant shallrobtad pay for all permits, including a CertificateOccupancy, required for Tenant’'s
occupancy of the Property and shall promptly tdkacions necessary to comply with all applicafiatutes, ordinances, rules, regulations,
orders and requirements regulating the use by Terfahe Property, including the Occupational Sagetd Health Act.

See Addendum Section 5.02




Section 5.03. Intentionally Deleted.
See Addendum Section 5.03

Section 5.04. Signs and Auctions. Tenant shall not place any signs on the Propeittyout Landlord’s prior written consent.
Tenant shall not conduct or permit any auctionshariff's sales at the Property.

See Addendum Section 5.04

Section 5.05. Indemnity. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord against and Haddlord harmless from any and all costs, claims or
liability arising from: (a) Tenant’s use of theoperty; (b) the conduct of Tenant’s business otlang else done or permitted by Tenant to be
done in or about the Property, (c) any breach @audein the performance of Tenastbligations under this Lease; (d) any misreprtasem or
breach of warranty by Tenant under this Leasegpoiher acts or omissions of Tenant. Tenant slediéind Landlord against any such cost,
claim or liability at Tenant’s expense with counssdsonably acceptable to Landlord or, at Landtoedction, Tenant shall reimburse Land
for any legal fees or costs incurred by Landlordannection with any such claim. As a materiat pathe consideration to Landlord, Tenant
assumes all risk of damage to property or injurpecsons in or about the Property arising from eayse, and Tenant hereby waives all claims
in respect thereof against Landlord, except for@aiym arising out of Landlord’s or Landlord’s erapées’, agents’ or contractors’ active
negligence or willful misconduct. As used in tBisction, the term “Tenant” shall include Tenantigpoyees, agents, contractors and invitees,
if applicable.

See Addendum Section 5.05.

Section 5.06. Landlord’s Access. Landlord or its agents may enter the Propergllacasonable times to show the Property to
potential buyers, investors or tenants or othetigmgrto do any other act or to inspect and conthsts in order to monitor Tenant’s compliance
with all applicable environmental laws and all lages/erning the presence and use of Hazardous Mhterifor any other purpose Landlord
deems necessary. Landlord shall give Tenant 244wdar notice of such entry, except in the casaroEmergency and Landlord agrees to
allow a representative of Tenant to accompany Landdhnd further agrees to comply with Tenant's eeable security measures. Landlord
may place customary “For Sale” or “For Lease” signghe Property.

Section 5.07. Quiet Possession.If Tenant pays the rent and complies with alleotterms of this Lease, Tenant may occupy
and .enjoy the Property for the full Lease Ternhjesct to the provisions of this Lease.

ARTICLE SIX: CONDITION OF PROPERTY; MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND
ALTERATIONS

Section 6.01. Existing Conditions. Subject to the provisions of this Lease, Tenanépts the Property in its condition as of the
execution of the Lease, subject to all recordedarstlaws, ordinances, and governmental regulatonl orders. Except as provided herein,
Tenant acknowledges that neither Landlord nor gignaof Landlord has made any representation #eetoondition of the Property or the
suitability of the Property for Tenant’s intendexbu Tenant represents and warrants that Tenamhddes its own inspection of and inquiry
regarding the condition of the Property and isnetting on any representations of Landlord or angk®r with respect thereto. If Landlord or
Landlord’s Broker has provided a Property InforrmatSheet or other Disclosure Statement regardimdpthperty, a copy is attached as an
exhibit to the Lease.

Section 6.02. Exemption of Landlord from Liability. Landlord shall not be liable for any damage quriynto the person,
business (or any loss of income therefrom), goadses, merchandise or other property of Tenantaiiememployees, invitees, customers or
any other person in or about the Property, whetbheh damage or injury is caused by or results fi@fire, steam, electricity, water, gas or
rain; (b) the breakage, leakage, obstruction oerotlefects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, applianp&snbing, air conditioning or lighting fixtures
or any other cause; (c) conditions arising in aywtihe Property or from other sources or placeggdany act or omission of any other tenant
of Landlord. Landlord shall not be liable for asiych damage or injury even though
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the cause of or the means of repairing such damaiggury are not accessible to Tenant. The piionis of this Section 6.02 shall not,
however, exempt Landlord from liability for Landtbs or Landlord’s employees’, agents’ or contrasteaictive negligence or willful
misconduct.

Section 6.03. Landlord’s Obligations.
See Addendum Section 6.03.
Section 6.04. Tenant’s Obligations.

€)) Except as provided in Section 6.03, Article Seveanfage or Destruction) and Article Eight (Conderiamgt Tenant shall
keep all portions of the Property (including sturet, nonstructural, interior, exterior, and larased areas, portions, systems and equipme
good order, condition and repair (including interiepainting and refinishing, as needed). If aastipn of the Property or any system or
equipment in the Property which Tenant is obligatecepair cannot be fully repaired or restoredhdre shall promptly replace such portion of
the Property or system or equipment in the Propestyardless of whether the benefit of such rephece extends beyond the Lease Term; but
if the benefit or useful life of such replacemextiemds beyond the Lease Term (as such term maytbeded by exercise of any options), the
useful life of such replacement shall be prorategr the remaining portion of the Lease Term (asmdéd), and Tenant shall be liable only for
that portion of the cost which is applicable to tease Term (as extended). Tenant shall maintpieentive maintenance contract providing
for the regular inspection and maintenance of trettihg and air conditioning system by a licenseatihg and air conditioning contractor.
Subiject to the provisions of Section 4.04(d)(i¥gny part of the Property is damaged by any acnoission of Tenant, Tenant shall pay
Landlord the cost of repairing or replacing sucmeged property, whether or not Landlord would oth®&e be obligated to pay the cost of
maintaining or repairing such property. It is thiention of Landlord and Tenant that at all tiffenant shall maintain the portions of the
Property which Tenant is obligated to maintainrninedtractive, first-class and fully operative cdrui.

(b) Tenant shall fulfill all of Tenant’s obligations der this Section 6.04 at Tenant’s sole expens@&erifint fails to maintain,
repair or replace the Property as required bySkistion 6.04 or is not using all reasonable effartdo so, Landlord may, upon ten (10) days’
prior notice to Tenant (except that no notice shaltequired in the case of an emergency), entePthperty and perform such maintenance or
repair (including replacement, as needed) on betfidlEnant. In such case, Tenant shall reimbuesellord for all costs incurred in perform
such maintenance or repair immediately upon demand.

Section 6.05.  Alterations, Additions, and Improvements.

€) Tenant shall not make any alterations, additiongnprovements to the Property without Landlord'jpwritten consent,
which shall not be unreasonably withheld, excepnfinstructural alterations which do not exceed Fortgpddand Dollars ($40,000.00) in ¢
per project and which are not visible from the @éwf any building of which the Property is pakiandlord may require Tenant to provide
demolition and/or lien and completion bonds in fand amount satisfactory to Landlord. Tenant ghralinptly remove any alterations,
additions, or improvements constructed in violatdéithis Paragraph 6.05(a) upon Landlord’s writtequest. All alterations, additions, and
improvements shall be done in a good and workmamtilnner, in conformity with all applicable lawslaegulations, and by a contractor
approved by Landlord, which shall not be unreastynatihheld. Upon completion of any such work, &ehshall provide Landlord with “as
built” plans, copies of all construction contractad proof of payment for all labor and materials.

(b) Tenant shall pay when due all claims for labor araderial furnished to or for the Tenant Group atBmoperty. Tenant shall
give Landlord at least twenty (20) days’ prior w&it notice of the commencement of any work on tlop&rty, regardless of whether
Landlord’s consent to such work is required. Landilmay elect to record and post notices of nopeesibility on the Property.

Section 6.06. Condition upon Termination. Upon the termination of the Lease, Tenant shallender the Property to Landlo
broom clean and in the same condition as receixeep for ordinary wear and
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tear which Tenant was not otherwise obligated toedy under any provision of this Lease. Howevenant shall not be obligated to repair
any damage which Landlord is required to repaadoordance with this Lease. In addition, Landimal require Tenant to remove any
alterations, additions or improvements (whethemairmade with Landlord’s consent) prior to the exfidon of the Lease and to restore the
Property to its prior condition, all at Tenant'pexise. All alterations, additions and improvemevtisch Landlord has not required Tenant to
remove shall become Landlord’s property and stealldrrendered to Landlord upon the expiration diezdermination of the Lease, except
that Tenant may remove any of Tenant's machineggoipment which can be removed without materiat@ge to the Property. Tenant shall
repair, at Tenant’s expense, any damage to theesRyopaused by the removal of any such machinegqgaipment. In no event, however, shall
Tenant remove any of the following materials oripqent (which shall be deemed Landlord’s propertighout Landlord’s prior written
consent: any power wiring or power panels; lightar lighting fixtures; wall coverings; drapes,ruls or other window coverings; carpets or
other floor coverings; heaters, air conditionersuay other heating or air conditioning equipmeeiiding or security gates; or other similar
building operating equipment and decorations.

See Addendum Section 6.06
ARTICLE SEVEN: DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
Section 7.01. Partial Damage to Property.

(@) Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing immediatalypon the occurrence of any damage to the Propértiie Property is
only partially damaged (i.e., less than fifty perc€b0%) of the Property is untenantable as a tesiduch damage or less than fifty percent
(50%) of Tenant's operations are materially impdjirand if the proceeds received by Landlord fromittsurance policies described in
Paragraph 4.04(b) are sufficient to pay for theessary repairs, this Lease shall remain in effedtlaandlord shall repair the damage as sot
reasonably possible. Landlord may elect (but tsrequired) to repair any damage to Tenant’s fegyiequipment, or improvements.

(b) If (i) Landlord has maintained the insurance reegiito be maintained under Paragraph 4.04(b) anith$hieance proceeds
received by Landlord are not sufficient to pay ¢inéire cost of repair; (i) the cause of the damiaget covered by such insurance policies; or
(iii) the holder of any mortgage on the Propertglstequire that the insurance proceeds or anyigrothereof be used to retire the mortgage
debt, Landlord may elect either to (i) repair damag soon as reasonably possible, in which casédaise shall remain in full force and effect,
or (ii) terminate this Lease as of the date thealggroccurred. Landlord shall notify Tenant witthirty (30) days after receipt of notice of the
occurrence of the damage whether Landlord eleatsgair the damage or terminate the Lease. If loadceklects to repair the damage, Tenant
shall pay Landlord the “deductible amount” (if any)der Landlord’s insurance policies and, if thendge was due to an act or omission of
Tenant, or Tenant's employees, agents, contraotdre/itees, the difference between the actual ebstpair and any insurance proceeds
received by Landlord. If Landlord elects to teraimthis Lease, Tenant may elect to continue tb@sk in full force and effect, in which case
Tenant shall repair any damage to the Propertyaagduilding in which the Property is located. @enhshall pay the cost of such repairs,
except that upon satisfactory completion of sugtairs, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant any inseeproceeds received by Landlord for the
damage repaired by Tenant. Tenant shall give lorddiritten notice of such election within ten (I@ys after receiving Landlord’s
termination notice.

(©) If the damage to the Property occurs during thediag(6) months of the Lease Term and such damaéljesquire more than
thirty (30) days to repair, either Landlord or Tethmay elect to terminate this Lease as of the tetelamage occurred, regardless of the
sufficiency of any insurance proceeds. The pddgtimg to terminate this Lease shall give writtentification to the other party of such
election within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s igetto Landlord of the occurrence of the damage.

Section 7.02. Substantial or Total Destruction. If the Property is substantially or totally dested by any cause whatsoever
(i.e., the damage to the Property is greater tlaatighdamage as described in Section 7.01), agardéess of whether Landlord receives any
insurance proceeds, this Lease shall terminatiataeof (i) the




date the destruction occurred or (ii) the date Tienaases to do business at the Property. Notaitdsg the preceding sentence, if the
Property can be rebuilt within six (6) months aftes date of destruction, Landlord may elect taiilelthe Property at Landlord’'own expens:

in which case this Lease shall remain in full foacel effect. Landlord shall notify Tenant of swdéction within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s
notice of the occurrence of total or substantiatidestion. If Landlord so elects, Landlord shabuild the Property at Landlord’s sole expense,
except that if the destruction was caused by aoragmission of Tenant, Tenant shall pay Landltel difference between the actual cost of
rebuilding and any insurance proceeds receivedanglord.

Section 7.03. Temporary Reduction of Rent. If the Property is destroyed or damaged and ladddr Tenant repairs or resto
the Property pursuant to the provisions of thisoletSeven, any rent payable during the periocuohslamage, repair and/or restoration shall
be reduced according to the degree, if any, to viienant’s use of the Property is impaired. Exéepsuch possible reduction in Base Rent,
insurance premiums and real property taxes, Testalt not be entitled to any compensation, redactio reimbursement from Landlord as a
result of any damage, destruction, repair, or rasitln of or to the Property.

Section 7.04. Waiver. Tenant waives the protection of any statute, ardadicial decision which grants a tenant théntig
terminate a lease in the event of the substantiedtal destruction of the leased property. Tersmnees that the provisions of Section 7.02
above shall govern the rights and obligations afdlard and Tenant in the event of any substanti#ht@l destruction to the Property.

ARTICLE EIGHT: CONDEMNATION

If all or any portion of the Property is taken unttee power of eminent domain or sold under thedahof that power (all of which are
called “Condemnation”), this Lease shall termiredeo the part taken or sold on the date the conthgnauthority takes title or possession,
whichever occurs first. If more than twenty petc@®%) of the floor area of the building in whittte Property is located, or which is located
on the Property, is taken, either Landlord or Teémaay terminate this Lease as of the date the gonatgy authority takes title or possession
delivering written notice to the other within tetD] days after receipt of written notice of sudking (or in the absence of such notice, within
ten (10) days after the condemning authority tditkesor possession). If neither Landlord nor Teti@rminates this Lease, this Lease shall
remain in effect as to the portion of the Propeuytaken, except that the Base Rent and AdditiBeailt shall be reduced in proportion to the
reduction in the floor area of the Property. Amyndemnation award or payment shall be distributettié following order: (a) first, to any
ground lessor, mortgagee or beneficiary under d dé&rust encumbering the Property; the amouritsdhterest in the Property; (b) second, to
Tenant, only the amount of any award specificaigignated for loss of or damage to Tenant's traderés or removable persona] property;
and (c) third, to Landlord, the remainder of suelaal, whether as compensation for reduction inviiiee of the leasehold, the taking of the
fee, or otherwise. If this Lease is not terminateghdlord shall repair any damage to the Propeatysed by the Condemnation, except that
Landlord shall not be obligated to repair any daenfag which Tenant has been reimbursed by the gondwy authority. If the severance
damages received by Landlord are not sufficieqatp for such repair, Landlord shall have the rightither terminate this Lease or make such
repair at Landlord’s expense.

ARTICLE NINE: ASSIGNMENT AND) SUBLETTING

Section 9.01. Landlord’s Consent Required. No portion of the Property or of Tenashthterest in this Lease may be acquire
any other person or entity, whether by sale, assém, mortgage, sublease, transfer, operatiormgfdaact of Tenant, without Landlosiprior
written consent, except as provided in Section 8€aw. Landlord has the right to grant or wittthitb consent as provided in Section 9.05
below. Any attempted transfer without consentldbalvoid and shall constitute a non-curable brexdhis Lease.

Section 9.02. Tenant Affiliate.

See Addendum Section 9.02.
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Section 9.03. No Release of Tenant. No transfer permitted by this Article Nine, whethwith or without Landlord’s consent,
shall release Tenant or change Tenant's primabylitiato pay the rent and to perform all otherightions of Tenant under this Lease.
Landlord’s acceptance of rent from any other peisamt a waiver of any provision of this Articlérié. Consent to one transfer is not a
consent to any subsequent transfer. If Tenardissteree defaults under this Lease, Landlord magegd directly against Tenant without
pursuing remedies against the transferee. Landag consent to subsequent assignments or modifisadf this Lease by Tenant’s
transferee, without notifying Tenant or obtainitgydonsent. Such action shall not relieve Tendiatldlity under this Lease.

Section 9.04. Offer to Terminate. If Tenant desires to assign the Lease or subldheéthe Property, and if Landlord elects in
writing to terminate this Lease pursuant to Secfidy the Lease shall terminate as of the commeecedate of a new lease between Landlord
and the proposed assignee or subtenant and a#irthe and provisions of the Lease governing tertiminahall apply. If Landlord does not so
elect, the Lease shall continue in effect untikotfise terminated and the provisions of Sectio %vidh respect to any proposed transfer shall
continue to apply.

Section 9.05. Landlord’s Consent.

€)) Tenant’s request for consent to any transfer desdrin Section 9.01 shall set forth in writing thetails of the proposed
transfer, including the name, business and findcoiadition of the prospective transferee, finahditails of the proposed transfer (e.g., the
term of and the rent and security deposit payabtkeuany proposed assignment or sublease), andtheyinformation Landlord reasonably
deems relevant. Landlord shall have the rightéoteo terminate this Lease, or to withhold consgmeasonable, or to grant consent, based on
the following factors: (i) the business of the mwsed assignee or subtenant and the proposed tieeRifoperty; (ii) the net worth and finant
reputation of the proposed assignee or subtenadt{i@ Tenant's compliance with all of its oblitians under the Lease. If Landlord objects to
a proposed assignment solely because of the néth wod/or financial reputation of the proposedgsse, Tenant may nonetheless sublease
(but not assign), all or a portion of the Propéotyhe proposed transferee, but only on the ottvend of the proposed transfer.

(b) If Tenant assigns or subleases, the following syablly:

0] If Tenant assigns or subleases more than 37,0Gredeet of the Property in the aggregate, theraiieshall pay to
Landlord as Additional Rent under the Lease thedlemd’s Share (stated in Section 1.13) of the P(dffined below) on such transaction as
and when received by Tenant, unless Landlord giwégen notice to Tenant and the assignee or saltethat Landlord’s Share shall be paid
by the assignee or subtenant to Landlord direcElye “Profit” means (A) all amounts paid to Tenfotsuch assignment or sublease, including
“key” money, monthly rent in excess of the monthly rextable under the Lease, and all fees and otheidsrasion paid for the assignment
sublease, including fees under any collateral ageeds, less (B) costs and expenses directly induoyelenant in connection with the
execution and performance of such assignment deas for real estate broker’s commissions and adgenovation or construction of tenant
improvement required under such assignment or agbleTenant is entitled to recover such costseapdnses before Tenant is obligated to
pay the Landlord Share to Landlord. The Profit in the case afldesase of less than all the Property is the rkmtable to the subleased sp
as a percentage on a square footage basis.

(i) Tenant shall provide Landlord a written statememtifying all amounts to be paid from any assignh@rsublease
of the Property within thirty (30) days after thartsaction documentation is signed, and Landlorg imgpect Tenant’s relevant books and
records to verify the accuracy of such statem@nt.written request, Tenant shall promptly furnishi.andlord copies of all the transaction
documentation, all of which shall be certified bgniint to be complete, true and correct. Landlaetgipt of Landlord’s Share shall not be a
consent to any further assignment or sublettinige Breach of Tenarst'obligation under this Paragraph 9.05(b) shall beaterial default of th
Lease.

Section 9.06. No Merger. No merger shall result from Tenant’s subleasthefProperty under this Article Nine, Tenant’s
surrender of this Lease or the termination of tg@ase in any other manner. In any such
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event, Landlord may terminate any or all subteremor succeed to the interest of Tenant as sulbiahdhder any or all subtenancies.
ARTICLE TEN: DEFAULTS; REMEDIES

Section 10.01. Covenants and Conditions. Tenant's performance of each obligation undes th@ase is a condition as well as a
covenant. Tenant's right to continue in possessfdhe Property is conditioned upon Tenant’s panfance. Time is of the essence in the
performance of all covenants and conditions.

Section 10.02. Defaults. Tenant shall be in material default under thiades

(@) If Tenant fails to pay rent and abandons the Ptgperif Tenant’s vacation of the Property resittshe cancellation of any
insurance described in Section 4.04;

(b) If Tenant fails to pay rent when due or any othearge within ten (10) days from receipt of suchdnilstatement from
Landlord;
(© If Tenant fails to perform any of Tenant’s non-mtamg obligations under this Lease for a periodhatty (30) days after

written notice from Landlord; provided that if mdtean thirty (30) days are required to completehquerformance, Tenant shall not be in
default if Tenant commences such performance witigrthirty (30) -day period and thereafter dilidgpursues its completion. The notice
required by this Paragraph is intended to satisfyand all notice requirements imposed by law ondlaerd and is not in addition to any such
requirement.

(d) () If Tenant makes a general assignment or gererahgement for the benefit of creditors; (iixipetition for adjudication
of bankruptcy or for reorganization or rearrangemefiled by or against Tenant and is not dismdsathin thirty (30) days; (iii) if a trustee or
receiver is appointed to take possession of sutialigrall of Tenant's assets located at the Proper of Tenant'’s interest in this Lease and
possession is not restored to Tenant within tB6) days; or (iv) if substantially all of Tenantissets located at the Property or of Tenant’'s
interest in this Lease is subjected to attachmegution or other judicial seizure which is natatiiarged within thirty (30) days. If a court of
competent jurisdiction determines’ that any of élaés described in this subparagraph (d) is nofauttainder this Lease, and a trustee is
appointed to take possession (or if Tenant renmaihsbtor in possession) and such trustee or Tér@asfers Tenant's interest hereunder, then
Landlord shall receive, as Additional Rent, theess; if any, of the rent (or any other considengtfmid in connection with such assignment or
sublease over the rent payable by Tenant undeL#zise.

(e) If any guarantor of the Lease revokes or othertésminates, or purports to revoke or otherwise teate, any guaranty of ¢
or any portion of Tenant’s obligations under thease Unless otherwise expressly provided, no gtiard the Lease is revocable.

Section 10.03. Remedies. On the occurrence of any material default by Tignaandlord may, at any time thereafter, following
three (3) days written notice or demand (which oa@yn the form of a three (3) day notice to pay mmuit and which time may run
concurrently therewith) and without limiting Landibin the exercise of any right or remedy which dland may have:

€) Terminate Tenant's right to possession of the Rtgf®y any lawful means, in which case this LedsaIserminate and
Tenant shall immediately surrender possessioneoPtioperty to Landlord. If Tenant shall be sernwiti a demand for the payment of past due
rent or any other charge, any payments rendereddafier to cure any default by Tenant shall be naadg by cashier’s check. In such event,
Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tendhtlamages incurred by Landlord by reason of Teésatefault, including (i) the worth at the
time of the award of the unpaid Base Rent, Add#ldRent and other charges which Landlord had eaahéte time of the termination; (ii) the
worth at the time of the award of the amount byclilthe unpaid Base Rent, Additional Rent and atharges which Landlord would have
earned after termination until the time of the advaxceeds the amount of such rental loss that Temewes Landlord could have reasonably
avoided; (iii) the
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worth at the time of the award of the amount byclitthe unpaid Base Rent, Additional Rent and atharges which Tenant would have paid
for the balance of the Lease term after the timavedrd exceeds the amount of such rental lossTdrant proves Landlord could have
reasonably avoided; and (iv) any other amount resecgso compensate Landlord for all the detrimeokimately caused by Tenant’s failure to
perform its obligations under the Lease or whicthim ordinary course of things would be likely ¢ésult therefrom, including, but not limited
to, any costs or expenses Landlord incurs in migiimig or preserving the Property after such defah# cost of recovering possession of the
Property, expenses of reletting, including necgssarovation or alteration of the Property, Landlsreasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in
connection therewith, and any real estate comnmgs&d or payable. As used in subparts (i) andfiove, the “worth at the time of the
award”is computed by allowing interest on unpaid amoant$e rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annunsumh lesser amount as may thel
the maximum lawful rate. As used in subpart éldpve, the “worth at the time of the award” is comegl by discounting such amount at the
discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of Sandisco at the time of the award, plus one per@@ns). If Tenant has abandoned the
Property, Landlord shall have the option of (ijakeéhg possession of the Property and recovering ffenant the amount specified in this
Paragraph 10.03(a); and/or (ii) proceeding undeadtaph 10.03(b).

(b) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in whichectigs Lease shall continue in effect whether driremant has abandoned
the Property. In such event, Landlord shall béledtto enforce all of Landlord’s rights and rerfedunder this Lease, including the right to
recover the rent as it becomes due; Landlord slaakk the remedy described in California Civil C&etion 1951.4 (lessor may continue lease
in effect after lessee’s breach and abandonmenteraer rent as it becomes due, if lessee hasghieto sublet or assign subject only to
reasonable limitations);

(© Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter avaitablandlord under the laws or judicial decisiongha state in which the
Property is located.

Section 10.04. Intentionally Deleted.

Section 10.05. Automatic Termination. Notwithstanding any other term or provision héeahe contrary, the Lease shall
terminate on the occurrence of any act which afithre Landlord’s intention to terminate the Leas@m@vided in Section 10.03 hereof,
including the filing of an unlawful detainer actiagainst Tenant. On such termination, Landlordisdges for default shall include all costs
and fees, including reasonable attorneys’ feeslthatilord incurs in connection with the filing, comncement, pursuing and/or defending of
any action in any bankruptcy court or other couthwespect to the Lease; the obtaining of reliefrf any stay in bankruptcy restraining any
action to evict Tenant; or the pursuing of anya@ttvith respect to Landlord’s right to possessibthe Property. All such damages suffered
(apart from Base Rent and other rent payable hdex)ishall constitute pecuniary damages which eseimbursed to Landlord prior to
assumption of the Lease by Tenant or any succésg@nant in any bankruptcy or other proceeding.

Section 10.06. Cumulative Remedies. Landlord’s exercise of any right or remedy shall prevent it from exercising any other
right or remedy.

Section 10.07. See Addendum
ARTICLE ELEVEN: PROTECTION OF LENDERS

Section 11.01. Subordination. Landlord shall have the right to subordinate tléase to any ground lease, deed of trust or
mortgage encumbering the Property, any advances mrathe security thereof and any renewals, matitios, consolidations, replacements
or extensions thereof, whenever made or recordedant shall cooperate with Landlord and any lemdech is acquiring a security interest in
the Property or the Lease. Tenant shall executie futher document and assurances as such leradereguire in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit “B” or such other form as is then requitey Landlord’s lender, provided that such agreensentains a non-disturbance agreement in
favor of Tenant and provided further that Tenanbsgations under this Lease shall not be incre@seey material way (the performance of
ministerial acts shall not be deemed material), Bewhnt
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shall not be deprived of its rights under this leea$enant’s right to quiet possession of the Pitgphuring the Lease Term shall not be
distributed if Tenant pays the rent and performhsfal'enants obligations under this Lease and is not otherimiskefault. If any ground lesst
beneficiary or mortgagee elects to have this Lease to the lien of its ground lease, deed ofttarsmortgage and gives written notice thereof
to Tenant, this Lease shall be deemed prior to guobind lease, deed of trust or mortgage whethelLrase is dated prior or subsequent to the
date of said ground lease, deed of trust or moeigadhe date of recording thereof.

See Addendum Section 11.01

Section 11.02.  Attornment. If Landlord’s interest in the Property is acqditgy any ground lessor, beneficiary under a deed of
trust, mortgagee, or purchaser at a foreclosueg $ahant shall attorn to the transferee of oressmar to Landlord’s interest in the Property and
recognize such transferee or successor as Lanaihaler this Lease. Tenant waives the protectiangfcurrent or future statute or rule of law
which gives or purports to give Tenant any righteiominate this Lease or surrender possessiored®thperty upon the transfer of Landlord’s
interest.

Section 11.03.  Signing of Documents. Tenant shall sign and deliver any instrumentamunents necessary or appropriate to
evidence any such attornment or subordination mreagent to do so, provided that such agreementdesla non-disturbance provision in
favor of Tenant. If Tenant fails to do so withifiden (15) days after written request, Tenant Ingrraakes, constitutes and irrevocably appc
Landlord, or any transferee or successor of Landlord, the attorney-in-fact ehdnt to execute and deliver any such instrument or
document so long as such instrument complies \withptovisions of this Article Eleven.

Section 11.04.  Estoppel Certificates.

€)) Upon Landlord’s written request, Tenant shall execacknowledge and deliver to Landlord a writtexiesment in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit “C” or such other fosnsathen required by Landlord’s lender, certifyi(iyythat none of the terms or provisions of
this Lease have been changed (or if they have desmged, stating how they have been changeddhéi)this Lease has not been cancelled or
terminated; (iii) the last date of payment of thesB Rent and other charges and the time periodembby such payment; (iv) that Landlord is
not in default under this Lease (or, if Landloratisimed to be in default, stating why); and (Wlswther representations or information with
respect to Tenant or the Lease as Landlord mapmneaty request or which any prospective purchasenoumbrancer of the Property may
require. Tenant shall deliver such statement tdlad within fifteen (15) days after Landlord’sqreest. Landlord may give any such
statement by Tenant to any prospective purchasen@rmbrancer of the Property. Such purchasemamabrancer may rely conclusively
upon such statement as true and correct.

(b) If Tenant does not deliver such statement to Landdhgthin such fifteen (15) -day period, Landloedhd any prospective
purchaser or encumbrancer, may conclusively preamdeely upon the following facts: (i) that tleerhs and provisions of this Lease have
been changed except as otherwise represented lojolcdn(ii) that this Lease has not been canceadlettrminated except as otherwise
represented by Landlord; (iii) that not more thae ononths Base Rent or other charges have been paid imeeyvand (iv) that Landlord is r
in default under the Lease. In such event, Teslaall be estopped from denying the truth of sucksfa

Section 11.05. Tenant’s Financial Condition. Within ten (10) days after written request froenidlord, Tenant shall deliver to
Landlord Tenant’s then existing financial statersdntverify the net worth of Tenant or any assigsetenant, or guarantor of Tenant. In
addition, Tenant shall deliver to any lender deatgd by Landlord any financial statements requingduch lender to facilitate the financing or
refinancing of the Property. Tenant representsvearglants to Landlord that each such financialest&nt is a true and accurate statement as of
the date of such statement. All financial statet:ishall be confidential and shall be used onlytierpurposes set forth in this Lease.
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ARTICLE TWELVE: LEGAL COSTS

Section 12.01. Legal Proceedings. If Tenant or Landlord shall be in breach or défander this Lease, such party (the
“Defaulting Party”) shall reimburse the other pafttye “Nondefaulting Party”) upon demand for angtsoor expenses that the Nondefaulting
Party incurs in connection with any breach or ditfaiuthe Defaulting Party under this Lease, whettrenot suit is commenced or judgment
entered. Such costs shall include legal fees asth éncurred for the negotiation of a settlemenfprcement of rights or otherwise.
Furthermore, if any action for breach of or to enéothe provisions of this Lease is commencedg¢tiuet in such action shall award to the pi
in whose favor a judgment is entered, a reasormlrteas attorneys’ fees and costs. The losing pagych action shall pay such attorneys’
fees and costs. Tenant shall also indemnify Ladddgainst and hold Landlord harmless from all €ostpenses, demands and liability
Landlord may incur if Landlord becomes or is mageagy to any claim or action (a) instituted by @ahagainst any third party, or by any tt
party against Tenant, or by or against any persddirfig any interest under or using the Propertyicgnse of or agreement with Tenant; (b) for
foreclosure of any lien for labor or material fuginéd to or for Tenant Group; (c) otherwise arigingof or resulting from any act or transact
of Tenant Group; or (d) necessary to protect Lamtkanterest under this Lease in a bankruptcy @eding, or other proceeding under Title 11
of the United States Code, as amended. Tenantdgfahd Landlord against any such claim or acéibfienant’s expense with counsel
reasonably acceptable to Landlord or, at Landloetkstion, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for srgal fees or costs Landlord reasonably
incurs in any such claim or action.

Section 12.02. Landlord’s Consent. Tenant shall pay Landlord’s reasonable attornfaes incurred in connection with Tenant’s
request for Landlord’s consent under Article NiAsgignment an&ubletting), or in connection with any other actiebhTenant proposes to
and which requires Landlord’s consent.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 13.01. Non-Discrimination. Tenant promises, and it is a condition to thetioomnce of this Lease, that there will be no
discrimination against, or segregation of, any @ermsr group of persons on the basis of race, cetx, creed, national origin or ancestry in the
leasing, subleasing, transferring, occupancy, ouuse of the Property or any portion thereof.

Section 13.02. Landlord’s Liability; Certain Duties.

€) As used in this Lease, the term “Landlord” mearly tre current owner or owners of the fee titléhte Property or the
leasehold estate under a ground lease of the Ryagiehe time in question. Each Landlord is odlégl to perform the obligations of Landlord
under this Lease only during the time such Landéweis such interest or title. Any Landlord whansters its title or interest is relieved of all
liability with respect to the obligations of Landibunder this Lease to be performed on or afted#te of transfer, provided the transferee
assumes all of Landlord’s obligations from the di#tgansfer. However, each Landlord shall deliteeits transferee all funds that Tenant
previously paid if such funds have not yet beerliagpunder the terms of this Lease.

(b) Tenant shall give written notice of any failurelbgndlord to perform any of its obligations undesthease to Landlord and
to any ground lessor, mortgagee or beneficiary uadg deed of trust encumbering the Property winasee and address have been furnished
to Tenant in writing. Landlord shall not be in delt under this Lease unless Landlord (or suchmptdessor, mortgagee or beneficiary) fails to
cure such non-performance within thirty (30) dafterareceipt of Tenant’s notice. However, if suwn-performance reasonably requires more
than thirty (30) days to cure, Landlord shall netiby default if such cure is commenced within stigtty (30) -day period and thereafter
diligently pursued to completion.

(©) Notwithstanding any term or provision herein to tioatrary, the liability of Landlord for the perfoance of its duties and
obligations under this Lease is limited to Landlsridterest in the Property, and neither the Lardilwor its partners, shareholders, officers or
other principals shall have any personal liabilihder this Lease.
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Section 13.03.  Severability. A determination by a court of competent jurisidictthat any provision of this Lease or any part
thereof is illegal or unenforceable shall not caimcénvalidate the remainder of such provisiorthis Lease, which shall remain in full force
and effect.

Section 13.04. Interpretation. The captions of the Articles or Sections of ltésise are to assist the parties in reading thisd_ea
and are not a part of the terms or provisions isfltkase. Whenever required by the context oflth@se, the singular shall include the plural
and the plural shall include the singular. The enéise, feminine and neuter genders shall eacludecthe other. In any provision relating to
the conduct, acts or omissions of Tenant, the t&enant” shall include Tenant's agents, employeesjractors, invitees, successors or others
using the Property with Tenant's expressed or iegppiermission.

Section 13.05. Incorporation of Prior Agreements; Modifications. This Lease is the only agreement between théepart
pertaining to the lease of the Property and noraiesements are effective. All amendments tolth&se shall be in writing and signed by all
parties. Any other attempted amendment shall lig: vo

Section 13.06. Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Leeaball be in writing and shall be personally deled or
sent by national overnight carrier or certified laturn receipt requested, postage prepaid. cstio Tenant shall be delivered to the address
specified in Section 1.03 above. Notices to Lartikhall be delivered to the address specifieckictiBn 1.02 above. All notices shall be
effective upon delivery. Either party may chantgeniotice address upon written notice to the oplagty.

Section 13.07. Waivers. All waivers must be in writing and signed by thaiving party. Landlord’s failure to enforce any
provision of this Lease or its acceptance of réatlsiot be a waiver and shall not prevent Landfooth enforcing that provision or any other
provision of this Lease in the future. No statetr@na payment check from Tenant or in a letteoag@anying a payment check shall be
binding on Landlord. Landlord may, with or withquitice to Tenant, negotiate such check withoutdpéiound to the conditions of such
statement.

Section 13.08. No Recordation. Tenant shall not record this Lease without pwatten consent from Landlord. However, either
Landlord or Tenant may require that a “Short Fom&morandum of this Lease executed by both paréeedorded. The party requiring such
recording shall pay all transfer taxes and recgrdiéges.

Section 13.09. Binding Effect; Choice of Law. This Lease binds any party who legally acquirgsréghts or interest in this
Lease from Landlord or Tenant. However, Landldrdlishave no obligation to Tenant’s successor wniles rights or interests of Tenant’s
successor are acquired in accordance with the tefiés Lease. The laws of the state in whichRheperty is located shall govern this Lease.

Section 13.10.  Corporate Authority; Partnership Authority.  If Tenant is a corporation, such corporation espnts and
warrants that each person signing this Lease oalbehTenant has full authority to do so and tthé$ Lease binds the corporation. Within
thirty (30) days after this Lease is signed, Terstuatl deliver to Landlord a certified copy of @otution of Tenant’s Board of Directors
authorizing the execution of this Lease or othédence of such authority reasonably acceptableatallord. If Tenant is a partnership, each
person or entity signing this Lease for Tenantespnts and warrants that he or it is a generatgraof the partnership, that he or it has full
authority to sign for the partnership and that theéase binds the partnership and all general parsfehe partnership. Tenant shall give wri
notice to Landlord of any general partner’s withwdahor addition. Within thirty (30) days after shiease is signed, Tenant shall deliver to
Landlord a copy of Tenant’s recorded statementaofirship or certificate of limited partnership.

Section 13.11.  Joint and Several Liability.
Section 13.12. See Addendum Section 13.12
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Section 13.13. Execution of Lease. This Lease may be executed in counterparts ahen\all counterpart documents are
executed, the counterparts shall constitute aeibigiding instrument. Landlord’s delivery of thisase to Tenant shall not be deemed to be an
offer to lease and shall not be binding upon eigfaety until executed and delivered by both parties

Section 13.14.  Survival. All representations and warranties of Landlord &enant shall survive the termination of this lesas
ARTICLE FOURTEEN: BROKERS

Section 14.01. Broker's Fee. When this Lease is signed by and delivered tb handlord and Tenant, Landlord shall pay a real
estate commission to Landlord’s Broker named intiBed..08 above, if any, as provided in the writtgmeement between Landlord and
Landlord’s Broker, or the sum stated in Sectior®labove for services rendered to Landlord by LamkiaBroker in this transaction. Landlord
shall pay Landlord’s Broker a commission if Tenexércises any option to extend the Lease Term buyahe Property, or any similar option
or right which Landlord may grant to Tenant, ot@ndlord’s Broker is the procuring cause of anyeotlease or sale entered into between
Landlord and Tenant covering the Property. Suchro@sion shall be the amount set forth in Landisi8foker's commission schedule in
effect as of the execution of this Lease. If adrdls Broker is named in Section 1.08 above, Lamt$oBroker shall pay an appropriate portion
of its commission to Tenant’s Broker if so providadany agreement between Landlord’s Broker ancaés Broker. Nothing contained in
this Lease shall impose any obligation on Landtorgay a commission or fee to any party other tteamdlord’s Broker.

Section 14.02.  Protection of Brokers. If Landlord sells the Property, or assigns Landikinterest in this Lease, the buyer or
assignee shall, by accepting such conveyance dribgerty or assignment of the Lease, be concllysdeemed to have agreed to make all
payments to Landlord’s Broker thereafter requireandlord under this Article Fourteen. Landlor@soker shall have the right to bring a
legal action to enforce or declare rights undes ghibvision. The prevailing party in such actibalsbe entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees to
be paid by the losing party. Such attorneys’ el be fixed by the court in such action. Thésdgraph is included in this Lease for the
benefit of Landlord’s Broker.

Section 14.03.  Broker’s Disclosure of Agency. Landlord’s Broker hereby discloses to Landlord aenant and Landlord and
Tenant hereby consent to Landlord’s Broker actinthis transaction as the agent of (check one):

x Landlord exclusively; or
a both Landlord and Tenant.

Section 14.04. No Other Brokers. Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord bigabtokers named in Section 1.08 above are
the only agents, brokers, finders or other pastigls whom Tenant has dealt who are or may be edtith any commission or fee with respe:
this Lease or the Property.

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS MAY BE SET FORTH IN A RIDER @ RIDERS ATTACHED HERETO OR IN THE BLANK
SPACE BELOW. IF NO ADDITIONAL PROVISONS ARE INSERED, PLEASE DRAW A LINE THROUGH THE SPACE BELOW.
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Landlord and Tenant have signed this Lease atlfte @mnd on the dates specified adjacent to tiggiatures below and have initialed
all Riders which are attached to or incorporatedefgrence in this Lease.
“LANDLORD”

Signed or , 19 MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES, LLC
a California limited liability compan

at

By: MAJESTIC REALTY CO.,
MAJESTIC REALTY CO., a California corporation a California corporation,
its manage

By:/s/ Edward P. Roski, J

Its: By: /s/ David A. Wheele

Its: Executive Vice Presidel

By:/s/ David A. Wheele

Its: By: /s/ Edward P. Roski J
Its: Presiden
“TENANT”
Signed or , 19 GILEAD SCIENCES, Inc. a Delaware corporati

at

By: /s/ Crispin G.S. Ele

Its: V.P. Pharmaceutical Operatio

By: /s/ Anthony D. Caracciol

Its: V.P. Manufacturing

IN ANY REAL ESTATE TRANSACTION, IT IS RECOMMENDED HAT YOU CONSULT WITH A PROFESSIONAL, SUCH A
A CIVIL ENGINEER, INDUSTRIAL HYGIENIST OR OTHER PERON WITH EXPERIENCE IN EVALUATING THE CONDITION OF
THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE PRESENCE OFBESTOS, HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKS.

THIS PRINTED FORM LEASE HAS BEEN DRAFTED BY LEGAL@QUNSEL AT THE DIRECTION OF THE SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA CHAPTER OF THE SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL ANDFFICE REALTORS,® INC. NO REPRESENTATION OR
RECOMMENDATION IS MADE BY THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EIAPTER OF THE SOCIETY OF INDUSTRIAL AND OFFICE
REALTORS,®INC., ITS LEGAL COUNSEL, THE REAL ESTATE BROKERS NAED HEREIN, OR THEIR EMPLOYEES OR AGENT
AS TO THE LEGAL SUFFICIENCY, LEGAL EFFECT OR TAX OOSEQUENCES OF THIS LEASE OR OF THIS TRANSACTION.
LANDLORD AND TENANT SHOULD RETAIN LEGAL COUNSEL TOADVISE THEM ON SUCH MATTERS AND SHOULD RELY
UPON THE ADVICE OF SUCH LEGAL COUNSEL.
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ADDENDUM TO INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE

This Addendum (‘Addendum ") is made and entered into by MAJESTIC-MAPA PROHHEES, LLC., a California limited liability
company and MAJESTIC REALTY CO., a California coration (collectively, “Landlord ") and GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware
corporation (“Tenant”), and is dated as of the date set forth on Sedti@1of the Industrial Real Estate Lease between Laddiod Tenant (*
Lease”) to which this Addendum is attached. The promjsmvenants, agreements and declarations madsetfatth herein are intended to
and shall have the same force and effect as fbstt at length in the body of the Lease. To thieet that the provisions of this Addendum are
inconsistent with the terms and conditions of teade, the terms and conditions of this Addendurt cbatrol.

SECTION 1.12(a) BASE RENT.

Commencing as of the twenty-fifth (25th) “Lease Ntghas that term is defined below, and continuimgugh the thirty-sixth (36th)
Lease Month, the monthly Base Rent shall be an atregual to TWENTY-FOUR THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED FIFT$#X AND NO/100
DOLLARS ($24,656.00). Commencing as of the thsgventh (37th) Lease Month and continuing throihghsixtieth (60th) Lease Month,
the monthly Base Rent shall be equal to TWENTY-FIMEOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED TWENTY-EIGHT AND NO/100 DIQ ARS
($25,728.00). The term “Lease Month” shall mearhezonsecutive month during the Lease Term, wighfilst Lease Month commencing on
the Lease Commencement Date.

SECTION 5.02 MANNER OF USE.

Section 5.02s hereby amended by adding the following at the thereof:

“Tenant shall not do anything or suffer anythindoeodone in or about the Property which will in avgy conflict with any
law, statute, ordinance or other governmental maigulation or requirement now in force or whichynh@reafter be enacted
or promulgated (collectively, Applicable Laws”). Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expensamptly comply with any
Applicable Laws which relate to (i) Tenant's specifse of the Property, (ii) any alteration or aegant improvements or
which are triggered by any alteration or any teraurovement made by Tenant. Should any standarelgulation now or
hereafter be imposed on Landlord or Tenant by &g sfederal or local governmental body chargeti thie establishment,
regulation and enforcement of occupational, heaitbafety standards for employers, employees, ¢adsllor tenants, then
Landlord and Tenant, as applicable, agree, ablescst and expense to comply promptly with suahdards or regulations.
The judgment of any court of competent jurisdict@rthe admission of Tenant in any judicial actimgardless of whether
Landlord is a party thereto, that Tenant has vealany of said governmental measures, shall bdusine of that fact as
between Landlord and Tenant. Landlord shall cormmgtia all Applicable Laws relating to the Properag of the Lease
Commencement Date if compliance with such Appliedtdws is required by a governmental agency andged that
compliance with such Applicable Laws is not thepmssibility of Tenant under this Lease, and prodiflather that
Landlord’s failure to comply therewith would unreasbly and materially affect the safety of Tenastigpployees or create a
significant health hazard for Tenant's employees.”

SECTION 5.03 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.

5.03.1 DEFINITIONS.
A. “ Hazardous Material ” means any substance, whether solid, liquid oegas in nature:

0] the presence of which requires investigation oragiation under any federal, state or local stanggylation,
ordinance, order, action, policy or common law; or

(i) which is or becomes defined as a “hazardous wa%taZardous substance,” pollutant or contaminaien any
federal, state or local statute, regulation, rulerdinance or
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September 6, 20C [GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.




amendments thereto including, without limitatidme Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensaitid Liability Act (42 U.S.C.
section 9601 et seq.) and/or the Resource Congamaatd Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. section 6901 et)sdte Hazardous Materials
Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. section 1801 et)sélge Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 WCSsection 1251 et seq.), the Clean Air
Act (42 U.S.C. section 7401 et seq.), the ToxicsBaices Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. se260i et seq.), and the Occupational
Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. section 651 gt)sas these laws have been amended or suppleinente

(i) which is toxic, explosive, corrosive, flammablefgictious, radioactive, carcinogenic, mutageniqtberwise
hazardous or is or becomes regulated by any gowartahauthority, agency, department, commissioardicagency or instrumentality of the
United States, the State of California or any pEltsubdivision thereof; or

(iv) the presence of which on the Property causes eatims to cause a nuisance upon the Propertyadjdoent
properties or poses or threatens to pose a hazdné health or safety of persons on or about tbpd?ty; or

v) the presence of which on adjacent properties coatdtitute a trespass by Tenant; or
(vi) without limitation which contains gasoline, dief@l or other petroleum hydrocarbons; or
(vii) without limitation which contains polychlorinateigphenyls (PCBs), asbestos or urea formaldehyde foauiation;

or
(viii) without limitation which contains radon gas.
B. “ Environmental Requirements” means all applicable present and future:

® statutes, regulations, rules, ordinances, cod=mndis, permits, orders, approvals, plans, auitmns, concessions,
franchises, and similar items (including, but natifed to those pertaining to reporting, licensipgrmitting, investigation and remediation), of
all Governmental Agencies; and

(i) all applicable judicial, administrative, and regoly decrees, judgments, and orders relating tgtbtection of
human health or the environment, including, withimitation, all requirements pertaining to emisspdischarges, releases, or threatened
releases of Hazardous Materials or chemical subssainto the air, surface water, groundwater od,lan relating to the manufacture,
processing, distribution, use, treatment, stordgposal, transport, or handling of Hazardous Mal®or chemical substances.

C. “ Environmental Damages’ means all claims, judgments, damages, losseslfes) fines, liabilities (including strict
liability), encumbrances, liens, costs, and expgiigeluding the expense of investigation and dedesf any claim, whether or not such claim
is ultimately defeated, or the amount of any gathfsettlement or judgment arising from any suaint) of whatever kind or nature,
contingent or otherwise, matured or unmatured steeable or unforeseeable (including without linetareasonable attorneys’ fees and
disbursements and consultants’ fees) any of whielirgurred at any time as a result of the existasfdHazardous Material upon, about, or
beneath the Property or migrating or threateningpigrate to or from the Property, or the existeata violation of Environmental
Requirements pertaining to the Property and thigides thereon, regardless of whether the existasfcsuch Hazardous Material or the
violation of Environmental Requirements arose ptiothe present ownership or operation of the FtgpeEnvironmental Damages include,
without limitation:

0] damages for personal injury, or injury to propantynatural resources occurring upon or off of theperty,
including, without limitation, lost profits, consegntial damages, the cost of demolition and reingldf any improvements on real property,
interest, penalties and damages arising from claimsght by or on behalf of employees of Tenantiwespect to which Tenant waives any
right to raise as a defense against Landlord amyunity to which it may be entitled under any indigtor worker’'s compensation laws);
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(i) fees, costs or expenses incurred for the servicatiarneys, consultants, contractors, expertfribries and all
other costs incurred in connection with the invgegibn or remediation of such Hazardous Materials@ation of such Environmental
Requirements, including, but not limited to, thegmaration of any feasibility studies or reportshar performance of any cleanup, remediation,
removal, response, abatement, containment, closstration or monitoring work required by any @ounental Agency or reasonably
necessary to make full economic use of the Promerainy other property in a manner consistent iatieurrent use or otherwise expended in
connection with such conditions, and including heitt limitation, any attorneys’ fees, costs andegrges incurred in enforcing the provisions
of this Lease or collecting any sums due hereunder;

(iii) liability to any third person or Governmental Aggro indemnify such person or Governmental Agermycbsts
expended in connection with the items referenceslibparagraph (ii) above; and

(iv) diminution in the fair market value of the Propeitycluding, without limitation, any reduction iaif market rental
value or life expectancy of the Property or the ioyements located thereon or the restriction orueeof or adverse impact on the marketing
of the Property or any portion thereof.

D. “ Governmental Agency” means all governmental agencies, departmentspissions, boards, bureaus or instrumentalities
of the United States, states, counties, citiespanitical subdivisions thereof.

E. The “Tenant Group ” means Tenant, Tenant’'s successors, assigneasngois, officers, directors, agents, employees,
invitees, permitees or other parties under thersigien or control of Tenant or entering the Prapeuring the term of this Lease with the
permission or knowledge of Tenant other than Lambltw its agents or employees.

5.03.2 PROHIBITIONS.

A. Other than normal quantities of general office digspand except as specified on Exhibit "D” attathereto, Tenant shall
not cause, permit or suffer any Hazardous Matésidle brought upon, treated, kept, stored, dispo§edischarged, released, produced,
manufactured, generated, refined or used upon tadeneath the Property by the Tenant Groupngrogher person without the prior written
consent of Landlord. From time to time during then of this Lease, Tenant may request Landlordfg@val of Tenant's use of other
Hazardous Materials, which approval may be withlweldandlord’s sole discretion. Tenant shall, ptim the Commencement Date, provide to
Landlord for those Hazardous Materials describe&xmibit “D” (a) a description of handling, storage, use angagial procedures, and (b) all
“community right to know” plans or disclosures amdémergency response plans which Tenant is rejtéreupply to local
Governmental Agencies pursuant to any Environmdégjuirements.

B. Tenant shall not cause, permit or suffer the entsteor the commission by the Tenant Group, or lyyather person, of a
violation of any Environmental Requirements updigwt or beneath the Property.

C. Tenant shall neither create or suffer to exist,permit the Tenant Group to create or suffer teteiny lien, security interest
or other charge or encumbrance of any kind witpeesto the Property, including, without limitaticamy lien imposed pursuant to section 107
(f) of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorizadionof 1986 (42 U.S.C. section 9607(1)) or anyikinstate statute.

D. Tenant shall not install, operate or maintain aogve or below grade tank, sump, pit, pond, lagaootloer storage or
treatment vessel or device on the Property withamidlord’s prior written consent.

5.03.3 INDEMNITY .
A. Tenant, its successors, assigns and guarantoeg agimdemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harsales

0] Landlord; and




(i) any other person who acquires all or a portiorhefRroperty in any manner (including purchasefateclosure
sale) or who becomes entitled to exercise thesightl remedies of Landlord under this Lease; and

(i) the directors, officers, shareholders, employeagnprs, agents, contractors, subcontractors, expeensees,
affiliates, lessees, mortgagees, trustees, haxsgsekes, successors, assigns and invitees of susbns, from and against any and all
Environmental Damages which exist as a result®fittivities or negligence of the Tenant Group bicl exist as a result of the breach of any
warranty or covenant or the inaccuracy of any regméation of Tenant contained in this Lease, oFdayant’s remediation of the Property or
failure to meet its obligations contained in thisalse.

B. The obligations contained in this Section 5sBall include, but not be limited to, the burded axpense of defending all
claims, suits and administrative proceedings, éfyeach claims, suits or proceedings are groundfasse or fraudulent, and conducting all
negotiations of any description, and paying andldisging, when and as the same become due, arsllgndgments, penalties or other sums
due against such indemnified persons. Landlorils able expense, may employ additional counsétathoice to associate with counsel
representing Tenant.

C. Landlord shall have the right but not the obligatio join and participate in, and control, if it slects, any legal proceedings
or actions initiated in connection with Tenant'szdedous Material activities. Landlord may alsoaotege, defend, approve and appeal any
action taken or issued by any applicable governaienithority with regard to contamination of th@perty by a Hazardous Material.

D. The obligations of Tenant in this paragraph shatise the expiration or termination of this Lease.

E. The obligations of Tenant under this paragraphl stitlbe affected by any investigation by or onddébf Landlord, or by
any information which Landlord may have or obtaithwespect thereto.

5.03.4 OBLIGATION TO REMEDIATE.

In addition to the obligation of Tenant to indenynifandlord pursuant to this Lease, Tenant shabnugpproval and demand of
Landlord, at its sole cost and expense and usingaxtors approved by Landlord, promptly take atlans to remediate the Property which are
required by any Governmental Agency, or which aasonably necessary to mitigate Environmental Dasagto allow full economic use of
the Property, which remediation is necessitatedhfitoe presence upon, about or beneath the Propédyy time during or upon termination
this Lease, of a Hazardous Material or a violabbEnvironmental Requirements existing as a reduthe activities or negligence of the
Tenant Group. Such actions shall include, butsedimited to, the investigation of the environnamondition of the Property, the preparation
of any feasibility studies, reports or remedialnglaand the performance of any cleanup, remediatmmtainment, operation, maintenance,
monitoring or restoration work, whether on or dfétProperty, which shall be performed in a manperaved by Landlord. Tenant shall take
all actions necessary to restore the Propertydadmdition existing prior to the Tenant Group’saduction of Hazardous Material upon, about
or beneath the Property, notwithstanding any lestsgrdard of remediation allowable under applicéoleor governmental policies.

5.03.5 RIGHT TO INSPECT.

Landlord shall have the right in its sole and abtotiscretion, but not the duty, to enter and cohdn inspection of the Property,
including invasive tests, at any reasonable timgetermine whether Tenant is complying with thentepf the Lease, including, but not limited
to, the compliance of the Property and the acéisithereon with Environmental Requirements anexistence of Environmental Damages
result of the condition of the Property or surroimgcoroperties and activities thereon. Landlordlishave the right, but not the duty, to retain
any independent professional consultant (t@®fisultant ) to enter the Property to conduct such an inspeair to review any report
prepared by or for Tenant concerning such compdiarihe cost of the Consultant shall be paid bydle@nd unless such investigation discloses
a violation of any Environmental Requirement by Tremant Group or the existence of a Hazardous lidhtem the Property or any other
property caused by the activities or negligencthefTenant Group (other than
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Hazardous Materials used in compliance with alliEEmmental Requirements and previously approvetidndlord), in which case Tenant
shall pay the cost of the Consultant. Tenant hegeants to Landlord, and the agents, employeessudtants and contractors of Landlord the
right to enter the Property and to perform suctsten the Property as are reasonably necessaonthuct such reviews and investigations.
Landlord shall use commercially reasonable effrtsiinimize interference with the business of Teénan

5.03.6 NOTIFICATION .

If Tenant shall become aware of or receive noticetiber communication concerning any actual, alegespected or threatened
violation of Environmental Requirements, or liatyilof Tenant for Environmental Damages in connectidth the Property or pastor present
activities of any person thereon, including, but liroited to, notice or other communication congéegnany actual or threatened investigation,
inquiry, lawsuit, claim, citation, directive, summg proceeding, complaint, notice, order, writinpunction, relating to same, then Tenant shall
deliver to Landlord within ten (10) days of theegat of such notice or communication by Tenantriten description of said violation,
liability, or actual or threatened event or corafititogether with copies of any documents evidepsame. Receipt of such notice shall not be
deemed to create any obligation on the part of laaddo defend or otherwise respond to any sucHication.

If requested by Landlord, Tenant shall discloskandlord the names and amounts of all Hazardougiliédd other than general office
supplies referred to in Section 5.08f2his Addendum, which were used, generated,atedtandled, stored or disposed of on the Property
which Tenant intends to use, generate, treat, bastiire or dispose of on the Property. The fdregim no way shall limit the necessity for
Tenant obtaining Landlord’s consent pursuant tdi&e&.03.2of this Addendum.

5.03.7 SURRENDER OF PROPERTY

In the ninety (90) days prior to the expiratiort@mmination of the Lease Term, and for up to nin(®@) days after Tenant fully
surrenders possession of the Property, Landlordhmag an environmental assessment of the Propertyrmed in accordance with
Section 5.03.%f this Addendum. Tenant shall perform, at itesmist and expense, any clean-up or remedial veadmmended by the
Consultant which is necessary to remove, mitigatemediate any Hazardous Materials and/or contatioim of the Property caused by the
activities or negligence of the Tenant Group.

5.03.8 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.

In the event the Lease provides that Tenant magrafise Lease or sublet the Property subject tallaxd’s consent and/or certain
other conditions, and if the proposed assignee&iblessee’s activities in or about the Propenplive the use, handling, storage or disposal of
any Hazardous Materials other than general offiggbes or those used by Tenant and in quantitilspgocesses similar to Tenant’s uses in
compliance with the Addendum, (i) it shall be rezsae for Landlord to withhold its consent to sasisignment or sublease in light of the risk
of contamination posed by such activities andfpiL@ndlord may impose an additional condition tels assignment or sublease which req
Tenant to reasonably establish that such assignesisblessee’s activities pose no materially gredgk of contamination to the Property than
do Tenants permitted activities in view of (a) the quansti¢oxicity and other properties of the Hazardowevials to be used by such assig
or sublessee, (b) the precautions against a retdd$azardous Materials such assignee or subleggees to implement, (c) such assignee’s or
sublessee’s financial condition as it relatesda@dbility to fund a major clean-up and (d) suchgas=e’s or sublessee’s policy and historical
record respecting its willingness to respond todlean up of a release of Hazardous Materials.

5.03.9 SURVIVAL OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS OBLIGATION.

Tenant’s breach of any of its covenants or oblayaiunder this Addendum shall constitute a matdeé&dult under the Lease. The
obligations of Tenant under this Addendum shalVisrthe expiration or earlier termination of thedse without any limitation, and shall
constitute obligations that are independent andrsdoe from Tenant's covenants and obligationsatorent under the Lease.
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5.03.10 LANDLORD’S HAZARDOUS MATERIALS OBLIGATIONS.

Landlord shall be solely responsible to remediddats, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, cisltdljties and losses which arise
as a result of any contamination directly arisirapf the introduction of Hazardous Materials inte Broperty by Landlord, its agents,
employees or contractors in compliance with appliedaw. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlotdl not be responsible or liable for any
consequential damages. The obligation of Landlottiis Section 5.03.16hall survive the expiration or termination of thisase.

SECTION 5.04 SIGNS.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to Landlsrgrior written approval, which shall not be unieably withheld, delayed or
conditioned, and provided all signs are in keepitityh the quality, design and style of the industpark within which the Property is located,
Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, may indititification signage (limited to one monument sfgiMonument Sign”) and two property
building signs (“Building Sign ") per street frontage (collectively,sign(s)”) in the Property; provided, however, that (i) siee, color,
location, materials and design of such sign shaBibject to Landlord’s prior written consent, whahall not be unreasonably withheld,
delayed or conditioned; (ii) such sign shall compith all applicable governmental rules and regafet and the Property’s covenants,
conditions and restrictions; (iii) such sign shmlpersonal to the original Tenant named in Sedti®3of this Lease (and not any other
assignee, sublessee or transferee of Tenant'e#ttierthis Lease) (©riginal Tenant ”); (iv) such Building Sign shall not be paintenettly
on the building or attached or placed on the rddhe building; (v) such sign shall only advertis#gead Sciences, and its pharmaceutical
business; (vi) consistent with Landlord’s signagegram and rules; (vii) Tenant’s continuing sigaaight shall be contingent upon the
Original Tenant actually occupying the entire Progeand (viii) Tenant’s continuing signage righiadl be contingent upon Tenant maintaining
such sign in a first-class condition. Tenant shaltesponsible for all costs incurred in connexctidth the design, construction, installation,
repair and maintenance of Tenant’s sign(s). Uperekpiration or earlier termination of this LeaBenant shall cause Tenant’s sign(s) to be
removed and shall repair any damage caused byrsaubval. Any signs, notices, logos, pictures, napreadvertisements which are installed
and that have not been separately approved by dahdiay be removed by Landlord without notice bydlard to Tenant at Tenast5ole cos
and expense.”

SECTION 5.05 LANDLORD’S INDEMNITY .

Landlord agrees to indemnify and hold harmless meagainst and from any and all claims and costssanable attorneys’ fees or
liabilities incurred as a direct result of any otadr any action or proceeding directly arising frima following, except to the extent of Tenant's
actions or omissions: (i) any breach or defauthm performance of any obligation of Landlord heer; or (ii) any active negligence or
willful misconduct of Landlord, or any of its agenemployees, invitees, licensees or contractdwithstanding anything to the contrary set
forth in this Lease, either party’s agreement tteimnify the other party as set forth in this SecBd5shall be ineffective to the extent the
matters for which such party agreed to indemni#y/dther party are covered by insurance requirdxetearried by the non-indemnifying party
pursuant to this Lease. Further, Tenant's agreetoeéndemnify Landlord and Landlord’s agreemeninemnify Tenant pursuant to this
Section 5.05 are not intended to and shall not relieve anyirizisce carrier of its obligations under policieguieed to be carried pursuant to
provisions of this Lease, to the extent such pedicover, or if carried, would have covered thetenst subject to the parties’ respective
indemnification obligations; nor shall they supeis@ny inconsistent agreement of the parties skt iio any other provision of this Lease.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaiirethis Lease, nothing in this Lease shall impasg@bligations on Tenant or Landlord to
responsible or liable for, and each hereby reletisesther from all liability for, consequentialrdages other than those consequential damage
incurred by Landlord in connection with a holdoeéthe Property by Tenant after the expirationamtier termination of this Lease, incurred
by Landlord in connection with the contaminatiortted Property or any property resulting from thesence or use of Hazardous Materials
caused or permitted by the Tenant Group or incuosetdandlord in connection with any repair, physioanstruction or improvement work
performed by or on behalf of Tenant in the Propeffyeither party breaches this Lease by its failto carry the required insurance hereunder,
such failure shall automatically be deemed to beveenant and agreement by the failing party toisslfire such required coverage, with full
waiver of subrogation in favor of the other party.




SECTION 6.03 LANDLORD’S OBLIGATIONS.

Subject to the provisions of Article Seven (Damag®estruction) and Article Eight (Condemnatiom)daxcept for damage caused
by any act or omission of Tenant, or Tenant’s elygs, agents, contractors or invitees, or as 4 r@slienant’s alterations, Landlord shall
keep the structural portions of the building foutat® roof structure and the exterior walls on Ereperty in good order, condition and repair.
However, Landlord shall not be obligated to mamtai repair roof membrane, windows, doors, platsglor the surfaces of walls. Landlord
shall not be obligated to make any repairs undsr3bction 6.03intil a reasonable time after receipt of a writtetice from Tenant of the ne
for such repairs. Tenant waives the benefit of gmgent or future law which might give Tenant iight to repair the Property at Landlord’s
expense or to terminate the Lease because of titdtiom of the Property. Landlord hereby assign$¥enant all warranties and guaranties by
the contractor who constructed the building andah¢fmprovements located on the Property and Temaivies all claims against Landlord
relating thereto.

SECTION 6.06 CONDITION UPON TERMINATION.

Section 6.08s hereby amended by adding the following at the: thereof:

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant may requeshe time it seeks Landlord’s consent to anyratlkens, additions or
improvements (collectively, theAlterations "), that Landlord state at the time it grants apptpwhether or not removal will be
required at the end of the Lease Term. Such réghed specifically cite this Lease provision drahdlord’s obligation to make such
statement.”

SECTION 9.02 TENANT AFFILIATE .

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary containe&ection 9.0Dbf this Lease, an assignment or subletting of @l portion of the
Property to an affiliate of Tenant (an entity whistcontrolled by, controls, or is under commonteanwith, Tenant) or to any corporation
resulting from a merger of, consolidation with egaisition of Tenant (collectively, Tenant Affiliate "), shall not be deemed a transfer under
Section 9.0%or which consent is required, provided that: Tignant notifies Landlord of any such assignmersutrease; (ii) promptly suppli
Landlord with any documents or information requedig Landlord regarding such assignment or subleasach affiliate; (iii) if requested by
Landlord, guaranty this Lease using Landlord’s d#ad guaranty form; (iv) Tenant Affiliate assunadisof Tenant’s obligations under this
Lease; and (v) such assignment or sublease issuditarfuge by Tenant to avoid its obligations urttes Lease. Control ,” as used herein,
shall mean the ownership, directly or indirectliableast fifty-one percent (51%) of the votingwseties of, or possession of the right to vote,
in the ordinary direction of its affairs, of at &difty-one percent (51%) of the voting interastany person or entity. In such instance, Tenant
shall not be obligated to pay Landlord the incrdaBase Rent described in Section 9.05(b)(i) resufrom a Profit derived from Tenant’s
Affiliate.

SECTION 10.07 ARBITRATION .

10.07.1 General Submittals to ArbitratianThe submittal of all matters to arbitration ttardance with the terms of this
Section 10.07s the sole and exclusive method, means and proe¢duesolve any and all claims, disputes or desamgents arising under this
Lease, including, but not limited to, any mattdatieg to Landlord’s failure to approve an assignmeublease or other transfer of Tenant’s
interest in the Lease under the terms of this Leasg other defaults by Landlord, or any defauliliepant, except for (i) the determination of
the Fair Rental Value, which determination shalhiede pursuant to Option to Extend Term Lease Ritlached to this Lease, (ii) all claims
by either party which (A) seek anything other tleafiorcement of rights under this Lease, includimighout limitation, a claim of constructive
eviction, or (B) are primarily founded upon mattefgraud, willful misconduct, bad faith or any ethallegations of tortious action, and seek
the award of punitive or exemplary damages, (iéhtlord’s exercise of any unlawful detainer rightssuant to California law or rights or
remedies used by Landlord to gain possession dPttbperty or terminate Tenant’s right of possessiathe Property, and disputes relating
thereto, which matters shall be resolved by slgtlfin the Superior Court of Los Angeles Countylifémia, the decision of which court shall
be subject to appeal pursuant to applicable law (&) claims for restraining orders or other injtime relief. The parties hereby irrevocably
waive any and all rights to the contrary and sagdll times conduct themselves in strict, fullmgmete
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and timely accordance with the terms of this Sexc1i0.07and all attempts to circumvent the terms of thisti®a 10.07shall be absolutely null
and void and of no force or effect whatsoever.tdany matter submitted to arbitration (except wébpect to the payment of money) to
determine whether a matter would, with the passéddjene, constitute a default under this Leasehquatssage of time shall not commence to
run until any such affirmative arbitrated deterntio@, as long as it is simultaneously determinediioh arbitration that the challenge of such
matter as a potential default by Tenant or Landlastthe case may be, was made in good faith.o Asyt matter submitted to arbitration with
respect to the payment of money, to determine venettmatter would, with the passage of time, ctutstia default under this Lease, such
passage of time shall not commence to run in teatethat the party which is obligated to make tagnpent does in fact make the payment to
the other party. Such payment can be made “unaéegt,”which shall occur when such payment is accompalnyea good faith notice statir
the reasons that the party has elected to makgragra under protest. Such protest will be deemaided unless the subject matter identified
in the protest is submitted to arbitration as eetfin this Section 10.07

10.07.2 Retired Judges Any dispute to be arbitrated pursuant to thevigions if this Section 10.03hall be determined by binding
arbitration before a retired judge of the Supe@ourt of the State of California, or a retired jedgom the California Court of Appeal (the “
Arbitrator ). Such arbitration shall be initiated by the part@seither of them, within ten (10) days after eitparty sends written notice (

“ Arbitration Notice ") of a demand to arbitrate by registered or cexdifmail to the other party. The Arbitration Netishall contain a
description of the subject matter of the arbitmatithe dispute with respect thereto, the amourdlirad, if any, and the remedy or determination
sought. The parties shall thereupon select aetkjirdge from either the Superior Court of Califarar the California Court of Appeal to serve
as the Arbitrator. If the parties are unable twnmptly agree on the identity of the Arbitrator, hthe retired judge which shall serve as
Arbitrator shall be selected by the Presiding Junfghe Los Angeles County Superior Court. Upded#n of the Arbitrator, the parties’
dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitratiodemthe commercial arbitration rules of the Amemiéabitration Association then in effect.

10.07.3 Arbitration Procedure

10.07.3.1 PiBecision Actions The Arbitrator shall schedule a grearing conference to resolve procedural ma
arrange for the exchange of information, obtaipudéitions, and narrow the issues. The partiessuiimit proposed discovery schedules to the
Arbitrator at the prérearing conference. The scope and duration obdesy will be within the sole discretion of the Atrator. The Arbitrato
shall have the discretion to order a pre-heariraharge of information by the parties, includingtheut limitation, production of requested
documents, exchange of summaries of testimonyayqsed witnesses, and examination by depositigmaufes and third-party witnesses.
This discretion shall be exercised in favor of diggry reasonable under the circumstances.

10.07.3.2 The DecisionThe arbitration shall be conducted in Los Anget@alifornia. Any party may be represer
by counsel or other authorized representativeretdering a decision(s), the Arbitrator shall detiee the rights and obligations of the parties
according to the substantive and procedural lawBadifornia and the terms and provisions of thiade2 The Arbitrator’'s decision shall be
based on the evidence introduced at the hearinydimg all logical and reasonable inferences tinene. The Arbitrator may make any
determination, and/or grant any remedy or reliaf b just and equitable. The decision must bedbas, and accompanied by, a written
statement of decision explaining the factual ag@léasis for the decision as to each of the gralaiontroverted issues. The decision shall be
conclusive and binding, and it may thereafter befiomed as a judgment by the Superior Court ofStege of California, subject only to
challenge on the grounds set forth in California€of the Civil Procedure Section 1286.2. Thedigliand enforceability of the Arbitrator’s
decision is to be determined exclusively by thefGadia courts pursuant to the provisions of theske. The Arbitrator may award costs,
including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees, aagpert and witness costs, to the prevailing pa@rany, as determined by the Arbitrator in the
Arbitrator’s discretion. The Arbitrator’s feesdnosts shall be paid by the non-prevailing pastgetermined by the Arbitrator in the
Arbitrator’s discretion. A party shall be determihby the Arbitrator to be the prevailing partjtsf proposal for the resolution of dispute is the
closer to that adopted by the Arbitrator.




SECTION 11.01 NON-DISTURBANCE.

Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efftarigrovide Tenant with a non-disturbance agreenierstich form as attached
hereto as ExhibitB” from Landlord’s presently existing lender.

SECTION 13.12 FORCE MAJEURE

If Landlord or Tenant cannot perform any of itsightions due to events beyond such applicable jsactntrol, except with respect to
the obligations imposed with regard to Base Redtilonal Rent and other charges to be paid by iieparsuant to this Lease, the time
provided for performing such obligations shall béeaded by a period of time equal to the duratibsuch events. Events beyond Landlord’s
or Tenant’s control include, but are not limitegdots of God, war, civil commotion, labor disputetsikes, fire, flood or other casualty,
shortages of labor or material, government reguadir restriction, waiting periods for obtainingvgonmental permits or approval or weather
conditions.

ARTICLE FIFTEEN
REVENUE AND EXPENSE ACCOUNTING

Landlord and Tenant agree that, for all purposadyiding any determination under Section 467 ofititernal Revenue Code), rental
income will accrue to the Landlord and rental exgesnwill accrue to the Tenant in the amounts araf &g dates rent is payable under the
Lease.

ARTICLE SIXTEEN
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 6288l 6.04 Landlord shall maintain, at Tenant’s expense)dhdscaping of the
Property and, if applicable, the common areas.h®u@intenance shall include gardening, tree tringmiaplacement or repair of landscaping,
landscape irrigation systems and similar itemschSunaintenance shall also include sweeping anchiclgaf asphalt, concrete or other surfe
on the driveway, parking areas, yard areas, loaaliags or other paved or covered surfaces. Inemiom with Landlord’s obligations under
this Article, Landlord may enter into a contractiwa landscape contractor of Landlord’s choicertivigle some (but not necessarily all) of the
maintenance services listed above. Tenant’'s mpitigt of such contract, hereinafter referred tthas'Landscape Fee” is currently SIX
HUNDRED FIFTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($650.00). Landtbshall use its commercially reasonable effortsi&intain competitive
contracts and shall promptly notify Tenant of amgrease in the Landscape Fee. Tenant agrees togathly to Landlord, as Additional Rent,
the Landscape Fee. Tenant shall make such payogather with Tenant’'s monthly rental payment, withthe necessity of notice from
Landlord. It is the understanding of the partlest the Landscape Fee only pertains to routinestzagme maintenance on the Property and that
Landlord may incur expenses in addition to the Issmaghe Fee (which shall not include Landlord’s ogarthand Landlord’s administrative
expenses) in meeting its obligations set forth @bolenant shall pay to Landlord, as Additional Resithin ten (10) days after demand
therefore, the cost of such additional expenses.

ARTICLE SEVENTEEN
PURCHASE OPTION - RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

Landlord hereby grants to the original Tenant, vehwame is set forth in Section 1.6f3his Lease (‘Original Tenant ") and Tenant
Affiliate, a one-time right of first refusal to pelvase the Property, in accordance with the terntisi@fArticle 17. Landlord agrees that
provided Tenant has not been in default underltbése, Landlord shall deliver written notice to @en(“ Landlord’s First Refusal Notice )
prior to the time Landlord intends to submit totlird party,” or accept from a “third party,” a bmfide proposal to purchase the entire
Property. For purposes of this Article B third party” shall not include a party affiled or related to Landlord. Landlord shall identify
Landlord’s First Refusal Notice the economic teupsn which Landlord would sell the Property to Trmancluding, without limitation, the
anticipated closing date and the purchase prite toaid for the Property (collectively, th&tonomic Terms”).
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SECTION 17.1 PROCEDURE FOR ACCEPTANCE

On or before the date which is seven (7) days agaant’s receipt of Landlord’s First Refusal Netithe “Election Day”), Tenant
shall deliver written notice to Landlord Teenant’s Election Notice”) pursuant to which Tenant shall have the one-tilgbt to elect either to
(i) purchase the Property upon the Economic Tesendorth in the First Refusal Notice, or (ii) refuto purchase the Property. If Tenant does
not respond in writing to Landlord’s First Refudidtice by the Election Date, Tenant shall be deetadtve elected not to purchase the
Property.

SECTION 17.2 TENANT'S ELECTION NOT TO PURCHASE

If Tenant elects or is deemed to have electedmptitchase the Property, then Tenant's first réfights set forth in this Article 17
shall terminate with respect to the Property, aaddlord shall have the right to sell the Propestartyone to whom Landlord desires on any
terms Landlord desires, provided, however, if Térs@mds a notice in accordance with Section 17 difibve then Tenant’s right of first refusal
may arise again if Landlord intends to sell theperty at a purchase price that is ten percent (188ew such purchase price set forth in the
Landlord First Refusal Notice or on other econotaitns that are materially more favorable than settforth in Landlord’s First Refusal
Notice.

SECTION 17.3 CONDITION OF PROPERTY

If Tenant elects to purchase the Property pursteeathtis Article 17, Landlord and Tenant shall promptly execute tleppr documents
necessary to memorialize Tenant's purchase of thpePty upon the terms and conditions set fortthis Article 17. If Tenant purchases the
Property pursuant to the terms of this Article, T&nant shall take the Property in its “AS-IS” ddion, unless otherwise specified as part of
the Economic Terms in Landlord’s First Refusal Metisubject, however, to Tenant’s review and apgdrof/a preliminary title report within
ten (10) days after receipt thereof.

SECTION 17.4 SUSPENSION OF RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL

Tenant shall not have the right to purchase theéttg as provided in this Article 1} as of the date of attempted exercise of thjht
of first refusal by Tenant or as of the date escctmges, Tenant has been in default under thisd_kagond applicable notice and cure periods.
In addition, and notwithstanding anything to thatcary contained in this Article 1,2he rights to purchase the Property containetigm
Article 17 shall be personal to the Original Tenant and TeAdfiltate and may only be exercised by the Oridiienant (and not any assignee,
sublessee or other transferee of Tenant's intardahis Lease) and Tenant Affiliate if, at the timkthe attempted exercise of any such right of
first refusal, the Original Tenant and Tenant Adfié occupies the entire Property.

SECTION 17.5 MULTIPLE BUILDING TRANSACTIONS.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereinndiet’s right of first refusal shall not apply todashall not include: (i) “REIT”
transactions; (ii) if the Property is part of mplé properties included within a “package saldfl) ény sale or transfer that is not for 100% of
the Property; and (iv) any sale or transfer thatite a party affiliate or related to Landlord.

SECTION 17.6 1031 EXCHANGE.

As an accommodation to Landlord, Tenant agreesdperate with Landlord in effectuating a like-kiexichange of the Property
pursuant to Section 1031 of the Internal RevenudeGd 1986, as amended (th&EXchange”), including the execution of documents related
thereto.
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO INDUSTRIAL REAL ESTATE LEAE (“ First Amendment ") is made and entered into as of
March 3, 2003 (the First Amendment Date”), by and between MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES, LLGZalifornia limited liability
company (“Landlord "), and GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., a Delaware corpooati(“ Tenant”).

RECITALS

A. Tenant and Landlord entered into that certain ItriaiReal Estate Lease (thd_gase”), dated July 20, 2000, whereby
Landlord leased to Tenant and Tenant leased fraomdlbed approximately 53,600 square feet of spdue (Property ") more commonly
known as 542 West Covina Boulevard, San Dimasf@ala.

B. The parties desire to amend the Lease on the @mohsonditions set forth in this First Amendment.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoirgitals and the mutual covenants contained heaeih for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficieocyhich are hereby acknowledged, the partiestbérereby agree as follows:

1. Terms . All undefined terms when used herein shall hheesame respective meanings as are given such tetime Lease
unless expressly provided otherwise in this Finstehdment.

2. Lease Term.

2.1 Extended Lease Term The Lease Term is currently scheduled to expiréay 31, 2006 (the Lease Expiration
Date”). As of the First Amendment Date, the Lease Teymxtended to November 30, 2013 (tHeevised Lease Expiration Daté), and,
unless sooner terminated under the terms of thed,es amended by this First Amendment, will expir¢ghe Revised Lease Expiration Date.
The period of time beginning on the day followihg _ease Expiration Date and continuing throughRbeised Lease Expiration Date is the “
Extended Lease Term”

2.2 Termination Right . Tenant shall have the one-time right to tern@rthe Lease, as amended, effective as of
December 1, 2009 (theTermination Date "), provided that: (a) Landlord receives writtestioe (the “Termination Notice ") from Tenant
on or before the date which is twelve (12) monttisrgo the Termination Date stating that Tenamefils to terminate the Lease, as amended,
pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Sac@i@; (b) concurrent with Landlord’s receipt of the frénation Notice, Landlord receives
from Tenant the sum of ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE THOBND SIX HUNDRED FIFTY-FOUR AND 40/100 DOLLARS ($15654.40)
as consideration for and as a condition precedestich early termination; and (c) Tenant has nehbe default under the Lease, as amended,
as of the date of

542 West Covina Blvd., San Dimas,
April 7, 2003 (GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.




Tenant'’s delivery of the Termination Notice or Témation Date. Provided that Tenant terminated #eese, as amended, pursuant to the terms
of this Section 2.2 the Lease, as amended, shall automatically teteiand be of no further force or effect as offthamination Date, and
Landlord and Tenant shall be relieved of their eetipe obligations under the Lease, as amendedifigpdly including, without limitation, any
right, if any, Tenant may have to audit or revieandlord’s books and records or to contest Tengmtysnent of Additional Rent; provided,
however, notwithstanding anything to the contraogtained in the Lease, as amended, with respectyt@bligation of Tenant under the Lee
as amended, which accrues prior to the Termin&iate and is not satisfied by Tenant prior to therieation Date (e.g., Tenant's payment of
Rent and Tenant’s maintenance and repair obligsti@nd Tenant’s obligations that survive the teation of the Lease, as amended
(including, without limiting to, Tenant’s obligaticto remediate any Environmental Damages), Landibedl have all the rights and remedies
with respect to such obligations as set forth altbase, as amended. Tenant shall vacate therBrppesuant to the Lease, as amended, and
surrender and deliver exclusive possession théoelodindlord on or before the Termination Date inaadance with the provisions of the Le:
as amended. In the event Tenant retains possessibe Property or any part thereof after the Tieation Date, then the provisions of
Section 2.04f the Lease, as amended, shall apply. The riggrigained in this Section 2shall be personal to the Tenant named in the
Summary (and not any assignee, sublessee or otimsféree of Tenant's interest in the Lease, asidet (the ‘Original Tenant ") and may
only be exercised by the Original Tenant if thegdral Tenant occupies the entire Property.

3. Rent.

3.1 Base Rent Commencing as of June 1, 2006 and continuini Miaty 31, 2011, Tenant will pay an amount equz
TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED FORTY-TWO AND 4Q/00 DOLLARS ($25,942.40) per month as Base Rentuthaier the
Lease, as amended by this First Amendment. Comimgeas of June 1, 2011 and continuing until theisel Lease Expiration Date, Tenant
will pay an amount equal to TWENTY-EIGHT THOUSANDMVE HUNDRED THIRTY-SIX AND 64/100 DOLLARS ($28,5364) per
month as Base Rent due under the Lease, as ambydeid First Amendment.

3.2 Security Deposit; Termination; Advance Payment Section 3.04 of the Lease shall be deleted epldced as

follows:

“Upon termination of this Lease under Article SeyBamage or Destruction), Article Eight (Condemaajior any
other termination not resulting from Tenant’s défaand after Tenant has vacated the Propertydmthnner required by this
Lease, Landlord shall (within sixty (60) days frdmnant delivering exclusive possession of the Rtgpe Landlord) refund
to Tenant (or Tenant’s successor) the unused poofithe Security Deposit, any advance rent orratldgance payments
made by Tenant to Landlord, and any amounts paicefd property taxes and other reserves whichyajophny time periods
after termination of the Lease.”




3.3 Real Estate Taxes Tenant shall, as set forth in Section 4.02(ahefLease, pay the real property taxes directly to
the respective taxing authority.

3.4 Real Property Tax Penalty. Section 4.02(a) of the Lease shall be revisatiTenant shall only be responsible for
any real property tax penalty to the extent suaiaftg is caused by Tenant's acts or omissions.

3.5 Late Charge. Effective as of the commencement of the Exteridesase Term, the late charge as set forth in
Section 4.05 of the Lease shall be reduced to gigiaent (8%).

3.6 Landlord’s Books and Records In the event that Tenant disputes the amouahgfstatement (Statement”)
delivered by Landlord, then within six (6) monttieareceipt of such Statement by Tenant, Tenaait Blave the right to request and receive
from Landlord any reasonable backup informatiohandlord’s possession regarding such Statement.

4, Hazardous Material . Effective as of the commencement of the Exteridestse Term, the following revisions shall be made
to Section 5.03 of the Lease as set forth below:

4.1 Section 5.03.3.C of the Lease shall be deletedepidced as follows:

“Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligat to join and participate in control, with Te'arcommercially
reasonable consent, which consent shall not beasamably withheld, if it so elects, any legal pestiags or actions initiatir
connection with Tenant’s Hazardous Material adtgiton the Property. Landlord may also negotideéend, approve and
appeal any action taken or issued by any applicgNernmental authority with regard to contaminaiid the Property by a
Hazardous Material.”

4.2 The following shall be added to the end of SectidI8.3.E of the Lease:

“Landlord shall provide Tenant with copies of anformation, report or related document that Lardilacquires,
within thirty (30) days from completion and recedftsaid report.”

4.3 The first sentence of Section 5.03.5 of the Leasd be deleted and replaced as follows:
“Landlord shall have the right in its sole and dbsodiscretion, but not the duty, to enter (upeerity-four (24)
hours notice, except no notice is required if Landlhas a reasonable belief that Tenant is cre&invronmental Damage ¢

the Property) and conduct an inspection of the éntgpincluding invasive tests, during regular gtise hours, to determine
whether Tenant is complying with the terms of tleage, including but not
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limited to the compliance of the Property and tbivdies thereon with Environmental Requirememntd ¢he existence of
Environmental Damages as a result of the condafahe Property or surrounding properties and &aithereon.”

4.4 The first paragraph of Section 5.03.6 of the Lests#l be deleted and replaced as follows:

“If Tenant or Landlord shall become aware of oreiige notice or other communication concerning artya,
alleged, suspected or threatened violation of Bmvitental Requirements, or liability of Tenant ontbord for
Environmental Damages in connection with the Prigpar past or present activities of any personebar including but not
limited to notice or other communication concernamy actual or threatened investigation, inquiayyduit, claim, citation,
directive, summons, proceeding, complaint, noticder, writ, or injunction, relating to same, thBenant or Landlord shall
deliver to the other party within ten (10) daydlué receipt of such notice or communication, atemitdescription of said
violation, liability, or actual or threatened evemtcondition, together with copies of any docursentidencing same. Rece
of such notice shall not be deemed to create aligation on the part of Landlord to defend or othise respond to any such
notification.”

4.5 The following shall be added to the end of SecEd8.7 of the Lease:

“Tenant shall have the right to observe Landloatigironmental assessment.”
4.6 Section 5.03.10 of the Lease shall be deleted epldced as follows:

“Landlord shall be solely responsible to remed@&éms, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, dasdities and
losses which arise as a result of any contamindalii@ctly arising from the introduction of HazardoMaterials into the
Property prior to Tenant’s occupancy or by Landlaslagents, employees or contractors, in compéamith applicable law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall netresponsible or liable for any consequential d@&sagd he obligation of

Landlord in this Section 5.03.Hhall survive the expiration or termination of thsase.”

5. Alterations, Additions and Improvements. Effective as of the commencement of the Exterldsse Term, the first
sentence of Section 6.05 of the Lease shall beeteénd replaced as follows:
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“Tenant shall not make any alterations, additiamsmprovements to the Property without Landlonaf®r written
consent, which shall not be unreasonably withhetdept for non-structural alterations which do eateed Sixty Thousand
Dollars ($60,000) in cost per project and whichr@oéevisible from the outside of any building of isth the Property is part.”

6. Estoppel Certificate. Effective as of the commencement of the Exteridease Term, the following shall be added to
Section 1 1.04(c) of the Lease:

“Upon Tenant’s written request, Landlord shall execan estoppel certificate certifying to Landlardctual
knowledge without any duty to investigate whethenat: (i) this Lease has been modified; (ii) thesase has been canceled;
and (iii) Tenant is in default under this Lease.”

7. Tenant's Financial Condition. Effective as of the commencement of the Exteridease Term, the following shall be
added to Section 11.05 of the Lease:

“If the Original Tenant has not been in monetarfadé under this Lease then Landlord’s right touest financial
statements shall not exceed one (1) time per catgrehr (except if such financial statement is ested from Landlord’s
lender).”

8. Tenant's Acceptance of the Property Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that Tenanbkas occupying the Property
pursuant to the Lease, since on or about ApriD®12 and therefore Tenant continues to acceptrbygelty in its presently existing, “as is”
condition and Landlord has made no representatievaoranty with regard to the condition of the Redy or the suitability thereof for Tenast’
business, nor shall Landlord be obligated to prewddpay for any improvement work or services eglab the improvement of the Property.

9. Deletions. Effective as of the First Amendment Date thei@pto Extend Term Lease Rider, attached to theséémhereby
deleted and shall be of no further force or effect.

10. Brokers . The parties recognize that the only broker imgdlin the negotiation of this First Amendment iajéktic Realty
Co. and agree that Landlord shall be solely respnfor the payment of any “Brokerage Commissitmsuch broker. Each party represents
and warrants to the other that they have not ad@titany other broker in connection with the negtitin and consummation of this First
Amendment and they each know of no other realestatker, agent or finder who is, or might be, teedito a commission or compensation in
connection with this First Amendment. Each pagseas to indemnify and defend the other party agaémd hold the other party harmless
from, any and all claims, demands, losses, liaddjtdamages, lawsuits, judgments, and costs gmehegs (including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs) with regpenty leasing commission or equivalent compensatileged to be owing on account of the
indemnifying party’s dealings with any other resfate broker or agent.
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11. No Other Modifications . Except as otherwise provided herein, all otkems and provisions of the Lease shall remain in
full force and effect, unmodified by this First Amdment.

12. Binding Effect . The provisions of this First Amendment shalblieding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs,
representatives, successors and permitted asdi¢ims parties hereto.

13. Authority . The parties represent and warrant that they tievesquisite authority to bind the entity on wadhalf they
are signing.

14. Counterparts . This First Amendment may be executed in any remolb original counterparts. Any such counterparten
executed, shall constitute an original of this FAmendment, and all such counterparts togethdl sbiastitute one and the same First
Amendment.

[Signatures on next page.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered ihte First Amendment as of the date first set fattbve.

“LANDLORD”

MAJESTIC-MAPA PROPERTIES, LLC
a California limited liability company

By: MAJESTIC REALTY CO.,
a California corporation
Its Manage!

By:: /s/ David A. Wheeler, Preside

By:/s/ Jay H. Bradfor

Executive Vice President and Chief Finan:
Officer

“TENANT”

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
a Delaware corporatic

By: /s/ Anthony D. Caracciol

Its:

By: /s/ Mark L. Perry

Its:Executive Vice President, Operatic




Exhibit 10.7€
CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS  DOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN

OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AN D EXCHANGE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT

by and among

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.,

GILEAD HOLDINGS, LLC,

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB COMPANY,
E.R. SQUIBB & SONS, L.L.C.,
and

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB & GILEAD SCIENCES, LLC

Dated as of December 17, 2004
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THIS COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) immade as of December 17, 2004 (the “Effective Datay)
and among Gilead Sciences, Inc., a corporationnizgd and existing under the laws of the Stateeldidare and having its principal place of
business at 333 Lakeside Drive, Foster City, CAGM@Gilead Parent”), Gilead Holdings, LLC, a Delaw limited liability company and
wholly-owned subsidiary of Gilead Parent (“GileagbSand, collectively with Gilead Parent, “GileadBristol-Myers Squibb Company, a
corporation organized and existing under the lafith® State of Delaware and having its principakpl of business at 345 Park Avenue, New
York, NY 10154 (“BMS Parent”), E.R. Squibb & Sorsl..C., a Delaware limited liability company and elly-owned subsidiary of BMS
Parent (“BMS Sub” and, collectively with BMS ParetfBMS”), and BristolMyers Squibb & Gilead Sciences, LLC, a limited llap company
organized and existing under the laws of the Sthfgelaware and having its principal place of bess at 333 Lakeside Drive, Foster City,
94404 (the “JV") (Gilead, BMS and the JV, collediy, the “Parties” and each a “Party”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Gilead has developed and is marketingoanetary nucleotide reverse transcriptase inhipkiread® (known
under the generic name of tenofovir disoproxil fuate (“TDF")), a proprietary nucleoside reversaeseriptase inhibitor, Emtriva® (known
under the generic name of emtricitabine (“FTC"))da fixed-dose co-formulated product containing-Tdahd FTC as its only active
pharmaceutical ingredients, Truvada®, for the tresatt of HIV infection in adults;

WHEREAS, BMS has developed and is marketing a fetgny non-nucleoside reverse transcriptase intipgustiva®
(known under the generic name of efavirenz (“EF\8))the treatment of HIV infection in adults;

WHEREAS, Gilead and BMS desire to develop and comiakize in the United States, through a joint weatentity, a fixed-
dose, co-formulated combination product contaifibg-, FTC and EFV as its only active pharmaceuficgtedients;

WHEREAS, for that purpose, Gilead and BMS have frthe JV pursuant to that certain Operating Agergrantered into
as of the Effective Date by and between Gilead 8ubBMS Sub (the “Operating Agreement”);

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to allocate among thewesatertain rights and duties relating to the dgwelent and
commercialization of such a combination producgrufhe terms and conditions of this AgreementQbperating Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the BMS Guarantee Agreemethtlas Gilead Guarantee Agreement (as such terndedired
below), each dated as of the Effective Date, BM&Rtaand Gilead Parent are guaranteeing the peafocenof all of the obligations of

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THISDOCUMENT, MARKED BY BRACKETS, HAS BEEN OMITTED
AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHAKE COMMISSION PURSUANT TO RULE 24B-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.




BMS Sub and Gilead Sub, respectively, under thi;zAment, the Operating Agreement and all Ancilksgyeements to which the applicable
Affiliate (as defined below) is or becomes a party;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual pises and covenants set forth below and other goddraluable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of whikchereby acknowledged, the Parties agree aswsilo

SECTION 1.
DEFINITIONS
1.1 “Act” shall mean the United States Food, Drug amsi@etic Act, as amended.
1.2 “Actual BMS Percentage” shall mean, for each Cadenkear, the percentage applicable to BMS for Stalkendar

Year based on historical data and determined potsa&ection 7.1(b).

1.3 “Actual Gilead Percentage” shall mean, for eacle@dér Year, the percentage applicable to Gileadifoh
Calendar Year based on historical data and detedrparsuant to Section 7.1(b).

1.4 “Actual Percentage” shall mean, with respect to BM® Actual BMS Percentage and, with respect teadj the
Actual Gilead Percentage.

15 “Actual Yield” shall have the meaning set forthAnnex K.

1.6 “Affiliate” of a Person shall mean any other Persioat, directly or indirectly, through one or mamnéermediaries,

controls, is controlled by, or is under common contvith such Person. For purposes of this deéinibnly, “control” and, with correlative
meanings, the terms “controlled by” and “under camroontrol with”shall mean (a) the possession, directly or indiyeof the power to dire
the management or policies of a Person, whetheugjtr the ownership of voting securities or by cacitrelating to voting rights or corporate
governance, or (b) the ownership, directly or iadily, of more than fifty percent (50%) of the vatisecurities or other ownership interest of a
Person; providedhowever, that if local law restricts foreign ownershipntm! shall be established by direct or indirechewship of the
maximum ownership percentage that may, under sagai law, be owned by foreign interests. For pagsoof this Agreement, the Operating
Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, the JVIsi@be deemed to be an Affiliate of either GileadBMS.

1.7 “Agreement” shall have the meaning set forth infthst paragraph above.
1.8 “Alliance Manager” shall have the meaning set fortisection 2.7(a).
1.9 “Allocated Costs” shall have the meaning set fantiSection 5.12.

1.10 “AMP” shall have the meaning set forth in Annex Q.
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1.11 “Ancillary Agreements” shall mean, collectively etlBBMS Supply Agreement, the Gilead Supply Agreenitet
Services Agreement and the SDEA.

1.12 “[*] " shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.1(f

1.13 “Applicable EFV Territory” shall mean (a) with resgt to any BMS Technology licensed to BMS by th&/EF
Licensor or licensed to the EFV Licensor by BMSeath case under the EFV License Agreement, theli¢&nse Agreement Territory, and
(b) with respect to all other BMS Technology, waevide.

1.14 “Applicable Law” shall mean the applicable lawslesy and regulations, including, without limitatjany rules,
regulations, guidelines or other requirements efRegulatory Authorities, that may be in effecnfrtme to time in the Territory.

1.15 “Approvals” shall mean, collectively, the approvglanted by the Regulatory Authorities for the Miaature,
Marketing, sale and/or use of the Combination Pcoduthe Field in the Territory, including, withblimitation, pricing and reimbursement
approvals (if any).

1.16 “Approved Marketing Materials” shall have the meanset forth in Section 5.7(a).

1.17 “ [*] Representative” shall have the meaning set for®eiction 5.3(b).

1.18 “Authorized Commercialization Expenses” shall hétve meaning set forth in Section 5.12.

1.19 “Authorized Development Expenses” shall have themimgy set forth in Section 3.8.

1.20 “Authorized Expenses” shall mean, collectively, thethorized Commercialization Expenses, Authorized
Development Expenses and Authorized Other Expenses.

1.21 “Authorized Other Expenses” shall mean all JV ExgeEnexpressly stated in this Agreement or the @ipgra
Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement to be Authed20ther Expenses or agreed by the JEC to be An¢lio®ther Expenses.

1.22 “AWP” shall have the meaning set forth in Annex Q.

1.23 “BMS” shall have the meaning set forth in the fipsiragraph of this Agreement.

1.24 “BMS Core Improvement” shall mean any Improvemesrtgining specifically to BMS Core Technology, whic
Improvement is conceived, discovered, developedfterwise made, as necessary to establish authansmventorship under United States

copyright or patent law, as the case may be, solejgintly, by or on behalf of Gilead or its Afiiiites or the JV in the course of, as a result of,
or in connection with the Project Activities




conducted pursuant to the Development Plan orimmection with Co-Funded Clinical Trials; providedowever, that BMS Core
Improvements shall not include any Dual Improveraent

1.25 “BMS Core Technology” shall mean all BMS proprigtéechnologies relating specifically to the Expéion of
EFV.

1.26 “BMS Guarantee Agreement” shall mean the guaraageeement executed by BMS Parent in favor of Gikazd
the JV, dated as of the Effective Date, as suceeagent may be amended from time to time.

1.27 “BMS Indemnified Party” shall mean BMS Sub, BMS &atrand any of their Affiliates, officers, direcscaind
employees.

1.28 “BMS Inventions”shall mean any Information and Inventions (whetiramot patentable; and Improvements the
including Gilead Core Improvements to the extenhedvby BMS) conceived, discovered, developed agrattse made, as necessary to
establish authorship or inventorship under UnitedeS copyright or patent law, as the case magddely (or, in the case of Gilead Core
Improvements, solely or jointly) by or on behalfR¥S or its Affiliates, in the course of, as a résd or in connection with the Project
Activities conducted pursuant to the DevelopmeanRir in connection with Co-Funded Clinical Triddsit excluding any Joint Inventions.

1.29 “BMS Know-How” shall mean any and all Informationdalnventions under the Control of BMS or its Afitles as
of the Effective Date or at any time during thenesf this Agreement that are necessary or reaspneigiful for the Exploitation of the
Combination Product and are not generally known glxaluding any and all (a) such Information andeimtions to the extent claimed by the
BMS Patents and (b) Joint Know-How.

1.30 “BMS Licensed Trademarks” shall have the meanindaséh in Section 6.6(b).

1.31 “BMS Parent” shall have the meaning set forth i finst paragraph of this Agreement.

1.32 “BMS Patents”shall mean all of the Patents that BMS or its Adfés Control as of the Effective Date or at anye
during the term of this Agreement that would, ie #bsence of the license granted by BMS in Seétibflb) and assuming that the EFV active
pharmaceutical ingredient therein was not purch&sed BMS, be infringed by the Exploitation of ti@mbination Product by the JV in any
country in the world. A list of the BMS Patentstime Territory as of the Effective Date is attachedeto as Annex D.

1.33 “BMS Regulatory Documentation” shall mean all Regaty Documentation applicable to Sustiva (or EBM) not
Sustiva (or EFV) in co-formulation with Viread (6DF), Emtriva (or FTC), or Truvada (or TDF and FT@)at is or was developed by or on
behalf of BMS or any of its Affiliates or sublicee®s prior to the Effective Date or during the terfrthis Agreement.
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1.34 “BMS Sub” shall have the meaning set forth in tingtfoaragraph of this Agreement.

1.35 “BMS Supply Agreement” shall mean the supply agreenentered into between BMS Sub and the JV coeotiyr
with the execution and delivery of this Agreemerst such agreement may be amended from time to time.

1.36 “BMS Technology” shall mean, collectively, the BM&ow-How and the BMS Patents.
1.37 “BMS Transfer Price” shall have the meaning settfam Section 7.1(a).
1.38 “Breaching Member Party” shall have the meaningath in Section 14.4(a).

1.39 “Business Day” shall mean a day that is not a SatyirSunday or day on which banking institutionslew York,
New York or San Francisco, California are requingdaw to remain closel

1.40 “ [*] Representative” shall have the meaning set for@eiction 5.3(b).

141 “Calendar Quarter” shall mean a period of threec(8)secutive calendar months ending on March 31 30,
September 30 or December 31.

1.42 “Calendar Year” shall mean a period of twelve (¢@hsecutive calendar months commencing on Januang 1
ending on December 31.

1.43 “Change of Control” shall mean, with respect toess®n, any of the following transactions with ar@itfarty (a
“Third Party Acquirer”): (a) a merger or consoliiat of such Person with the Third Party Acquireriehtresults in the holders of the voting
securities of such Person outstanding immediatédy fhereto (other than the Third Party Acquities,“affiliates” and “associates” (as such
terms are used in the Exchange Act)) ceasing t@sept at least fifty percent (50%) of the combimeting power of the surviving entity (or, if
applicable, its parent company) immediately afteshsmerger or consolidation; (b) the sale to thiedTRarty Acquirer of all or substantially all
of the business of such Person to which this Agexemelates (whether by merger, consolidation, sh##ock, sale of assets or other similar
transaction); or (c) the Third Party Acquirer (winighall not be any trustee or other fiduciary hoddsecurities under an employee benefit plan
of such Person, or any corporation owned direatiyndirectly by the stockholders of such Persorsubstantially the same proportion as their
ownership of stock of such Person), together with @f the Third Party Acquirer’s “affiliates” or &sociates”, as such terms are used in the
Exchange Act, becoming the beneficial owner of/ffercent (50%) or more of the combined voting powfehe outstanding securities of such
Person or by contract or otherwise having the rigltontrol the Board of Directors or equivalenvgming body of such Person or the ability
to cause the direction of management of such Person

1.44 “Clinical Data” shall mean any and all data (togettvith the results of analysis thereof) derived@nerated from
any clinical trial of a pharmaceutical product mrh




testing or analysis of subjects or samples fronf suclinical trial (e.g. in vitro testing of tisssamples from subjects enrolled in such a clinical
trial), in each case where such clinical trial ilves either or both of (i) any Single Agent ProdocDouble Agent Product, whether alone or in
combination with any other product, and (ii) then@wnation Product, whether alone or in combinatigin any other product.

1.45 “Clinical Trial Registry” shall have the meaning $arth in Section 3.11(b).
1.46 “Clinical Trial Results Database” shall have theamiaeg set forth in Section 3.11(b).

1.47 “CMC Data” shall mean any and all information congal in, as well as data supporting, the “Chemijstry
Manufacturing and Controlnd facilities sections (or sections correspondirggeto) of an NDA, including, without limitatioany drug maste
files referenced in the NDA.

1.48 “Co-Funded Clinical Trial” shall have the meanirgg forth in Section 3.2(b).
1.49 “Collaboration Principles” shall have the meaniegjforth in Section 2.9.

1.50 “Combination Product” shall mean the fixed-dosef@onulated product developed pursuant to this Agret
containing, as its only active pharmaceutical idiggets per single daily dose, 300 mg TDF, 200 mg Bhd 600 mg EFV.

151 “Combination Product Regulatory Documentation” shatan all Regulatory Documentation applicablent t
Combination Product that is developed by or on Betiany Party pursuant to, and during the termtloiE Agreement, but excluding all BMS
Regulatory Documentation and all Gilead Regulai@ogumentation.

1.52 “Combination Product Trademarks” shall mean thdemark or trademarks selected by the JCC for the
Combination Product, all packaging designs andrdthee dress used in connection with the Combana@roduct, other Trademarks relating
thereto and any registrations thereof or any pendpplications relating thereto. For the avoidamicgoubt, the following shall not be
considered Combination Product Trademarks: (a) Bi8nsed Trademarks, (b) Gilead Licensed Trademamkis(c) the names, logos and
other Trademarks of the Member Parties.

1.53 “Commercialization Activities” shall mean Marketitagnd other activities for the commercializatiorthod
Combination Product including those set forth i@ @ommercialization Plan and any other of the foilgy conducted for the Combination
Product: execution of product positioning, preiaraof promotional and marketing materials, manestearch and advertising activities,
Promotion, advocacy, national accounts, governmedations activities, pricing, reimbursement antlgrd assistance programs.

1.54 “Commercialization Budget” shall have the meaniagferth in Section 5.11(b). The initial Commetization
Budget is attached hereto as Annex C.




1.55 “Commercialization Budget Deadlock” shall have theaning set forth in Section 2.10(d).

1.56 “Commercialization Plan” shall mean the plan forrkkgting and otherwise commercializing the Combirati
Product as described in Section 5.11(b), as updededtime to time pursuant to Section 5.11(c).eThitial Commercialization Plan is attacl
hereto as Annex C.

1.57 “Commercialization Plan Deadlock” shall have theamiag set forth in Section 2.10(d).

1.58 “Commercially Reasonable Efforts” shall mean, witspect to (a) the Development Activities that axNer Party
is required to perform with respect to the ComboraProduct pursuant to the Development Plan, pthg& Commercialization Activities that a
Member Party is required to perform with respedh®s Combination Product pursuant to the Commereitibn Plan, as the case may be, the
level of effort that would generally be used by arvber Party to conduct such development or comaléraiion activities in a manner
consistent with the minimum level of expendituratsmplated for such activities by the Developmemddget or Commercialization Budget, as
the case may be, for a product or compound ownetdsyto which it has rights, which is of compal@imarket potential, profit potential or
strategic value to such Member Party and is atéasi stage in its development or product life,itakinto account, without limitation, issues
safety and efficacy, product profile, the propnigtposition, the then-current competitive envirominir such product or compound (and any
individual agent comprising part of such productompound), the likely timing of the product’s amepound’s (and any such individual
agent’s) entry into the market, the then-currentkeiapenetration, the return on investment potéofiguch product (and any individual agent
comprising part of such product), the regulatoryiemment and status of the product (and any imlial agent comprising part of such
product), and other relevant scientific, technarad commercial factors, in each case as measurtitelfgicts and circumstances at the time
such efforts are due.

1.59 “Commercial Record Request” shall have the meas@tdorth in Section 5.10(b).

1.60 “Competing Product” shall mean (@) in the case itdédal as the assigning Member Part{#]a, and (b) in the case
of BMS as the assigning Member Party*]a.

1.61 “Confidential Information” shall have the meanirgt $orth in Section 12.3(a).

1.62 “Continuing Member Party” shall mean a Member Partyso designated pursuant to Section 14.5.

1.63 “Control” or “Controlled” shall mean, with respetct any item of Information and Inventions, Patemtsther
intellectual property rights, the right, whetherdwnership, license or otherwise, to grant a lieessiblicense or other right to or under such

item, Patent or right as provided for in this Agrest without violating the terms of any agreementtber binding arrangement with any Tt
Party. For purposes of this Section 1.63,




the consent referred to in Section 6.12 shall lserd®l to have been obtained as of the Effective.Date
1.64 “Core Technology” shall mean the BMS Core Technglogthe Gilead Core Technology, as the case may be
1.65 “Cost Allocation Proposal” shall have the meaniegferth in Section 5.12.
1.66 “Cost of Goods” shall have the meaning set forti\imex J hereto.
1.67 “Court” shall have the meaning set forth in Sectlénl5.

1.68 “Detail” shall mean an in-person presentation teealth care provider specializing in treatment 0f lihfection or
AIDS, and who has prescribing authority, by a sadgsesentative who is fully equipped with knowledd, and (subject to Section 5.7)
Approved Marketing Materials and product labels arsgrts with respect to, the Combination Prodincivhich the characteristics of the
Combination Product are described by such salgeseptative in a fair and balanced manner consigtiéim the requirements of Applicable
Law and of this Agreement, and in a manner thatiggomary in the industry for the purpose of prdngpa prescription pharmaceutical
product, but without regard to the position of gliesentation within a call to the health care ptewi For the avoidance of doubt, a promoti
material drop or product reminder shall not constita Detail. When used as a verb, to “Detail'llshaan to engage in a Detail.

1.69 “Detail Equivalent Amount” shall mean, for the 200&lendar Year and the 2006 Calendar Yg&r, and for each
successive Calendar Year thereafter, such amowatdjasted by th§] for each such Calendar Year.

1.70 “Developing World